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Jennifer B. Zargarof (SBN 204382)
Jzargarof@sidley.com

Sonia A. Vucetic (SBN 307414)
svucetic@sidley.com :

SIDLEY AUSTIN LLP

555 West Fifth Street

Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone: +1 213 896 6058
Facsimile: +1 213 896 6600

Attorneys for Defendants

CVS Health Corporation; CVS Pharmacy,
Inc.; Garfield Beach CVS, LLC; and CVyS
Rx Services, Inc.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHER DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

RYAN HYAMS, an individual, on behalf
of himself, and all others similarly
situated, ,

Plaintiff,
Vs.

CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, a
Rhode Island Cogfporation; CVS
PHARMACY, INC., a Rhode Island
COI’CE)OI'atIOI_l; GARFIELD BEACH CVS,
LLC, a California Corporation; and CVS

CASE NO.

NOTIVE OF REMOVAL
PURSUANT TO 28 U.S.C. §
1332, 1441 AND 1446
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Corporation; DOES 1 through 25,
inclusive, ,

Defendants.

First Amended State Complaint Filed:
September 7, 2018

State Action Served: September 12, 2018
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TO THE CLERK OF THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR
THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendants CVS Health Corporation, CVS
Pharmacy, Inc., Garfield Beach CVS, LLC and CVS Rx Services, Inc. (collectively,
“Defendants”), hereby remove the state court action captioned Ryan Hyams, et al. v.
CVS Health Corporaton, et al., Case No. CGC-18-569060 (the “State Court
Action”), from the California Superior Court for the County of San Francisco to this
United States District Court for the Northern District of California pursuant to 28
U.S.C. §§ 1332, 1441(a)-(b), and 1446. In support of this Notice, Defendants state
as follows:

THE PARTIES AND THEIR CITIZENSHIP
1. Defendant CVS Health Corporation is now, and was during all relevant
times, a corporation organized under the laws of the Delaware, with its principal
place of business in Woonsocket, Rhode Island. Declaration of Melanie Luker
(“Luker Decl.”) at ] 3-5. Thus, CVS Health Corporation is a citizen of Rhode
Island for purposes of diversity jurisdiction, and is not a citizen of California. 28

U.S.C. § 1332(c).
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2. Defendant CVS Pharmacy, Inc. is now, and was at all relevant times, a
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Rhode Island, with its principal
place of business in Woonsocket, Rhode Island. /4. at 99 9-11. Thus, CVS
Pharmacy, Inc. is a citizen of Rhode Island for purposes of diversity jurisdiction,
and is not a citizen of California. 28 U.S.C. § 1332(¢).

3. Defendant CVS Rx Services, Inc. is now, and was at all relevant times, a
corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York, with its principal
place of business in Woonsocket, Rhode Island. /d. at 99 6-8. Thus, CVS Rx
Services, Inc. is a citizen of the States of New York and Rhode Island for purposes
of diversity jurisdiction, and is not a citizen of California. 28 U.S.C. § 1332(c)(1).

4. Defendant Garfield Beach CVS, LLC is now, and was at all relevant
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times, a limited liability company organized under the laws of the State of
California. Luker Decl. at § 12. For purposes of diversity jurisdiction, however, a
limited liability company takes on the same citizenship as its owners/members.
Johnson v. Columbia Props. Anchorage, LP, 437 F.3d 894, 899 (9th Cir. 2006).
Garfield Beach CVS, LLC’s sole member is CVS Pharmacy, Inc. Luker Decl. at q
12. As set forth above, CVS Pharmacy, Inc. is a citizen of the State of Rhode
Island. Luker Decl. at  12. Accordingly, Garfield Beach CVS, LLC is also a
citizen of the State of Rhode Island, and is not a citizen of the State of California.
See Johnson, 437 F.3d at 899.

5. Plaintiff Ryan Hyams (“Plaintiff”) was a California employee of CVS.
Plaintiff is a resident of California. First Amended Complaint (“FAC”) at 9 3.
Defendants’ records also show Mr. Hyams’s last known address as 1160 Mission
Street, Unit 1810, San Francisco, California 94103, Declaration of Sonia A.
Vucetic (“Vucetic Decl.”), at ] 8. Residence is prima facie evidence of domicile.
See State Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co. v. Dyer, 19 F.3d 514, 520 (10th Cir. 1994).
Accordingly, Plaintiff is a citizen of the state of California, and, for purposes of

diversity jurisdictions, is not a citizen of the States of Rhode Island, New York or

Delaware.
6. The putative class is alleged to consist of “current and former
[pharmacists] of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time within the
period beginning four (4) years prior to the filing of this action and ending at the

time this action settles or proceeds to final judgment ....” FAC q15.

7. Defendants’ company records indicate that the vast majority of these
putative class members have last known addresses located within the state of
California. Vucetic Decl. at § 7. Therefore, Defendants assert and affirmatively
allege that at least one (and probably almost all) of the members of this putative
class are not citizens of the State of Rhode Island or Delaware, and are instead

citizens of California.

3
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TIMELINESS OF REMOVAL

8. The State Court Action was filed in the Superior Court for the County of
San Francisco on or about August 21, 2018. Jd. at 2. The First Amended
Complaint was filed on September 7, 2018. Id. at 2. On September 12, 2018, Mr.
Hyams served Defendants CVS Health Corporation, CVS Pharmacy, Inc. and CVS
RX Services, Inc. Id. at 3. After receipt and review of the First Amended
Complaint, Defendants became aware of the grounds for removal pursuant to the
Class Action Fairness Act. Thus, this Notice of Removal is timely, having been
filed prior to the expiration of thirty days “after receipt by the defendant, through
service or otherwise, of a copy of an amended pleading . . . from which it may first
be ascertained that the case is one which is or has become removable.” 28 U.S.C. §

1446(b).

REMOVAL JURISDICTION UNDER THE CLASS ACTION FAIRNESS
ACT
9. This Court has original jurisdiction over this action under the Class

Action Fairness Act of 2005 (“CAFA”), 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d). Inrelevant part,

CAFA grants district courts original jurisdiction over civil class actions filed under

federal or state law where the following factors are met: (1) any member of a class
of plaintiffs is a citizen of a state different from any defendant; (2) the putative class
size exceeds 100 persons§ (3) the aggregate amount in controversy exceeds
$5,000,000, exclusive of interest and costs; and (4) the primary defendants are not
states, state officials, or other government entities against whom the district court
may be foreclosed from ordering relief. As set forth below, this case meets all of
CAFA’s requirements for removal and is timely and properly removed by the filing
of this Notice.

Minimal Diversity

10. In the present case, the minimal diversity requirement of the CAFA has

4
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been met. As noted above, Defendants are citizens of Rhode Island, Delaware, and
New York, and Plaintiff is a citizen of Califofnia, and at least one member of the
putative class is a citizen of a state other than Rhode Island, Delaware, or New
York. FAC at § 3; Luker Decl., 9 3-5, 6-8, 9-12. Accordingly, the minimal
diversity requirement of the CAFA is satisfied in two separate and equally sufficient
manners. See 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2)(A), (B).

11. Additionally, Defendants are not states, state officials, or other
government entities against whom the district court may be foreclosed from
ordering relief.

The Propdsed Class Contains At Least 100 Members

12. With respect to the CAFA requirement of numerosity, Plaintiff brings
this action on behalf of himself and all “current and former [pharmacists] of
DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time within the period beginning
four (4) years prior to the filing of this action and ending at the time this action
settles or proceeds to final judgment . ...” FAC at 9 15. Defendants’ records
confirm that the proposed class contains over 5,800 members. Vucetic Decl. at q17.

The Amount In Controversy Exceeds $5 Million

13. While Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint does not set forth the precise
amount of money being sought from Defendants, the allegations herein make it
clear that the aggregated amount in controversy for the putative class exceeds
$5,000,000. See 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(6) (“the claims of the individual class
members shall be aggregated to determine whether the matter in controversy
exceeds the sum or value of $5,000,000”).

14. Defendants’ burden to demonstrate the amount in controversy is low.
They need to show only that there is “reasonable probability that the stakes exceed
[the $5,000,000] minimum.” Brill v. Countrywide Home Loans, Inc., 427 F.3d 446,
449 (7th Cir. 2005).

15. Plaintiff asserts causes of action for: (1) Failure to Provide Required

5
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Meal Breaks; (2) Failure to Authorize and Permit Required Rest Breaks; (3) Failure
to Pay Overtime; (4) Failure to Pay Minimum Wages; (5) Failure to Pay Timely
Wages Due at Termination/Waiting Time Penalties; (6) Failure to Pay All Wages;
(7) Failure to Reimburse for Employment Related Expenses; (8) Failure to Maintain
Required Records; (9) Failure to Furnish Accurate Itemized Wage Statements; (10)
Failure to Provide Written Notice of Paid Sick Leave; (11) Failure to Provide One
Day’s Rest in Seven; (12) Failure to Comply with California Labor Code Section
850 and 851; (13) Unfair and Unlawful Business Practices; and (14) Penalties under
the California Labor Code Private Attorneys General Act, as Representative Action.
Plaintiff pursues these claims on behalf of the putative class/putative collective.

16. Plaintiff alleges, among other things, that Plaintiff and the putative class
“were subject to the same policies, practices and conduct that [have knowingly]
resulted in . . . Routinely working through meal and/or rest breaks without proper
compensation for the same, including payment of penalties for interrupted meal
and/or rest breaks . . . Routinely working off-the-clock when answering work-
related text messages and/or when forced by management to continue to work while

clocked out, without receiving wages, premium pay, or minimum wages for the off-
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the-clock time worked . . . No compensation for unpaid wages and/or premium pay
at the time of termination . . . Use of personal cell phones without adequate
reimbursement . . . Receipt of inaccurate wage statement . . . Lack of receipt of
adequate written notice of paid sick leave; g. Routinely working without receiving
one day’s rest in seven . . . Routinely working in excess of the prescribed time
limitations set forth in Labor Code sections 850 and 851.” FAC at 99 28, 33-41.
Plaintiff further alleges that Defendants “acted pursuant to common, company-wide
policies and practices regarding the provision of meal and/or rest breaks; the
practice of requiring employees to work off-the-clock; scheduling employees for
work; the Company’s payroll and wage payments to employees, including the

provision of wage statements; reimbursements of necessary business expenses; time

6
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and pay recordkeeping; and notice to employees of paid sick leave.” FAC at 4 29.
17. Plaintiff further alleges that his claims “are typical of all class members”

(FAC §48(B)) and seeks, among other things, compensatory damages, restitution,

liquidated damages, penalties, and injunctive relief. (Prayers 1, 2, 4, 5,6, 7).

a. Waiting Time Penalties, Cause of Action 5.

18. Plaintiff alleges that he and putative class members are entitled to
waiting-time penalties and seeks “30 days’” worth of their average daily wages as a
penalty under Labor Code section 203.” FAC at 9 96.

19. California Labor Code §§ 201, 202 and 203 require timely payment of
wages upon termination of employment (immediately for fired employees, and
within 72 hours if an employee quits). If an employer willfully violates these
requirements, Cal. Labor Code § 203 states that the employer must pay a “penalty”
to the employee of the employee’s regular wage rate for each day the wages remain
unpaid up to 30 days.

20. According to company records, Mr. Hyams made $76 per hour at the
time of the termination of his employment. Vucetic Decl. 9 10; Declaration of

Howard Kobey (“Kobey Decl.”), at 99 3-4; see also FAC at q5.
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21. According to company records, over 2,200 individuals who fall within
Mr. Hyams’ class definitions are former employees, i.e., potentially entitled to
waiting time penalties pursuant to Cal. Labor Code § 203. Vucetic Decl. at  8;
Kobey Decl. at 9 3-4. According to company records, the average rate of pay for
the former employees who fall within Mr. Hyams’ class definition is $65. Vucetic
Decl. at § 15; Kobey Decl. at §f 3-4.

22. Thus, Mr. Hyams’ waiting-time claim (Cause of Action 5) alone puts
over $34,320,000 at issue. ($65 per hour * 8 hours per day * 30 days * 2,200
individuals).

b. Total Amount In Controversy

23. Assuming the truth of Plaintiff’s allegations, and even looking at only

7
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one of his 14 claims, the amount in controversy in this case far exceeds $5,000,000.
Plaintiff’s waiting time claims alone put over $34,320,000 at issue.

24. This amount does not include additional amounts for Plaintiff’s alleged
wage statement claims, meal and rest break penalties, unpaid overtime,
underpayment of wages due, reimbursement of business expenses owed, and
attorney fees on behalf of the putative class. Thus, the amount in controversy
threshold has been met and it is clear that there is “a reasonable probability that the
stakes exceed $5,000,000.” Brill, 427 F.3d at 448-89. Accordingly, removal is
proper. 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d).

25. Further, while 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(3) & (4) does recognize situations
where this Court may or must decline jurisdiction despite the fact that the minimal
diversity and the amount in controversy requirements of §1332(d)(2) are satisfied,
this case does not fall into either category because Defendants are not citizens of
California. See 28 U.S.C. § 1331(d)(3) (discretionary declination of jurisdiction is
limited to situation where “the primary defendants are citizens of the state where the
action was originally filed””) and 1332(d)(4)(A) (local controversy mandatory
declination limited to where “at least one defendant is . . . a citizen of the State in
which the class action was filed”); see also 1331(d)(4)(B) (home state controversy
mandatory declination limited to cases where “the primary defendants are citizens
of the State in which the action was originally filed”). Additionally, Plaintiff
shoulders the burden of establishing that any of these exceptions apply. Hart, 457
F.3d at 681 (“Our holding [is] that the plaintiff has the burden of persuasion on the
question whether the home-state or local controversy exceptions apply.”).

//
1/
VENUE
26. Venue is proper in the Northern District of California pursuant to 28

U.S.C. §§ 84(a) and 1441(a) because it is the district embracing San Francisco

8
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County, California, the county in which the State Court Action was pending. Venue
is also proper in the Northern District of California pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §
1391(b)(2), because a substantial part of the events giving rise to the alleged claims

occurred in the Northern District of California. FAC at 9 5-14.

DEFENSES
27. The removal of this action to the Northern District of California does

not waive Defendants’ ability to assert any defenses in this action.

7 PLEADINGS

28. On August 21, 2018, Plaintiff filed a Complaint captioned Ryan Hyams
v. CVS Health Corporation, et al., Case No. CGC-18-569060, in the Superior Court
of the State of California, County of San Francisco. Vucetic Decl. at 92.0On
September 7, 2018, Plaintiff filed a First Amended Complaint (“FAC”) to add a
Private Attorneys General Act of 2004 (“PAGA”) claim. Id. at§2. On September
12, 2018, Defendants received service of the Summons and First Amended
Complaint, along with a Notice of Case Management Conference and an Alternative
Dispute Resolution Program Information Packet. On October 10, 20 178,7be7fendant
filed and served an Answer to the First Amended Complaint. Id. at § 4.

29. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(a), a copy of all process, pleading, and

orders served upon and by Defendants is attached hereto as Exhibits 1-4.

NOTICE TO PLAINTIFF AND THE STATE COURT
30. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d), in addition to serving a copy of this
Notice of Removal on counsel for Plaintiff, Defendants are filing in the San
Francisco Superior Court and serving upon counsel for Plaintiff a separate

document entitled “Notice of Filing of Notice of Removal to Federal Court.”

9
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1 Accordingly, Defendants respectfully request that the State Court Action be

2 || removed in its entirety to this Court.

Date: October 12, 2018 SIDLEY AUSTIN LLP

~ Jennifer B. Zargarof

Sonia A. Vucetic
Attorneys for Defendants
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Douglas R. Hart, SBN 115673
dhart@sidley.com

Jennifer B. Zargarof, SBN 204382
jzargarof@sidley.com

gonla A. Vucetic, SBN 307414
svucetic@sidley.com

SIDLEY AUSTIN LLP

555 West Fifth Street, Suite 4000
Los Angeles, California 90013
Telephone: (213) 896-6000
Facsimile: (213) 896-6600

Attorneys for Defendants

CVS Health Corporation;

CVS Pharmacy, Inc.;
Garfield Beach CVS, LLC; and
CVS Rx Services, Inc.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

RYAN HYAMS, an individual, on
behalf of himself, and all others
similarly situated,

Plaintiff,
Vs.

CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, a
Rhode Island Corporation; CVS
PHARMACY, INC., a Rhode Island
Corcporatxon' GARFIELD BEACH CVS,
LLC, a California Corporation; and CVS
RX SERVICES, INC., a New York
Corporation; DOES 1 through 25,
inclusive,

Defendants.
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DECLARATION OF HOWARD
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DECLARATION OF HOWARD KOBEY

I, Howard Kobey, hereby declare as follows:

1. I am currently a Senior Director, Human Resources Shared Services, for
CVS Pharmacy, Inc. (“CVS”). I make this Declaration in support of Defendant’s
Notice of Removal of Action Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1332(a), 1441(a), and 1446.
All of the information set forth herein is based on my personal knowledge, or
information and belief based where stated, and if called and sworn as a witness, |
could and would competently testify thereto. -

2. In my capacity as Senior Director, Human Resources Shared Services, I
am required to be and am readily familiar with CVS’s payroll, timekeeping, and
personnel policies. As the Senior Director, Human Resources Shared Services, I also
have access to CVS’s employee payroll records.

3. In support of this Notice of Removal, I was provided with, the following
payroll data generated from CVS’s payroll system: (1) the names of all Pharmacist
employees who worked for any CVS retail location in the state of California from
August 21, 2014 to the present; (2) their employment status; (3) their last or current
rate of pay; (4) their date of hire; and (5) their termination date (if applicable).

4. An excel spreadsheet containing the aforementioned payroll data was
made available to CVS’s outside counsel, J,ermifer B. Zargarof, without making any
changes or alterations to it.

5. [ declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the United States of
America and the State of California, that the foregoing is true and correct, and that thig

declaration is being executed the 12" day of October, 2018, in the City and State of

e 2\ ‘” -/

7 'Howard Kobey /

Woonsocket, Rhode Island.

2
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SIDLEY AUSTIN LLP
555 West Fifth Street, Suite 4000
Los Angeles, California 90013
Telephone: (213) 896-6000
Facsimile: (213)896-6600

Attorneys for Defendants

CVS Health Corporation;

CVS Pharmacy, Inc.;

Garfield Beach CVS, LLC; and
CVS Rx Services, Inc.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

RYAN HYAMS, an individual, on
behalf of himself, and all others
similarly situated,

Plaintiff,
VS.

CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, a
Rhode Island Corporation; CVS
PHARMACY, INC., a Rhode Island
CoEporatior;; GARFIELD BEACH CVS,
LLC, a California Corporation; and CVS
RX SERVICES, INC., a New York
Corporation; DOES 1 through 25,
inclusive,

Defendants.

Case No.

DECLARATION OF MELANIE K.
LUKER IN SUPPORT OF
DEFENDANTS’ NOTICE OF
REMOVAL

State Action Filed: August 21, 2018
Amended Action Filed: September 7, 2018

State Action Served: September 12, 2018

DECLARATION OF MELANIE K. LUKER
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DECLARATION OF MELANIE K. LUKER

I, Melanie K. Luker, hereby declare as follows:

l. I'am currently a Manager, Corporate Services and Assistant Secretary for
CVS Pharmacy, Inc., (“CVS”). I make this Declaration in support of Defendant’s
Notice of Removal of Action Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1332(a), 1441(a), and 1446.
All of the information set forth herein is based on my personal knowledge, or
information and belief based where stated, and if called and sworn as a witness, [
could and would competently testify thereto.

2. In my capacity as Manager, Corporate Services, I am readily familiar
with CVS’s day-to-day business operations and corporate governance and have access
to corporate structure information concerning employees and payroll. I am also
required to be and am familiar with CVS’s payroll, timekeeping, and personnel
policies, and I have access to employee personnel records.

3. CVS Health Corporation is a corporation incorporated under the laws of
the State of Delaware with its principal place of business, headquarters, and center of
direction, control, and coordination in Woonsocket, Rhode Island.

4. CVS Health Corporation’s corporate decisions generally are made in
Woonsocket, Rhode Island, including its operational, executive, administrative, and
policymaking decisions. The majority of CVS Health Corporation’s executive
officers principally conduct their business from headquarters in Rhode Island.

5. The administrative functions crucial to CVS Health Corporation’s day-to-
day operations are conducted in Woonsocket, Rhode Island. The respective officers
for those departments work in Woonsocket, Rhode Island, and are responsible for
developing policies and protocols for CVS Pharmacy, Inc.’s nationwide operations.

6. CVS Rx Services, Inc. is a corporation incorporated under the laws of the
State of New York, with its principal place of business, headquarters, and center of
direction, control, and coordination in Woonsocket, Rhode Island.

7. CVS Rx Services, Inc.’s corporate decisions generally are made in

2
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Woonsocket, Rhode Island, including its operational, executive, administrative, and
policymaking decisions. The majority of CVS Rx Services, Inc.’s executive officers
principally conduct their business from headquarters in Rhode Island.

8. The administrative functions crucial to CVS Rx Services, Inc.’s day-to-
day operations are conducted in Woonsocket, Rhode Island. The respective officers
for those departments work in Woonsocket, Rhode Island, and are responsible for
developing policies and protocols for CVS Rx Services, Inc.’s nationwide operations.

9. CVS Pharmacy, Inc. is a corporation incorporated under the laws of the
State of Rhode Island with its principal place of business, headquarters, and center of
direction, control, and coordination in Woonsocket, Rhode Island.

10.  CVS Pharmacy, Inc.’s corporate decisions generally are made in
Woonsocket, Rhode Island, including its operational, executive, administrative, and
policymaking decisions. The majority of CVS Pharmacy, Inc.’s executive officers
principally conduct their business from headquarters in Rhode Island.

11. The administrative functions crucial to CVS Pharmacy, Inc.’s day-to-day
operations are conducted in Woonsocket, Rhode Island. The respective officers for
those departments work in Woonsocket, Rhode Island, and are responsible for
developing policies and protocols for CVS Pharmacy, Inc.’s nationwide operations.

12.  Garfield Beach CVS, L.L.C. is a limited liability company organized
under the laws of the State of California. Garfield Beach CVS, L.L.C. has a sole
member, CVS Pharmacy, Inc.

13. I declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the United States of
America and the State of California, that the foregoing is true and correct, and that this

declaration is being executed the 12t day of October, 2018, in the City and State of

Woonsocket, Rhode Island.
LLMM
Melanie K. l\,}Jker
3
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Douglas R. Hart, SBN 115673
dhart@sidley.com
Jennifer B. Zargarof, SBN 204382
gzargarof sidley.com

onia A. Vucetic, SBN 307414
svucetic@sidley.com
SIDLEY AUSTIN LLP
555 West Fifth Street, Suite 4000
Los Angeles, California 90013
Telephone: (213) 896-6000
Facsimile: (213) 896-6600

Attorneys for Defendants

CVS Health Corporation;

CVS Pharmacy, Inc.;

Garfield Beach CVS, LLC; and
CVS Rx Services, Inc.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

RYAN HYAMS, an individual, on
behalf of himself, and all others
similarly situated,

Plaintiff,
Vs.

CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, a
Rhode Island Corporation; CVS
PHARMACY, INC., a Rhode Island
cOGCoratlon; GARFIELD BEACH CVS,
LLC, a California Corporation; and CVS
RX SERVICES, INC., a New York
Corporation; DOES 1 through 25,
inclusive,

Defendants.

Case No.

DECLARATION OF SONIA A.
VUCETIC IN SUPPORT OF
DEFENDANTS’ NOTICE OF
REMOVAL

State Case No.: CGC-18-569060
State Complaint Filed: August 21, 2018

Am. Complaint Filed: September 7,
2018

State Action Served: September 12,
2018

DECLARATION OF SONIA A. VUCETIC
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DECLARATION OF SONIA A. VUCETIC
I, Sonia A. Vucetic, hereby declare as follows:

1. I 'am an associate with the law firm of Sidley Austin LLP, counse] for
Defendants CVS Health Corporation, CVS Pharmacy, Inc., Garfield Beach CVS,
LLC, and CVS Rx Servicés, Inc. (“Defendants”). I make this Declaration in support
of Defendants’ Notice of Removal in the above-captioned action. I have personal
knowledge of the facts set forth in this Declaration, or know of such facts from my
review of the case documents and the court docket in this matter. If called and sworn
as a witness, I could and would competently testify thereto. As counsel for
Defendants, Sidley Austin LLP maintains in the ordinary course of its business all
pleadings served on or by Defendant in the above-captioned action.

2. I understand that on or around August 21, 2018, Plaintiff Ryan Hyams
(“Plaintiff”) filed an action entitled Ryan Hyams v. CVS Health Corporaton, et al.,
Case No. CGC-18-569060, in the Superior Court of the State of California, County of
San Francisco (“the Action™). I understand that on or around September 7, 2018,
Plaintiff filed a First Amended Complaint in the above-referenced Action to add a
Private Attorneys General Act of 2004 claim.

3. I also understand that on September 12, 2018, Defendants received
service of the Summons and First Amended Complaint, along with a Notice of Case
Management Conference and an Alternative Dispute Resolution Program Information
Packet, all of which are attached hereto as Exhibits 1, 2, and 3 respectively.

4, On or around October 10, 2018, Defendant filed and served an Answer to
the First Amended Complaint, attached hereto as Exhibit 4.

5. Exhibits 1 through 4 constitute all process, pleadings, and orders filed by
and/or served by Defendants or on Defendants to date.

6. All of the following statements are based on my review of the payroll

data I received from the Company.

2

DECLARATION OF SONIA A. VUCETIC
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7. According td CVS’s records, there are over 5,800 individuals who fall
within Mr. Hyams’ class definition. The vast majority of these employees have last
known addresses located Within the state of California.

8. Of the 5,800 individuals who fall within Plaintiffs class definition, these
individuals, over 2,200 are former employees. According to CVS’s records, the
average rate of pay for the former employees who fall within Plaintiff's class
definition is $65 per hour.

0. According to CVS’s records for Plaintiff, Plaintiff was a Pharmacist as of]
December 16, 2015, and remained in that position through his termination, which was
effective August 24,2017. CVS’s records show Plaintiff's last known address as
1160 Mission Street, Unit 1810, San Francisco, California 94103.

10.  According to CVS’s payroll records, at the time of Plaintiff's
termination, Plaintiff’s hourly rate of pay was $76.

1. I declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the United States of
America and the State of California, that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed

on the 12th day of October in Los Angeles, California.

—

Sonia A. Vucetic

3
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&. CT Corporation

TO: Serviceof Process

CVS Health Companies
1 Cvs Dr Mail Code 1160

Filed 10/12/18 Page 2 of 298

Service of Process
Transmittal
09/12/2018

CT Log Number 534043770

Woonsocket, Rl 02895-6146

RE: Process Served in California

FOR: CVS Pharmacy, Inc. (Domestic State: RI)

ENCLOSED ARE COPIES OF LEGAL PROCESS RECEIVED BY THE STATUTORY AGENT OF THE ABOVE COMPANY AS FOLLOWS:

TITLE OF ACTION:

DOCUMENT(S) SERVED:

COURT/AGENCY:

NATURE OF ACTION:

ON WHOM PROCESS WAS SERVED:

DATE AND HOUR OF SERVICE:
JURISDICTION SERVED :
APPEARANCE OR ANSWER DUE:

ATTORNEY(S) /| SENDER(S):

ACTION ITEMS:

SIGNED:
ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE:

RYAN HYAMS, ETC., ET AL., PLTFS. vs. CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, ETC., ET AL.,
DFTS.

Summons, Complaint, Exhibit(s)

San Francisco County - Superior Court - San Francisco, CA
Case # CGC18569060

Employee Litigation - Wrongful Termination
C T Corporation System, Los Angeles, CA
By Process Server on 09/12/2018 at 14:53
California

Within 30 calendar days after this summons

Beth Gunn

Gunn Coble LLP
101 S. 1st Street
Suite 407
Burbank, CA 91502
818-573-6392

CT has retained the current log, Retain Date: 09/12/2018, Expected Purge Date:
09/17/2018

Image SOP

Email Notification, Serviceof Process Service_of_Process@cvs.com

C T Corporation System
818 West Seventh Street
Los Angeles, CA 90017
213-337-4615

Page 1 of 1/ AB

Information displayed on this transmittal is for CT
Corporation's record keeping purposes only and is provided to
the recipient for quick reference. This information does not
constitute a legal opinion as to the nature of action, the
amount of damages, the answer date, or any information
contained in the documents themselves. Recipient is
responsible for interpreting said documents and for taking
appropriate action. Signatures on certified mail receipts
confirm receipt of package only, not contents.
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SUM-100

d L VOO Sumons et i i | molBR RO e
(CITACION JUDICIAL) .

NOTICE TO DEFENDANT: CVS 1ICALTHH CORFORATION, a Rhode Island

{AVISO AL DEMANDADO): Corporation, CVS PHARMACY, INC., a Rhode

1sland Corporation, GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC, a California Corporation, and
CVS RX SERVICES. INC.. a NY Corporation, DOES | through 23, inclusive

YOU ARE BE!NG SUED BY PLAINTIFF: RY AN HYAMS, an individual, on
(LO ESTA DEMANDANDOC EL DEMANDANTE) behalf of himseif, and all
others similarly snuated

NOTICE! You have been sued. The court may decide agains! your without your being heard uniess you respond within 30 days. Read the information
below.

You have 30 CALENDAR DAYS after this summons and legat papers are served on you 1o file a writlen response at lhls coutt and have a copy
served on the plalntiff. A tefter or phone call will not prolect you. Your written response must be.In proper legal form if you want the court te hear your
case. There may be a court form that you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and more information at the California Cours
Online Sell-Help Center (www.courtinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), your county law fibrary, or the courthouse nearesl you. If you cannot pay the filing fee. ask
the court clerk for @ fee waiver form. If you do not file your response on time, you may lose the case by default, and your wages, money, and properly
may be taken without further warning from the court.

There are othér tegal requirements. You may want to call an aitomney right away. If you do not knovs an altomey, you may want to call an atlormney
referrat service, f you cannol afford an attorney, you may be eligible for free legal services from a nonprofit legal services program. You can locale
these nonprofit groups at the California Lega! Services Web site (www.Jewhelpcalifomnia.org), the California Couris Online Sell-Help Center
(wawnw.courtinfo,ca.gov/selfheip), or by contacling your local court or county bar association. NOTE: The court has a statutory fien {or waived fees and
costs on any seftlement or arbitration award of $10,000 or more in a civil case. The court’s lien must be paid before the court wili dismiss the case.
jAVISO! Lo han demandado. Sino responde dentro de 30 dlas, la corfe puede decidir en su contra sin escuchar su varsién. Lea la informacién 8
continuacién.

Tiene 30 DIAS DE CALENDARIC despuds de qua e entreguen esta citadi6n y papeles legales para presentar una respuesta por esctito en esta
corte y hacer que se entregue uha copla al derandante, Una canta o una llamada telefénica no fo protegen. Su respuesta por escito tiene que estar
on formato legal correclo S desea que procesen su Caso en 13 conte, Es posible que haya un formulano que usted pueda usar pare su respuesta.
Puede encontrar estos formularios de la corte ¥y mas informacién en el Centro de Ayuda da fas Contes de California fervew . suconte ca.gov), en la
biblisteca de layes de su condado ¢ en la corta que le quede mas cerca, Sf no puada pagarla cucta de presentatién, plda al secretanio de la corte
gue fe dé un formulario de exencidén de pago de cuotas. Sino presenta su respussia a tiempo, puedes perdar ef caso porincumplimiento y la corte 1o
podrd quitar su sueldo, dinero y bienes sin mds advertencia.

Hay otros requisites legales. Es recomendable que llame & un abogado inmediatamente. Si no conoce a un abogado, puede llamar & un servicio de
remision a abogados. Si no pueds pagar a un abogado, es posible que cumpla con los requisitos para obfener servicios legales gratuitos de un
programa de servicios legales sin fines de lucro. Pueds enconirar estos grupos sin fines de lucro en ef sitio web de Cafifornia Legal Services,
{wvaw.lawhelpcalifornia .org), en ef Cenlro de Ayuda de las Cortes d2 California, (vww.sucorte.ca.gov) o poméndosa en contacto con la corte o ef
colegio de abogados locales. AVISO; Por ley, la corte tiene derecho & reclamar las cuotas y los costos exentos por imponer un gravamen sobre
cualquier recuperacién de $10,000 6 més de valor recibida medisnte un acuerdo o una concesidn de arbifraje en un caso de derecho avil. Tiene que
pagar el gravamen de la corte anfes de gue fa corte pueda desechar sl caso,

The name and address of the court is: CASE NUMBER. CGC 18-569060
(El nombre y direccion de la corte es): (Wimerd ael Case,

Superior Count of California, County of Sin Francisco
400 McAllistér Strect

San Francisco, California 94102

The name, address, and telephone number of plaintifi's attorney, or piaintiff without an attorney, is:Catherine ). Coble

(El nombre, la direccién y el nimero de teléfono del abogadeo del demandante, o del demandante que no tiene abogado, es):

GUNN COBLE LLP

101 S, 1st Street, Suite 407, BURBANK, CA 91502 (818)900-0695
DATE: e I DTV Clerk, by \! 5 » Deputy
(Fecha) St“ 1o 2[”8 R K LTY.CLERK {Secretario) Bgm" ‘N (Adjunto)

{For proof of service of this summons, use Proof of Service of Stmmons (form POS-010).)
{Para prueba ds enirega de esla citatién usa el formulario Proof of Service of Summons, (POS-010)).
NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served

1SEAL 1. [[_] as anindividua! defendant.
2. [ as the person sued under the fictitious name of (spacify):
NS pdrma el «anc.; 4
3 on behalf of (specify): p{g j}c_l 4 CI’IVWH‘M)/\_/
uhder: CCP 416.10 (corporation) CCP 416,60 {minor)
CCP 416.20 {defunct corporation) CCP 416.70 (conservatee}
] CCP 416.40 (association or partnership) :] CCP 416.90 (authorized person)
_ (] ather (specity):
4. (1 by personal defivery on (date):
Pogo 1 of 1
Form Adopled for Landatory Use . : SUMMONS Code ol Civil Proceure §§ 412 20, 465
Juticial Counti of Cubior
SUM-100 [::_ Juyg 1, zog] w....."f"f.ﬁ.m%ﬂ
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| himself, and all others similarly situated,

1DOES 1 through 25, inclusive,

Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 4 of 298

BETH GUNN, CA Bar No. 218889

beth@gunncob]e com ELECTRONICALLY .

CATHERINE J. COBLE, CA Bar No. 223461 - -~ - FILED

cathy@gunncoble.com: _ Sgpcrio; Court of Catifornia;

GUN‘N COBLE LLP ounty of San Francisco .

101 S. st Street, Suite 407 %ﬁ(&?t/h gg‘}lﬁ
Burbank, CA 91502 L , :

Telephone: - 818.900.0695 o B oty Clork

Facsimile: 818.500.0723
Attorneys for Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS,
on behalf of himself, and all others. 51m11arly situated
SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

RYAN HYAMS, an individual, on behalf of Case No. CGC-18'-569060‘

CLASS ACTION FIRST AMENDED

Plaintiff; - COMPLAINT
. vs, : ' , 1. Failure To Provide Required Meal Periods;
2. Failure To Authorize And Permit Required
Cvs HEALTH CORPORATION; a Rhode Rest Breaks; '

Island Corporation, CVS PHARMACY INC, a
Rhode Island Corporation, GARFIELD BEACH
CVS, LLC, a California Corporation, and CVS

RX SERVICES INC.. a New York. Corporatlon

Failure To Pay Overtime;

.Failure To Pay Minimum Wages;

Failure To Pay Timely Wages Due At

Termination/Waiting Time Penalties; -

Failure To Timely Pay All Wages;

Failure To Reimburse For Employment

Related Expenses;

Failure To Maintain Required Records;

9. Failure To Furnish Accurate ltemized
Wage Statements;

10. Failure To Provide Written Notice Of Paid
Sick Leave

11. Failure To Provide One Day’s Rest In
Seven

12. Failure to Comply With California Labor
Code Sections 850 and 851

_ 13, Unfair And Unlawful Business Practices;

. : 14. Penalties Under The California Labor

: Code Private Attorneys General Act, As
Representative Action - '

Lo

~ o

Defendants.

oo

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL.

N
CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
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Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS (“PLAINTIFF”), an individual, on behalf of himself and all other
persons sﬁni;'arly situated, hereby alleges against Defendants CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, '
CVS PHARMACY, INC., GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC, AND CVS RX SERVICES, INC.
(“DEFENDANTS”) as follows: |

INTRODUCTION |
- L DEFENDANTS, thé largest pharmacy chain in the country, a “Fortune 10” -
company, publicly avows its purpose as “helping people on the path to better health.” See CVS
Health’s Corpqrate Social Responsibility Report, https:/!cvshealth.com/sites/default/ﬁles/ZO17-csr-
full-report.pdf. This commitment is hollo_w' in light of DEFENDANTS’ continuous and intentional
violation of California’s wage and hour laws, which were designed specifically to protect the.

health and well-being of the state’s citizens. Deviating from the law-abiding practices of its

‘competitors, DEFENDANTS unfairly compete in the marketplace by flouting the California Labor

Code (“Labor Céde”) in multipie ways. The most obvious of DEFENDANTS?” illegal practices is

their blatant scheduling of pharmacy employees to regularly work shifts far in excess of the limits-

imposed by Califomia law “‘enacted as a measure for the protecuon of the public hea]th " See

Labor Code § 855. Th;s illegal conduct injures not only the pharmacy employees but

DEF ENDANTS"customers who depend on them “on the path to better health.”
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. . This class action is brought pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedu_r_e section
382. The ‘mqnetal"y damages, penalties, and restitution sought by PLAINTIFF exceed thevmi'nima]
jurisdiction limits of the Superior Court and will be established according ta proof at trial.

3. " The Suéerior Court of the State of California has jurisdiction in this matter because
PLAINTIFF is a resident of the State of California. Moreover, upon information and belief, two-
thirds or more of the class members and at legst one of 'DEFENDANTS is a citizen of California,
the alleged wage and hour \f.iolati.ons occurred in California, s-igniﬁcant relief is being sought
against DEFENDANTS whose violations of California wage and hour laws form a significant basis
for PLAINT lF F’s claims, and no other class action has been filed within'the pést three (3) ye;rs on

behalf of the same proposed class against DEFENDANTS asserting the same or similar factual
. i . ) 2
CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
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allegations. Further, no. federal qu'esiior.il is at issue because the claims are based solely on
California law and at least DEFENDANT GARFIELD BEACH_CVS, LLC is a resident of, and/or
regularly conducts business.in tile State of Califorhia, as well as its principal place of busiiies{s is
located within California. D |

4. Venue is proper in this _]udICIal district and the County of San Francisco, California
because PLAINTIFF and or.her persons similarly situated, performed work for DEFENDANTS in
the County of San Francisco, DEFENDANTS maintain offices and facilities and transact business
in the County of San Franeisco, and DEFENDANTS" illegal practices, which are the subject of this
action, were applied‘ at l'ea's't'in part; to PLAINTIFF and other persons similarly situated in the
County of San Francisco. Thus, a substantlal portion of the transactions and occurrences related to
this action occuwrred in this county. Cal Civ Proc. Code § 395.

PLAINTIFE

5. PLAINTIFF is:a former non-exempt employee who worked as a pharmacist for
DEFENDANTS for more than two years. At the end of his employnient with DEFENDANTS,
PLAINTIFF was earning $76/hour. PLAINTIFF is a resident of San Francisco County, California.

6. As a pharmacist, PLAINTIFF’S primary duties were to safely and accurately .
dispense approi(irnat'ely 250-300 prescriptions per-day to DEFENDANTS’ customers. 'I"his_
included reviewing prescriptions provided to the pharmacy (either in writing or over the phone),

checkmg for drug interactions and precautions contacting physicians where appropnate advising

patients regarding the use of thelr prescriptions pursuant to Califorma law, entering information in

DEFENDANTS’ systems, and dispensmg and packaging medications to DEFENDANTS’
customers. When pharmacy technicians were unavallable, PLAINTIFF would also work at the
pharmacy cash register to ring up sales of prescriptions and other items at the pharmacy. A
pharmacist was required to be on the premises during all hours of operation, to comply with.
operanona] policies and procedures |

7. During hlS employment, PLAINTIF F would regularly worL more than 9 hours per
day on average, and more than 108 hours in two consecunve week periods. DEFENDANTS

utilized a centralized scheduling procedure where he and other pharmacists were routinely
. 3 : .
. CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
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scheduled for [2-hour shifts. On occasion, PLAINTIFF would work more than 12 h01l1rs per day,
for which DEFENDANTS would then pay him double-time. There also were occasions where he
worked more than 12 days in a consecutive two week period. DEFENDANTS oﬁen failed to
provide PLAINTIFF with a rest day as reqwred under the Labor Code.

8. Each day, before clockmg in.on DEFENDANTS’ computer and after clockmg out at
the end of the day, PLAINTIF F would perform work for-his position, as required by
DEFENDANTS. - . '

9. As part of his job duties and respdnsibili'ties, PLAINTIFF would receive text

‘messages on his personal-cell phone from his supervisor fo discuss work-telated matters.

10. DEFENDANTS relied on PLAINTIFF, a loyal employee, to fill in at other

phan'nacieé; to ensure their business needs were met, which required PLAINTIFF to drive great

| distances, stay at a hotel, and staff a phanﬁacy‘by himself for days at a time. At all locations,

P.LA[NT'IFF was entitled to, butl did noi receive uninterrupted rﬁeal and rest breaks.

11.  PLAINTIFF was not paid for the time he spent reviewing andl responding to text
messages from his supeﬁzisor relating to work for DEFENDANTS while off-the-clock.
Additionally, PLAINTIFF néver—rece_ived any réimbursement from DEFENDANTS for the
personal use of his cell phone to conduct busmess for DEFENDANTS

12. During the course of PLA]NTIFF’S employment, he accrued vacation time pursuant
to DEFEI_NDANTS’ vaqatlon policy. When PLAINTIFF’S employment with DEFENDANTS .
endeéd, he was only pﬁd a portion of his accrued, but unused vaéation.‘ DEFENDANTS ‘fa.i"lec_l 10
provide lﬁr.h with his accrued vacation time in violation of the Labor Code.

13.  For a portion of his eﬁployment’, in violation.of Labor Code Section 246(i),
DEFENDANTS failed to prdvide PLAINTIFF, of other aggrieved employees, with written noﬁce
se&ing forth the amount of paid sick leave available, or Paid -time off the Company provides in lieu
of sick léave_. 'PLAINTIFF did not receivé all of the sick time.to which he was entit]ed.

14.  Throughout his _'em‘ploymcnt with DEFENDANTS, PLAINTIFF was routinely
unable to take his uninterrupted meal and rest breaks due to DEFENDANTS’ under-staffing and

fi]]-time‘m»etrics, and his inability to. leave the work premises. During the breaks lie was able to
. 4 e
CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
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take, after clocking out and before clocking.back in, PI.J_A'[NTIF'F was routinely interrupted with
pharmacy questions. - PLAINTIFF was also asked to sign a waiver, wherein, on a standing basis

without regard to the actual busingss needs, he waived all of his second meal penods PLAINTIF F

‘was not paid any penaltles for these interrupted meal andfor rest breaks.

THE CLASS
15. - PLAINTIFF bnngs this actlon on behalf of himself and all 51m11arly situated c]ass
of individuals (“CLASS MEMBERS” or THE CLASS”) pu_rsuant to.California Code of Civil
Procedure section 38§ THE 'C-LASS'is-deﬁned as foliows All current and former employees of
DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time within the period begmmng four (4) years
prior to-the filing of this action and endmg at the fime this action settles or proceeds to final
judgment (the “CLASS PERIOD”). ‘
| 16. PLAINTIFF also seeksto represent. the following subclasses (collectively,
“SUBCLASSES?”), defined as follows
: “NON EXEMPT EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS "which is defined as all current
and former non-exempt employees.of DEFENDANTS in the State of_f California
at any time within the CLASS PERIOD.

b. “PHARMACY EM’PLOYEE SUBCLASS,” \;\(hioh is defined as all current and
former emoloyees of DEFENDANTS in the State of Ca.liforoia'at any time
within the CLASS PERIOD who were employed to sell at retail drugs and
'medlemes orto compound physicians' prescnptlons

¢. “FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all former

| employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California atany time within the
" CLASS PERIOD. ' |

d. “BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current and
former employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time
within the CLASS PERIOD who. used personal cell phones for work- related

purposes w1thout adequate relmbursement

e. “VACATION PAY SUBCLASS » which is defined as all current and former
5
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employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at ahy time within the -
| CLASS PERIOD who were nét’ provided all vacation time, or wages in lieu
thereof, in cbmpliance.with Cﬁlifdljnia'law. . | |
17.  PLAINTIFF reserves the right to redefine the definitions of THE CLASS or
SUBCLASSES as appropriate based on further investigation, discovery, and specific the;)riels,of
labilit,. |
. DEFENDANTS

'18-. DEFENDANTS operate the largest retail pharmacy chain in the United States, with

{hundreds of physical locations in Ca!ifomia, including standalone stores and locations within

Target branded stores. As part of their operations, DEFENDANTS employ pharmacists to, among’

other things, dispense medications, counsel patients on the use of prescription and over-the-counter

{| medications, and advise physicians about medication therapy. In many locations DEFENDANTS

also employ pharmacy technicians to assist with the-dispensation of medication to its custor.ners,,
though there are CV'S locations. where only a pharmacist is employed to handle.all pharmacy
operations. . _ ’

19. | At all times relevant hereto, DE-FENDA.NTS were, anc_ifare, corporations authorized
to do-business in the. State of California and do in fact conduct business in the State of Califorﬁia.
Specifically, upon information ‘and belief, DEFENDANTé maintain_ facilities and ;onduct business
in the County of San Franc1sco State of Cal1forma Spemﬁcally,

a. DEFENDANT CVS HEALTH CORPORATION isa corporatlon organized
under the laws of the State of Rhode Island that is engaged in the business of
operating retail stores that, sell pharmaceuticals and general merchandise and
provide pharmacy services throughout the State of California. _

b. DEFENDANT Ccvs PHARMACY INC. is a corporation organized under the

~ laws of the State of Rhode Island that is engaged in the business of operatmg
retail stores that sell pharmaceuticals and general merchandise and provide
pharmacy services throughout the State of California.

c. DEFENDANT GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC. (collectively with
6
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]

DEFENDANTS CVS RX SERVICES, INC., and CVS PHARMACY, INC.)isa
limited liability gombany organized under the laws of the State of California that |
is engéged in business as a phanﬁacy and. miedical. supplier:to CVS retail stores
located throughout the State of California. |
d. DEFENDANT CVS RX SERVICES, INC. is a corporation organized under the | -
law;s of the State of New York that is engaged in the business of pi'oviding |
pharmacy services througﬁout the S.t'ate of California. -

20. The true names and capacities of DOES 1 through 25, inclusive (“DOES”), are
m1knowﬁ to PLAINTIFF at this tirnp, and PLAINTIFF -therefore sues.such DOE Defendants under
fictitious names. PLAINTIFF is informed. and believes, and thereon alleges, that éach Defendant
designated as a DOE is in some manner highly responsible for tﬁe occurrences alleged herein, and
that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS injuries and damages, as alleged herein, were
proximately caused by the conduct‘of:such DOE Defendants. PLAINTIEF will seek leave of the.

‘court to amend this complaint to allege the true names and capacities of such DOE Defendants when

ascertained. _
21.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges, that- each
DEFENDANT acted in all respects pertinent to this action as the agent of the other DEFENDANTS,

| carried out a joint scheme, business plan or policy in all respects pertinent hereto, and the acts of '

eac-h DEFENDANT are legally attributable to the other DEFENDANTS.

22, PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that CVS HEA'LTH
CORPORATION, CVS PHARMACY, INC, GARFJELD BEACH CVS, LLC, and CVS RX
SERVICES, INC each employed PLAINTIFF, in that they exercised control over PLAINTIFF’s
wages, hours or working conditions, suffered and permitted PLAINTIFF to work, and/or engaged
PLAINTIFF to work. See Martinez v. Combs (2010) 49 Cal.4th 35, 64. Any of the three is sufficient
to create an employment relati—onship; Ochoa v. McDonald's_' Corp., 133 F. Supp. 3d.1228, 1233
(N.D. Cal. 2015). o

23, To thg extent one or more of DEFENDANTS did not direc'tly hire, fire, or supervise

PLAINTIFF, PLAINTIFF. further alleges that, upon information and belief, one or more
7 ,
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DEFENDANTS control the business enterprises 6f'on‘e‘ or more of the other DEFENDANTS, theret;y
creating an eniplf)yment'relationship With PLAINTIFF. See Castaneda v. Ensign Group; Inc. (2014)
229 Cal.App.4th 1015, 1017-1018; Guerrero v, Superior Court (2013) 213 Cal.App.4th 912, 950.

24.  Asadirect and proximate result of the unlawful actions of DEFENDANTS,
PLAINT,IFF'a_nd CLASS MEMBERS have suffered, and continue to suffer, from loss of earnings
in amounts as yet unasbertained, but subject to prbof attrial, and within théjun'sdiction of this
Court. N |

25.  All DEFENDANTS compelled, coerced, aided, é.nd/or'abéned the illegal conduct

.al_leg_éd in this Complaint, which.conduct is prohibited under the Labor Code. All DEFENDANTS

were. responsible. for the events and damages alleged herein, including on the following bases: (a)

DEFENDANTS committed the acts alleged; (b). at all relevant times, one or more of the

DEFENDANTS was the agent or émployee, and/or acted under the control or supervision of, one or

| more: of the. remaininé_DEF ENDANTS and, in commitﬁng the acts alleged, acted within the course

and scope of such agency and employrnent and/or is or are othervnse hable for PLAINTIFF’s

| damages; (c) at all relevant times, there existed a unity of ownership and interest between or among

{those DEFENDANTS such that any ;nchwduallty and separateness between or among these

DEFENDANTS has ceaséd, and DEFENDANTS are the alter egos of one another. DEFENDANTS }.

exercised domination and control over one another to such an extent that any indi.viduality or

| ‘separateness of DEFENDANTS does not, and at all times herein mentloned did not, exist. Adherence

to the fiction of the separate existence of DEFENDANTS would permit abuse of the corporate
privilege and would sanction fraud and promote. injustice. All actions of all DEFENDANTS were
taken iny em_p]oyees, éupervisbrs, e).cecu.tives, officers, and directors during employment with all
DEFENDANTS, were faken on beb%tlf of all DEFENDANTS,'and were engaged in,' authorized,
ratified, a.nd,approve_d: of by all other DEFENDANTS.

26 Finally, at.all releva:-lt times mentioned herein, all DEFENDANTS acted as agents of
all other DEFENDANTS in committing the acts alleged herein. '

NI
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CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

- 27. DEFENDA’\ITS employed, and continue 10 employ, employees throughout
California dunng the last four (4) years
28. Basedon informatlon and belief, PLAINTIFF believes that other members-of THE

CLASS and SUBCLASSES were subject to the same pohcnes practices and ¢onduct that resulted

|in the followmg:

-a. Routinely \;\rorking.through meal ahd/or rest breaks without proper
eompengation for the same, including the payment of penalties for interrupted
meal ant:l]or rest breaks; |

b. Routi_ne'ly' working off-the-elock'when a_n-swer'i.n,g work-related text messag'es
and/or when forced by management to continue to work while clocked out,
without receiving wages, premium pay, or minimum wages for the off-the-clock
time worked; ' |

¢. No compensation for unpaid wages and/or premium pay at the time of
terminat__ion; -
d: Uee of personal cell phones without adequate reimbursement;

e. Receipt of inaccurate wage statements;

b L

Lack of receipt of adequate written notice of paid sick leave;
g. Routmely workmg without receiving one day’s rest in seven; and
h. Routinely workmg in excess of the prescnbed time limitations set forth in Labor
Code sections 850 and 851.

29. DEFENDANTS acted pursuant to connnon,lcompany-wide policies and practices
regarding the provision of meal and/or rest breaks; the practice of requiring employees to work off-
the-c}ock' scheduling erhployees for work; the Company's payroll and 'wage payments to
employees, mc]uchng the provision of wage statements; reimbursements of necessary business
expenses; time and pay recordkeepmg, and notice to employees of paid sick leave.

30.  Inparticular, DEFENDANTS’ reliance on performance and/or prescription fill-time

metrics, centralized scheduling systems, managerial instructions, and operational policies and
. =

CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT




Case 4:18-cv-062?8-HSG Ddcufheht 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 13 of 298

procedures applied on a class-wide basis.

31..  Upon information and Belief, DEFENDANTS maintain a single, centfaliz‘ed Human
ResoUrc‘és,deparhnent, which is r;esp'vonsiblc for the hiring of new employees, cdllecting. and.
processing all new hire paperwork, ér_ld communicating and impiementiné DEFENDANT S’
company-wide policies and préctices, inicluding_ timekeeping policies, meal aﬁd rest break policies,
sick tirﬁe:poiicies, vacation time 'poli'cics, and bayroll policies and practices applicable to their
employees in California. - _

32, On information and beiief, PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS received the same -
standardized documents and/or written policies. Upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS
createci ﬁxﬁfonn policies and procedures at the corporate level and implemented them
company\yide-, regardless of the employees’ location. |
- 33. PLAiNTIFF is in‘formcd and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should ha'vé know that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to meal
periods in accordance with the Labor Codé or payment of one (1) édditiona} hour of pay at the
regular rate:when PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not provided with timely,
uninterrupted, thirty (30) minute meal periods and that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were
not provic.led with all meal periods or payment of 'omf: (1 )- additional hour of pay at their regulaf rate
when PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS did not receive a timely, uninterrupted th.irty (30)
minute meal period. \ - '

34, PLAiNTI_FF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEF ENDANTS.
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to
uninterrupted rest periods in accordance with the Labor Code and Industrial Wage Order (“IWC™)
Wage Order 7-2001 or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at their regular rate when
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not authorized and permitted to ta!(e compliant rest
periods and that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not authorized and permitted to take
compliant rest periods or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at their regular rate when
PLAlNTiF F and CLASS MEMBERS were not provided a compliant rest period.

35. . PLAINTIFF is informed and believes and thereon alleges that DEFENDANTS
‘ 10
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knew or should have known that PLAI'NTiFF and CLASS MEMEBERS were entitled to receive
and did not receive overtime c‘ompensatibn for work that DEFENDANTS knew or should have
known was performed. - | |

36.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should bave known that_.P_LA[NTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS we_re-cntitle'd to receive at
least mi'nimur'n wages for compensation and that, in violation of the Labor Code, they were not
receiving at least minimum wages for-work that DEFENDANTS knew or should have known was
performed. ‘ . |
A 37.-  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes; and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew. or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to timely
payment of wages upon termination of employment. In violation of the Labor Code,.
DEFENDANTS did not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS all wages due, including, but
not limited to, overtime wages, miﬁimum wages, and meal and rest period premium wages, v_vithin
statt;torily required time periods. |

38. PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS

knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to timely

‘payment of wages during their emplbyment. In violation of the Labor Code, DEFENDANTS did

not pay PLAINTIFF and‘C.LASS‘MEMBE'RS all wages, including, but not limited to, ov.ertime '
wages, minimum wages, aﬁd‘meal and rest period .prenﬁuh wages, within statutorily required time
periods.’ | _

_ '39.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at all times herein
mentioned, DEFENDANTS kﬁew or should have known that .DEFENDANTS had a duty to
compensate PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS for all hours worked, and that DEF ENDANTS
had the financial ability to pay such compensation but willfully; knowingly, and intentionally failed
to do so in violation of the Labor Code. |

40. PLAJNTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have knﬁwn that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to receive full

reimbursement for all business-related expenses and costs they incurred during the course and
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scope of their employmerit, and that they did not receive full reimbursement of applicable business-

‘related expenses and costs in violation of the Labor Code.

41.  PLAINTIFF is 1nformed and believes, and thereon alleges that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that theyhad a'duty to mamtam- accurate and complete payroll records

in accordance with the Labor Code and IWC Wage Order-7 200] but willfully, knowmgly, and

intentionally failed to do 50.

42. Upon infennat_ioh and belief, DEFENDANTS m_aintaln a centralized Payroll
department at their company headeuéiters, which processes payrqll for all employees working for
DEFENDANT S at their various I_ocatiens in California, including PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS. Based upoe lnformation aed belief, DEFENDANTS issue the same formatted wage
statelnen_ts to all employees in California, irrespective.of their work location. PLAINTIFF is
informed,and be,lieves, end thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS knew or should have known_that.
P.LAINTIF F and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to receive complete and accurate wage
statements in accerdance with Califpmia law. In violation of the Labor Code, DEFENDAﬁTS did
not provide PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS witl*l complete and accurate wage statements.

43, PLAINTIFF is informed and-believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have kn‘owp that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to written

notice of paid sick leave or paid time off available. In violation of the Labor Code,

|| DEFENDANTS did not provide to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS written notice of paid

sick leave or paid time off a'vailable.

44, PLAINTIF F is informed and believes, and thereon alleges that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to one day’s
rest in seven, and that they did not-receive one day’s rest in seven in violation of the Labor Code.

45, PLAINTIFF is inl'orrned and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not to perform any
work in any store, dispensary, plmarmacy_, laboratory, or office l"or more than an average of nine
hours per day, or for more than 108 hours in any two consecutive weeks or for more than 12 days

in any two consecutive weeks, and that DEFENDANTS should not have requlred PLAINTIFF and
12 -
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CLASS MEMBERS to do so, but that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS did work an average
of more than nine hours per day and/or more than 108 hours in any two conseciitive weeks or miore
than 12 days in any two consecutive weeks in violation of the Labor Code at DEFENDANTS’ |
direction. |

'SATISF ACTION OF CLASS ACTION CRITERIA

46. ' PLAINTIFF brmgs th.lS action on his own behalf as well as on behalf of each and
all other persons similarly situated and seeks class ceruﬁcatlon of THE CLASS and
SUBCLASSES under Cahforma Code of Civil Procedure section 382. Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 382.
47.  All claims alleged herem arise under California law for which PLAINTIFF seeks
relief authorized by Callfomla law.

48. The_re. is a well-defined community of interest in litigation and the class members

| are readily asccrtamable

A. umerosity: The members of THE CLASS and SUBCLASSES are so
numerous that joinder of all members would be unfeasible and impractical. The membership of the
entire class is unknown to PLAINTIFF at this time; however THE CLASS is estimated to be

greater than one thousand (1000) individuals and the identity of such membérship is readily

t}ascertainable by inspection of DEFENDANTS’ employment records.

B. Typicali:y: PLAINTIFF is qualified to, and will, fairly ana adequately
pro_fect the interests of each member of THE CLASS with whom he has a well-defined community
of interest, and PLAINTIFF’s claims (or defenses, if any) are typical of all class members as
demonstrated hel_feinl. ' A ‘ ) -

. - C. Adequacy: PLAINTIFF is qualified to, and will, fairly and adequately
protect the interest of each class member with whom he has a well-defined community of interest
and typicality of claims, as demonstrated herein. PLAINTIFF acknowledges that he has an
obligation to make known to the Court any relationship, conflicts, or differences with any C]f.iSS
member. PLAINTIFF’s attorneys, the proposed class counsel, are versed i_n ﬂue rules governing
class action discovery, certification, and settlement. PLAINTIFF has incurred, and throughout the

duration of thJs action, will continue to incur costs and attorneys’ fees that have been, are, and will
13
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be necessanly expanded for the'prosecution of this action for the substantial beoeﬁt-of each class
rmember. |

D. upenongy The nature of this action makes the use-of class action
ad_]udxcatlon superior to other methods. A class action will achieve economies of time, effort, and
expense as compared with separate lawsunts and w111 avoid mcons1stent outcomes because the _
same issues can be adJud1cated in the same manner and at the same time for the entire class.

E. Public Policy Considerations: California has.a stated public policy in favor
of class ac‘tion:s in this context for the vindication of empl.oyee rights and enforcement of the Labor
Code. Employers inthe State of California violate emp'loyment and labor laws every day. Current

employees are-often afraid to assert their rights out of fear-of direct or indirect retaliation. Former

'employees are fearful of bringing actions because they believe their former employers might

damage their future endeavors through negative references and/or other means. Class actions
prov1de the class members who are not named in the complaint w1th a type of anonymity that

allows for the vindication of their rights whlle simultaneously protecting their privacy.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Provide Required Uninterrupted Meal Perio(‘.is.'
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and 1198; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
({\gaiust ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

49 PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully-‘ stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above.,. ) -

50. Atall relevaot times, Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and 1198 have provided
that no employer shall require an employee to work during any meal period mandated by an
applicable order of the IWC. TWC Wage Order 7-200-1(i 1), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tlt 8
§ 11050.

| 51. At all relevant times-herein, LabOr.Code section 512 has provided that “[a]n
employer may not employ an employee for a work period of more than five hours per day without
prov1dmg the employee with a meal penod of not less than 30 minutes,” except that if the total

work period per day of the emp]oyee is not more. than six (6) hours, the meal period may be wawed
14
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control and must not perform any work for the employer If the employee does perform work for

| performed during this (3_0) minute meal peﬁod in addition to one (1) additional hour of

:c.ompénsation at each employe_e’s_ regular rate of pay for each workday that a meal period was not

| as required by Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and IWC Order No. 7-2001(1 1), codified at Cal.
| Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. ‘

by mutual consent of both the omployer, and employee. Cal. Lab. Code § 512(a). During this meal

period of not less than thirty (30) minutes, the employee is to be completely free of the employer's

the employer durmg this thirty (30) minute meal period, the employee has not been provided with a

duty-free meal period, in accordance with California law, and is to be compernisated for any work

providcd.‘ See also TWC Wage Order 7‘-2001(1 1), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

| 52,  Atall releva,nt times herem pursuant to Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), 1198
and the apphcable IWC Wage Order an employer may not employ an employee for a work period
of more than ten (10) hours per day without providing the employee with another meal period of’
not less than‘thir.ty (30) minutes, or to pay an employee one (1) additional hour of pay at.the.
employee’s regular rate, except that if the to-tol hours \;\forked is no more than twelve (12) hours, the
second meal period may be waived by mutoal consent of the employer and the employee on]y' if
the first meal period was not waived. ITWC Wage _Order 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Reés.
tit. 8 § 11050. _

53, Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS with.a full, thifty (30) minute uninterrupted meal period free from job duties,

54, At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS further violated Labor Code section
226.7 o.nd IWC‘Orde;No. 7-2001 by failing to compensate PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS
who were not provided with an uninterrupted meal périod or one (1) additional hour of
compensaéiOn at each empl,oyee’s regular rate of pay for each workoay‘ that a meal period was not
provided. Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(c), IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8
§ 11050.

55.  .Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS had, and continue to have, a company-

wide policy of failing to schedule and provide uninterrupted meal breaks for PLAINTIFF and
15
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CLASS MEMBERS. DEFENDANTS have understaffed, and continue to understaff, its locations
without providing sufficient meal‘break coverage, such that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS
were prevented from taking all timei‘y and uninterrupted thirty (30) minutes meal peﬁode; as such,
PLAINTIFF and C-LA‘_S_S- MEMBERS were routinely forced to WOrk_oft;-the.-c_lock_during their
meal pefiods. in or&er to coﬁaply with DEFENDANTS’ demands and instructions to meet pharmacy,
customers’ expecta_tions,' Moreover,' 'DlEFEN,DA;NTS did not provide PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS with a second mﬂﬁterrupte,d tﬁirty (30) minute meal period on days they worked over
ten (10) hours, as required by the Lebor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); IWC Order No. 7-
2001(1 1), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050

56.  Atall relevant times herein, as a result of DEFI:NDANTS’ scheduling policies and
understaffing, in order to meet DEFENDANTS’ expectations and customer demands, PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS were forced to miss and/or take late or interrupted meal breaks, in-

{ violation of the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); and IWC Order No. 7-2001(11),

codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050

57. . Atall times herein, DEFENDANTS knew, or should have known, that as a result of
DEFENDANTS’ scheduling policies and practices of understaffing, PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS. were forced to miss and/or take late or interrupted meal breaks, and that
DEFENDANTS did not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS meal period premium wages
when meai periods were late and/or interrupted. .

§8. | At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to properly calculate the regular rate of
pay for purposes of paying meal period premiums to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by
ineluding all compensation, such as shift differential pay and other compensation, as required b y
the Labor Code. See Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); and IWC Order No. 7-2601 (11), codified at
Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. .

59. DEFENDAI;ITS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and IWC
Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. | | '
| 60. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount-according

to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, expenses and costs of suit.
16
CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMEN_DED C_OMPLA_INT _




[PV I o ]

Lh

o 00~ O

Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG bocUment 144 Filed 10/12/18 Page 20 of 298

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
F'ail'.ure To Authorize And Permit Required Rest Breaks
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 226.7, 1198; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.)
' (Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

61.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set fbrth above. | |

62. " At all relevant times.herein, Labor Code sections 226.7 and 1198 and IWC Wage
Order 7-?00] were applicable to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS employed by
DEFENDANTS. '

63.  Atall relevant times herein, IWC Wage Order 7-200] has stated that “[¢]very
employer shall authorize and permit all employees to take rest periods ... at the rate of ten (10)

minutes net rest time per four (4) hours or major fraction thereof” unless the total daily work time

‘is less than three and one-half (3.5) hours. TWC Order No. 7-2001(12), codified at Cal. Code Regs.

tit. 8 § 11050.

64, Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code sec‘{ion 226.7_ brovides that “[a]n employer
shall not require an employee to work during a meal or rest or recovery pcrioc;l mandated pursuant
to an applicable statute....” Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(b).

65. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS regularly failed to authorize or permit
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS to take ten (10) m.inute'uninterrupted-re'st periods for each
four (4) hours worked, or major fraqtion thereof. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were
regularly denied uninterrupted rest pei'idds in violation of the Labor Code. IWC Wage Order 7-
2001, codified at Cal. Code Reés. tit. 8 § 11050; see also Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(b).

66.  Atail zteleyant times ﬁerein, DEFENDANTS’ staffing policies and scheduling
practices prevented PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS from being relieved of all duties in order
to take an uninterrupied re;lst break. DEFENDANTS failed to relinquish any control over how
employees spend their break time. See Au;gusn':s v. ABM Security Systems, Inc., 2 Cal. 5th 257, 266.
(2016). As aresult, PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS would work shifts in excess of 3.5

I hours, in excess of six (6) hours, and in excess of ten (10) hours, without receiving the

17
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umnterrupted ten (10) minute rest periods to Wthh they were entitled.

67. By DEFENDANTS® failure to authorize and permit PLAINTIFF and CLASS

worked per day, DEFENDANTS. vwllfully violated the Labor Code. IWC Wage Order 7-2001(12),
lcodiﬁed at-Cal. Code Regs. Fit. 8 § 11050L; see also Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7.

68."  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226.7 has provided that “[i}f an .'
employer fails to provide an employee a meal or rest or recovery period in accordance wit_h-a, state
law... the employer shall pa}; the eﬁu'ployee one additional hour of pay at the employee’s regular
rate of compensation for each workday that the meal or rest or recovery- period is not provided.”
Cal. Lab. Code §226.7(c); IWC Order N_o..7,-2001(12.), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

69. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS have had a compény-wide policy and
practice of not paying PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS rest period premiums when rest
periods were missed, late and/or mterrupted |

70. At all times herein, DEF ENDANTS failed to properly calculate the regular rate of
pay for purposes of paying rest period premiums to PLA_INT]FF and CLASS MEMBERS by
including all compensation, such as shift differe-ntial pay and other compensation, as required by
the Labor Code. See Cal. Lab. Co‘dcla §§ 226.7, 512(a); and IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at
Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050, | |

71.  DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 226.7, 1198, and IWC Order
No. 7-2001, codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. o

72. . PLAINTIFE_‘ and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek ail wages earned and due, penalties, interest, expenses, and costs of suit.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Pay Overtime
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 510, 1198; Cal, Code Regs. fit. 8 § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
73.  PLAINTIFF incorﬁoratc_ts by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each

. 18
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. 74.  Atall relevant times nelem Labor Code sechon 510 has mandated that any time
worked beyond eight hours in one workday or beyond 40 hours in any workweek must be
compgnsated at no less than one and one-half tirne;s the regular wage. See Cal. Lab. Code § 510(a),

75.  IWC-Wage Order-7-2001 further provides tha_t er_hployeesr “shall not be employed
more than eight (8) hours in any workday or more t.han 40 hours in any workweek unless the
employee receives one and one-half (1 ¥2) times such employee’s regular rate of pay for all hours-

worked over 40 hours in the workweek.” IWC Order No. 7-2001(3)(A), codified at Cal. Code

Regs. tit. 8 § 11050; see also Cal. Lab. Code § 1198.

76.  Atall relevant tlmes herem DEFENDANTS were required to compensate
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS for all overtime, calculated at one and one-half (1 ') times

the regular rate of pay for.all hours worked in eéxcess of eight (8) hours per day and/or forty (40) -

|hours per week, and for the first eight (8).hours on the seventh consecutive workday, with double-

time for all hours worked in excess of twelve (12) hours in any- vﬁ)rkday and foq all hours worked
in excess of eight (8) hours on the seventh consecutive day of work in any workweek. Cal. Lab.
Code. §§ 510, 1194, 1WC Wagg Order7.-2001(3)‘, codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

77.  Atall yelevam'tim'es herein, DEFENDANTS willfully failed to pay all overtixﬁe
wages owed to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS. During the CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS were not paid overtime premiums for all of 'T;he hours they worked in
excess of eight (8) hour.s in a day, in excess of twelve (12) hou‘rs in a day, in excess of eight (8)
hours on-the seventh (7th) cons_ec@tive day of work in a workweek, and/or in excess of forty (40)
hours in a week, begause all hours were not recorded. ‘ |

78. ' _ At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to compensate PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS for all overtime hours worked by: failing to pay overtime at one and one_:-half
(1 %) times or double the regular rate; rgqﬁiring, permitﬁng or suffering PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS to work through meal and rest periods;.and iriacdurately recording time in which
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked. | |

79.  Atall relevant times hcrein, DEFENDANTS’ failure to provide adequate coverage

for meal periods for PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS so that they could be relieved of all
19 :
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duties and take timely, ﬁninfe;rup.tgd-lhit';ty (30) minutes meal periods: forced PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS to work off-.the-ltl:.lo'c'llc ;:iuring meal periods to complete their assigned tasks.

80.  Atall relevant times hefein, DEFENDANTS had a company-wide, pattern and
practice of requiring PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS to communicate with DEFENDANTS
and DEFENDANTS’ other employees ‘uS‘in’g personal cellular phones, including during days off
and outside of scheduled shifts. DEFENDANT S knew or-should have known that PLAINTIFF and
CLASS. MEMBERS were cqnunmﬁcating with DEFENDANTS and other employees while off-
the-clock in order to meet DEFFND;ANTS’ demands, but DEFENDANTS failed to compensaté
PLAINTIFE or CLASS MEMBERS for this off-the-clock work. Therefore, PLAINTIEF and
CLASS MEMBERS were. not pald overtime wages for all overtime hours worked.

81. ‘At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to properly calculate the regular rate of

pay for purposes of paying overtime to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by including all

| compensation, such as shift differentia’l pay and other compensation, as required by the Labor

Code See A Ivarado v, Darl Containér-Corp. of California, 4 Cal.5th 542 (2018).
82. - DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 510 and 1198 and IWC

Order No. 7-2001(3), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.
83. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been darnaged in an amount according

to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and du, penalties, interest, expenses, attorneys’ fees

{and costs of smt..

FOUﬁTH CAUSE OF ACTION
. Failuf_é To Pay Minimum Wages _
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 1182.12, 1194, 1197, 11971, and 1198;
and Cal. Code Regs. Tit. 8, § 11050)
_(Agajnst ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 te 25) _
84 PLAfNTIF F incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
.arllcl every éllcgation set forth above:
85.  Atall relevant times herein, employers operating under California law must pay at

least minimurh wage.to thenr employees for all hours worked. TWC Order No. 7-2001(4) codified

. T 20
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at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 1 1(550; An employee not paid lat icast-m.inimum wage is eniitled to
recover the unpaid balanée of such wages. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 1182.12 and 1i94. In addition, an
employee is entitled to recover liqu_idatcd damages equaling the wages unlawfully unpaid, as well
as interest. Cal' Lab. Code §1194.2. An émployer failing 1o pay minimum wages must.pay a civil
penalty of $100 for the mltlal pay period and $250 for each subsequent pay period during which
such violations occurred. Cal I..ab Code§ 1197.1.

86. Atall reIevant times herem asa result of DEFENDANTS’ staffing and schedulmg
policies and practices, PLAINTIFF— and CLASS. MEMBERS were forced to miss or shorten their
meal periods in order to meet ]j_EFENDANTS’ expectations and customer demands. PLAIT;ITIF F
and CLASS MEMBERS w'e're also required to perform off-the-clock work on their days off and
outside of scheduled shifis, including using their personal cellular phones. ‘

87. At all relevant times hereil'i, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS minimum wages for all hours worked by: r_equiring,_ permitting or suffering
PLAINTIFF and CLASS.M_EMBERS to work off-the-clock t};rough- meal.and rest breaks;
requiring, per.mitting or suffering PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMEBERS to work off-the-clock

outside of scheduled shifts. including by uéMg their personal cell phone on their days off. Asa

result of these actions DEFENDANTS did not pay at least minimum wages for all hours worked by

PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS.

88. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 1182. 12., 1194, 1197,
1197.1, and 1198 and IWC Order No. 7-2001(4), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

89.  PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expenses, attorneys’ fees
and costs of suit.

| .FIFTH CAUSE. OF ACTION
 Failure To Pay Timely W.ages-Dué' At Termination/Waiting Time Penalties
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 201, 202, 203)
(Agamst ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

90. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
21
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and every allegation set forth above.
91.  Atall relevant times herein, pursuant to Labor Code sections 201 and 20?,

employers muist pay all wages due upon termiriation and, if an employer terminates:an employee,

| the employee’s wages are “due and payable immediately.” Cal. Lab. Code § 201. 'Pursuant to

Labor Code section 202, employers are required to pay all wages due to an employee no later than

| 72 hours after the employee quits employment, unless the employee provided 72 hours.of notice of

the intention to quit, in which case the employee is entitled to those w.f;ges at 'the time of quitting.
Cal. Lab. Code § 202. _ | /

92. At all relevant tim.es herein, Labor Code section 203 provides that “[i]f an empilo.yer.
willfully fails to pay... any -wage_'s of an employee who is discharged or who quits, the wages of the
gmployee shall continue as a penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate until paid or until
an action therefor is commenced; but the wages shall not continue for mﬁre than 30 days.” Cél.
Lab. Code § 203.

93.  Atall relevant times herein, PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE
SUBCLASS were entitled to, but did not receive, meal and rest peridd premium wages, overtime
wages, minimum wages, vacation wages, and all compensation owed to them.

94. When PLAINTIF F and the FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS separated from
employment with DEFENDANTS, DEFENDANTS willfully failed to pay all wages owed.:

95. DEFENDANTS! conduét violates Labor que sections 201, 202, and 203.

96.  As a consequence of DEFENDANTS’ willful conduct in not paying wages owed at -
the time of separation from employment, PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE |

SUBCLASS are entitled to 30 days’ worth of their average daily wages as a penalty under Labor

|| Code section-203. See Drumm v. Morningstar, 695 F.Supp.2d 1014 (N.D. Cal. 2010).

97. PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS have been damaged in an
amount according to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, expenses,

attorneys’ fees and costs of suit.

22
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SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
F.'ail.u re To Timely_ Pay All Wages
(Cal. Lab. Cotfle, sections 204, 1182.12, 1194, 1194.2, 1197, 1198,
and Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOE_S 1 to 25)

98. PLAINTIFF incorpbrates 'by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each

'and every allegation set forth above,

99, Atall times relevant herein, Labor Code section 204 has provided that all wages
eamed by any person in any employment between the first (1st) and the fifteenth (15th) ddays,
inclusive, of any calendar month, other than those wages due upon termination of an employee, are

due and payable between the sixteenth (16th) and the twenty-sixth (26th) day of the month during

‘which the labor was performed. Labor Code section 204 further provides that all wages earned by

any person in any. employment between the sixteenth (16th) and the last day, inclusive, of any
calendar month, other than those wages due upon termination of an'em'ployee, are due and payable
between the first (1st) and the tenth (10th) day of the following month. Cal. Lab. C;)de § 204(a).

100. At all times relevant herein, Labor Code section 204 has farther provided that all
wages earned for labor in excess of the normal work period shall be paid no later than the payday
for the next regular payroll period. Cal. Lab. Code § 204(b). Alternatively, at all times relevant
herein, Labor Code section 204 has provided that the requirements. of this section are deemed
satisfied by the payment of wages for'\a"eekly, biweekly, or semimonthly payroll if the wages are
paid not more than seven (7) calendar days following the close of the payroll period. Cal. Lab.
Code § 204(d). | | N |

101. Atall relevant times herein, Labor C“ode sections 1182.12, 1194, 1197,1 1977.1 and
1198 have provided that the minimum wage for employees fixed by the applicable IWC Wage
Order is the minimum wage to be paid to gmplojecs, and the payment of a wage less than the
minimum wage set by the fWC is unlawful. “.Hou:§ worked,” and therefore compensable time, is
defined in IWC Wage Order 7-2001 as “the time during which an employee is spbjcct to the

control of an employer, and includes all time the employee is suffered or permitted to work,
23 :
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whether or not required to do so...” 'IWC Wage Order 7-2001(K), codified at Cal Code. Regs. tit. 8
§11050Q2)(K).

102.  Atall rélevant times herein, D.EFEI.\IDANTS willfully failed to pay PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS aﬁ wages due including, but not limitéd to overtime wages, minimum wages,
and meal and rest penod premlum wages, w1t|:un the periods mandated by Labor Code section 204,

103. © At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay. PLAINTIFF and CLASS

| MEMBERS for ti_me spent by PLA]NTI_FF and CLASS MEMBERS answer—mg text messages

related to work and as reqﬁred b}/ DEF ENDANTS, which is deemed time worked and must be
compensated. - | '
104.  Atall relevant times herein, IWC Wage Order 7-2001 proi/ides that “[e]ach

workday an employee is required to report for work and does report, but is not put to work or is

| furnished less than half said employee’s usual or sche_:du]e_d_ day’s work, the er_n_blpyee shall be paid
for haif the usual or scheduled day’s work, but in ﬁo event for less than two (2) hours nor more .
| than four (4) hours, at the employee’s regular rate of pay.. P IWC Wége Order 7-2001(5), coc-iiﬁed
at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

105.  Atall times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS

MEMBERS for all work performed while off the clock, including checking, and responding to text

messages and completing opening and closing procedures.
106.  Atall times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS all wages owed at their le.galli prescribed_l_regular rate of pay.
107. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code secti_ons. 204,1182.12, 1194, 1194.2,
1197, 1198, and IWC Order No. 7-2001, codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.
_ 108. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages eamed and due, penalties, interest, expenses, attorneys’ fees

and costs of suit.

. 24 :
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SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure To Reimburse For Employment Related Expenses
k(xn Lab. Code section 2802)
(Agamst ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25) .
109. PLAINTIFF mcorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above

110. At all relevant times herein; Labor Code section 2802 has required an employer to

, indemm'fy an employee “for all necessary expenditures or losses incurred by the employee in direct

consequence of the discharge of his orher duties....” Cal., Lab. Code § 2802(a). This'includes

costs associated with the use of perspnal cell phones. for work-related purposes. “If an,employ_ee is

'required to make work-related calls ona personal cell phone, then he or she is incurring an expense

for purposes of section 2802.” Coc}_zra_n v: Schwan's Home Service, Inc., 228 Cal. App. 4th | 137,
1144 (2014).

111, At all relevant times he.rein,“PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE
SUBCLASS incurred necessary busine_ss-felated expenses and costs that were not rc;mbursed by
DEFENDANTS, including, but not limited to, the cost for cell phone usage. PLAINTIFF and the,
BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS were required to use their personal cell phones to exchange
text messages with DEFENDANTS’ management. DEFENDANTS did not provide PLAINTIFF
or the BUSINESS EXPENSE _SUBCLASS with a work-issued cell phone, nor has it rei,m_Bursed '
PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS for the necessary expenses they incurred

in using their personal cell phones for DEFENDANTS’ business.

112.  Atall relevant times, DEFENDANTS have intentionally and willfully failed to
reimburse PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS for necessary business-related
expenses and costs. ﬁEFENDAN.T S’ company-wide practice of requiring PLAINTIFF and the‘
BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS to use their own personal cellular phones for work violates
Labor Code section 2802.

| 113,  PLAINTIFF and the BUSIN ESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS have been damaged in an

amount accord{ng to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, attorneys’
25 .
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fees, expenses, and costs of suit.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION

- Failure To Maintain Required Records:
(Cal. Lab, Code sections 226(a), 226.3, 1174(d), and 1198.5; and Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8
§11050.)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

114. PLAINTIFF incorpox:ﬁtes- by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above.. . .

. 1 15.' At all relqvant times herein, Labbr Code section 1174 has provided that ever;;r
employer shall “[k]eep, at a central location in the state or at the plants or establishments at which
empldyees are employed, payroll records showing the hours worked &ai_ly. by and the wages paid
to, and the number of piece-rate units earned by and any applicable piece rate paid to, employees
employed at the respective plants or establishments. These records shall be kept ... on file '_foi' not
less than three years.” Cal. Lab. Code §1 174(d). _'

116. -Pursuant to IWC Wage Order 7-2001, employers are required to keep accurate time
records including, but not limited to, ;;vhen‘ the employee begins and ends each work pei-iod and
meal period. 1WC Order No. 7-2001(7), codified at Cal, Code Regs, tit. 8 § 11050. During the
CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANTS failed to keep accurate records of meal period start and stop
times for PLAINTIFF and CLASS ME_MBERS in violation of the Labor Code, Cal. Lab. Code
§1198.5; IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

117.  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226 pro.vides that an employer is to
‘maintain accurate records, :mcludi‘ng,l but not Iimite.d to: totaJ. daily hours worked by ea;:h
employee; applicable rates of pay; all .deductiuns; meal p;ariods; time records showing when each
employee begins and ’ends each work period; and accurate itemized statements. By
DEFENDANTS® company—wide policies énd practices of inaccﬁrately recording time in which
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked, including fail'in'g to record time during which
PLAINTIFE and CLASS MEMBERS worked, DEFENDANTS knowingly and intentionally failgd

to maintain records as required by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab..Code'§§ 226(a), 1174(d); see also
26 ' : '
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IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), cod:f cd at Cal. Code Regs tit. 8 § 11050,
118. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount accordmg
to proof at trial, and seek all wages eamed and.due, pen_alnes? interest, artomeys fees,’ e_xp_enses,

and costs of suit. -

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION
o Failure To Furnish Accueate Ifemized Wage Statements _
(Cal. Lab. Code section 226(a), 226(¢), 226.3, Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
| (Ag’ainst ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES '1 to 25) -
1 19. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and. realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above.
120.  Atall relevant times herein; Labor Code section 226. has required employers to

ﬁlmish each employee an accurate and itemized wage statement in writing that includes, but not

|limited to, total daily hours worked by each employee; applicable rates of pay; all deductions; meal

periods; and total hours worked. See Cal. Lab. Code § 226(a); IWC Waée Order 7-2001(7),
codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

121, At alt relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS systematically prov1ded PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS with mcomplete and inaccurate wage statements. The violations include,
without limitation, the fallure to accurately list the total daily hours worked by each employee total .
regular and overtime wages earned, the accurate regular rate of pay, or‘m‘eal and/or rest break
_premiums entitied to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS.

122. .At all 'relevargt times hereiri, DEFENDANTS’ failure to provide accurate itemized
wage 5tatement§ was a knowing and intentional act based on their-company,—wide policy and
practice of failing to pay all wages owed as set forth herein in violation of Labor Code. Cal. Lab.
Code §§ 226(a), 226(¢), 226.3. -

123. By DEF ENDANTS company~w1de policies and practlces of inaccurately recordmg
time in which PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked, DEFENDANTS knowingly and '
inteﬁtionaily-failed to maintain records as required by the Labor Code Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226(a),

226(e), 226.3; IWC Wage Order 7- 2001(7) codified at Cal. Code Regs tit. 8 § 11050:
27
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124. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged iri an amount accordiné
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, attorneys’ fées, expenses,
and costs of suit. '

 TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure To .‘Provide‘ Wl_fi_tten Notice qf P.i.!.id. Sick Leave
(€al. Lab. Code section 246(i))
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

125.  PLAINTIFF in(_:orporates by refgrence and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. | ‘ | |

126, Atall times herein, Labor Code section 246 has required that employers provide
employees with “written notice that sets forth the amount of paid sick leave availabie, or paid time
éff an einpl,oyer provides in lieu of sicl;. leave, either on the émployec"é itermized wage statemeni
described in section 226 or in a separate writing provided on the designated. pay date with _the,. |
‘em’pl'_oyee’é payment of wages.” Cal. Lab. Code § 246(i). ‘

127, Atall times hellein, DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS with the required written notice on wage statements and/or other separate written
statements that listed the requisite information set forth in. Labor Code section 246. Specifically,
DEFENDANTS’ wage statements fail to state PLAINTIFF’s and CLASS MEMBERS’ paid sick
leave balance, as required by the Labor-Code. Cal. Lab. Code § 246(i).

128. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violatés Labor Code section 246(i).

129, PLAINTIFF‘ and CLASS MEMBERS havg been damaged m an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, att_omeys,’.' fees, expenses,
and costs of suit. .

ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure To Provide One Day’s Rest In Seven
(Cal Lab. Code_se_ctions 581, 552, and 852)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

130. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
- 28
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and every. allegation set forth above. _

131.  Atall times herein, Labor Code section 551 has provided that “[e]very person
employed in any occupation of labor is entitled to-oné day’s rest thefiefrorri in seven.” Cal. Lab,
Code § 551. | ' - |

132." Atall times herein, Labor Code seéti'on 552 has provided that“[n]o employer of
labor shall cause his employees to work more than six days in seven.” Cal. Lab. Code § 552.

| 133.  Atall timies herein, Labor Code section 852 has provided that “{t]he employe.r shall
apportion th,e" periods qf rest to be taken by an employee so that the employee will have one
complete day of rest during each week.” Cal. Lab. Code § 852.

134. At alll times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to provide to PL;\INTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS the le'gallypmandatcd rest.days as required by California law. Further, “an embloyer’s
obligation is to apprise emplc;yees of their entitlement to a day of rest and thereafter to maintain
absolute rieu,trality asto the__exef_cisc of that right.” Menc'ioza v. Nordstrom, Inc., 2 Cal. 5th 1074,
1091 (2017). DEFENDANTS failed to provide this notice to PLAINTIFF and CLASS '
MEMBERS. - o |

135. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 551, 552, and 852.

136. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, pénalties:, interest, attorneys’ fees;, expenses,

and costs of suit, as well as relief pursuant to Labor Codé section 853.

TWELETH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure To Comply with Labor Code Sections 850 and 851
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 850 and 851)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
137.- PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully étated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. '
138. At all times herein, Labor Code section 850 has provided, in pertinent part, that

“l[n].o pefson employed to sell at retail drugs and _medicings or to compound physicians' |

prescriptions. shall perform any work in any store, dispensary, pharmacy, laboratory, or office for
' ' 29
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more.than an average of nine hours per day, or for niore than 108 hours in any two conse;:utive
weeks or for more than 12 days in any two consecutive weeks...” Cal. Lab. Code § 850.
139, Atall times herein, Labor. Code section 851 has prohibited employers from

r'equiri'ng employees covered by édction 850 to work in excess of the hours prescribed therein, See

1Cal. Lab. Code § 851

140.  Atall times herein, and n \/iqlatipn of Labor Code Section 851, DEFENDANTS
required PLAINTIFF and the PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS to work in ex.cess of the
hours prescnbed by Labor Code Sectlon 850. |

141. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 850 and 851.

142. PLAINTIFF and the PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS have been damaged .

in-an amount accordmg to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, mterest

attorneys’ fees, expenses, and costs of suit, , as well as relief pursuant to Labor Code section 853.

THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Unfajr And Unlawful Business Practices
(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code section 17200, et seq.)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 t0 25)

143.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fd]ly stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above.

144. At all times herein, California Business & Professions Code provides that “person™
shall mean and include “natural pérsons corporations, firms, partnerships, joint stock companies,
assoclatlons and other organizations of persons ” Cal. Bus..& Prof. Code § 17201.

' 145. Atall times herem DEF ENDANTS’ conduct, as alleged herein, has been, and
continues to be, unfair, unl;awful and harp‘n.ﬁx] to PLAINTIFF, CLASS MEMBERS, the general
public, and DEFENDANTS’ competitors. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have sdﬁ"ered
i'njury_inr fact and have lost money as a result of DEFENDANTS’ unlawful business practices.

146.. Atall times 'ilerein; DEFENDANTS’ activit‘ies, as alleged herein, are violations of
California law, and constitute false, unfair, fraudulent and deceptive business acts and practices in

v1olat10n of Cahforma Busmess & Professwns Code sections 17200 et seq-
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147.  Each and every one of the DEFENDANTS’ acts and omiissions in violation of the
Labor Code and IWC Wage Order 7-2001 as alleged herein,. including buf ot limited to
DEFENDANTS® failure to authorlze and provide uninterrupted meal periods; DEFENDANTS’
failure to authorize and pcrtmt unmterrupted rest penods, DEFENDANTS? failure to pay overtime
compensation; DEF ENDANTS’ fallure lo pay premium compensatlon at the legally prescribed
regular rate of pay; DEFENDANTS faxlure to pay minimum wages; DEFENDANTS failure to.
pay all wages due to tgnnmatgd employees-, DEFENDANTS’ failure to furnish accurate wage
Statements; DEFENDANTS’ failure to maintain -requ.ircd' records; DEFEN]jANTS’ failure to
provide. written notice of paid sick iqave; D.EF‘ENDANTS’ failure to provide one day’s rest in
seven; and DEF ENDANT S’ failure to comply with L«:abor Codé Sections 850 and 851 constitutes
an unfair and unlawful business practice und‘ef Ca]ifoﬁlia Business & P_rofeésions Code. sectipns _
17200 et seq.

143. DEFENDANTS’ violations of California wage and hour laws constitute a business

practice because DEFENDANTS* aforementioned acts and omissiéns were done repeatedly over a

{| significant period of time, and in a systematic manner, to the detriment of PLAINTIFF and CLASS

MEMBERS. |

149. Asa résult of the violations of California law herein described, 'DEF ENDANTS
unlawfully ‘gained an unfair advantage over other businesses. PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS have suﬁ‘ergdpecuniaryloss by DEFENDANTS’ unlawful business acts and practices
alleged herein.

150, Pﬁr_suant to California Business & Professions Code sections 17200 et seq.,
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS are entitled to restitution of the wages withht_ald and retained -
by DEFENDANTS during a period that commences four years prior to the filing oi; this complaint;
a p(;,rmanent 'mj unction reciLﬁring DEFENDANTS to pay all outstanding wages due to PLAINTIFF
and .CLASS MEMBERS; an award of attorneys’ fees pursuant to California Code of Civil .

Procedure section 1021.5 and other applicable laws; and an award of costs.

31

CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT




O 00 =1 O h

: Case 4:18-0\/'-062_78:-.'HSG ‘Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 35 of 298

FOURSI_‘_EENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Represeﬁt'étive:Actiongfor Civil Penalties
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 2698-2699.5)
(Against ALL'DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

151. PLAINTIFF mcor‘pc;ratﬁ_:s, by r_e:lferencé and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. | |

152. PLAINTIFF is an “aggrieved employee” within the meaning of Labor Code section
2699(c), and a proper répresentatiye to bring a civil actio;i_ on behalf of himself and other current
and former empldyees of DEFENDANTS 'pursuant. to the procedures specified in Labor Code
section 2699.3, because PLAINTIFF was employ_ed i)y DEFEN_DANTS'and the alleged violations

|| of the Labor Code were committed against PLAINTIFF.

153: Pursuant to the Privaic Attorneys General Act of 2004 (“PAGA”™), Labor Code
sectiohs 2698-2699.5, PLAINTIFf see:._ks to recover civil penalties, including but not limited to
penalties under Labor Code sec;ti(;n$l269§; 210, 225.5, 226.3, 558, 850, 851, 852, 853, 1174.5,
1197.1, and 1199, from DEFENDANTS in fcpresentative action for the viblations set forth above,
inclludir;g but not limited to violations of Labor Code sections 201, 202, 203, 226, 226.7, 510,512,
850, 851, 852, 8531174, 1194, 1197, 1198, and 2802. PLAINTIFF is also entitled to an award of
reasonable attorneyé’ feé:s and costs. pursuant to Labor Code section 2699 (g)(1). |

154.  Pursuant to Labor Code Sg-c_tion 2699.3, PLAINTIEF gave written notice by
certified mail to the Califomia Labor —and Workforce Development Agency (“LWDA”) and
DEFENDANTS of the spemﬁc prowsnons of the Labor Code and IWC Wage Orders alleged to
have been v1olated including the facts and theories to support.the a]legc—:d v1o]at10ns
PLAINTIFF’s notice to the LWD_A is attached as Exhibit A. Within sixty-five (65) calendar days
of the postmark date of PLAIN'TIFF,’.S r;qtjce letter, the LWDA did not provide notice to
PLAINTIFF that it intends to inyqstj’ggtf:rthe alleged v.'io]ations. |

155. " Therefore, PLA[NITFE.h.as__pomp_lied with all of the requirements set forth in Labor

Code Section 2699.3 to commence a represehtétive-action under PAGA.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Wherefore PLAINTIFF,- indivi&ijally and on behalf of all other persons silm‘ilarly situated,
respectfully préy.s for relief against DEFENDANTS and Does 1 through 25, inclusive, and-each of
them, as follows:

1. - For compensatory damages. in an amount to be ascertained at trigil;

2. - Forrestitution.of all monies due to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS, as well as
disgorged profits from the unfair aqd uﬁlawful business pfacti'ces of DEFENDANTS;

3.- - Formeal and rest -p_eric_)d compénsaﬁon'pur_sua_nt to Labor Code section 226.7 and
IWC Wage.Order NO. 7-2001; . - =

+4..  For liquidated damag.e.s pursuant:to Labor Code section 1194.2;

3. For preliminary and permanent injunctive relief enjoining DEF]_SNDANTS from
violating the relevant provisions of the Labor Code and IWC Wage Orders, and from engaging in
the unlawful business practices complained of herein; |

6. For wa:tmg time. penaltles pursuant to Labor Code sectlon 203;

7. For statutory and cml pena]tles according to proof, including but not hmlted 10 all
penalties authorized by the Labor Code sections 226(e), 853 and 2699,

8. For interest on the-unpaid v.vages at 10% p_‘e,rAannur.n pursuant to Labor Code

Sections 218.6, 1194, 2802, California Civil Code sections 3287, 3288, and/o;" any other applicable

provision providing for pre-judgment interest; -

9. For reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to Labor Code sections 1194, '

2699, 2802, California Civil Code section 1021.5, and any other applicable provisions providing

for attorneys’ fees and. costs;
10. - For declaratory relief;

11. For an order requiring and certifying the first thirteen Causes of Action pled in this

| FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT as a class'actio_n;

12.  For arn order appointing PLAINTIFF as class representative, and PLAINTIFF’s

i
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DATED: September 7, 2018

DATED: September7,2018
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13.  For such further relief that the Court may deem just and projer. |

GUNN COBLE LLP

Catherme J. Cotlle

Attorneys for Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS,
on behalf of himself, and all others mmnlarly
situated

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
PLAINTIFF on behalf of himself and all others sumlarly situated, hereby demands a ]ury

tnal with respect to all issues triable of right by jury.

GUNN COBLE LLP

Cathy Coble {

Attorneys for Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS
on behalf of himself, and all others s:mllarly '
situated. :
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'-Gunn Coble.

EMPLOYMENT LAWYERS

Beth Gunn
818.573.6389
beth@gunncoble.com

- Cathy Coble

818.573.6392
cathy@gunncoble.com

July 2, 2018

VIA ONLINE FILING
David M. Lanier, Secretary _
California Labor and Workforce Development Agency

RE: Labor Code Private Attorneys Géneral Act of 2004 — Notice on behalf of Ryan Hyams

Dear Secretary Lanier:

Please be advised that Gunn Coble LLP has been retained by Ryan Hyams (“Mr. Hyams”}
to represent him in respect to matters arising out of his employment with CVS Health
Corporation, Garfield Beach CVS, L.L.C., CVS Pharmacy, Inc., and CVS Rx Services, Inc., and, as
appropriate, any of their parent companies, subsidiaries, or affiliates (collectively, “CVS” or the
“Company”). All further questions, inquiries, or other commiunications about this matter should
be directed to this firm, not to Mr. Hyams. h

This letter provides notice on behalf of Mr. Hyams and similarly situated, aggrieved
employees pursuant to the Private Attorneys General Act of 2004, California Labor Code section
2699.3. Mr. Hyams is an “aggrieved employee” as defined by Labor Code section 2698 et seq.,
due to CVS' numerous violations of the Labor Code,; including unpaid wages, failure to provide '
meal and rest breaks, failure to pay meal and rest period premiums, failure to 'provide mandated
rest days, failure to comply with California Labor Code Section 850-851, inaccurate wage
statements, unreimbursed expenses, failure to pay wages upon termination, interest, penalties,
attorneys’ fees, costs, and any other relief available under California law, including PAGA. For
purposes of this letter, an “aggrieved employee” should be considered to include all non-
exempt employees of CVS who have worked for CVS during the ane year preceding the date of
this letter through the present date.

Gunn Coble LLP | 101S5.1stStreet | Suite407 | Burbank,CA | 91502
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This notice is' being provided via electronic submission to the California Labor &
-Workforce Agency (“LWDA”) and to the Company via certified mail at its address for business
operations.

Based on the below summary of the facts and legal theories upon which Mr. Hyams will
base his claims, he requests that the LWDA regard this notice as written notice pursuant to
California Labor Code section 2699.3 of his intent to seek civil penalties against CVS and any
parent companies identified as co-defendants prior to and during litigation of this matter.

A. Facts

CVS is a retail pharmacy chain with hundreds of physical locations in California, including
standalone stores and locations within Target branded stores. As part of its operations, CVS
employs pharmacists to, among other things, dispense medications, counsel patients on the use
of prescription and over-the-counter medications, and advise physicians about medication
therapy. In many locations CVS also employs pharmacy technicians to assist with the

dispensation of medication to its clientele, though there are CVS locations where only a-

pharmacist is employed to handle all pharmacy operations. Plaintiff Ryan Hyams is a former
non-exempt employee of CVS who primarily worked as a pharmacist at its Garfield Beach
location, but also occasionally assisted at other pharmacy locations during his more than two

years of employment with CVS. At the end of his employment with CVS, Mr. Hyams was earning .

5$76/hour.

As a pharmacist, Mr. Hyams’ primary. duties were to safely and accurately dispense
approximately 250-300 prescriptions per day to CVS clientele. This included’ reviewing
prescriptions provided to the pharmacy (either in writing or over the phone}, checking for drug
interactions and precautions, contacting physicians where appropriate, advising patients
- regarding the use of their prescriptions, entering information in CVS systems, and dispensing
and packaging medications to CVS customers. When pharmacy technicians were unavailable,
Mr. Hyams would also work at the pharmacy cash register to ring up sales of prescriptions and
other items at the pharmacy. - '

During his'employment, Mr. Hyams would regularly work more than 5 hours per day on
average, and more than 108 hours in two consecutive week periods. In fact, CVS utilized a
centralized scheduling procedure where he and other pharmacists were routinely scheduled for
12-hour shifts. On occasion, Mr. Hyams would work more than 12 hours per day, for which CVS
would then pay him double-time. There also were occasions where he worked more than 12
days in a consecutive two week period. Each day, before clocking in on the CVS computer and
after clocking out at the end of the day, Mr. Hyams -would perform work for his position, as
required by CVS. Also, as part of his job duties and responsibilities, Mr. Hyams would receive

text messages on his personal cell phone from his supervisor to discuss work-related matters. -

. Furthermore, CVS relied on Mr. Hyams, a loyal employee, to fill in at other pharmacies to ensure
its business needs were met, which required him to drive great distances, stay at a hotel, and
staff a pharmacy by himself for days at a time. At all locations, Mr. Hyams was entitied to, but
did not receive ‘uninterrupted meal and rest breaks. Mr. Hyams was not paid for the time he

‘Page | 2.
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spent reviewing and responding to text messages from his supervisor relating to work for CVS
while off-the-clock. Additionally, Mr. Hyams never received any reimbursement from CVS for
the personal use of his cell phone to conduct business for CVS.

When Mr. Hyams' employment with CVS ended, he was only paid for a portion of his
accrued vacation. CVS failed to provide him with his accrued vacation time in violation of the
Labor Code. For a portion of his employment, in violation of Labor Code Section 246(i}, CVS
failed to provide Mr. Hyams, or other aggrieved employees, with written notice setting forth
the amount of paid sick Ieave available, or paid time off the Company provides in lieu of sick
leave.

Throughout his employment at CVS, Mr. Hyams was routinely unable to take his
uninterrupted meal and rest breaks due to CVS’ under-staffing and fill-time metrics. During the
breaks he was able to take, after clocking out and before clocking back in, Mr. Hyams was
routinely interrupted with pharmacy questions. Mr. Hyams was also asked to éign a waiver,
wherein, on a standing basis without regard to the actual business needs, he waived zall of his
second meal periods. Mr. Hyams observed other employees also working through breaks and
not being properly compensated for the same. Mr. Hyams was not paid any penalties for these -
interrupted meal and/or rest breaks. In addition, CVS often failed to provide Mr. Hyams with a
rest day as required under the Labor Code. '

Additionally, to date, CVS has refused to comply with its obligation under the Labor Code
to produce the entirety of Mr. Hyams payroll records and personnel file, making it even more
difficult to determine the extent of CVS' improper and illegal practices.

- B, Labor Code Viclations
1. CVS Violated Labor Code Sect:on 204 by Fallmg to Pay Employees for All Hours
Worked. :

Labor Code section 204, provides in relevant part: “All wages, other than those
mentioned in Section[s] [not applicable here] earned by any person in any employment are due
and payable twice during each calendar month.” California Labor Code section 204. In short,
this means an employee must be paid for alf hours worked. Time spent by Mr. Hyams reviewing
and answering text messages, ‘as required by CVS, is deemed time worked and must be
" compensated. Furthermore, pursuant to Labor Code sections 1194, 1194.2, and 1197, it is
unlawful for an employer to suffer or permit a California employee to work without paying
wages at the proper minimum wage for all time worked as required by the applicable IWC Wage
Order. Pursuant to IWC Wage Order number 7, subdivision 2{G), at all times material hereto,
“hours worked” means “the time during which an employee is subject to the control of an
employer, and includes all time the employee is suffered or permitted to work, whether or not
required to do so.” Mr. Hyams was not paid for any work conducted prior té clocking in and
after clocking out, as required by CVS. He also observed and is aware of other aggrieved
employees who were forced to use their own cell phones and work off-the-clock who were not
paid for the work performed.
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In direction violation. of the Labor Code, CVS failed to pay Mr. Hyams and similarly
situated employees for time.reading and responding to messages related to work. In the case
of Mr. Hyams, he has spent hours receiving and responding to messages from management
regarding work for which he has not received pay. Mr. Hyams contends that other similarly
situated employees also did not receive any pay for the time spent receiving and responding to
work rélated messages. Additionally, CVS required its employees, including Mr. Hyams and

other aggrieved employees, to perform work before clocking in and after clocking out on the .

Company’s computers. Thus, Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees’ time records do not '
accurately reflect their actual hours worked. As such, Mr. Hyams and other employees were
never compensated for all time worked. Therefore, CVS has violated Labor Code sections 204,
1194,1194.2, and 1197. . :

2. CVS Violated Labor Code Sections 246(i} and 246.5.

California Labor Code section 246 requires that employers provide employees with
written notice that sets forth the amount of paid sick leave available, or paid time off an
employer provides in lieu of sick leave, either on the employee’s itemized wage statement
described in section 226 or in a separate writing provided on the designated pay date with the
employee’s payment of wages. Here, during a portion of Mr. Hyam’s employment, CVS failed
to provide Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees with the required notice setting forth
the amount of sick leave available. '

3. Failure to Pay Overtime Wages and Therefore Failure to Pay Minimum Wage.

Employers operating under California law must pay at least minimum wage to their
employees for all hours worked. An employee not paid at least minimum wage is entitled to
recover the unpaid balance of such wages. See Cal. Lab. Code sections 1182.12 and 1194. In
addition, an employee is entitled to recover liquidated damages equaling the wages unlawfully
unpaid, as well as interest. See Cal. Lab. Code section 1194.2. Furthermore, an employer failing
to pay minimum wages must pay a civil penalty of $100 for the initial pay period and $250 for
each subsequent pay peribd during which such violations occurred. See Cal. Lab. Code section

1197.1.

Section 510 of the Labor Code mandates that any time worked beyond eight hours in
one workday or beyond 40 hours in any workweek must be compensated at no less than one
and one-half times the regular wage. See Cal. Lab. Code § 510{a). Section 1194 creates a cause
of action to recover such unpaid overtime wages. See Cal. Lab. Code section 1194. [WC Order
No. 7-2001(3)(A) further provides that employees such as Mr. Hyams “shall not be employed
more than eight (8) hours in any workday or more than 40 hours in any workweek unless the
employee receives one and one-half (1 %2} times such employee’s regular rate of pay for all hours
worked over 40 hours in the workweek.” IWC Order No. 7-2001(3}(A).

As discussed above, Mr. Hyams and other similarly aggrieved employees routinely
worked off-the-clock when answering: work-related text messages and when forced by
management to continue to work while clocked out. During these periods of off-the-clock work,
CVS did not pay at least minimum wage to employees. ’




Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Pagé 43 of 298 

e i e wm mme ammmm e o ime gy G e kM e am me el = n e mmimermem = = e e = e s memm s deos e e e

As a result of these actions, CVS viclated Labor Code sections 223, 510, 1182.12, 1194,
1194.2, 1197.1, and 1198. ' ‘

4, CVS Violated Labor Code Sections 512 and 226.7 and IWC 7-2001 {11 & 12} by Failing
to Provide Lawful Meal or Rest Breaks, and Forcing Its Employees to Sign Meal Period
Waivers. ) :

Labor Code section 512 provides that “[a]n employer may not employ an employee for
a work period of more than five hours per day without providing the employee with a meal
period of not less than 30 minutes.” Cal. Lab. Code section 512, Section 226.7 further provides
in relevant part that “[a]n employer shall not require an employee to work during a meal or rest
or recovery period mandated pursuant to an applicable statute.” Cal. Lab. Code section 226.7.
IWC Order 7-2001 (12) states that “[e]very employer shall authorize and permit all employees
to take rest periods ... at the rate of ten (10) minutes net rest time per four {4} hours or major
fraction thereof.”

CVS has violated sections 512 and 226.7 by failing to provide Mr. Hyams and similarly
situated employees with at least 30 uninterrupted minutes of meal break time and/or at least
10 minutes of uninterrupted rest time during their shifts. Mr. Hyams and similarly situated CVS
employees were and are routinely interrupted during their meal and rest breaks in order to
comply with their managers’ demands and instructions to meet CVS customers’ expectations
and CVS' fill time metrics. Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees were also asked to sign a
waiver, wherein, on a standing basis, they waived all of their second meal periods, without
consideration of the pharmacies’ daily needs. Thus, Mr. Hyams and similarly situated
employees are entitled to an additional hour of pay at the regular rate of compensation for each
workday that the 30-minute uninterrupted meal period was not provided. See Cal. Lab. Code
section 226.7. In addition, Mr. Hyams and similarly situated employees are entitled to an
additional hour of pay at the regular rate of compensation for each workday that the ten-minute
rest break was not provided. See Cal. Labor Code § 226.7; IWC 7-2001(12), as well as PAGA
penalties. ’ ) '

5. CVS Vialated Labor Code Sections 551 and 552.

Under Labor Code section 551, “[e]very person employed in any occupation of labor is
entitled to one day’s rest therefrom in seven.” Labor Code section 552 provides that “[n]o
employer of labor shall cause his employees to work more than six days in seven.” Here, CVS

.violated these sections by failing to provide the legally-mandated rest days to Mr. Hyams and
other similarly situated employees. Further, “an employer’s obligation is to apprise employees
of their entitlement to a day of rest and thereafter to maintain absolute neutrality as to the

-exercise of that right.” Mendoza v. Nordstrom, Inc., 2 Cal.5th 1074, 1091 {2017). Instead of
complying with this obligation, CVS did not inform its employees in California of their right to a
day of rest, and then failed to properly staff its locations with sufficient personnel and pressured
employees into working without a day of rest.
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6. Failure to Comply with Labor Code Sections 850 and 851.

California Labor Code section 850 provides, in pertinent part, that “[n]o person ~
employed to sell at retail drugs and medicines or to compound physicians' prescriptions sHa.II
perform any work in any store, dispensary, pharmacy, laboratory, or office for more than an
average of nine hours per day, or for more than 108 hours in any two consecutive weeks or for
more than 12 days in any two consecutive weeks...” The accompanying California Labor Code
section 851 prohibits employers from requiring employees covered by Section 850 to work in
excess of the hours prescribed therein. Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees
throughout California regularly worked hours and days in excess of these specific limitations '
set forth by the California Labor Code.

" 7. Failure to Provide Accurate Itemized Wage Statements in Violation of California
Labor Code Section 226 {a). :

, California Labor Code section 226(a) requires employers to make, keep and provide true,

accurate, and complete employment records. cvS did not provide Mr. Hyams, and other
aggrieved employees, with properly itemized wage statements. Additionally, the violations
include, without limitation, the failure to accurately list the total regular and overtime wages
earned or meal and rest break premiums entitled to Mr. Hyams and other similarly situated
employees. CVS' failure to provide accurate itemized wage statements was an intentional act
based on its policy and practice of failing to properly compensate employees to avoid paying
penalty pay and overtime premiums to employees.

8.  CVS Violated Labor Code Section 2802 by Failing to Reimburse Emplovées for Costs
*.  Incurred Related to the Use qf Personal Cell Phones for Necessary Work-Related

Purposes.

California Labor Code section 2802 requires an employer to indemnify an employee “for
all necessary expenditures or losses incurred by.the employee in direct consequence of the
discharge of his or her duties.” Cal. Lab. Code section 2802. This includes costs associated with
the use of personal cell phones for work-related purposes. “If an employee is required to make
work-related calls on a personal cell phone, then'he or she is incurring an expense for purposes
of section 2802.” Cochran v. Schwan's Home Service, Inc., 228 Cal. App. 4th 1137, 1144 (2014).

CVS has violated section 2802 by failing to reimburse employees for costs incurred
relating to the necessary use of personal cell phones for work-related purposes. Mr. Hyams,
and other CVS employees, were routinely required to use their personal cell phones to exchange
text messages with CVS management. CVS did not provide Mr. Hyams or the other CVS
employees with a work-issued cell phone, nor has it reimbursed Mr. Hyams and the other CVS
employees for the necessary expenses they incurred in using their personal cell phones for CVS
business. :
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9, Failure to Pay All Wages Due Upon Termination

Employers must pay all wages due upon termination, including accrued but unused
vacation. Labor Code sections 201-202, 227.3. The Company violated these sections by failing
to pay Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees their unpaid wages, including accrued
vacation time and premium penalties, as discussed above, at the time of termination. These
violations subject the Company to civil penalties under Labor Code sections 203"and 2699.

TEERF

This notice is provided 6ursuant to Labor Code section 2699.3 and hereby provides the
LWDA an opportunity to investigate the claims and/or take any action it deems appropriate.
We respectfully request a timely response as to the LWDA's decision(s), as required by Labor
Code section 2699.3. If the LWDA elects not to take ahy action, Mr. Byams interids to file a

- complaint on behalf of himself and all similarly situated aggrieved employees in the California

Superior Court seeking unpaid wages, including unpaid overtime wages, unpaid minimum

- wages, meal and rest period premiums, unreimbursed expenses, unpaid sick leave, interest,

penalties, attorneys’ fees, costs, and any other relief available under California law.

If you have any questions or require any further information regarding the facts and
theories to support these claims, do not hesitate to contact our office.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

Cathy Coble
Gunn Coble LLP

CVS Health Corporation, Garfield Beach CVS, L.L.C., CVS Pharmacy, Inc., and CVS Rx Services, Inc.

_ may be contacted at the following address:

One CVS Drive
Woonsocket, Rhode Island 02895

. The'registered agent for service of process for CVS Health Corporatlon Garfleld Beach CVS, L.L.C.,

CVS Pharmacy, Inc., and CVS Rx Services, Inc. is:
C T Corporation System

818 W Seventh Street, Suite 930

Los Angeles, CA 90017
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My contact information is:
Beth Gunn,

Cathy Coble

Gunn Coble LLP

101 S. First Street, Suite 407
Burbank, CA 91502
beth@gunncoble.com
cathy@gunncoble.com
$18.573.6392
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CM-010
| ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORKEY (Nama, Staty Bar iumbem, ond aksrass). . USE OnLY T
Catherine J. Coble : smj; 223461 !E:Nnom
GUNN COBLE LLP
101 S. 1t Street, Suitc 407, BURBANK, CA 91502 San WM&WW
TeLerPHonE no:( 818) 900-0695 Faxno:(818) 900-0723
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

'RYAN HYAMS, an.indiviciual,‘ on behalf of Case No. : .
himself, and al) others similarly situated, . . :
‘ : CLASS ACTION CO_MPLA!NT
Plaintiff, ‘
" 1. Failure To Provide Required Meal Periods;
VS, : 2. Failure To Authorize And Permit Required

Rest Breaks;

CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, a Rhode Failure To Pay Overtime;

E}?I:;j Ci:(}rp%r%ion. C\és PHARMAGARFIB%’BHEELE?{  Failure To Pay Minimum Wages;

ode isiand Corporation, : i

B o G poion. i CVS | > T 0 g Timg enalies

RX SERVICES, INC.. 2 Hew York Corporation, | ¢ ¢ A P Pay All Wages;

DOES ] through » INCIUSIVE, Failure To Reimburse For Employment

Defendants. : - Related Expenses; . '

Failure To Maintain Required Records;
Failure To Fumish Accurate Itemized °
Wage Statements; '

10. Failure To Provide Written Notice Of Paid

Sick Leave - L

11. Failure To Provide One Day's Rest In

1~ Seven ' . Ot
_ 12. Failure to Comply With California Labor

Code Sections 850 and 851 o :
13. Unfair And Unlawful Business Practices;

N e w

ol o

DEMAND EOR JURY TRIAL.
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Plaintiff R_YAN HYAMS (“PLAINTIFF”), an individual, on .behalf of himself and all other
persons similarly situated, hereby allepes against Defendants CVS HEALTH CORPORATION,
CVS PHARMACY, INC., GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC, AND CVS RX SERVICES, INC.
(*“DEFENDANTS") as follows: _ |
| | | INTRODUCTION

d DEFENDANTS, the large.st pharmacy chain in the country, a “Fortune 10”
company, publicly avows its purpos;: as “helping people on the path to better heaith.” See CVsS
Health’s Cofporate Social Responsibility Repbrt https://cvshealth.com/si-te‘s/defaulUﬁles/20l7—csr-
full- report pdf. This commitment is hollow in light of DEFENDANTS’ continuous and intentional
v1o]at10n of California’s wage and hour laws, which were designed specifically to protect the
health and well-being of the state’s citizens. Devngtmg from the law-abiding practices of its
competitors, DEFENDANTS unfairly compete in the marketplace by flouting the California Labor
Code (“Labor Code™) in multiple ways. The most obvious of DEFENDANTS” illegal practlces is

their blatant scheduling of pharmacy employces to regularly work shifts far in excess of the limits

imposed by California law “enacted as a measure for the protecuon of the public health.” See

Labor Code § 855. This illegal conduct injures not only the pharmacy employees but

| DEFENDANTS’ customers who depend on them “on the path to better health.”

JU RlSDlCTION AND VENUE

2, T_his_ class actiox_w_ is brought pursuam to Califomia Code of Civil Procedure section
382.. The monetary damages, penalties, and restitution sought by PLA']NTIFF:ekceed the minimal
jurisdiction limits of the Superior Court and will be éstablished according to proof at trial. |

3. The Superior Court of the State of Califomiﬁ has jurisdiction ir; this matter because
PLAINTIFF is a resident of the State of California. Moreover, upon informz;ltion and belief, two-
thirds or more of the class members and at least one of DEFENDANTS is a citizen of California,
the alleged wage and hour violations occurred in California, signilﬁcam relief is being sought
against DEFENDANTS whose violations of California wage and hour laws form a significant basis
for PLAINTIFF’s claims, and no other class action has been filed within the past three (3) years on

behalf of the same proposed class against DEFENDANTS asserting the same or similar factual
2 . '
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allegations. Further, no-federal question is at issue because the claims are based solely on
California law and at least DEFENDANT GARFIELD BEACH CVS,LLC isa resident of, and/or
regularly conducts business in the State of California, as well as its principal place of business is
located within California.

-.4. Venue is proper in this judicial district and the County of San Francisco, California
because PLAINTIFF, and other persons similarly sitﬁatéd, performed work for DEFENDANTS in |
the Comty of San Fr;ancisco, DEFENDANTS maintain offices and facilities and transact business
in the County of San Franciscb, and DEFENDANTS’ illegal pra_ctices, which-are the subjeci of this
action, were applied, at least in part, to PLAINTIFF, apd other persons similarly situated, in the
County of San Francisco. Thus, a substantial portion of the transactions and occurrences related to
this action occurred in this county. Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 395.

PLAINTIFF

5.. PLAINTIFF is a former non-exempt employée who worked as a pharmacist for
DEFENDANTS for more than two years. At the end of his.employment-with DEFENDANTS,
PLAINTIFF was earning $76/hour. PLAINTIFF is a resident of San Francisco County, California.

6. As a pharmacist, PLAINTIFF’S primary duties were to safely and accurately
dispense approximately 250-300 prescriptions per day to DEFENDANTS® customers. This
included reviewing prescriptions provided to the pharmacy (either in writing or over the phone),
éhecking for drug interactions and precautions, contacting physicians where appr-opriate,h advising
patients regarding the use of their prescriptions pursuant to California law., entering information in
DEFENDANTS'® systems, and dispensing and packaging medications (o DEF BNDANTS’
customers. When pharmacy technicians were unavailable, PLAINTIFF would also work at the
pharmacy cash register to ring up sales of prescriptions and other items at the pharmacy. A
pharmacist was required to be on the premises during all hours of operation, (o comply with
operational policies and procedures. ' '

7. During his employment, PLAINTIFF would regularly work more than 9 hours per
day on average, and more than 108 hours in two consecutive week periods. DEFENDANTS

utilized a centralized scheduling procedure where he and other pharmacists were routinely
3 -
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scheduled for 12-hour shifts. On occasion, PLAINTIFF would work more than 12 houfs per day,
for which DEFENDANTS w-ouid't'hen pay him double-time. There also were occasions where he
worked more than 12 daysina c.onsecutive two week period. DEFENDANTS often failed to
prowde PLAINTIFF with a rest day as required under the Labor Code. |

8. Each day, before clocking in on DEFENDANTS’ computer and after clocking out at
the end of the day, PLAINTIF F would perform work for his position, as required by
DEFENDANTS. o

9. As part of his job duties and responsibilities, PLAINTIFF would receive text
n;essages on his pérsonal cell phone from his supervisor to discuss work-related matters.

10. DEFENDANTS relied on PLAINTIFF, a loyal employee, to fill in at other

pharmacies to ensure their business needs were met, which required PLAINTIFF to drive great

distances, stay at a hotel, and staff a pharmacy by himself for days at a time. At all Jocations,,
PLlAINTIFF was entitled to, but did not receive unipterrupted ;neal and rest breaks.

11.  PLAINTIFF was not paid for the time he spent reviewing and responding to text
megsagcs from his supervisor relating to work for DEFENDANTS while off-the-clock.
Additionally, PLAFNTIFF never received any reimbursement froni DEFENDANTS for the
personal use of his cell phone to conduct busmess for DEFENDANTS.

12.  During the course of PLAINTIFF'S employment, he accrued vacation time pursuanf
1o DEFENDANTS?’ vacation policy. When PLAINTIFF’S employment with DEFENDANTS
ended, he wa;s only paid a portion of his accrued, but unused vacation. DEFENDANTS failed to
provide him with his accrued vacation time in violation of the Labor Code |

13.  Fora portion of his employment, in violation of Labor Code Section 246(i),

DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAINTIFF, or other aggrieved employees, with written notice

|| setting forth the amount of paid sick leave available, or paid time off the Company provides in lieu

of sick leave. PLAINTIFF did not receive all of fhc sick time to which he was entitled.

14.  Throughout his employment with DEFENDANTS, PLAINTIFF was'routinély
unable 1o take his.uninterrupted meal and rest breaks due to DEFENDANTS’ under-staffing and
fill-time metrics, and his 'mabi]i.ty 10 leave the work premises. During the breaks he was able to '

: 4 - :
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take, after clocking out and before clocking back in, PLAINTIFF was routinely interrupted with
pharmacy questions. PLAINTIFF was also asked to sign a waiver, wherein, on a standing basis
without re;gard- to the actval business needs, he waived all of his second meal periods. PLAINTIFF
was not paid any penalties for these interrﬁpte:i meal and/or rest breaks.
| ' THE CLASS

15. PLAINTIFF Brings this action on behalf of himself and-all similarly situated class
of individuals (“CLASS MEMBERS” or “THE CLASS”) pursuant to California éode of Civil
Procedure section 382. THE CLASS is defined as follows: All current and former employees of
DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time within the period beginning four (4) years
prior to the filing of this action and ending at the time this action settles or proceeds to ﬁn;':ll
judgment (thé “CLASS PERIOD”).

16.  PLAINTIFF also seeks to r-epresent the following subclasses (collectively,
“SUBCLASSES"), defined as follows:

a. “I.§ION~EXEMPT. EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current
and former non-exempt employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California
at ;'ny time within the CLASS PERIOD.

b. “PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all currént and
former employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time
within the CLASS PERIOD who were employed to sell at retail drugs and
medicines or to compound physicians' prescriptions.

c. “FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all former
employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any tilﬁe within the
CLASS PERIOD.

| d. “BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current and
former employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time
within the CLASS PERIOD who used personal cell phones for work-related
. purposes withoﬁt adequate reimbursement.

€. “VACATION PAY SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current and former
3 s

CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION COMPLAINT




Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 54 of 298

employces of DEFE_,NDANTS in the State of California at any time within the
CLASS PERIOD who were not provided all vacation time., or v;'ages in lieu
" thereof, in corr!plian'ce with California law.

_ 17.  PLAINTIFF reserves the right to redefine the definitions of THE CLASS or
SUBCLASSES as appropriate based on further investigﬁtion, discovery, and spéciﬁc theories of
liability. | | '

_ DEEENDANTS

18.  DEFENDANTS operate the largest retail pharmacy chain in tﬁe United -Sfates, with
hundreds of physiéal locations in California, including standalone stores and locations within -
Target branded stores. As part of their operations, DEFENDANTS employ pharmacists to, among
other things, dispense medications, counsel patients on the use of prescription and over-the-counter
medications, and advise physicians about medication therapy. In fnany locations DEFENDANTS
also employ pharmacy technit.:ians to-assist with the dispensation of medication to its customers,
though there are CVS locations where only a pharmacist is e&lployed to handle all pharmacy
opérations. . |

19. At all times relevant hereto, DEFENDANTS were, and are, corboraﬁons authorized
to do business in the State of California and do in fact conduct business in the State of California.

Specifically, upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS maintain facilities and conduct business
in the éounty of San Francisco, State of California. Spéciﬁcally, -

a. DEFENDANT CVS HEALTH CORPORATION is a corporatic;n organized
under the laws of the State of Rhodé Island that is engaged in the business of
operating retail stores thatA sell pharma'ceuticals and géneral merchandise and

" provide pharmacy services throughout the Stéte of California. - |

b, DEFENDANT CVS PHARMACY, INC. is a corporation organized under the
laws of the State of Rhode Island that is engaged in the business of operating
retail stores that sell pharméceuticais and general merchandise and p.rovide
pharmacy services throughout the State of California.

c. DEFENDANT GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC. (collectively with
' 6
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, DEFENDAN‘TS CVS RX SERVIC'ES, INC., and CVS PHARMACY,INC.}is a
llmrted liability company organized under the laws of the State of California that
is engaged in business as a pharmacy and mechcal supplier to CVS retail stores
located throughout the State of California.

d. DEFENDANf CVS RX SERVICES, INC. is a corporation organized under the '
_laws of the State ofNeW York that is cﬁgaged in the business of providing
pharmacy services throughout the State of California.

20. The true names and capacities of DOES 1 through 23, inclusive (“DOES”), are
unknown to PLAINTIFF at this time, and PLA[NTIFF therefore sues such DOE Defendanis under
fictitious names. PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that each Defendant
desighated as a DOE is in some manner highly responsible for the océurrences alleged herein, and
that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS’ injuries and damages, ‘as alleged herein, were
proximately caused by the conduct of such DOE Defendants. PLAINTIFF will seek leave of the
court to amend this complaint to allege the true names and capacities of such DOE .Defendants when
ascertained..

21. PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges, that each
DEFENDANT acted in all respects pertinent to this action as the agent of the other DEF‘ENDANTS,
carried out a joint scheme, business plan or policy in all respects pertinent héreto, and the acts of
each DEFENDANT are legally attributable to the other DEFENDANTS. .

22, PLAINTIFF is _informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that CVS HEALTH
CORPORATION, CVS PHARMACY, INC., GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC, and CVS RX
SERVICES, INC éach employed PLAINTIFF, in that they exercised control over PLAINTIFF’s
wages, hours or working conditions, suffered and permitted PLAINTIFF to work, and/or engaged
PLAINTIFF to work. See Martinez v. Combs (2010) 49 Cal.4th 35, 64. Any of -the three is sufficient
to create an employment’ relatnonshlp Ochoa v. McDonald's Corp., 133 F. Supp. 3d 1228, 1233
(N.D. Cal. 201 5). '

93.  To the extent one or more of DEFENDANTS did not directly hire, fire, of supervise

PLAINTIFF, PLAINTIFF further alleges that, upon information and belief, bne or more
7
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!
DEFENDANTS control the business enterprises of one or more of the other DEFENDANTS, thereby
creating an employ.ment relationsﬁip with PLAINTIFF. See Castaneda v. Ens::gn Group, Inc. (2014)
229 Cal.App.4th 1015, 1017-1018; Guerrero v. Superior Court (2013) 21 3 Cal.App.4th 912, 950.

24, Asa dil;e'ct and proximate result of the unlawful actions of DEFENDANTS, °
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have suffered, and continue to suffer, from loss of earnings
in amounts as yet unascertained, but subject to proof at trial, and within the jurisdiction of this |
Court. |

25. All DEFENDANTS compelled, coerced, aided, and/or abetted the illegal conduct
alleged in this Complaint, which conduct is prohibited under the Labor Code. ‘All DEFENDANTS
were responsible for the events and damages alleged herein, including on the following bases: (a)
DEFENDANTS committed the acts alleged; (b) at all relevant times, one or more of the
DEFENDANTS was the agent or employee, and/or acted under the control or supewiéion of, -one or
more of the remaining DEFENDANTS and, in committing the acts alleged, acted within the course
and scope of such agency and employment and/or is or are otherwise liable for PLAINTIFF’s
damages; (c) at all relevant tirﬁes, there existed a unity of ownership and interest between or among
tﬁose DEFENDANTS such that any individuality and separateness between or among these

DEFENDANTS has ceased, and DEFENDANTS are the alter egos of one another. DEFENDANTS

exercised domination and control over one another to such an extent that any individuality or

separafeness of DEFENDANTS does not, and at all times herein meritioned did not, exist. Adherence
to the ﬁctio;i of the separate existence of DEFENDANTS would permit abuse of the corporate
privilege and would sanction‘fr'éud and promote injustice. All ac;tions of all DEFENDANTS were
taken by employees, supervisors, executives, officers, and directors during employment with all
DEFENDANTS, were taken on behalf of all DEFENDANTS, and were engaged in, authorized,
ratified, and approved of by all other DEF.ENDAlNTS. .

26.  Finally, at all relevant times mentioncd herein, all DEFENDANTS acted as agents of
all other DEFENDANTS in committing the acts alleged herein.

| CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

27. DEFENDANTS employed, and continue to employ, employees throughout
' 8
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California during the last four (4) yeér&

. 28. Baséd on information and belief, PLAINTIFF Eelieves that other members of THE
CLASS and SUBCLASSES were subject to the same po.licies,pr_actices and cénduct that resulted
in the following: |

a. Routinely woiking through meal and/or rest breaks without proper

" compensation for £hc same, including the ﬁayment of penalties for interrupted

meal and/or rest breaks; | |

b. Routinely working off-the-clock when answering work-related text messages
and/or when forced by management to continue to work while clocked out,
without receiving wages, premium pay, or minimum wages for the off-the-clock
time worked;

c. No compensation for unpaid wages and/or premium pay at the time of
terminatiori; ‘ . |

d. Use of pérsoua] cell phones without adequate reimbursement;

e. Receipt of inaccurate wage statements;

f. Lack of receipt of adequate written notice of paid sick leave;

'g. Routinely working without receiving one.day’s rest in seven; and

h. Routinely working in excess of the pre.scribed time limitations set forth in Labor
Code sections 850 and 851.

29. ' DEFENDANTS acted pursuant to common, company-wide policies and practices
regarding the provisién of meal and/or rest breaks; the practice of rcquiriﬁg employees to work off-
the-clock; scheduling emﬁloyees for work; the Company’s payroll and wage payments to
employees, including the provision of wage statements; reimbursements of necessary business
expenses; time and-pay recordkeeping; and notice to empléyees of paid sick leave.

30.  In particular, DEFENDANTS’ reliance on performance and/or prescription fill-time
met-rics, centralized scheduling systems, managerial instructions, and operational pc;licies and
procedures applied on a class-wide basis. |

31.  Upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS maintain a single, centralized Human
. 9 o
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Resources department, which is responsible for the hiring of new employees, collecting and -
processing all new hire paperwork, and commumcatmg and 1mplementmg DEFENDANTS’
company—vnde policies and practices, including timekeeping pollc1es rneal and rest break policies,
sick time policies, vacation time policies,.and payroll policies and practices applicable to their
employees in California.

32. On, information and belief, PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS received the same
standardized documents ahdfor written policics. Upon information and belief_. DEFENDANTS
created uniform policies and procedures at the corporate level and implemented them -
companymde regardless of the employees location. |

33.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CL.ASS MEMBERS were entitled to meal
periods in accordance with the Labor Code or payment of one tl) additional hqur of pay at the
regular rate when PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not provided with timely,
uninterrupted, thirty (30) minute meal periods and that PLAINTIFF and CLLASS MEMBERS were
not provided with al! meal periods or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at their rcgular rate
when PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS did not receive a timely, unmterrupted thirty (30)
minute meal period. '

34.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBFR§ were entitled to
umntcrrupted rest periods in accordance with the Labor Code and lndustnal Wage Order (“IWC")
Wage Order 7-2001 or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at their regular rate when
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not authorized and permitted to take compliant rest
periods and that PLAINTIFF and CLASS l\/iEMBERS were not authorized and permitted to take
compliant rest periods or payment of one (1) addlitio,nal hour of pay at their regular rate when
PLATNTiFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not provided a compliant' rest period. -

35.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes and thercon alleges that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMEBERS were entitled to receive

and did not receive overtime cbmpenszition for work that DEFENDANTS knew or should have
o .
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known was performed.

36. PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CL{\SS MEMBERS were entitled to receive at
least minimum wages for combensétion and that, in violation of the Labor Code, they wére not -
receiving at least minimum. wages for work that DEFENDANTS knew or should have known was
performed. .
.3 7. PLAINT.IFF is informed and believe;s, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIEF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to timely
payment of wages up.on. termination of employment. In violation of the Labor Code,
DEFENDANTS did not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS all wages due, including, but
not limited to, overtime wages, minimum wages, and meal and rest period premium wages, within
§tatutorily rcquifed time periods.

38. PLA]NTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, Lhat DEFENDANTS

knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to t:mely
payment of wages during their employment. In violation of the Labor Code, DEFENDANTS did

not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS all wages, including, but not limited to, overtime
wages, minimum wag'es‘, and meal and rest period premium wages, within statutorily required time
periods.

39.  PLAINTIFF is informed and belicves, and thereon al]eges, that at all times herein
mentioned, bEFENDANTS knew or should have known that DEFENDANTS had a duty to
compensate PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMEERS for all hours worked, and that DEFENDANTS
had the financial ability to pay such compensation but willfully, knowingly, and intcntionally failed
to do so in violation of the Labor Code.

40. PLAINTIFF is informed and bellcves, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to receive full
reimbursement for all business-related expenses and costs they incurred during the course and
scope of their employment, and that they did not receive full reimbursement of applicable business-

related expenses and costs in violation of the Labor Code.
11
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41.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thercon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that they had a duty to maintain accurate and conﬁplete payroll records
in accordance with the Labor Code and [WC Wage Order 7-2001 ,.but willfully, knowingiy, and.
mtentxonally failed to do so. |

42.  Upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS mamtam a centralized Payroll
department at their company headquarters, which processes payroll for all employees working for
DEFENDANTS at their various locations in Caii‘fomia, including PLAINTIFF and CLASS. '
ME-MBERS. Based upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS issue the same formaltted wage
statements to all employees in California, irrespective of their work location. PLAINTIFF is
mformed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS knew or should have known that -
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to receive complete and accurate wage

| statements in accordance with California law. In violation of the Labor Code, DEFENDANTS did

not provide PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS with complete and accurate wage statements.

43. PLAINTIFF is ir;fonned and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF .and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to written
notice of paid sick leave or paid time off available. In violation of the Labor Code, .
DEFENDANTS did not provide to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS written notice of paid
sick leave or paid time off available. ‘ -

44, PLAI’NT'IFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were enti'tled to one day’s
rest in seven, and that they did not receive one dayi’s rest in seven in \.riolation of the Labor Code.
. 45. PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not to perform any
work in any store, dispensary, pharmacy, laboratory, or office for more ;han' an average of nine
hours per day, or for more than 108 hours in any two consecutive weeks or for more than 12 days
in an)./ two consecutive we;,eks, and that DEF ENDANTS should not have required PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS to do so, but that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS did work -an avel-"age

of more than nine hours per day and/or more than 108 hours in any two consecutive weeks or more
12
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than 12 days in any two consecutive weeks in violation of the Labor Code at DEFENDANTS’
direction.

SATISFACTION OF CLASS ACTION CRITERIA

46.  PLAINTIFF brings this action on his own behalf, as well as on behalf of each and
all other persons similarly situated and seeks class certification of THE CLASS and
SUBCLASSES under California Code of Civil Procedure section 382. Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 382.

47.  All claims alleged herein arise.u'nder California law for which PLAINTIFF sceks
relief authorized by California law. - |

48.  There isa well-defined community of interest in litigation anci the class members
are readily ascertainéble:

Al Numerosity: The members of THE CLASS and SUBCLASSES are so
numerous that joinder of all members would be unfeasible and impractical. The membership of the
entire class is unknown to PLAINTIFF at this time; however THE CLASS is estimated to be
greater than one thousand (1000) individuals and the identity of such membership 1s readily
ascertainable by inspc;ction of DEFENDANTS’® employment records.

B.  Typicality: PLAINTIFF is qualified to, and will, fairly and adequately
protect the interests of each member of THE CLASS with whom he has a well-defined community
of interest, and_PLAiNTI‘F F's claims (or defenses, if any) are typical of all class members as
demonstrated herein. ‘ _ .

'C.  Adequacy: PLAINTIEF is qualified to, and will, fairly and adequately -
protect the inierest of each class member with whom he has a well-defined community of interest
and iypicality of claims, as demonstrated herein. PLAINTIFF acknowledges that he has an
obligation to make known to the Court any relationship, conflicts, or differences with a.my class
member. PLAINTIFF’s attomt_tys,-the proposed class counsel, are versed in the rules governing
class action discovery, certification, and settlement. PLAINTIFF has incurred, and throughout the -
duration of this action, will continue to incur costs and attorneys’ fees-that have been, arc; and will
Be necessarily expanded for the prosecution of this action for the substantial benefit of each class

rﬁember.
' 13
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D. . Superiority: The nature of this action makes the usé of class action
adjudiéation superior to other methods. A class action will achiev-e economies of time, effort, and
expense as compared with separate lawsuils, and will avoid inconsistent oﬁtcomes because the
same issues can be adjudicaté‘d in the same manner and at the same time for the entire c-fass.

E. Public Policy Considerations: California has a stated public policy in favor

of class actions in this context for thc vindication of employee rights and enforcement of the Labor
Code. Fmployers in the State of California violate employment and Iabor laws every day. Current
employees are often afraid to assert their rights out of fear of direct or indirect retaliation. Former
employees are fearful of bringing actions because they believe their former employers might
damage their future endeavors through negatwe references and/or other means. Class actions
provide the class members who are not named in the complaint with a type of anonymity that
allows for the vindication of their rights while s1multanf_30usly protecting their privacy.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Provide Required Uninterrupted Meal Periods
tCal. Lab. Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and 1198; Cal. CodevR'cgs_. tit. 8§ 1 1050).
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS.and DOES 1 to 25)

49. ‘PLA[NTIF F incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. ‘

50. - Atall relevant times, Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and 1198 have provided
that no employer shall require an employee to work during any meal period mandated by an '
applicable order of the IWC. IWC Wage Order 7-2001(11), cocz;z'j’ied at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8
§ 11050. | -

51. At all relevant tifes herein, Labor Code sectidn 512 has provided that “[a]n
employer may not employ an employee for a work period o_f more than five hours per day without
providing the employee with a meal period of not less than 30 minutes,” except that if the'total
work period per day of the employee is not more than six (6) hours, the meal period may be waived
by mutual consent of both the employer and émployee. Cal. Lab. Code § 512(a). During this meal

period of not less than thirty (30) minutes, the employee is to be completely free of the employer’s
14
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control and must not perform any work for the employer. If the employee does.pcrform,work for
the employer during this thirty (30) minute meal period, the empléyee has not been provided with a
duty-ffee meal period, in accordance with California law, and is to be compensated for any work
performed during this (30) minute meal périod in addition to one (1) additional hour of
compensation at each employee’s regular rate of pay for each workday that a meal period was not
provided. See also IWC Wage Order 7-2001(1 l); codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

52. At all relevant times herein, pursuaﬁt 1o Labor Code section;s 226.7, 512(a), 1198
and the applicable IWC Wage Order, an employer-may not e;mploy an emPloyee for a work period
of more than ten (10) hours per day without providing, the employee with another meal period of
not less than thirty (30) mmutes or to pay an employee one (1) additional hour of pay at the
employee’s regular rate, except that if the total hours worked is no more than twelve (12) hours the
second meal period may be waived by mutual consent of the employer and the employee only if
the first meal period was ﬁot waived. TWC Wage Order 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs.

tit. 8 § 11050. :
53. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLATNTIFF and

CLASS MEMBERS with a full, thu'ty (30) minute uninterrupted meal perlod free from job duties,
as required by Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at Cal.
Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. .

54.  Atall relevant times herein, DEF ENDANTS further'violated Labor Code section
226.7 and IWC Order No. 7-2001 by failing to compensate PLAINTIFF and CLLASS MEMBERS
who were not provnded with an uninterrupted meal period or one ( 1) additional hour of
compensation at each employee’s regular rate of pay for each workday that a meal period was not
provided. Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(c), IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), cbd{fie_d at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8
§ 11050. '

55.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS had, and continue to have, a company-
wide policy of failing to schedule and provide uninterrupted meal breaks for PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS. DEFFNDANTS have understaffed, and continue to understafT, its locatlons

without providing sufficient meal break coverage, such that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS
15
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were prevented from taking all timely and uninterrupted thirty (30) minutes meal periods; as such,
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were routinely forced"l‘o work off-the-clock during their
meal periods in order to comply with DEFENDANT S’ demands and instructions to meet pharmacy
customers’ expectations. Moreover, ‘DEFENDANTS did not provide‘PLAiNTlF F and CLASS
MEMBERS with'a second uninterrupted thirty (30) minute meal period on days they worked over
ten (]0) hours, as required by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(;._1); IWC Order .No. 7-
2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. , ‘

56. Atall relevant times herein, as a result of DEFENDANTS’ scheduling policies and
understaffing, in order to meet DEFENDANTS’ expectations and customer demands, PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS were forced to miss and/or take late or interrupted meal breaks, in
violation of the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 22_6.7, 512(a); and IWC Or'der No. 7-2Q01(1 1),
codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

) 57. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS knew, or should have known, that as a result of
DEFENDANTS’ scheduling policies and practices of understaffing, PLAINTIFF and CLLASS
MEMBERS were forced to miss and/or take late or interruptea meal breaks, and that-
DEFENDAN;I"S Qid not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS meal period pré:mium wages
when meal periods were late and/or interrupted. ‘ |

' 58. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to properly calculate the regular rate of
pay for purposes of paying me-al period premiums to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by
including all compensation, such as shift differential pay and othér compensation, as required by
the Labor Code. See Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); and IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at
Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. | ‘

59. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and IWC
Order No. 7-2001 (1), cédg'ﬁed at Cal. Code Regs.‘tit. 8 § 11050.

60. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according

to proof at trial, and seek ali wages earned and due, pcnélties, @ntefest, expenses, and costs of suit.

16
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S‘EC'.OND CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure To Aﬁthorize And Permit Required Rest Breaks
tCal. Lab. Code sections 226.7; 1198; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8'§ 11‘050.)'
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25) |

61. | PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and reaileges as if fully stated herein each
and ever); a]legation. set forth above.

62. Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code sections 226.7 and 1 198 and IWC Wage
Order 7- 2001 were applicable to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS employed by '
DEFENDANTS. |

63.  Atall relevant times herein, IWC Wage Order 7-2001 has stated that “[e]very
employer shall authorize and permit all employees to take rest periods ... at thé rate of ten (10)
minutes net rest time per four (4) hours or major fraction thereof” unless the total daily work time
15 iess than three and one-half (3.5) hours. IWC Order No. 7-20Ql(] 2), codified at Cal. Code Regs. | |
tit. 8 § 11050. o |

64. . At all relevant times herein, Labor Code-section 226.7 provides that “[a]n employer
shall not require an employee to work during a meal or rest or recovery period mandated pursuant
to an applicable statute....” Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(b).

65.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS regularly failed to authorize or permit
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS to take ten {10) minute uninterrupted rest periods for' each
four (4) hours worked, or major fraction thereof. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were
regularly denied uninterrupted rest periods in violation of the Labor Code. IWC Wage Order 7-
7001 codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050; see also Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(b).

66. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS? staffing policies and schedulmg
practices prevented PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS from being relieved of all duties in order
to take an uninterrupted rest break. DEFENDANTS failed to relinquish any COI-llI‘OI over how
employees spend their break time. See Auéus!us v. ABM Saﬁrity Systems, Inc., 2 Cal. 5th 257, 260
(2016). As aresult, PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS would work sh.ifts in excess of 3.5

hours, in excess of six (6) hours, and in excess of ten (10) hours without rcccwmg, s the
17
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uninterrupted ten (10) minute rest periods to which they were entitled.

67. By DEFENDANTS’ failure to authorize and permit PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS to take uninterrupted rest breaks for every four (4) hours or major fraction thereof
worked per day, DEFENDANTS wilifully violated the Labor Code. IWC Wage brder 7-2001(12),
codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 110501; s;ee also Cal. Lab.. Code § 226.7.

68.  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226.7 has ﬁrovided that “[i]f an
employer fails to provide an employee a meal or rest or recovery period in accordance with a state
law... the employer shall pay the émployee one additional hour of pay at the cmpioyee’s'regular"
rate of compensation for each workday that the meal or rest or recovery period is not provided.”
Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(c¢); IWC Order No. 7-2001(12), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

69. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS have had a company-wide policy and
practice of not paying PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS rest period premiurﬁs when rest
periods were missed, late and/or interrupted. _

70.  Atall times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to probeﬂy calculate the regulér rate of
pay for purpdses of paying rest period premiums to PLAINTIF]%‘ and CLASS MEMBERS by
inclucfing all compensation, such as shift differential pay and other compensation, as required by
the Labor Code. See Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); and IWC Or(:’ncr No. 7-2001(1 1), codified at
Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. |

71, DEFENDAN'I‘S’ conduct Qiolates Labor Code sections 226.7, 1198, and ]WC Order
No. 7-2001, codified at Cal. Code 'chs: tit. 8 § 11050. _

72. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according

to proof at tnal, and seek all wages earﬁed and due, penalties, interest, expenses, and costs of suit.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Pay Overtime
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 510, 1198; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
73.  PLAINTIFF incorporales by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each

and every allegation set forth above.
18
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74. - At all relevant times herein, Labor Code section 510 has mandated that any time
worked beyond eight hours in one workday or beyoind 40 .hours in any workweek must be
compensated at no less than one and one-half times the regullar wage. See Cal. Lab. Code § 5 10(a).
| 75.7 "TWC Wage Order 7-2001 further provides that employees “shall not i)e employed
more than eight (8) hours in.any workday or more than 40 hours in' any workweek unless the
employee receives one and onc-half' (1 %) times such employee’s r;:gular rate of pay for all hours
worked over 40 hours in the workweek.” TWC Order No. 7_-2001(3)(1—\); codq'ﬁed at Cal. Code
Regs. tt. 8 §.11050; see also Cal. Lab. Code § 1198, o

76. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS were rcqulred to compensate
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS for all overtime, calculaled at one and one-half (1 '2) times
the regular rate of pay for all hours workéd in excess of ei ight (8) hour; per day and/or forty (40)
hours per week, and for the first eight (8) hours on the seventl-a consecutive workd'ay, with double-

time for all-hours worked in excess of tweivc (12) hours in any workday and for all hours worked
in excess of eight (8) hours on the seventh consecutive day of work in any workweek. Cal. Lab.
Code §§ 510, 1194, IWC Wage Order 7 2001(3), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

77. At all relevant times herem DEFENDANTS wnllfully failed to pay all overtime
wages owed to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS. During the CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS were not paid overtime pretmums for all of the hours they worked in |
excess of eight (8) hours in a day, in excess of twelve (12) hours in a day, in excess of ei ghl (8)
hours on the seventh (7th) consecutive day of work in a workweek, and/or in excess of forty (40)
hours in a week, because all hours were not recorded. -

18, Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to compensate PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS for all overtime hours worked by: failing to pay overtime at one and one-half
(1) nmes or double the regular rate; requiring, permitting <.3r suffering PLAINT[FF and CLASS
MEMBERS to work through meal and rest periods; and inaccurately recordmg time in which
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked.

79. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS’ failure to provide adequate coverage

for meal périods for PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS s0 that they could be rélieved of atl
19
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‘1| duties and take timely, uninterrupted thirty (30) minutes meal periods forced PLAINTIFF' and

CLASS MEMBERS to work off-the-clock during meal periods to complete their assigned tasks.

‘80. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS ha_d' a company-wide pattern and
practice of requiring PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS to communicate Qith DEFENDANTS
and DEFENDANTS'® other employees using personal cellular phones, including during days off
aﬁd outside of scheduled shifts. l.)EFENDANT‘S‘ knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS were communicating with DEFENDANTS and other émployees while oft-
the-clock in order to meet DEFENDANTS® demaﬁds, but DEFENDANTS failed lo compensate .
PLAINTIFF or CLASS MEMBERS for this off-the-clock work. Therefore, PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS were not paid overtime wages for all overtime hours worked.

| 81.  Atall times herein, DEFENDAN"I"S failed to properly calculate the regular rate of

pay for purposes of paying overtime to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by including all
cdmpcnsatiou, such as shiﬁ differential pay and other compensation, as required by the Labor
Code. See Afvarado v. Dart Container Corp. of California, 4 Cal.5th 542 (2018).

82. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 510 aimd 1198 and IWC
Order No. 7-2001(3), .cod.z_'ﬁed at Cal, Code Regs. tit. 8.§ 11050.

83.  PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount accofding
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penaltigs, interest, expenses, attorneys’ fees '.
and costs of suit. _ | '

Failure To Pay Minimum Wages
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 1182.12, 1194, 1197, 1197.1, and 1198;
" and Cal. Code Regs. Tit. 8, § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

84.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. .

'85. At all relevanttimes herein, employers operating under California law must pay at

jeast minimum wage to their employees for ali hours worked. TWC Order No,7-2001(4), codified
' ' 20

CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION COMPLAINT




Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 69 of 298

i || at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. An employee not paid at least minimum wage is entitled to

(3]

recover the unpaid balance of such wages. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 1182.12 and ] 194. In addition, an

LA ]

employee is entitled to recover liquidated damages equaling the wages unlawfully unpaid, as well

oy

as interest. Cal. Lab. Code §1194.2.- An employer failing to pay minimum Wages must pay a civil

n

penalty of $100 for the initial pay period and $250 for each subsequent pay pericd during which
such v1olanons occurred. Cal. Lab. Code § 1197.1.

86. At all relevant times herein, as a result of DEFENDANTS’ slafﬁng and schedulmg
policies and practices, PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were forced to miss or shorten their

A T N =

meal periods in order to meet DEFENDANTS® expectat-ions and customer demands. PLAINTIFF
10 ||and CLASS MEMBERS were also required to perform off-the-clock work on their day_s off and
11 {] outside of scheduled shifté, including .using their personal cellular phones.
12 87.  Atall relevant fimes herein, DEFENDANTS failed 1o pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
13 || MEMBERS minimum wages for all hours worked by: requiring, permitting or suffering

14 || PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS to work off-the-clock through meal and rest breaks;

15 || requiring, permitting or suffering PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMEBERS to work off-the-clock
‘ ‘ 16 || outside of scheduled shifts. including by using their personal cell phone on their days off. Asa
‘ 17 |{ result of these actions DEFENDANTS did not pay at least minimum wages for all hours worked by
1 18 || PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS.
19 88. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 1182.12, 1194, 1197,
20111971, and 1198 and IWC Order No. 7 2001(4), cod:jzed at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.
| | 21 89. PLAIN YIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
1 22 || to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expenses, attorneys’ fees

23 |l and costs of suit.

- 24 | FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

i 25 " Failure To Pay Timely Wages Due At Termination/Waiting Time Penaltics

1 26 | ©(Cal. Lab. Code sections 201, 202, 203)

? 27 ~ (Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES | t025)

28 90.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by refer;xlme and realleges as if fully stated herein each

CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION COMPLAINT .
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and every allegation set forth above.

91, At all relevant times herein, purSuént to Labor Code sections 201 and 202,
employgfs must pay all wages due-upon termination and, if an employer terminates an empioyee,
the employee’s wages al‘re “due and payable immediately.” Cal. Lab. Code § 201. Pursuant to
Labor Code section 202 employers are required to pay all wages due to an employee no later than
72 hours after the employee quns employment, unless the employee provided 72 hours of notice of
the intention to quit, in which case the employee is entitlgd to those wages at the time of quitting.
Cal. Lab. Code § 202. - | S

92.  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 203'provides that “[i]f an employer
willfully fails to pay... any wages of an employee who is discharged:c).r who quits, the ‘;wages of the
employeg shall coﬁtinue asa penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate until paid or until
an action therefor is coh'imenced;' but the wagés shall not continue for more than 30 days.” Cél.
Lab. Code § 203. ' |

93. At all relevant times herein, PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE
SUBCLASS were entitled to, buf did not receive, mea! and rest period premium wages, overtime
wages, minimum wages, vacation wages, and all compensation owed to them. |

94. When PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS separated from
employment w:th DEFENDANTS DEFFNDANTS willfully failed to pay all wages owed.

9s. DEF ENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 201, 202, .and 203.

96.  As a consequence of DEFENDANTS’ willful conduct in not paying wages owed at

the time of separation from employment, PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE

SUBCLASS are entitled to 30 days’-worth of their average daily wages as a penalty under Labor
Code section 203. See Drumm v. Morningstar, 695 F.Supp.2d 1014 (N.D. Cal. 2010).

97: PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS have been damaged in an
amount according to proof at trial, and seek all wages éamed and due, penalti:es_. interest, expenses,

attorneys’ fces and costs of suit.

22
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SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

‘ Failure T-o Timely Pay All Wages
(Cal. Lab; Code sections 204, 1182.12, 1194, 1194.2, 1197, 1198,
and Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

98.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above, | -

99.  Atall ﬁmes relevant herein, Labor Code section 204 has provided that all wages
earned by any person in any employment between the first (1st) and the fifteenth (15th) ddays,
inclusive, of any calendar month, other than those wéges due upon termination of an employee, are
due and payable between the sixteent\h (16th) and the twenty-sixth (26th) day of.the month during
which the Igbor was performed. Labor Code section 204 further provides that all wages earned by
any person in any émployment between the sixteenth (16th) and the laét day, inclusive, of any
calendar month, other than those wages due upon termination of an employee, are due and payable
between the first (lst) and the tenth (10th) day of the followm[, month. Cal. Lab. Code § 204(a).

100, At all times relevant herein, Labor Code section 204 has further provided that all
wages earned for labor in excess of the normal work period shall be paid no later than the paydqy
for the next regular payroll period. Cal. Lab. Code § 204(b). Alternatively, al all times relevant
herein, Labor Code section 204 has pro‘;fided tha-t the requirements 0f this section are.deemed
satisfied by the payment of wages for weekly, biweekly, or semimonthly payroll if the wages are
paid not more than seven (7) calendar days following the close of the payroll period. Cal. Lab.
Code § 204(d). | '

101. At all relevant times herein, Labor Code sections 1182.12, 1194, 1197, 1197.1 and
1198 have provided that t.hc minimum wage for employees ﬁ;ccd by the applicable IWC Wage
Order is the minimum wage to be paid to eﬁployees, and the payment of a wage less than the

minimum wage set by the IWC is unlawful. “Hours worked,” and therefore compensable time, is

|| defined in IWC Wage Order 7-2001 as “the time during which an employee is subject to the

control of an employer, and includes all time the employee is suffered or permitted to work,
23
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whether or not required to do so...” IWC Wage Order 7-2001(K), codified at Cal Code. Regs. tit. 8
§11050(2)(K). . | | ) '
102. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS willfully failed to pay PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS all wages- due including, but not limited to overtime wages, minimum wages, |
and meal and rest period premium wages, within the periods mandated by Labor Code section 204.
103.  Atall imes herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS for time spent by PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS answering text messages ..
related to work and as reqﬁired by DEFENDANTS; which is.deemed time worked and must be
compensated. | | ' |
. 104. At all relevant times herein, IWC Wage-Order 7-2001 ;.arovides that “[e]ach
workday an employee is required tc; report for work and does report, but is not put to work or is
furnished less than half said émployee;s usual or scheduled day’s work-, the employee shall be baid

for half the usual or scheduled day’s work, but in no event for less than two (2) hours nor more

than four (4) hours, at the employee’s regular rate of pay....” IWC Wage Order 7-2001(5), codiﬁed :

|{at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8§ 11050.

105.  Atall tlmes herem DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS for all werk performed while off the clock, including checking and responding to text
messages and completing opening and closing procedures.

106.  Atall times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIF F and CLASS
MEMBERS all wages owed at their legally prescribed regular rate of pay.

107. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 204, 1 1l82.12, 1194, 1194.2,
1197, 1198, and IWC Order No. 7-2001, coa‘iﬁed at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

108. PLAINTIFF and CLASS M}:MBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages eamned and due, pena!t;es interest, expenses, attorneys’ fees

and costs of suit,

24 .
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SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Reimburse For Employment Related Expenses
(Cal. Lab. Code section 2802)
_(Ag'ainst ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 2Sj . _

109. .PLAINTIF F inci)rporates by reference and. realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every alIegatioﬁ set forth above. -~ ! ‘ '

110. At all relevant times herein, Labor Code section 2802 has required an employer to
indemnify an employee “for all necessary expenditures or losses incurred by the employee in direct
consequence of the discharge of his or her duties....” Cal. Lab. Code § 2802(31). This includes
costs associated with the use of personal cell phones for work-related purposes. “If an employee is
req‘uired to make work-related calls on a personal cell phone, then he or shé is incurring an expense
for purposes of section 2802.” Cochran v. Schwan’s Home Service, Inc., 228 Cal. App. 4th 1137,
1144 (2014). | ' '

111. ' AF all relevant times herein, PLAINTIFF and the BUSI'NESS EXPENSE
SUBCLASS incurred necessary business-related expenses and costs that were not reimbursed by
DEFENDA]\iT S, including, but not limited to, the cost for cell phone usage. PLAINTIFF and the
BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS were required to use their personal cell phones to exchange
text messages with DEFENDANTS’ management. DEFENDANTS did not provide PLAINTIFF
or the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS with a work-issued cell phone, nor has it reimbursed
PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS for tiu: necessary expenses they incurred
in using their personal cell phones for DEFENDANTS’ business.

112,  Atall relevant times, DEFENDANTS have intenltional]y and wil.l fully failed to
reimburse PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS for necessary business-related
BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS to use their own personal cellular phones for work violates
Labor Code section 2802. ) .

113, PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS have been damaged in an
amount according to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, attorneys’

25 :
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fees; expenses, and costs of suit.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION

- Failure Tﬁ Maintain Required Records
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 226(a), .226.3, 1174(d), and 1198.5; and Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8
' § 11050.) .
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
- 114.  PLAINTIFF incorpérates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth abovc_-:. _
115. Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 1‘ ] 7I4 has provided that every
employef éhall “[k]eep, at g'central location in the state or at the plants or establishments at which

employees are employed, payroll records shovﬁng the hours worked daily by and the wages paid

| to, and the number of piece-rate units-earned by and any applicable piece rate paid to, employees

employed at the respective plants or establishments. These records shall be kept ... on file for not
less than three years.’; Cal. Lab. Code §1174(d).

| 116. Pursuént to IWC Wage Order 7-2001, employers are required to keep accurate time
records including, but not limited to, when the employee begins.and ends each work period and |
mea_i period. TWC Order No. 7-2001(7), codified at .Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. During the
CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANTS failed to keep accurate records of meal period start and stop
times for PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS in violation of the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code
§1198.5; IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), codified ai Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

117. At all relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226 provides that an employer is to
maintain accurate records, including, but not limited to: total daily hours worked by each '
employee; applicable rates of pay; all deductions; meal periods: time ;ecords showing when each
employee begins and ends each work period; and accurate itemized statements. By
DEFENDANTS’ company-wide polic'ies and practices of inaccuratel); recording time in which
PLAINTIFF aﬁ'd CLASS MEMBERS worked, including failing to record time during which
PLAINT]FF and CLASS MEMBERS wqued, DEFENDANTS knowingly and intentionally failed

to mﬁintain records as required by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226(a), 1174(d); see also
' 26 '
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IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

118.  PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount accord;ng
to p‘roof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, pep_aities_. interest, attorneys’ fees, expenses,
and costs of suit.‘

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure ’i‘o Furnish Accurate ll-temized Wage St.:stemtlants
(Cal. Lab. Code section 226(a), 226(e), 226.3, Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050) )
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 t;) -25)
_ 119, PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated h.erein cach
and every allegation set forth above. | '

120. At all relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226 hés required employers to
furnish each employee an éccuraté and itemized wage statement.in Writing that includes, but not
himited to. total daily hours worked by each employee: appli.cable rates of pay; all deductions; meal
periods; and total hc;'ur.s worked. See Cal. LgB. Code § 226(a); IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7),
codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. ' o

121. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS systematically provided PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS with incomplete and inaccurate wage statements. The violations include,
without limitation, the failure to accurately list the total daily hours worked by each employee, total
regular and overtime wages earned, the accurate regular rate of pay, or meal and/(;r rest break
premiums entitled to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS. | |

| 122. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS' failure to provide accurate itemized
wage statements was a knowing and intentional act based on their company-wide policy and
practice of failing to pay all wages owed as set forth herein in \_fiolation of Labor Code. Cal. Lab.
Code §§ 226(a), 226(¢), 226.3.

123. Biy DEFENDANTS’ company-wide policies and practices of inaccuréte]y recording
time in which PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked, DEFENDANTS khowingiy and
intentionally failed to ﬁaintain records as required by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226(a).

226(e), 226.3; IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7). codified at Cal. Cdde Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.
27
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124, PLAINTIFF and CL.ASS MEMBERS have been damaged ini an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek ali wages earned and due, penalties, interest, attorneys’ fees, expenses,
and costs of suit.

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure To Provide Written Notice of Paid Sick Leave
(Cat Lab. Code sections 246(i))
(Agamst ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

125. PLAIN I'1FF mcorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above..

' 126. - Atall times herein, Labor Code section 246 has réquired that employers provide
employees with “written notice that sets forth the amount of paid sick leave available, or paid time
off an employer provides in lieu of 51ck leave, either on the employee’s itemized wage statement
described in section 226 or in a separate writing provided on the designated pay date w1th the
employee’s payment of wages.” Cal. Lab. Code § 246(i).

127. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS' with the required written notice on wage statements and/or other séparale written
statements that listed the requisite information set forth in Labor Code section 246. Specifically,
DEFENDANTS® wagé statements fail to state PLAINTIFF's and CLASS MEMBERS’ paid sick
leave balance, as required by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code § 246(i).

: 128. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code section 246(1). _

129. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
‘to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, attorneys’ fees, expenses,

and costs of suit.

ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure To Prpvi(ie One Day’s Rest In Seven
(Cal. !.'.ab. Code sections 551, 552, and 852)
(Against ALL 'DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

 130. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
' 28
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and every allegation set forth aBove.

131. At all imes herein, Labor Code section 551 has provided that “[e}very person
employed in any occupation of labﬁr is entitled to one day’s rést therefrom in sevén.” Cz;ll. Lab.
Code § 551. |

132. . At all times hereiﬁ, Labor Code section 552 has pfovided that “[nZ]o employer of
labor shall cause his employees to work more than six ciays in seven.” Cal. Lab. Code § 552.

133.  Atall times herein, Labor Code section 852 has provisjed that “[t}he employer shall
apportion the peridds of rest to be taken by an_employee so that.the employee will have one
complete day of rest during each week.” Cal. Lab. Code § 852.

134.  Atall times Herein, DEFENDANTS failed to provide to PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBEIiS the legally-mandated rest days as required by California law. Further, “an employer’s
obligation is to apprise etnploy.ées of their entitlement to a day of rest and thereafier to n;:aintain
absolute neutrality-as to the éxe_rcise of that right.” Mendoza v. Norcz’strqrﬁ, Inc., 2 Cal. 5th 1074,
1091 (2017). DEFENDANTS failed to provide this notice to PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS. | |

135. - DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 551, 552, and 852.

136. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an- amount-according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, attorneys’ fees, expenses,
and costs of suit, as well as relief pursuant to Labor Code section 853.

TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Comply with Labor Code Sections 850 and 851
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 850 and 851) -
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
]37.‘ PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference an& realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. | |
138. At all times herein, Labor qué section 850 has provided, in pertinen{ part, that
“[n]o person employed to sell at retail drugs and meciicines' or to compound physicians'

prescriptions shall perform any work in any store, dispensary, pharmacy. laboratofy, or office for
. ' : 29
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more than an average of nine hourq nur'da :, or for more than 108 hours in any two consecutive
weeks or for more than 12 days in any two consecutive weeks...” Cal. Lab. Code § 850.

139. At all times herein, Labor Code secnon 851 has prohibited employers from
requiring employees covered by Section 850 to work in excess of the hours prescribed therein. See
Cal. Lab. Code § 851 . |

140.  Atall times.herein, and in_violafion of Labor Code Section 851, DEFENDANTS
required PLAINTIFF and the PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS to work in excess of the
hours prescribed by L. abor Code Section 850. |

141. DEFENDAN TS* conduct violates Labor Code sections 850 and 851.

142.  PLAINTIFF and the PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS have been _damaged

in an amount according to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest,

attorneys’ fees, expenses, and costs of suit, , as well as relief pursuant to Labor Code section 853.

THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Unfair And Unlawful Business Practicgs
(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code section 17200, ef seq.)
(Against ALLL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

143. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein eﬁ_ch
and every allegation set forth above. ‘

144. Atall imes _herein, Califomia Business & Professions Code provides thgt “person”
shall mean and include “natural pex;sons, corporations, firms, partnerships, joint stock companies,
associations and other organizations of persons.” Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17201.

145. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS’ conduct, as alleged herein, has been, and
continues to be, unfair, unlawful and harmful to PLAINTIFF, CLASS MEMBERS, the general
public, and DEFENDANTS’ competitors. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have suffered
injury in fact and hlave lost money as a result of DEFENDANTS’ unlawful business practices.

146.  Atall times herein, DEFENDANTS” activities, as alleged herein, are violations of
California law, and constitute falsé, unfair, fraudulent at}d deceptive busines; acts and practices in

violation of California Business & Professions Code sections 17200 ef seq.
30
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'147. Eachand e\;ery one of the DEFENDANTS’ acts and omissions in violation of the
Labor Code and IWC Wage Order 7-2001 as alleged herein, including but not limited to
DEFENDANTS’ failure to authorize and-provide uninterrupted meal periods; DEFENDANTS’
failure to authorize and f)ermit uninterrupted rest periods; DEFENDANTS’ failure to pay overtime
compensation; DEF ENDANTS’ failure to pay premium compensation at the legally prescribed
regular rate of pay; DEFENDANTS?’ failure to pay minimum wages; DE.FENDANTS’ failure to
pa} all wages due to terminatled employées; DEFENDANTS'’ failure to furnish accurate wage
statements; DEFENDANTS’ failure to maintain required records; DEFENDANTS?’ failure to
provide written notice of paid sick lcave; DEFENDANTS’ failure to provide one day’s rest in
seven; and DEFENDANTS’ failure to comply with Labor Code Sections 850 and 851 constitutes
an unfair and unlawful business practice under California Business & Professions Code sections
17200 et seq. -

. 148. DEFENDANTS?’ violations of California wage and hour laws constitute a business
prac;ice because DEFENDANTS’ aforementioned acts and omissions were done repeated] y over a
signiﬁc;ant period of time, and in a systematic manner, to the detriment of PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS. '

149.  As a result of the violations of California law herein déscrfbed, DEFENDANTS
unlawfuily gained an unfair advantagé over other businesses. PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS have suffered pecuniary loss by DEFENDANTS® unlawful business acts and practices
alleged herein.

150. Pursuant to California Business & Professions Code sections 17200 ef seq.,
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS are entitled to restitution of the wages withheld and retained
by DEF ENIDANTS during a period that commences four years prior to the filing of this complaint;
a permanent injunction requiring DEFENDANTS to pay all outstanding wages due to PLAINTiFF
and CLASS MEMBERS; an award of attomeyé’ fees pursuant to California Code of Civil
Procedure section 1021.5 and other applicable laws; and an award of costs.

Il

"
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Wherefore PLAINTIFF, individually and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated,
respectfully prays for relief against DEFENDANTS and Does 1 through 25, inclusive, and each of
thefn, as follows: '

1. For compensatory damages in an amount to be ascen;amed at trial;

2. For restitution of all monies due to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS, as well as
disgorged profits from the uﬁl’air and unlawful business practices of DEFENDANTS;

3. -_ For meal and rest period compcnsanon pu:suant to Labor Codc section 226.7 and
wC Wage Ordcr NQO. 7-2001; .

4, For liquidated damages pursuant to Lgbor Code section 1194.2;

5. For preliminary and permanent injunctive relief enjoining DEFEND.ANTS from
violating the relevant provisions of the Labor Code and IWC Wage Orders, and from engaging in
the unlawful business pracfices complained of herein,

6. .  For waiting time penalties pursuant to Labor Code section 203; .

7. For statutory and civil penalties according to proof, including but not limited to all
penalties authorized by the Labor Code sections 226(e), and 833;

8. For interest on the pnpaid wages at 10% per annum pursuant to Labor Cdde
Sections 218.6, 1194, 2802, California Civil Code sections 3287, 3288, and/or an-y other applicable
provision. providing for pre-judgment interest;

9. - For reasonable attorncys’ fees and costs pursu‘anl' to Labor Code sections 1194,
2802, California Civil Code section 1021.5, and any other apphcable provisions providing for
attomeys fees and costs;

10.  For declaratory relief;

11 For an order requiring and certifying the thirteen Causes of Action pled in this
COMPLAINT as a class action; |

'12.  For an order appointing PLAINTIFF as class representatwc and PLAINTIFF’s
counsel as class counsel; and

/1
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13. For such further relief that the Court may deem just and proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

PLAINTIFF, on behalf of himseif and all others similarly situated, hereby demands a jury

trial with respect to all issues triable of right by jury.

DATED: August 21,2018 | GUNN COBLE LLP

By: @ /< '
Beth Gunn -
C h)i‘ Cgoble
Attorneys for Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS,

on behalf of himself, and al! others similarly
situated

33 :
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o toBueregs I This was the third attempt 1o mediate ihis cose, and
‘ Cen ¥ fRaglog | the BASF mediator was for and away the best mediolor.
i T i | dare say that we would not have setiled today but for !

his efforts.”
George Yuhas, Esq.
Orrick, Herringlon & Sutcliffe (LP
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‘ e T e "We had an excellent experience and, after 8'/2 hours of
!

|

o .medioﬁon, [the BASF mediator] seltled a very difficult case
_ & involving claims against four clients of ours by a weallhy
‘ 2wl st e el ' investor who cloimed inadequate disclosure was made.”
‘ - e [ ‘i Robert Charles Friese, Esq.
ity : Sharisis Frigse LLP

"When the other side made their offer, | thought there was

e LY ~ no way we would reach an agreement - we were loo far _
i & v - apart, but the mediator brought us together. He soved me

o lot of time and aggravation by facilitaling a sefflement.

1
i
.‘ R
|

Lorrsaie s it |
: Thanks!”
o ; [ leslie Caplan
L AL A [ Global Warming Campaign Manager S E RV l ‘ E S
REALTITN e ,"’fo: PR EE T TR L Bluewater Network

ot

“BASF stalf was very helphul - stayed on the task ond kept
after o hard to reach party. The mediator was greanl”

P I .
ORI S et

dgrnd s Mark Abelson, Esq.
. q
k REATT I meten Campagnoli, Abelson & Campaognoli
i B orme 8 amnie Ahdele of S ol stioma: .,
N ) The [BASF] mediator was excellent! He was effective wuh
Frayrie 3 WL, g LIS
| ‘ ® i some strong, forceful personalities.”
ol S
! Fevlinnd Denise A. leadbetter, Fsq.

P inrite 200 Zacks, Ulrecht & leadbelter
! iy ;\n_|‘: 1roie o oty :H\;'

! YRS N o

S e ] PROCEDURES, PODCASTS,
eyt o FORMS, MEDIATOR BIOGRAPHIES
G R e AND PHOTOGRAPHS:
www.sfbar.org/mediation
THE BAR ASSOQCIATION OF

SAN FRANCISCO

adr@sfbar,org or
415-982-1600
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QUALITY

ERPERIENCE

i

TRUST

/———\ !
WHAT IS BASF’S
MEDIATION SERVICE?

The Bar Association of San Francisco’s Mediation
Services is o privale mediation service which
will assist you with almost any type of dispute,
from simple coniract dispules to complex
commercial matters.

A
WHO ARE THE MEDIATORS?

They are established mediators who have private
mediation practices and have met our extensive
experience requiremenis. By going through BASF
you receive the services of these highly qualified
medialors ot a great value.

A
HOW DO | LEARN MORE
ABOUT THE MEDIATORS?

BASF's website. at www.sfbar.org/medialion
provides bios, photos .and hourly rates of
mediolors. You can search by name or by area
of law needed for your case. BASF staff is
always available to assist you with selection or
o answer questions.

,/‘--\
HOW MUCH DOES
THE SERVICE COST?

A $295 per party administrative fee is poid o
BASF ot the time the Consent to Mediale form
is filed. This fee covers the first hour of mediator
preporation fime and the first two hours of session
time. Time beyond that is peid ot the mediator’s
normal hourly rate. '

T
"HOW IS THE
MEDIATOR CHOSEN?

- You may request a specific mediator from our

website {(www.sfbar.org/mediotion) and indicate
your choice on the BASF Consent lo Mediale
torm, or you may indicote on the form that you
would like BASF staff to assist with the selection.

T
WHY SHOULD | GO THROUGH BASF?
CAN'T | JUST CALL THE
- MEDIATOR DIRECTLY?

BASF mediators have agreed, to provide three
free hours as o service 1o BASF. If you go directly
to one of our mediators, you do not quolify for
the free hours unless you notify us. Once you
have filed with us, you will talk directly to the
mediolor to ask questions and fo set a convenient
medialion date ond time.

T
HOW LONG IS THE
MEDIATION SESSION?

The time spent in mediation will vary depending
on your dispule. BASF mediolors ore dedicated
to reaching o setilemenl, whether you need o few
hours or several doys.

/d—\
WHO CAN USE THE SERVICE? -

BASF mediation can be utilized by anyone and is
NOT limited to Son Francisco residens or issues.
Also, the service may be used belore a courl
action is filed or at any fime during a court actlion.

o~
OUR CASE IS FILED IN COURT. HOW DO
WE USE BASF’'S MEDIATION SERVICES?

When you file the San Francisco Superior
Court's Stipulation to ADR form, check the box
indicating "Mediotion Services of BASF.” Then
complete BASF’s Consent lo Mediate form found
on our website ond file it with us. (lf the matter
was filed in o different county, please check with
that courl for the appropriale process.)

A
WE ARE ON A DEADLINE;
HOW QUICKLY CAN WE MEDIATE?

Once all parties have filed all the poperwork,
BASF con normally have you in touch with
the mediator within a day or two. if there

_is a deadline, BASF siaff will give the matter

top priorify.
T
WHAT TYPES OF DISPUTES
CAN | MEDIATE?

BASF medialors are trained in 30+ areas of
low. If you don't see the area you need on our

- wehsite or in this brochure, conltact us; it is

very likely we can match your need with one of
our ponelists.

A
MORE INFORMATION

Visit our website {www.stbar.org/mediation}
where you can search by name or by arec
of low. For persona!l assisionce, please call
415-982-1600.

WWW.SFBAR BIRGIMERIATIEIN « ABR@SFBARIORG « 415.982.1600
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CASE NUMBER: CGC-18-569060 RYAN HYAMS VS. CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, A RHODE

NOTICE TO PLAINTIFF

A Case Management Conference is set for:

DATE: JAN-23-20198
TIME: 10:30AM

PLACE: Department610
400 McAllister Street
San Francisco, CA 94102-3680

All parties must appear and comply with Local Rule 3.

CRC 3.725 requires the filing and service of a case management statement form CM-110
no later than 15 days before the case management conference. However, it would facilitate

the issuance of a case management order without an appearance at the case

management conference if the case management statement is filed, served and lodged in
Department 610 twenty-five (25) days before the case management conference.

Plaintiff must serve a copy of this notice upon each party to this action with the summons and
complaint. Proof of service subsequently filed with this court shall so state. This case is

eligible for electronic filing and service per Locai Rule 2.11. For more information,
please visit the Court's website at www.sfsuperiorcourt.org under Online Services.

ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION POLICY REQUIREMENTS

IT IS THE POLICY OF THE SUPERIOR COURT THAT EVERY CIVIL
CASE PARTICIPATE IN EITHER MEDIATION, JUDICIAL OR NON-
JUDICIAL ARBITRATION, THE EARLY SETTLEMENT PROGRAM OR
SOME SUITABLE FORM OF ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
PRIOR TO A TRIAL.

(SEE LOCAL RULE 4)

Plaintiff must serve a copy of the Alternative Dispute Resolution Information Package on each
defendant along with the complaint. All counsel must discuss ADR with clients and opposing
counsel and provide clients with a copy of the Alternative Dispute Resolution Information
Package prior to filing the Case Management Statement.

[DEFENDANTS: Attending the Case Management Conference does not take the

place of filing a written response to the complaint. You must file a written
response with the court within the time limit required by law. See Summons.]

Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Coordinator
400 McAllister Street, Room 103

San Francisco, CA 94102

(415) 551-3869

See Local Rules 3.3, 6.0 C and 10 B re stipulation to judge pro tem.
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Superior Court of California, County of San Francisco

Alternative Dispute Resolution
Program Information Package

The plaintiff must serve a copy of the ADR information package
on each defendant along with the complaint. (CRC 3. 221(0))

. WHAT IS ADR?

Altermnative Disputé Resolution (ADR) is the term used to describe the various options avallable
for settiing a dispute without a trial. There are many different ADR processes, the most common
forms of which are mediation, arbitration and settiement conferences. In ADR, trained, impartial
people decide disputes or help parties decide disputes themselves. They can help parties -
resolve disputes without having to go to court. ,

WHY CHOOSE ADR?

- "It is the policy of the Superior Court that every noncriminal, nonjuvenile case particmate either

in an early settlement conference, mediation, arbitration, early neutral evaluation or some other
alternative dispute resolution process prior to trial." (Local Rule 4) '

ADR can have a number of advantages over traditional litigation:

o ADR can save time, A dispute often can be resolved in a matter of months, even
weeks, through ADR, while a lawsduit can take years.

o ADR can save money, including court costs, attorney fees, and expert fees.

o ADR encourages participation. The parties may have more opportunities to tell their
story than in court and may have more control over the outcome of the case.

¢ ADR is more satisfying. For all the above reasons, many people participating in
ADR have reported a high degree of satisfaction.

HOW DO | PARTICIPATE IN ADR?
Litigants may. elect to participate in ADR at any point in a case. Generai civil cases may
voluntarily enter into the court's ADR programs by any of the following means:
« Filing a Stipulation to ADR: Complete and file the Stipulation form (attached to this
packet) at the clerk’s office located at 400 McAllister Street, Room 103;
o Indicating your ADR preference on the Case Management Statement (also attached to
this packet); or
¢ Contacting the court's ADR office (see below) or the Bar Association of San
Francisco s ADR Services at 415-782-8905 or www,sfbar.org/adr for more lnformatlon

* For more information about ADR programs or dispute resolution alternatives, contact.

Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution.
400 McAlister Street, Room 103, San Francisco, CA 84102
415-551-3869 -

* Or, visit the court ADR website at www.sfsugeriorcourt.ogg.

" ADR-1 o3f1s - [{[)] Pagel
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The Sap Francisco Superior Court offers different types of ADR processes for general clvil
matters; each ADR program is described in the subsections below:

1) SETTLEMENT CONFERENCES

The goal of settlement conferences is to provide participants an opportunity to reach a mutually
acceptable settlement that resolves all or part of a dispute early in the litigation process.

(A) THE BAR ASSOCIATION OF SAN 'FRANCISCO (BASF) EARLY SETTLEMENT
PROGRAM (ESP): ESP remains as one of the Court's ADR programs (see Local Rule 4.3) but
patrties must select the program — the Court no Ionger will order parties into ESP

Operation: Panels of pre-screened attorneys (one plaintiff, one defense counsel) each
with at least 10 years’ trial experience provide a minimum of two hours of settlement conference
time, including evaluation of strengths and weakness of a case and potential case value. On
occasion, a panelist with extensive experience in both plaintiff and defense roles serves as a
sole panelist BASF handles notification to all partles, conflict checks with the panelists, and full
case management. The success rate for the program is 78% and the satisfaction rate is 97%
‘Full procedures are at: www.sfbar.org/esp.

Cost: BASF charges an administrative fee of $295 per party with a cap of $590 for
parties represented by the same counsel. Waivers are available to those who qualify. For more
information, call Marilyn King at 415-782-89805, email adi@sfbar.org or see enclosed brochure.

(B) MANDATORY SETTLEMENT CONFERENCES: Parties may elect to apply to the
Presiding Judge’s department for a specially-set mandatory settlement conference. See Local
Rule 5.0 for further instructions. Upon approval of the Presiding Judge, the court will scheduie
the conference and assign the case for a settlement conference,

2) MEDIATION

Mediation is a voluntary, flexible, and confidential process in which a neutral third party facilitates
negotiations. The goal of mediation is to reach a mutually satisfactory agreement that resolves
all or part of a dispute after exploring the interests, needs, and pr:orities of the parties In [ight of
relevant evidence and the iaw.

‘(A) MEDIATION SERVICES OF THE BAR ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO, in
oooperatlon with the Supenor Court, is designed to help civll litigants resolve disputes before
they incur substantial costs in litigation. While it is best to utilize the program at the outset of
litigation, parties may use the program at any time while a case is pending.

Operation: Experienced professiona! mediators, screened and approved, provide one
hour of preparation time and the first two hours of mediation time. Mediation time beyond that is
charged at the mediator's hourly rate. BASF pre-screens all mediators based upon strict
. educational and experience requirements. Parties can select their mediator from the panels at
www.sfbar.org/mediation or BASF can assist with mediator selection. The BASF website
contains photographs, biographies, and-videos of the mediators as well as testimonials to assist
with the selection process. BASF staff handles conflict checks and full case management.

Mediators work with parties to arrive at a mutually agreeable solution. The success rate for the

program Is 64% and the satisfaction rate is 99%.
ADR-1 03f15 Ga) ' . Page 2
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Cost: BASF charges an administrative fee of $295 per party. The hourly mediator fee
beyond the first three hours will vary depending on the mediator selected. Waivers of the
administrative fee are available to those who qualify. For more information, call Maniyn King at
415-782-8805, email adr@sfbar.org or see the enclosed brochure.

.

(B) JUDICIAL MEDIATION provides mediation with a San Francisco Superior Court
judge for civil cases, which include but are not limited to, personal injury, construction defect,
employment, professional malpractice, insurance coverage, toxic torts and industrial accidents.
Parties may utilize this program at anytime throughout the litigation process.

Operation Parties interested in judicial mediation should file a Stipulation to Judicial
Mediation indicating a joint request for-inclusion in the program. A preference for a specific
judge may be indicated. The court will coordinate asslgnment of cases for the program There
is no charge for the Judicial Mediation program.

(C) PRIVATE MEDIATION: Although not currently a part of the court's ADR program,
parties may elect any private mediator of their cholce; the selection and coordination of private
mediation is the responsibility of the parties.: Parties may find mediators and organizations on
the Internet. The cost of private mediation will vary depending on the mediator selected.

'3) ARBITRATION _ ‘ ,

'An arbitrator is neutral attorney who presides at a hearing where the parties preéent evidence
through exhibits and testimony. The arbitrator applies the law to the facts of the case and
“makes an award based upon the merits of the case.

(A) JUDICIAL ARBITRATION: When the court orders a case to arbitration it is called
“judicial arbitration®. The goal of arbitration is to provide parties with an adjudication that is
earlier, faster, less formal, and usually less expensive than a trial.

Operation: Pursuant to CCP 1141.11, al! civil actions in which the amount in controversy
is $50,0C0 or less, and no party seeks equitabie rellef, shall be ordered to arbitration. (Upon
stipulation of all parties, other civil matters may be submitted to judicial arbitration.) An arbifrator
is chosen from the court’s arbitration panel. Arbitrations are generally held between 7 and 9
months after a complaint has been filed. Judicial arbitration is not binding unless all parties
agree to be bound by the arbitrator’s decision. Any party may request a trial within 60 days after
the -arbitrator's award has been filed. Local Rule 4.2 allows for mediation in lieu of judicial
arbitration, so long as the paities file a stipulation to mediate after the ﬁlmg of a complaint.
There is no cost to the parties for jUdlCIal arbitration.

(B) PRIVATE ARBITRATION: Although not currently a part of the court's ADR program,
civil disputes may also be resolved through private arbitration. Here, the pariies volunlarily
consent to-arbitration. If all parties agree, private arbitration may be binding and the parfies give
up the right to judicial review of the arbitrator's decision. iIn private arbitration, the parties select
a.private arbitrator and are responsible for paying the arbitrator’s fees.

TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THE COUF&T‘S ADR PROGRAMS, PLEASE COMPLETE THE A'ITACHED.
STIPULATION TO ADR AND SUBMIT {T TO THE COURT. YOU MUST ALSO CONTACT BASF TO ENROLL IN
THE LISTED BASF PROGRAMS. THE COURT DOES NOT FORWARD COPIES OF STIPULATIONS TO BASF.

ADR-1 03/15 ‘ ' Ga) : Page 3
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Superior Court of California
| County of San Francisco

JENIFFER B. ALCANTARA

HouTemboon - Tudicial Mediation Program:. - SR A

PRESIDING JUDGE

The Judicial Mediation program offers mediation in civil litigatioﬂ with a.San
Francisco Superior Court judge familiar with the area of the law that is the subject of the
controversy. Cases that will be considered for participation in the program include, but are
not limited to personal injury, professional malpractice, construction, employment, insurance
coverage disputes, mass torts and complex commercial litigation. Judicial Mediation offers
civil litigants the opportunity to engage in early mediation of a case shortly after filing the
complaint in an’ effort to resolve the matter before substantial funds are expended. This
program may also be utilized at anytime throughout the litigation process. The panel of
judges currently participating in the program includes:

The Honorable Suzanne R. Bolanos The Honorable Stephen M. Murphy
The Honorable Angela Bradstreet The Honorable Joseph M. Quinn
The Honorable Andrew Y.S. Cheng The Honorable James Robertson; 11 -
The Honorable Samuel K. Feng The Honorable John K. Stewart

The Honorable Curtis E.A. Kanow The Honorable Richard B. Ulmer, Jr.

The Honorable Charlene P. Kiesselbach The Honorable Mary E. Wiss

Parties interested in Judicial Mediation should file a Stipulation to Judicial Mediation
indicating a joint request for inclusion in the program and deliver a- courtesy copy to
Department 610. A preference for a specific judge may be indicated on the request, and
although not guaranteed due to the judge’s availability, every effort will be made te fulfill the
parties’ choice for a particular judge. Please allow at least 30 days from the filing of the form
to receive the notice of assignment. The court’s Altemative Dispute Resolution
Administrator wil] facilitate assignment of cases that qualify for the program.

Note: Space and availability is limited. Submission of a stipulation to Judicial Mediation
does not guarantee inclusion in the program. You will receive wntten notification from the
court as to the outcome of your application.

Alternative Dispute Resolution
400 McAllister Street, Room 103, San Francisco, CA 94102
(415) 551-3869

07/2017 (ja)
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Expedited Jury Trial Information Sheet

This information sheet is for anyone involved in a civil
lawsnit who will be taking part in an expedited jury -
trial—a trial that is shorter and has a smaller jury than a
traditional jury trial.

You can find the law and rules governing expedited
jury trials in Code of Civil- Procedure sections
630.01-630.29 and in rules 3.1545-3.1553 of the
California Rules of Court. You can find these at any
county Jaw library or online. The statutes are online
at hitp:/fleginfo.legislature.ca. govlfaces/codes.xhiml.
The rules are at wwy. courts.ca.gov/rules.

() Whatis an expedited jury trial?

An expedited jury trial is a short trial, generally lasting

only one or two days. It is intended to be quicker and

less expensive than a traditional jury trial. .

As in a traditional jury trial, a jury will hear your case

and will reach a decision about whether one side has to

pay money to the other side. An expedited jury trial

differs from a regular jury trial in several important

ways:

o The trial will be shorter. Each side has S hours to
" pick a jury, put on all its witnesses, show the jury

its evidence, and argue its case.

o The jury will be smaller. There will be 8 jurors
instead of 12.

o Choosing the jury will be faster. The parties will
exercise fewer challenges.

(2) What cases have expedited jury trials?

o Mandatory expedited jury trials. Al limited civit
cases—cases where the demand for damages or the
value of property at issue is $25,000 or less—come

-within the mandatory expedited jury trial
procedures. These can be found in the Code of
Civil Procedure, starting at section 630.20. Unless
your case is an unlawful detainer (eviction) action,

or meets one of the exceptions set out in the statute,

it will be within the expedited jury trial procedures.
‘These exceptions are expleined more in @be[ow.

o Voluntary expedited jury trials, If your civil
case is not a limited civil case, or even if it is,
you can choose to lake part in a volunrary
expedited jury trial, if all the parties agree to do

sa. Voluntary expedited jury trials have the same

shorter time frame and smaller jury that the

mandatory ones do, but have one other
important aspect—all parties must waive their
rights to appeal. In order to help keep down the
costs of litigation, there are no appeals following
a voluntary expedited jury trial exceptin very
limited cirgumslances. These are exphined more
ully in @

* (3) Will the caise be in front of a judge?

The trial will take place at a courthouse and a judge, or,
if you agree, a temporary judge (& court commissioner or
an experienced attorney that the court appoinis to act as

a judge) will handle the irial.

@ Does the jury have to reach a
unanimous decision?

_ No. Just as in a traditional civiljury trial, only three-

quarters of the jury must agree in order to reacha
decision in an expedited jury trial. With 8 people on the
jury, that means that at least 6 of the jurors must agree
on the verdict in an expedited jury trial.

@ Is the decision of the jury binding
on the parties?

Generally, yes, but not always. A verdict fromajury in
an expedited jury trial is like a verdict in a tradilional
jury trial, The court will enter a judgment based on the
verdicl, the jury’s decision that onc or more defendants
will pay money to the plaintiff or that the plainiiff gets
no money af all, _ -

But parties in an expedited jury trial, like in other kinds
of trials, are allowed to make an agreement before the
trial that guarantees that the defendant will pay a certain
amount to the plaintiff even if the jury decideson a
tower payment or no payment. That agreement may also
put a cap on the highest amount that a defendant has to
pay, even if the jury decides on a higher amount. These
agreements are known as “high/low agreements.” You
should discuss with your attorney whether you should
enter into such an agreement in your case and how it will
affect you.

@ How else is an expedlted jury trial
different?

The goal of the expedited jury tnal process is 1o have

shorter and less expensive trials.

o The cases that come within the mandatory expedited
jury trial procedures are all limited civil actions, and
they must proceed under the limited discovery and

Jugisa) Councll of CALiomis, wnviy,Counts.co gov
Rovised July 1, 20149, Mandatery Feim

Code of Civil Progedure, § 620,01-630,10

Cod Rules of Court, nules D 1545--3,1533

Expedited Jury Trial Information Sheet

EJT-001-INFO, Page 1 of 2
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EJT001INEO

Expedited Jury Trial Information Sheet

pretrlal_rules that apply to those actions. See Code of
Civil Procedure sections $0-100.

e The voluntary expedifed jury trial rules set up some
special procedures to help those cases have shorter -
and less expensive trials, For example, the rules
require that several weeks before the trial takes
place, the pariies show each other all exhibils and -

. tell each other what witnesses will be at the trial. In -
addition, the judge will meet with the attorneys
before the trial to work out some things in advance.

The other big difference is that the parties in either kind
of expedited jury trial can make agreements about how
the case will be tried so that it can be tried quickly and
effectively. These agreements may include what rules
will apply to the case, how many witnesses can testify
for each side, what kind of evidence may be used, and
what facts the parties already agree lo and 50 do not need
the jury to decide. The parties can agree to medify many
of the rules that apply to trials generally or'to any
prekrial aspect of the expedited jury trials.

Do I have to have an expedited jury

trial if my case is for $25,000 or less?
Not always. There are some exceptions.

o The mandatory expedited jury irial procedures do
not apply to any unlawful detainer or eviction case.

o Any party may ask to opt out of the procedures if the
case meets any of the criteria set out in Code of Civil
Procedure section 630.20(b), all of which arc also
described in item 2 of the Request to Opt Qut of
Mandatory Expedited Jury Triaf (form BIT-003),
Any request to opt out must be made on that form,
and it must be made within a certain time period, as
set out in Cal. Rules of Court, rule 3.1546(c). Any
opposition must be filed within 15 days after the
request has been served.

The remainder of this information sheet applies only to
voluntary expedited jury trials.

Who can take part in a voluntary
expedited jury trial?

The process can be used in any civil case that the parties
agree may be tried in one or two days. To have a
voluntary expedited jury trial, both sides must wani one.
Each side must agree to all the rules described in
and to waive most appeal rights. The agreements
between the parties must be put into writing ina

document called {Proposed] Consent Order for
Voluntary Expedited Jury Trial, which will be submitted
to the court for approval, (Form EJT-020 may be used
for this.) The court must issue the consent order as
propesed by the parties unless the court finds good cause
why the action should not proceed through the expedited
jury trial process,

Why do | give up most of my rights

to an appeal in a voluntary

expedited jury trial?
To keep costs down and provide a fasier end to the case,
all partics who agree to take part in a voluntary
expedited jury frial must agree to waive the right to
appeal the jury verdict or decisions by the judicial officer
concerning the trial unless one of the following happens:

o Misconduct of the judicial officer that matenally
affected substantial rights of a party;

‘e Misconduct.of the jury; or

o  Cosruption or fraud or some other bad act
that prevented a fair trial.

In addition, parties may not ask the judge to setthe jury
verdict aside, except on those same grounds, Neither you
nor the other side wil be able to ask for a new trial on

-the grounds that the jury verdict was too high or too low,

that legal mistakes were made before or during the trial,
or that new evidence was found Jater.

} Can | change my mind after agreeihg
‘to a voluntary expedited jury trial?

No, unless tite other side or the court agrees. Once you
and the other side have apreed to take part in a voluntary
expedited jury trial, that agrecment is binding on both
sides. It can be changed only if both sides want to
change it or stop the process or if a court decides there
are good reasons the voluntary expedited jury trial
should not be used in the case. This is why it is
impaortant ta talk to your attorney before apreeing to a
voluntary expedited jury trial. This information sheet
does not cover everything you may need to know about
voluntary expedited jury trials. It only gives you an
overview of the process and how it may affect yous
rights. You should discuss all the points covered here
and any questions you have about expedited jury
trinls with an atterney before agrecing to a voluntary
expedited jury trial.

Rovisad July 1, 2006

Expedited Jury Trial Information Sheet

EJT-001-tNFO, Page 2 of 2



" | ATTORNEY OR PAR%‘I’ WITHOUT ATTORNEY {Name and edoress) .. - FOR COURT USE ONLY .

TELEPHONE NO.:

ATTORNEY FOR (Nome):

SUPERIOR COURT OF GALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
400 MeAllster Streel )

$San Frencisco, CA 84102-4514

PLAINTIEFIPETITIONER:

CEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 91 of 298

. . CASE NUMBER:
STIPULATION TO ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESCLUTION (ADR) -
: . : ' DEPARTMENT 610

1) The parties hereby stipulate that this action shall be submitted to the following ADR process:

0

O

2) .The parties agree that the ADR Process shali be completed by {date): '

" Early Settlement Program of the Bar Asscciation of San Francisco (BASF) - Pre-screened experienced allomeys provide

a minfmum of 2 hours of settlement conference tima for a BASF administrative fee of $205 per party. Walvers ere available o
those who quatify. BASF handles nolification to all pariies,” conflict checks with the panelists, and full case

© management. www.sfbar.orgfesp

Medlation Services of BASF - Experienced professional mediators, screened and approved, provide one hour of preparation
and the first two hours of mediation time for a BASF administrative fee of $295 per pariy. Medlation time beyond that is charged
at the mediator's hourly rate, Waivers of the administrafive fee are available o those who qualify. BASF assists patﬂes with
mediatér selection, conflicts checks and full case management. www.sfbar.orm/mediation

Private Mediation - Medlators and ADR provider organizations charge by the hour or by the day, current market rates. ADR
organizations may also charge an administrative fee. Partles may find experienced mediators and organizations on the Intemnel.

Judicial Arbitration - Non-binding arbitration is avaflable to cases In which the amount in controversy Is $50,000 or less and no
equitable relief is sought. The court appolnts a pre-screened albilrator who will i{ssue an award. There i5 no fee for this

program. www.sfsuperiorcourt.org

Judicial Mediation - The Judictal Mediation program offers mediation In ci\nl litigalion with a San Francisco Superiar Court
judge familiar with the area of the law that is the subject of the ocnlroversy There is no fee for this program.

WWW. a!sugago@gm orq
Judge Requested (see list of Judges currently participating In the program): :
Date range requested for Judicia! Mediation (from the fillng of stipulation to Judiclal Mediation):

[J30-90days [190-120days (3 Other (please specify)

Other ADR process (descrlb_é) '

3) Plaintiff(s) and Defendant(s) further agree as follows;

Name of Party Stipulating Name of Party Stipulating

Name of Party or Attorney Executing Stipulation Name of Party or Attorney Execuiing Stipulation
Signalure of Party or Attorey Slgnature of Parly or Attomey

O Plaintif [] Defendant {J Cross-defendant ] Plaintiff [J Defendant [J Cross-defendant
Dated: ‘ ] Dated:

‘'O Additlonal signature(s) attached

ADR-2 03115 STIPULATION TO ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
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. . . CiA-110
[TATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY (Namo, Siale Bar numbey, 4 a¢dra sty FOR COURT USE ONLY
TELEPHONENOD: FAX NO. (Dpficra:
E-AAIL ADDRESS (Oplianal): ’
AYTORNEY FOR (vama
SUPERIOR COURY OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF .
STREET ADDRESS: :
MAILING ADDRESS:
CITY AND ZIP CODE:
BRANCH NAME:
PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER:
DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT: .
CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT CASE NUMBER:
(Checkons): [ UNLIMITED CASE ) unTED cASE
{Amount demanded (Amount demanded [s $25,000
exceeds $25,000) _orless}
A CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE is scheduled as follows: ) -
‘| Date: ' Time: "Dept.: Div.: .. Room:
Address of court (i¥ different from the address above): ) ) :
{7 Notice of Intent to Appear by Telephone, by (nams):

INSTRUCTIONS: A!l applicable boxes must ha.chack-ed, and the specified information must be provided.

1. ' Party or partles (ansiverons):
a. [CZ] This statement Is submitted by party (name):
b. [ This stalement Is submitted jointly by pariles (namas}):

2. Complaint and cross-compiaint (fo be answered byplafnmfs and cmss-camp.'af'nanfs only}
a. The complaint was filed on (dafe):
b. ("] The cross-complaint, If any, was fled on (dafo):

3. Service (fo be answared by plaintiffs and cross-complainanis only)
a. [ A partles named In the complaint and cross-complaint have been served, have appeared or have been dlsmissed
b. {1 The following pariies named in the complaint or cross-complaint
(1) J havenot been served (spacify names and explain why nof):

(2) ] have been served but have not appeared and have not been dismissed (specily names);

(3) [ nave had a default entered agalnst them (specify names}: . ' ‘ o o

c. I e following additional parlies may be added (specify names, nalure of involvement in case, and dafe bwanbh
they may be served):

4, Descrlp!lnn of case . :
a. Typeofcasein [] ccrnplalnt 1 cross-complaint  {Describe, including causas of aclion):

. : Pago 1 ot
Form Aupind o s dutuay Uss . CASE RMANAGEMENT STATERMENT i s of Cou.

| CMe110Rav July 1, 2019} -
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CM-110

PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER: CASE NUMBER:

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

4. b. _ Provide a brief statement of the case, including any damages. (if personsl injury damages are sought, specify the injury and
damages clalmed, including medical expanses (o dale [indicale source and amount), estimaled fulure medical expsnses, lost
eamings to dale, and esfimated fulure los! eamnings. If equitable reflef Is sought, dascribs the nalure of the relfef.)

(T (¥ more space Is needed, check this box and altach a pege designated as Atiechment 4b.)

_ 5. Jury or nonjury triat : . .
The party or pares request [ J ajurytlal [—J anonjurytrial. (i more than one party, provide the name ofeach parly

requesting a jury trial): ’ .

6. Trial date
a. [ Thetrial has been set for {dats):
~ b. [ No trial date has been set. This case will be ready for trial within 12 months of the date of the filing of the compleint (i
not, explain):

c. Dates on which parties or allorneys will not be avallable for trial (specily dales end explain reasons for unavailablily):

7. Estimated tength of trial
The party or parties estimate thet the trial will take (check one):
a. [ days (specify number): '
b. [ hours {(short causes) (speciy):

: 8. Trial representation (fo be answered for each party)
The party or parties wiil be represented attrial [_] by the attomey-or party listed in the caption  [__] by the following:

8. Attomey:
b. Fimm:
. ¢ Address: . .
d. Telephone number. . ) f Faxnumber |
€. E-mall address: . g. - Parly represented:

[ Additional representation is described in Attachment 8.

9. Preference
[ ] This cass is entitled to preference (specily code section):

10. Alternative dispute resolution {ADR)

a. ADR information package. Please nole that different ADR processes are available in different courls and communities; read
the ADR information package provided by the court under rule 3.221 for information about the processes available through the
court and community programs in this case.

(1) For pariles represented by counsel: Coungel L_J has ] hasnot provided the ADR information packege dentified
in rule 3.221 to the client and reviewed ADR opfions with the client.

(2) For selfrepresented parties: Party () has (] has not reviewad the ADR Information package [dentified in nile 3.221.

b. Referral to judiclal arbitration or civil actlon mediation (if avallable).

(1) [J This matter is subject to mandatory Judiclal arbitration under Code of Clvil Procedure section 1141.11 or to ¢ivil action
mediation under Code of Civil Procedure section 1775.3 because the amouni [n controversy does noi_exmed the

statutory fimit.

(2) [ Piaintiff elects to refer this case to judicla) arbilration and agrees to limit }emvery to the amount specified in Code of
Clvil Procedure section 1141.11. .

(3) (] Thiscaseis exemgi from judiclal arbitration under rule 3.811 of the California Rules of Courtor from civil action
mediation under Code of Civil Procedure section 1775 et seq. {specify exemplion): -

CuTio ey Sy 1. CASE MANAGEWENT STATEMENT Poga 2416
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Cifl-110

PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER:
DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

CASE NUMBER:

-40. ¢ Indicale the ADR process or processes that the party or parties are willlng to pariicipale in, have agreed to panlcipale in, or
have already panldpated in (check all that apply and provide the specified mronnaﬂan)

The parly or partles completing
this form are wiiling to

participate.In the following ADR
processes {check alf that apply):

Ifthe parly or pariles completing thfs form in the case have agreed to

participate In or have already completed an ADR process or processes,
indicate the status of lhe processes (affach a copy of the perﬁas'ADR

slipulstion);

(1) Mediation - -

Mediation session not yet scheduled
Medlation session scheduled for (date):
Agreed to complete medlation by (date):
Mediatlon completed on (dala).

(2) Settlement . /3
conference i

Settlement conference nof yet scheduled
Settlement conference scheduled for (date):
Agreed to complete sstilement conference by (dafe)

Settlement conference completed hn {dats):

{3) Neulral evaluation | I

Neulral evalualion not yet scheduled

Neutrel evaluation scheduled for (date):

Agi'eed to complets neutral evaluation by (date):
Neutral evaluation completed on (daté):

{4} Nonbinding judicial : | -
arbitration

Judicla! arblfratlon not yet scheduled

Judicial arbitration scheduled for (date):

Agreed to complete judiclal arbitration by (date):
Judicial arbitration comptleted on (date): -

(5) Binding private 3
arblration : -

Private arbitration not yel scheduted

Private arbllration scheduled for (date):

Agreed to eon{p!ele private arbilration by (dale):
Private arbitration completed an (dats):

{6} Cther {(spacify). . . ]

0o0do|o0000({0o000|ooD00(000O DI]EIEI

ADR session not yet scheduled

ADR session scheduled for {date):

Agreed {o complete ADR session by (dale):
ADR completed on (dgte):

C3-110 [Rev. July 1, 2011)

CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT

mﬁaou



Case 4:18-Cv-062785'HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 95 of 298

- ‘ - Q110
" PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER: CASE HUMBER: '

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

1. lnsurance

— Insurance carier, If any, for party filing lhls statement (neme):
b Reservation of rights: [ ] Yes [ ] No

‘e, [ coveraga Issues will significantly affect resolution of this case (explaln):

12, Jurlsdlcﬁon

Indicate any matters that may affect the court’s jurisdiction or processing of this case and dascnbe the slatus
[ Bankruptey [T Other (specify):
Status: '

13. Related cases, consolldation, and coordination '
a, [_] There are companton, undertylng, or related cases.
(1) Name of case:
(2) Neme of court: -

(3) Case number:
(4) Status: -

| Add[tional cases are descrfbed In Attachmanl 13a.

b. CJAmotonto [ consolidate [ ) coordinate will be filed by (nams party):

14, Blfurcatlon

(3 The party or parties intend to file & motion fcr an order bifurcating, sevenng. or coordinaﬂng the foliowing fssues or causes of
acﬁon (spacfly moving party, lyps of motion, and reasons):

15. Other motlons'

[ the party or parlies expect to file the following motions before irial (specify _movlng parly, ‘typa of motion, and Issues):

_16. Discovery ‘
a. [ The party or parties have comp!eted all discovery.
b. T 1The following discovery will be completed by the dale specified {desmbe all ant:dpafed di scovery)

Parly . Description Date

c ]:I The following discovery issues lnr.ludmg Issues regarding the discovery of electronlmlly stored lnformatron. are
anllclpated (specify):

Ck110(Rev Ady 3, 2011) CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT

Pagodots
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CM-110

PLAINTIFFIPETITIONER: T ] CASE NUMBER:

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

17. Economic (itigation

a. [ This is a limited civil case (i.e., the amount demanded is $25,000 or less) and the economic lifigation procedures in Code
of Civil Procedure sections $0-88 will apply to this case.

b. () ThisIs a limited civil case and a motlon to withdraw the case from the economic ipation procedures of for addifiona)
‘discovery will be filed (if checkad, exp!aln speaﬁca!ly why economic !r'ﬂgatfon procedures relating to df scovary orlrial
shouid not apply to this cass)

18. Other issues

[ The party or parties request lhal the foliowing additional matters be oonsidered or detenmined al the case management
conference (spacily):

i

18. Meet and confer _ . '

a. [ The parly or parties have met and canferred with all partles on all subjects required by rule 3,724 of the Cafifomia Rules
of Court (if not, explain):

b. After meeting and conferrfng as required by rule 3.724 of the Carfomia Rules of Court, the parties agree on the follming
(spocify):

20. Tolal number of pages attached {if any):

jam completely famillar with this case and will be fully prepared to discuss the status of discovary and alternative dispute resolullon.
as well as other [asues ralsed by this statement, and will possess the authority to enter Into sﬂpulatinns on these Issues at the fime of
the case managemenl conference, including the written authonly of the party where required.

Date:

b

{TYPE QR PRINT NAME) . [SIGNATURE OF PARTY OR ATTORNEY)

(TYPE GR PRINT RANE) (SGRATURE &Pmoannom
[ Additiona) signatures are attached.

S0 Rov. uy 1. 201) CASE MANAGERMENT STATEMENT . Fige 8 018
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&. CT Corporation

TO: Serviceof Process

CVS Health Companies
1 Cvs Dr Mail Code 1160

Filed 10/12/18 Page 98 of 298

Service of Process
Transmittal
09/12/2018

CT Log Number 534044151

Woonsocket, Rl 02895-6146

RE: Process Served in California

FOR: CVS Rx Services, Inc. (Domestic State: NY)

ENCLOSED ARE COPIES OF LEGAL PROCESS RECEIVED BY THE STATUTORY AGENT OF THE ABOVE COMPANY AS FOLLOWS:

TITLE OF ACTION:

DOCUMENT(S) SERVED:

COURT/AGENCY:

NATURE OF ACTION:

ON WHOM PROCESS WAS SERVED:

DATE AND HOUR OF SERVICE:
JURISDICTION SERVED :

APPEARANCE OR ANSWER DUE:

ATTORNEY(S) / SENDER(S):

ACTION ITEMS:

SIGNED:
ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE:

RYAN HYAMS, an individual, on behalf of himself, and all others similarly situated,
PLTF. vs. CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, ET AL., DFTS. // TO: CVS Rx Services, Inc.

SUMMONS, COMPLAINT, ATTACHMENT (S), EXHIBIT(S)

San Francisco County - Superior Court - San Francisco, CA
Case # CGC18569060

Employee Litigation - Failure To Provide Required Meal Periods (SEE THE DOCUMENT
FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION)

C T Corporation System, Los Angeles, CA
By Process Server on 09/12/2018 at 14:48
California

WITHIN 30 CALENDAR DAYS AFTER THIS SUMMONS AND LEGAL PAPERS ARE SERVED ON
YOU

BETH GUNN

GUNN COBLE LLP

101 S . 1ST STREET, SUITE 407
BURBANK, CA 91502
818-900-0695

CT has retained the current log, Retain Date: 09/13/2018, Expected Purge Date:
09/18/2018

Image SOP

Email Notification, Serviceof Process Service_of_Process@cvs.com

C T Corporation System
818 West Seventh Street
Los Angeles, CA 90017
213-337-4615

Page 1 of 1/ NM

Information displayed on this transmittal is for CT
Corporation's record keeping purposes only and is provided to
the recipient for quick reference. This information does not
constitute a legal opinion as to the nature of action, the
amount of damages, the answer date, or any information
contained in the documents themselves. Recipient is
responsible for interpreting said documents and for taking
appropriate action. Signatures on certified mail receipts
confirm receipt of package only, not contents.
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L : L. 3O SUM-100

o
SUMMONSW? Bt Pendled éﬂ/équ (SOL’;;)FRA%%USSTOUSE o chnra
(CITACION JUDICIAL) ]
NOTICE TO DEFENDANT: CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, a Rhode Island
(AVISO AL DEMANDADO): Corporation, CVS PHARMACY, INC,, a Rhode

Istand Corporation, GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC, a California Corporauon and
CVS RX SERVICES, INC.. a NY Corporation, DOES 1 through 25, inclusive

YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF: RY AN HY AMS, an individual, on
(LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE): behalf of himself, and all
others simifarly situated

NOTNCE! You have been sued. The court may decide against you without your being heard unless you respond within 30 days. Read the information
below.

You have 30 CALENDAR DAYS after this summons and legal papers are served on you 1o file a wrillen response at this court and have a copy
served on the plalntiff. A letter or phone call will not protect you. Your written response must be in proper legal form if you wan! the count ta hear your
case. There may be a court form that you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and more information at the Califernia Counts
Online Sell-Help Center (www.courtinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), your county law library, or the courthouse neares! you. Il you ¢cannot pay the filing fee, ask
the court clerk lor a fee waiver form. If you do not file your response on time, you may iose the case by default, and your wages, money, and property
may be taken without further warning from the court.

There are other legal requirements. You may want to call an allorney right away. If you do nol knovs an atlomey, you may want to call an attomey
relerral service, If you cannot afford an attesney, you may be eligible for free lega! services from a nonprofil legat services program. You can locate
these nonprofit groups at the California Legal Services Web site (wwvJawhelpcalifornia,org), the California Courts Online Self-Help Center
(www.courtinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), or by contacting your local courl o county bar associslion. NOTE: The court has a slatutory lien for walved fees and
casts on any settlement or arbitration award of $10,000 or mere in & civil case. The court’s lien must be paid before the cour will dismiss the case.
jAVISO! Lo han demandado. Sino responde denire de 30 dlas. fa corte puede decidir en su conira sin escuchar su versidn. Lea 1a infermacién o
confinuacion.

Tiene 30 DIAS DE CALENDARIO después de que e entreguen esta citacién y papeles legales para presentar una respuesta por ascrito en esta
cornte y hacer que se entregue una copla al damandante. Una carta o una lfamada telefénica no lo protegen. Su respuesta por esciito tiene que estar
on formato fegel correcto s desea que procesen su caso en fa corte. Es posible que haya un formulario que usted pueda usar para su respuesta.
Pusde encontrar estes forrmularios de la corte y més informacién en ef Centro de Ayuda de fas Contes de California (vrww.sucorte.ca.gov). en la
biblioteca de layes de su condado o en la corte que fe queds rmas cerca. Si no pueds pagaria cuola de presentadén, pida al secretario doe ia corle
que fe dé un formulario de exancién de pago de cuotas, Si no presenta su respuesta a tlempo, pueda perder ef caso por incumplimlento y la corte le
podra quitar su sueldo, dingro y bienes sin mds advertencia.

Hay otros requisitos legales. £s recomendable que llame & un abogado inmediatamenta. Si no conoce a un abogado, puede llamar a un servicio de
remision a ebogadoes. Si no pueds pagar a un abogado, es posible que cumpla con los requisitos para abtener servicios legales gratuites de un
programa de servicios legales sin fines de lucro. Pueds encontrar estos grupos sin fines de lucro en ef sitfio web de California Legal Senvices.

(v lawhelpcalifornia.org), en ef Centro da Ayuda de las Cortes de California, (www.sucorte.ca.gov) o poniéndose en contacto con 1a corte ¢ ef
colegio de abagados locales. AVISO: Porley, 1a corte tiene derecho a reclamar as cuotas y los coslos exenfos por imponer un gravamen sobre
cualquiar recuperacidn de $10.000 6 mds de valor racibida medisnte un acuerdo o una concesidn de arbitrafe en un caso de dereche dvil. Tiene que
pagar el gravarnen de fa corte antes de que fa corte pueda desachar el caso,

The name and address of the court is: i CASE NUMEER; CGC 18-369060
{El nombre y direccién de la corte es): : hiimero dai Cose,
Superior Count of California, County of San Francisco

400 McAllisier Street

San Francisco, California 94102
The name, address, and telephone number of piainiiffs attorney, or plaintiff without an attorney, is: Catherine 1. Coble
(El nombre, la direccién y el numero de teléfono del ebogado del demendante, o def demandante que no tiene abogado, 6s):

GUNN COBLE LLP

J01 S. Ist Street, Sune 407, BbRBA\'K CA 91502 (818)900-0695
DATE: {2 Clerk, by 2 3 , Deputy
(Fecha) St‘? ] 0 2018 E”' EPUTY CLERK {Secretarnio) ___ BOM'A?‘S u{%ﬁ {Adjunto}

(For proof of service of this summons, use Proof of Service of Summons (form POS-010).)
(Para prueba de entrega de esla citatibn use el formulario Proof of Sewvice of Summans, (FOS-010)).

NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served

1SEAY 1. [[] as an individua! defendant,
2. [ es the person sued under the fictitious n of (sp%
3. [;{on behalf of (specify): ﬂ/ﬁ/’)\/
under: % CCP 416.10 (corpcratzon) [ 1 CCP 416.60 {minor}
CCP 4186.20 (defunct corporation) CCP 416.70 (conservatee)
[L_] CCP 416.40 (association or partnership) [__] CCP 416.90 (authorized person)
{1 other (specity):
4. [] by personal delivery on (date);
Pago 1 of 1
it Counlet Cavioma SUMMONS e O e it 000

SUNI00 {Rev. July 1, 2006)

Wanilsw Dot & Form Dullder
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BETH GUNN, CA Bar No. 218889
beth@gu:mcoble com

'CATHERINE J. COBLE, CA Bar No. 223461

cathy@gunncoble.com
GUNN COBLE LLP

101 S. 1st Street, Suite 407
Burbank, CA 91 5.02
Telephone: - 818.900.0695
Facsimile: 818.900.0723

Attorneys for Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS, -

Filed 10/12/18 Page 100 of 298

ELECTRONICALLY

FILED

Supcrior Court of Califorria,
. County of San Franclsco

09/07/2018
Clerk of the Couft
BY:BOWMAN LIU

Oeputy Clork

on behalf of himself, and all others snmﬂarly situated

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO.

RYAN HYAMS, an individual, on behalf of

‘[I himself; and all others snmllarly situated;"

Plaintiff, 7

VS,

1 CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, a Rhode

Island Corporation, CVS PHARMACY, INC,, a
Rhode Island Corporation; GARFIELD BEACH
CVS, LLC, a California Corporation, and CVS
RX SERVICES INC.. a New York Corporation,
DOES 1 through 285, inclusive,

Defendants.

Case No. CGC-18-569060

CLASS ACTION FIRST AMENDED
COMPLAINT

1. Failure To Provide Required Meal Periods;
2. Failure To Authorize And Permit Reqmred
Rest Breaks; .

Failure To Pay Overtime;

Failure To Pay Minimum Wages;

Failure To Pay Timely Wages Due At

Termmatlon/Waltmg Time Penpalties; .

. Failure To Timely Pay All Wages;,

Failure To Reimburse For Employment
Related Expenses;

. Failure To Maintain Required Records;
Failure To Furnish Accurate. ltemized
Wage Statements;

10. Failure To Provide Written-Notice Of Paid

Sick Leave - ‘
11. Failure To Provide One Day’s Rest In
Seven

12. Failure to Comply With California Labor
Code Sections 850 and 851 -

13. Unfair And Unlawful Business Practices;

14. Penalties Under The California Labor
Code Private Attorneys General Act, As
Representative Action

A )

~ o

S

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL,

1

CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
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Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS (“PLAINTIFF™), an individual, on behalf of himself and all other
peréons‘ similarly situated, hereﬁy alléges againstlDefendants CVS HEALTH CORPORATION,
CVS PHARMACY, INC., GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC, AND CVS RX SERVICES, INC.
(“DEFENDANTS”)- as follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. DEFENDANTS, the largest. phaﬁnacy chain m the country, a “Fortune 10”
company, pubhcly avows its purpose as “helping people on the path to better health ” See CVS
Health’s Corporate Social Responsibility Report https://cvshealth. com/51tes/default/ﬁ]es/2017 -cst-
full-report.pdf. This comrmtment is hollow in light of DEFENDANTS’ continuous and intentional
violation of California’s wage and hour laws, which were deSIgned specifically to protect the
health and well-being of the state’s citizens. Deviating from the law-ab:dmg practices of its
competitors, DEFENDANTS unfair]y-com-pt-ate in the market;ﬁ_lace by flouting the California Labor
Cdde (“Labor Code”) in multiple ways. The most obvious of DEFENDANTS?’ illegal practices is
their blatant scheduling of pharmacy employees to regglarly work shifts far in excess of the limits
imposed by California law “enacted as a measure. for the protection of the public health.” See.
Labor Code §.855. This illegal conduct injt;res not only the pharmacy employees but
DEFENDANTS’ custémers who depend- on them “on the path to beﬁer health.”

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
2, This class action is brought pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure section

382. The monetary damages, penalties, and restitution sought by PLAINTIFF exceed the minimal

| jurisdiction limits.of the Supcriof Court and will be established according to proof at trial.

3. The Superior Court of the State of California has jurisdiction in this matter because
PLAINTIFF is a resident of the State of California. Moreover, uliqn information and belief, two-
thirds or more of the class members and at least one of DEFENDANTS is a citizen of Caiifonﬁa;
the allegéd wage and hour violations occurred in California, significant relief is being sought
against DEFENDANTS whose violations of California wage and hour laws form a significant basis
for PLA]NTH_? F's cla;inis, and no other class action hés been filed within the past three (3) years on

behalf of the same proposed class against DEFENDANTS asserting the same or similar factual
' - ' 2
CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
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allegations. Further, no federal q.uesﬁc;f; is .';if issue because the claims are ba‘#e‘d solely on
California law and at least DEFENDANT GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC is a resident of, and/or
regularly conducts business.in the State of C_aliﬁ_‘)jri‘njal-,_ as well as its pﬁncipal place of business is
located within California. | | |

4. Venue is proper in this judicial district and the Cdunty of San Francisco, California
because PLAINTIFF, .'ind o'th;er persoi;s similarly situated, performed work for DEFENDANTS in
the County of San Francisco, DEFENDANTS maintain offices and faci,.lities and transact business
in the County of San Frantﬁsco and DEFENDANTS’ illegal practices, which are the subject of this |,
action, were apphed at lcast in part to PLAINTIFF and other persons similarly sitvated, in the
County of San F ranc1sco Thus, a substant:al portion of the transactions and occurrences related to
this action occurred in this county. Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 395.-

| | PLAINTIFE

5. PLAINTIFF isa forrner non-exempt employee who worked as a ph@a01st for
DEFENDANTS for more than two years. At the end of his employment wnth DEFENDANTS,
PLAINTIFF was eamning $76/hour. PLAlNTIFF-is a resident of San Francisco County, California.

6. As a pharmacist, PLAINTIFF’S primary duties weré 1o safely and accurately
dispense épproximately 250-300 prescriptions per day to DEFENDANTS’ customers. This
included reviewing prescriptions provided to the pharmacy (either in writing or over the phone),

checking for drug interactions and precautions, contacfing physicians where appropriate, advising

patients reéarding the use of their prescriptions. pursuant.to California law, entering information in _

DEFENDANTS’ systems, ar.ld dispénsing and packaging medications to DEFENDANTS’
customers. When pharmacy technicians were unavailable, PLAH\"TIFF would also work at the
pharmacy cash register to ring up sales of prescriptions and other items at the pharmacy. A
pharmacist was required to be on the premises during all bours of operation, to comply with’
operational' policies and procedures. |

7. During his employment, PLAINTIFF would regularly work more than 9 hours per
day on average, and more than 108 hours in two consecutive week periods. DEFENDANTS

utilized a centralized scheduling procedure where he and other pharmacists were routinely
. v 3 -
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sohedoled for 12-hour shifts. On occasion, PLAINTIFF would work more than 12 hours per day,
for whioh DEF ENDANTS would then pay him double-time. There:also were occosions where he
worked more than 12 days.in a_cooseoutivC two week period. DEFENDANTS often failed to
provide PLAINTIFF with-a rés; day as required under the Labor Code. |

8. Each day, before clocking in on DEFENDANTS’ computer and after clocking out at
the end. of the day, PLAINTIFF would perform work for-his position, as required by
DEFENDANTS. | o

9. As part of hJS job duties and responsibflities, PLAINTIFF woulo receive text
messages on his personal cell phone from his supervisor to discuss work-elated matters.

- 10. DEFENDANTS relied on.PLAINTIFF,_ a loyal empioyee, to fill in at other
pharmacios to ensure their business needs were met, which, required PLAINTIFF to drive great
djstances; stay at a hotel, aod staff a-.pharmacy by himself for days at a time. At all locations,
PLAINTIFF ‘;Nas entitled to, but did not receive uninterrupted meal and rest breaks.

11.  PLAINTIFF was not paid for the time he spent reviewing and responding to text
messages from his superviSof relating to. work fot DEFENDA_NTS while off-the-clock.
Additionally, PLAINTIFF never received any reimbursement from DEFENDANTS fof tﬁe
personal use of his cell phone 'to conduct business for DEF‘I.T:T.NDANTS.

12. During the course of PLKNTEF’S, employment, he accrued vacation time pursuant

' to DEFENDANTS’ vacation policy. When PLAINTIFF’S employment with DEFENDANTS

ended, he was only paid a portion of his accrued, but unused vacation.. DEFENDANTS.fai'led to
provide him with his accrued vacation time in violation of the Labor Code.

13.  For a portion of his employment, in violation of Labor Code Section 246(1),
DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAINTIFF, or other aggrieved employees, with written notice
setting forth the amount of paid sick leave available, or paid time off the Company provides in licu |
of sick ieave. PLAINTIFF did not receive all of the sick time to which he was entitled.

14. Throughout his employment with DEFENDANT S PLAINTIFF was routmely
unable to take his uninterrupted meal and rest breaks due to DEFENDANTS’ under-staffing and

|| fill-time. metrics, and his inability to leave the work premises. During the breaks ﬁ'e; was able to

4 :
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take, after clocking out and before clocking _back. in, PLAINTIF F was routinely interrupted with
pharinacy questions. PLAINTIFF was also aokod to'sign a waiver, wherein, on 4 staoding basis
without regard fo the actual busiriess needs, he waived all o.f his second meal periods. PLAINTIFF .
was not paid any penalties for these 'mtarrupted meal and/or rest breaks. -
THECLASS
15. PLAINTIFF brmgs this action on behalf of thnself and all 51m1larly situated class
of mdmduals (“CLASS MEMBERS” or “THE CLASS?”).pursuant to California Code of Civil '
Procedure section 382. TI-IE CLASS is defined as folldws: All current and former employees of
DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time within the period beginning four (4) years
prior to the filing of 'Fhis action and ending at the time this action settles or proceeds to ﬁn‘al.
judgment (the “CLASS PERIOD™). '
16. PLAINTIFF also seeks to represent the following subclassés (collectively,
“SUBCLASSES”), defined as follows
- “NON-EXEMPT EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current
and forimer non-exempt employees.of DEFENDANTS in the‘»Sta.te_ of California
at any time within the CLASS PERIOD. |
b. “PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current and’
“former emoloyeés of DEFENDANTS in the Siate of California at any time
within the CLASS PERIOD who were empl:oyed to sell at retail drugs and
medicines or to ‘compound physicians' prescriptions.
c. “FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,?"whjch-is defined as all former
employees of-DEFENoANT_s in the State of California at any time within the _
CLASS PERIOD. ' |
d. “BUSINESS EXPEN_SE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all ourrent- and
former employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at aoy time
within the CLASS PERIOD \;vho_ used personal cell phones for work-related
' purposes without adequate reimbursement. '

e. “VACATION PAY SUBCLASS » which is defined as all current and former
5 i
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émplbyees‘ of DEFENDANTS in the State of Califpmja- at any time within the
. CLASS PERIOD who were not provided all vacation time, or wages in lieu
thereof, in compliance with California law.

17. PLAINTIFF reserves the right to redefine the definitions of THE CLASS or

1 SUBCLASSES as appropriate based on furtheér investigation, discovery, and specific theories of

liability. _
. DEFENDANTS

18. DEFENDANTS-operat’e the largest retail pharmacy chain in the United States, with

_ hundre_ds_ of physical locations in California, including standalone stores and locations within

Target branded stores. As part of their operations, DEFENDANTS employ phannaéi.sts; to, among
other things, dispense medications, counsel patients o the use of prescription and over-the-counter
medications, and advise physicians abﬁut‘ medicati;)n therapy. In many locations DEFENDANTS
also employ pharmacy technicians to assist with .the- dispensation of r_nédjcation to its customers,
though there are C.VS locations. where only. a pharmacist is employed to handle.all pharmacy
operations. |

19, At all times relevant hereto, DEFENDANTS were, and are, corporations authorized

‘to do-business in the State of California and do in fact conduct business in the State of California.

Speci_ﬁ(_:'ai&, upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS maintain facilities and conduct business
in the County of San _Franci_sgo, State of California. Speciﬁcally,

a. DEFENDANT CVS HEALTH CORPORATION js a corporation Qrgarﬁzed
under the Jaws of the State of Rhode Island that is engaged in the business of
operating -retail stores that sell pharmaceuticals and general merchandise and
provide pharmacy gervices throughout the S‘tat-e of California.

b. DEFENDANT CVS PHARMACY, INC. is a corporation drganized under the
laws of the State of Rhode Island that is engaged in the business.of operating
retail stores tha} sell pharmaceuticals and general merchandise and provide
pharmacy services throughout the State of California. '

c. DEFENDANT GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC. (collecti'v;ely with

CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
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DEFENDANTS CVS RX SERVICES, INC., and CVS PHARMAOY, INC.}isa
limited liability conjjaany organized under the laws of the State of California that
is 'engeged. in b].'lsiness asa phamlacy and medical supplier to CVS retail stores
. located throughout the State of California. _
d. DEF ENDANT CvS RX SERVICES INC. is a corporation organized: under the
| laws of the State of New York that is engaged in the busmess of prowdmg
‘pharmacy services throughout the State -of California..

20.  The true names and capacities of DOES 1 through 25, inclusive (“DOES"), are
unknown to PLAINTIEF at Ihis time, and PLAINTIFF therefore sues such DOE efendants under
fictitious names. PLAINTIFF is‘ informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that each Defeneient
designated as a DOE is in some manner highly responsilal'e for the occurrences alleged herein, and‘
that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS’ injuries and damages, as alleged herein, were |
proxunately caused by the conduct of such DOE Defendants. PLAINTIFF will seek leave of the

‘court to amend thlS complaint to allege the true names and capacmes of such DOE Defendants when

aseenamed.

21. PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges, that each

. DEFENDANT acted in all respects pertinent to this action as the agent of the other DEFENDANTS :

carried out a joint scheme, business plan or pohcy in all respects pertinent hereto, and the acts of
each DEFENDANT are legally attributable to the other DEF ENDANTS
22.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thcreon alleges, that CVS HEALTH
CORPORATION CVSs PHARMACY INC GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC and CVS RX
SERVICES, INC each employed PLAINTIFF, in that they exercised ‘control over PLAINT]FF s
wages, hours or workmg conditions, suffered and permitted PLAINTIFF to work, and/or engaged
PLAINTIFF to-work. See Martinez v. Combs (2010) 49 Cal.4th 35, 64 Any of the three is sufficient
to create an employment relationship. Ochoa v. McDonald's Corp., 133 F. Supp. 3d 1228 1233
(N.D: Cal. 2015). .
o230 " To the extent one or more of DEFENDANTS did not directly hire, fire, or supervise
PLAINTIFF, PLAINTIFF further alleges that, 'upon information and belief, one or more

7-
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DEFENDANTS control the business enterprises of one or more of the other DEFENDANTS, thereby
creating an employment relationship with PLAINTIFF. See Castaneda v. Ensign Group, Irlzc. (2014)
229 Cal.App.4th 1015, 1017-1018; Geerrere v. Superior Court (2013) 213 Cal. App.4th 912, 950.
24.  As adirect and proximate result of the unlawful actions of DEFENDANTS

PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have suffered and continue to suffer from loss.of earnings -
in amounts as yet unascertained, but subject to proof at trial, and within the jurisdiction of this
Court. | ' - _

| 25, _ All DEFENDANTS compelled, coerced, aided; and/or abetted the illegal conduct
el_leged in this Complaint, which.conduct is prohibited under the Labor Code. All DEFENDANTS
were responsible for the events and damages alleged herein, including .on the following bases: (a)
DEFENDANTS committed the- acts alleged; (b). at all relevant times, one or-more of the .

DEFENDANTS was the agent or employee, and/or acted under the control or supervision of, one or

| more:of the remaining DEF ENDANTS and, in committing the acts alleged, acted within the course

and scope of such agency and employment and/or is or are otherwise liable for PLAINTIFE’s

damages; (c) at all relevant times, there existed a unity of ownership and intérest between or among

| those DEFENDANTS such that any individuality and separateness between or among these

DEFENDANTS has ceased, and_DEI;"ENDANTS are the alter egos of one another. DEFENDANTS

exercised domination and control over one another to such an extent that any individuality or

'separatepess of DEFENDANTS does not, and at 511 times herein'me-ntioned did not, exist. Adherence

to the fiction of the separate existence of DEFENDANTS wou.ld permit abuse of the corporate
pnvnlege and would sanction fraud and prornote injustice. All actions of all DEFENDANTS were
taken by employees, supervisors, executwes, officers, and directors during employment with all
DEFENDANTS were taken on behalf of all DEFENDANTS, and were engaged in, authonzed
ratified, and approved of bv all other DEFENDANTS. y .

26.  Finally, at all relevant times mentloned herein, all DEFENDANTS acted as agents of |
all other DEFENDANTS in comrmttm.g the acts alleged heremj
7 |
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" CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

.27. DEFENDANTS employed and continue to employ, employees throughout
California during the last four (4) years
28. Basedon | information and belief, PLAINTIFF believes that other members of THE

CLAS_S and SU_BCLASSES We_re subject to the same policies, practices and conduct that resulted

1in the following:

-a. Routinely \.vork'jng‘through meal ond/of rest breaks without proper
'compongation for the oame, including the payment of penalties for ioterrupted
meal ano]or rost breaks; ‘

b. Routinely wbrking off-the-clock when an-swering work-related text messages
and/or when forced by management to continue to work while clocked out,
without receiving wages, premium pay, or minimum wages for the off-the-clock
time Qorked; |

¢. No compensation fog unpaid wages ah&Or premium pay at the time of
terminat__ion;-

d: Use of personal cell phones w.ithout adequate reimbursemerit;

e. Receipt of inaccurate wage s'tatements;-.

"f. Lack of receipt of adequate written notice of paid sick leave;

g. Routinely workmg without receiving one day’s rest in seven; and

-h. Routinely workmg in excess of the prescribed time limitations set forth in Labor
Code sections 850 and _85.1_.

29. DEFENDANTS acted pm_éuant to common, company-wide policies and practices

regarding the provision of meal and/or rest breaks; the practice of requiring employees to work off-

|| the-clock; soheduling employees for work; the Company's payroll and wage payments to

employees, including the provision of wage statements; reimbursements of necessary business
expenses; time and pay recordkeeping; and notice to employees of paid sick leave.
30.  In particular, DEFENDANTS’ reliance on performance and/or prescription fill-time

metrics, centralized scheduling systems, managerial instructions, and operational policies and
9 :
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(

procedures applied on a class-wide basis.
31. Upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS maintain a single., centralized Human

Resources department, which is resﬁonsiblc for. the Hiring of new employees, collecting and.

processing_ all new hire paperwork, and communicating and implementing DEFENDANT S’

comp_any-wide- policies and prﬁctiées, including t.imek.eepi_ng policies, mqal and rest break policies,
sick time:ﬁolicies, vacation time .policies, and payroll policie.s'a.nd practices. applicable to their’ |
employees in California. | . .

322 On informatio;l and beiief, PLAIN’i’IFF and CLASS MBMBERS received the same
sﬁndmdized documents and/or written policies. Upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS
created uniform policies and pro_cedru_res at the corporate level and implemented them
c_:bmpanywidé, regardless of the employees’ location.

33. PLAINTIFF is mformed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLA[NTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entltled to meal
periods in accordance w1th the Labor Code or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at the '
regular rate- when PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not provided with timely,
uninterrupted, thirty (30) minute meal periods and that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were

not provided with all meal periods or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at their regular rate

when PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS did not receive a timely, um'ntenupted thirty (30) -
minute meal period. _ _

34, PLAINTIFFis iﬁformed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and. CLASS MEMBERS were e_nti.tled to
uninterrupted rest periods in accordance with the Labor Code and Industrial Wage Order (“IWC”)
Wage Order 7-2001 or payment of one (1) additiénal hour of pay at their regular fate when |
PLAINTIFF and-CLASS MEMBERS were not authorized and permitted to take compliant rest
periods and that PLAINTIFF and. CLASS M-EMBERS were not authorized and permitted to take
compliant rest periqd;v, or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at their regular ratc. when
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not. provide& a compliant rest period.

35. PLAINTIFFi is informed and beheves and thereon allegcs that DEFENDANTS
: 10
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knew or should have known that.PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMEBERS were entitléd to receive
and did. not receive overtime c'ompensatidn for work that DEFENDANT'S knew or should have .
known was performed. |

36.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and tht-;reoh alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew:or shc.ru]d have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS'M‘EMBERS were-entitled to receive at
least minimum wages for compensation anci that, in violation of the Lai:or Code, they were not
receiving at least minimum wages for work. that DEFENDANTS knew or should have lfnown w.as
performed. ‘ .

37. PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon él]eges, that DEFENDANTS
knew: or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to timely
payment of wa.ges-upon termination of employment. In violation of the Labor Code, ’
DEFENDANTS did not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS all wages due, including, but
not limited to, overtime wages, minimum wages, and meal aﬁd rest period premium wages, within
statutonly required time periods. ' |

38. PLAINTIF Fis mfonned and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to timely
payment of wages during their employment In vwlatlon of the Labor Code, DEFENDANTS did
not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS aJl wages, including, but not limited to, overtime
wages, minimum wages, and meal and rest period premium wages, within statutorily required time
periods. ' .

| 39. PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon allcges, that at ali times herein
méntione'd, DEFENDANTS knew or should have known that DEFENDANTS had a duty to -
compensafe PLAINTIFF ~and CLASS MEMBERS for all hours worked, and that DEFENDANTS
had the financial ability to pay such compensation but willfully, knowingly, and intentionally failed
to do so in violation of the Labor Code..

40.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to receive full

relmbursement for all business-related expenses and costs they incurred during the course and
11
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scope of their emplbymént, and that they did not receive full reimbursement of appliéab]e business- |
related expenses and costs in violation of the Labor Code. _

41.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that tﬁey had a duty to maintain accurate and complete payroll records

in accordance with the Labor Code and IWC. Wage Order.7-2001, but mllfully, knowmgly, and

intentionally failed to do S0.

. 42.  Upon mformatlon and bcllef DEF ENDANTS maintain a centralized Payroll
department at their c0mpany headquaners which processes payroll for all employees working for
DEFENDANTS at their various locat:ons in California, mcludmg PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS. Based upon mformatlon and belief, DEFENDANTS issue the same formatted wage
statements to all employees ih California, irrespective of their work location. PLAINTIF Fis
informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS knew of should have known that
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to receive complete and accurate wage
statements in accordance with California law: In violation of the Labor Code, DEFEN[jANTS did
not provide PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS with complete and accurate wage statements.

43, PLA[NTIFF is informed and belleves and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entnled to written
notice of paid sick leave or paid time off available. In v1olat10n of the Labor Code,
DEFENDANTS did not pi'ov.idé to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS written notice of paid
sick leave or paid time off available. |

44.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and_CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to one day’s
rest in seven, and that they did not receive one day’,s. rest in seven iﬁ violation of the Labor Code.

45, PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIF F and CLASS MEMBI;:RS were not to perform any
work in any store, dispensary, pharmacy, laboratory, or office for more than an average of nine
hours per day, or for more than 108 hours in any two consecutive weeks or for more than 12 days

in any two consecutive weeks, and that DEFENDANTS should not have reqmred PLAINTIFF and
12
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CLASS MEMBERS to do 50, bot that I’LAINTIF F and CLASS MEMBERS did work an average
of more than nine h,oufs per day and/or more than 108 hours in any two consecitive weeks or more
than 12 days in any two consecutive weeks in violation of the Labor Code at DEFENDANTS’
direction. _ o ‘ |
SATISF ACTION OF CLASS ACTION CRITERIA

46. PLAINTIFF brmgs thls action on his own behalf as well as on behalf of each: and
all other persons similarly 51tuated and seeks class certlﬁcatlon of THE CLASS and
SUBCLASSES under Ca.hforma Code of Civil Procedure section 382. Cal. Civ. Proc. Codg, § 382.

47.  All claims alleged herem arise under California law for which PLAINTIFF seeks
relief’ authorized by Callforma law:.

48.  Thereis a well-defined community of interest in litigation and the class members

-are readily ascertainable:

A.  Numerosity: The members of THE CLASS and SUBCLASSES are 5o
numerous that joinder of all.memoersl would be' unfeasible and impractical. The membership of the
entire class is unknown to PLANTIEF “at this time; however THE CLASS is estimated to be
greater than one thousand (1000) individuals and the identity of such membership is readily
ascertainable by inspection of DEFENDANTS’ employment records. .

B. TypIcaIigﬁ: PLAINTIFF is qualified to, and will, fairly and adequately

protect the interests of each member of THE CLASS with-whom he has a well-defined community

‘of interest, and PLAINTIFF’s claims (or defenses, if any) are typical of all class members as

demonstrated herein. - .

C. Adequacy: PLAINTIFF is qualified to, and will, fairly and adequately
protect the interest of each class member with whom he has a well-defined community of interest
and typicality of claims, as demonstrated herein. PLAINTIFF acknowledges that he has an
obhgatlon to make known to the Court any relationship, COl’lﬂlClS or dlfferences with any.class
member. PLAINTIFF’s attorneys, the proposed class counsel, are versed in the rules governing
class action discovery, certiﬁcation, and settlement. PI,AINTIFF has incurred, and throughout the

duration of tIns action, will continue to incur costs and attorneys’ fees that have been, are, and-will
13
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be necessarily expanded for the prosecution of this action for the s;.lbstantial-beneﬂtiof each class
member. .

D. Sﬁp}en‘orig' 2 T he nature of this actiony makes the use of class action
adju&icati'o_n superior to 6ther methods. A class action will achieve economies of time, effort, and
expense as compared with separate lawsuits, and will avoid inconsistent outcomes because-the
same issues can be _aldj.udicatec.l in the same manner and at the same time for the entire class.

E. Public Policy Considerations: Ca_lifo'mié has. a stated public policy in favor

of class actions in this context for the vindication of employee rights and enforcement of the Labor

Code. Employers in the State of California violate emp-loyment and labor laws every day. Current

employees are often afraid to assert their rights opit_ of fear of direct or indirect retaliation. Former

'exﬁployees are fearful of bringing actions because they believe their former employers might

darriage their future endeavors through negative references and/or other means. Class actions
provide the class members who are not named in the complaint with a type of anonymity that
aliows for the vindication of their r_igﬁts while simultaneously protecting their privacy.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Provide Required Uninterrupted Meal Periods.
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and 1198; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
| (Againét ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
- 49, | PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and real]eges' as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above.<‘ |
50. At all relevapt ﬁmes, Labor Céde sections 226.7, 512(a), and 1 198 have provided
that no employer shall require an employee to work during any meal period mandated by an
applicable order of the IWC. IWC Wage Order 7-2001(1 1), cody?éd at Cal. Codé Regs: tit. 8
§ 11050. ‘
51. At alll relevant times herein, Labor Code section 512 has provided that “{a]n
employer may not employ an emi)loyee for a work per_iod ot: more than five hours per da).r without
providing the employee Wwith a meal peried of not less than 30 minutes,” except that if the total

work period per day of the employee i5 not more than six (6) hours, the meal period may be waived
' 14
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by mutual conserrt of both the omployfér and employee. Cal. Lab. Code § 512(a). During this meal

period of not less than thirty (30) minutes, the employee is to be completely free of the employer’s

control and must not perform any work for the employer If the employee does perform work for

| the employer durmg_thls thirty (30) minute meal period, the employee has not been provrded with a

duty-free meal pcriod’, in accordance with California law, and is to-be compensated for any work

performed during this (30) minute.meal pér,iod in addition to one (1) additional hour of

'compensation-at each e_mployee’s regular rate of pay for each workday that a meal period was not,

provided. See also IWC Wage-Ordcr 7-2001(1 1), codified at Cal. Code-Regs tit. 8 § 11050
52.  Atall relevant times herern pursuant to Labor Code sections 226 7,512(a), 1198

and the apphcable IWC Wage Order an employer: may not employ an employee for a work penod
of more than ten (10) hours per day without providing the employee with another meal period of
not less than thirty (30) minutes, or to pay an employee one (1)} additional hour of pay at the |
employee’s regular rate, except that if the total hours worked is no more than twolve (12) hours, the
second med] period may be waived by mutual consent of the employer and the employee only if
the first meal period was not waived. [WC Wage Order 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs.
tit. 8 § 11050. |

53, At ali/rclevant times horoin, DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAINTIFF anq '
CLASS MEMBERS with a full, thirty. (30) minute uniﬁterrupred meal period free from job duties,

. . .
as required by Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and TWC Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at Cal.

Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. o _

54, At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS furthér violated Labor Code section
226.7 and IWC Order No. 7;2001 by failing to compensate PLATNTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS .
who were not provided with an uninterrupted meal period or one (1) additional hour.of _
compensation at each employee’s regular rate of pay for each workday that a meal period was not
provided. Cal ‘Lab. Code § 226.7(c), IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8
§ 11050. '

55.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS had, and continue to have, a company-

wide policy of failing to schedule and provide uninterrupted meal breaks for PLAINTIFF and

15
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’

CLASS MEMBERS. DEFENDANTS- hayc‘:. understaffed, and continue to 'u'nderstaff, its locations
without providing sufficient meal break coverage, such that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS
were prevented from taking all timeiy and uninterrupted thlrty (30) minutes meal, periods; as such,
PLAINTIFF and C-]_;AS__S' MEMBERS were routinely forced to work off-the-clock during their
meal periods in order to qor'np]ywith- DEFENDANTS’ demands and instructions to meet pharmacy
customers’ cxpecta_ti‘ons.l M.oreover,‘ DEFENDANTS did not provide. PLAINTIFF and CLASS.

MEMBERS with a second uninterrupted thirty (30) minute meal period on days they worked over

{ ten (10) hours, as required by ih'e Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); IWC Order No. 7-

2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

. 56. . Atall relevant times herein, as a result of DEFENDANTS’ scheduling policies and
understaffing, in order to meet DEFENDANTS’ expectatidns and customer demands, PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS were forced to miss and/or take late or interrupted meal breaks, in
violation of thé Labor Code. Cal. Lab. que §§'226,7,_512(a); and IWC Order No. 7-2001(11),
codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. ‘ ' _

57. . Atall times herein, DEFENDANTS knew; or should have known, that as a result of
DEF ENDANTS’ scheduliné policies and préctices»’of understaffing, PLAINTIFF and CLASS

| MEMBERS were forced 10 miss and/or take late or intemipted meal breaks, and that

DEFENDANTS did not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS meal period premium wages
when meal periods were late and/or in@errupted. _ .

58. | At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to properly calculate the regular rate of
pay for purposes of. paying meal period premiums to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by
i_nchiding all compensé,tion, such as shift diﬂ'er.ential pay and other compensation, as required by
the Labor Code. See Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); and IWC Order No. 7720.01(1. 1), codified at
Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. .

.59. DEFENDANTS?’ condﬁct violates Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and IWC
Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. | _

60.  PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount acéoyding

to proof at trial; and seek all wages earned and du_e, penalties, interest, expenses, and costs of suit.
16 '
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Authorize And Permit Required Rest Breaks
. (Cal. Lab. Code sections 226.7,1198; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.)
- (Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
61. PLAINTIFF mcorporates by. reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above
.62, At all relevant times herein, Labor Code sections 226:7‘ and 1198 and TWC Wage
Order 7-2001 v:'ere applicable uS PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS employed by
DEFENDANTS. . ' o _
63. Atall rele'i«’aﬁt times herein, IWC Wage Order 7-2001 has stated that “[e]very
embloyer shal] authorize and permit a_ll.ernployees; to take rest periods ... at the rate of ten (10}
minutes net rest time per four (4) hours or major fraction thereof” unless the total daily work tifnel

is less than three and one-half (3.5) hours. IWC Order No. 7-2001(12), codified at Cal. Code Regs.

tit. 8 § 11050.

64.  Atall relevant .times herein, Labor Code section 226.7 provides that “[a]n employer
shall not requi:e an employee to work: during a n_1eal_ or rest or recovery period mandated pursuant
to an applicable statute ? Cral Lab. Code § 226.7(b).

65. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS regularly failed to authonze or penmt
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS to take ten (10) mmute-umnterrupted rest periods for each .

four (4) hours worked, or major fraction thereof. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were

regularly denied uninterrupted rest periods in violation of the Labor Code. IWC Wage Order 7-
2001, codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 §1 1650; see also Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(b).

66. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS’ staffing policies and scheduling
practices prevented PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS from being relieved of all duties in order

to take an uninterrupted rest break. DEFENDANTS failed to relinquish any control over how

employees spend their break time. See Augustus v. ABM Security Systems, Inc., 2 Cal. 5th 257, 260

(201 6) As a result, PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS would work shifts in excess of 3.5

| hours, in excess of s1x (6) hours, and in excess of ten (10) hours, without receiving the

17
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uninterrupted ten (10) minute rest periods to which they were entitled.
67. By DEFENDANTS" failure to authorize and permit. PLAINTIFF and CLASS

MEMBERS to take uninterrupted rest-breaks for every four (4) hours or inajor fraction thereof

worked per day, DEFENDANTS willfully violated the Labor Code. TWC Wage Order 7-2001(12),
-codiﬁed at'Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 110501; see also Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7.

68.  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226.7 has provided that “[i]f an
employer fails to provide an employee a meal or rest or recovery period in accordance with a state
law... the émployer shall pay the employee one additional hour of pa{y at the émpl‘oyce’s regular
rate of ‘compensation for each workday that the meal or rest or recovery period is not provided.”
Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(c); IWC OrderNo. 7-2001(12), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

. 69.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS have had a company-wide policy and
practice of not paying PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS rest period pr_cmiﬁms when rest
penods were missed, late and/or 1nterrupted

70. ‘ At all times herein, DEFENDANT S failed to properly calculate the regular rate of
pay for purposes of paying rest period premiums to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by
including all compensation, such as shift differe,ntial pay and other compensation, as required by
the Labor Code. See Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); aﬁd IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), cbdiﬁed at
Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. o

71.  DEFENDANTS!’ conduct violates Labor Code sectlons 2267, 1 198 and IWC Order
No. 7- 2001 cod:f ied at Cal Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

72. PLAI_NT[FE and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount accolrding‘
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, i.ntcrqst, expenses, and costs of suit.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Pay Overtime
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 510, 1198; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
73. ° PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each

' and every allegation set forth above.

18
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74.  Atall relevant times hei‘ein‘, _Labo:.' Code section 510 has mandated that any time
worked be)}ond eight hours in one workday or beyond 40 hours in any workweek must be
compensated at no less than one and one-half times the regular wage. See Cal. Lab. Co'dg._§ 510(a).

75.  IWC Wage Order 7-2001 further provides that employees “shall not be émplqyed
more than eight (8) hours in any workday or more than 40 hours in any workweek unless the

employee receives one and one-half (1 /%) timgséuch employee’s regular rate of pay for all hours

worked over 40 hours in the workweék.” iWC‘Ordelf No. 7-2001(3)(A), codified at Cal. Code
Regs. tit. 8 § 11050; see also Cal. Lab. Code § 1198.

76.  Atall relevant ti'mgs herein, DEFENDANTS were required to compensate

PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS for all overtime, calculated at one and one-haif (1 %) times

the regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess.of eight (8) hours per day and/or forty (40)

| hours pér-wee_k, and for the first eight (8)-hours on the seventh consecutive workday, with double-.

time for all hours worked in excess of twelve.(12) hours in any-workday dnd for all hours worked
. : _ ‘
in excess of eight (8) hours on the seventh consecutive day of work in any workweek. Cal. Lab.

Code. §§ 510, 1194, IWC Wage Order-7-2001(3), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 §.11050. .

_ 77. At‘all relevant times herein, DEFE—NDA_NTS willfully failed to pay all overtime
wages (lawed to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS. During the CLASS PERIOIj? PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS were not paid overtime premiums for all_of the hours they worked in
exceés of eight (8) hours ifi a day, in excess of twelve (12) hours in a day, in excess of eight (8)
hours on the seventh (7th) cbnsecl_ltive day of work in a workweek, and/or in excess ofl forty (40) -
hours in a week, begause all hours were not recorded.

78. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANT S failed to compensate PLAINTIFE and
CLASS MEMBERS for all overtime hours worked by: fail{ng to pay overtime at one and one-half
( ‘A)‘ times or double the regular rate; requiring, permitting or suffering PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS to work th:ough meal and rest periods; and inaccurately recording time in which

‘PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked.

79.  Atall relevant times hcreln, DEFENDANTS’ failure to provide adequate coverage

for meal periods for PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS so that they could be relieved of all
19
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duties and take timely, uninterruptedthir,‘i:y (30) minutes meal perfde: forced PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS to work oFf-t'he-elnc.k during meal periods to complete their assigned tasks.
80.  Atall relevant times hefein, DEFEND_ANTS had a company-wide patternand .-

practice. of requiring PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS to communicate witn'DEFENDANTS
and DEFENDANTS" otlher employees 'u.sin‘g personal cellular phones, including during days off
and outside of scheduled shifts. DFFENDANTS knew or Should have known that PLAINTIFF and
CLASS. MEMBI:.RS were. commumcatmg wrth DEFENDANTS and other employees while off-
the-clock in order to rneet DEFENDANTS’ demands, but DEFENDANTS failed to compensate
PLA[NTiFF or (':LASS, MEMBERS for this off-the-clock work. Therefore, PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS were not paid overtime wnges for all :overtime hours worked. ‘

. 81.  Atall times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to properly calculate-the regular rate 6f

pay for. purposes of paying overtime to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by including all
| compensation, such as shift differenti_al pay and other compensation, as required by the Labor

: Code See A lvarado v, Dart Com‘amer Corp. of California, 4 Cal.5th 542 (2018).

82. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 510 and 1198 and IwWC
Order No. 7-2001(3), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

83.- PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according -
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, mterest, expenses, attorneys’ fees
and costs of suit. - .

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
~_Failure ;[‘o Pay Minimum Wages
(Cai. Lab. Code _secti‘o,ns 1182,..1,2, 1194, 1197, 1197.1, and 1198;
and Cal. Code Regs. Tit. 8, § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25) .

84. Pi;AfN,TlFIf incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each,
and every allegati_on set forth -aboye; »

85.  Atall relevant times herein employers operating under California law must pay at |
least minimum wage to theu employees for all hours worked. IWC Order No. 7-2001(4), codified

© 20
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at Cal.. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050 An employee not paxd at least mimmum wage is entltled to -
recover the unpa1d balance of such wages. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 1182. 12 and 1194. In addltlon an
employee s entitled to recover liquidated _damages equaling the wages unlawfully unpaid, as well
as interest. Cal. Lab. Code §1 194 2. An e'mployer failing tb pay minimum wages must pay a civil
penalty of $100 for the initial pay period and $250 for each subsequent pay period during which
such v10]atlons occurred. Cal Lab Code § 1197.1. _

86. At all relevant times herein, as a result.of DEF-_ENDANTS’ stafﬁng and schedulin_g
poli'cies and practices, PLAINT[FF- and CLASS MEMBERS \»}ere forced to miss or shorten their
meal periods in order to meet DEFENDANTS’ expectations and customer demands. PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS were also required to perform off-the-clock work on their days off and
outside of scheduled shifts, including using their personal cellular phones. '

87.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS minimum wages for al? hours worked by: requiring, permitting or suffering -
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS to ‘work off-the-clpc;k through meal and rest breaks;
requiring, permitting or suffering PLAINTIFF and. CLASS MEMEBERS to work off-the-clock
outside of scheduled shifis. including by uémg their personal cell phoné on their days off. Asa
result of these actions DEFENDANTS did not pay at least minimum wages for all hours worked by
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS. |

'l88. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor dee sections 1182.12, 1194, 1197,
1197.1, and 1198 and IWC Order No. 7-2001(4), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050,
' 89.  PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expel;lses, attorneys’ fees
and costs of suit. | . -

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Pay Timely Wages Due At Te_rmination/Waiﬁng Time Penalties
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 201, 202,203)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

90.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
21 .
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and every allegation set forth above.
91.  Atall relevant times herein, pursuant to Labor Code sections 201 and 202,

employers must pay all Wages due updn termination and, if an employer terminates.an employee,

| the employee’s wages are “due and payable immediately.” Cal. Lab. Code § 201. Pursuant to

Labor Code section 202, emp}oye_rs are required to pay. all wages due to an employee no later than '
72 hours after the employee. quits elﬁploymcnt,_unless the employee provided 72 hours of notice of
the: ihtentioh to quit, in which case the e.mployee is entitled to-those wages at the time of quitting.
Cal. Lab: Code § 202. | | |

92.  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code sectlon 203 provides that “[i]f an employer |
willfully fails to pay... any wages of an employee who is discharged or who qults the wages of the -
employee shall continue as-a penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate until paid or until
an action therefor is commenced; but the “faga.s shall not continue lfor more than 30 ciays.” Cal.
Lab. Code. § 203. _ ' | 7

93.  Atall relevant times herein, PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE
SUBCLASS were entitled to, but did not receive, meal a.n‘d rest period premium wages, overtime
wages, minimum wages, vacation wages, and all compensatlon owed to them. |

94, When PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS separated from
employment with DEFENDANTS, DEF ENDANTS willfully failed to pay all wages owed.

95.  DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 201, 202, and 203.

96. Aé a consequence of DEFENDANTS’ willful conduct in not paying wages owed at
the time of separation from cmployment, PLAINTIFF ‘and the FORMER EMPLOYEE -
SUBCLASS are eﬁtitled to 30 days® worth of their average daily wages as a penalty under Labor
Code section 203. Sée Druimm v. Morningstar, 695 F.Supp.2d 1014 (N.D. Cal. 2010).

97. PLAINTIFF _aﬁd the FORMER EMPLOYEE SUECLASS. have been damaged inan |
amount according to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, intérést, expenses,

attorneys’ fees and costs of suit.

: 22
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SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failurc To Timely Pay All Wages
(Cal. Lab, Code sections 204, 1182.12, 1194, 1194.2, 1197, 1198,
and Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050) |
(Against ALL bEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

98. PLAINTIFF‘incorp'orates By reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each

‘and every-allegation set forth above.

99.  Atall times relevant herein, Labor Code section 204 has provided _that‘ all wages

‘earned by any: person in anj’ employment between the first (1s1) and the fifteenth (15th) ddays,

inclugive, of any ¢alendar month, other than those.wages eiue upon termination of an employee, are
due and payable between the sixteenth (16th) and the twenty-sixth (26th) day of the month during
which the labor was perforined. Labor Code section 204 further provides that all wages earned by
any person in any employment between the sixteenth (16th} and the last day, inclusive, of any
calendar month, other than those wages due upon termination of an employee, are due and payable
between the first (1st) and the tenth (10th) day of the following month. Cal. Lab. Code § 204(a).

100.: - At all times relevant herein, Labor Code section 204 has further provided that all
wages earned for labor in excess of the normal work period shall be paid no later than the payday
for t'he. next regular payroll period. Cal.. Leb.' Code § 20{1(b). Alternative]y, at all times relevant
herein, Labor'Code section 204 has provided that the requirements .of this sectioo are deemed
satisfied by the payment of wages for weekly, biweekly, or semimonthly payroll if the wages are
paid not more than seven (7) calendar days following the close of the payroll period. Cal Lab.
Code § 204(d). ‘

101. At all relevant times.herein, Labor Code sections 1182.12, 1194, 1197, 1197.1 and
1198 have provided that the minimum wege for employees fixed by the applicable IWC Wage
Order is the minimum wage to. be paid to‘employees, and the payment of a wage less than the-
rﬁinimum wage set by the I‘WC is unlawful. “Hours wofked;” and therefore compensable time, is

defined in1WC Wage. Order 7-2001 as “the time during which an employee is s;ubject to the

| control of an.employer, and includes all time the employee 1s suffered or permitted to work

23
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whether or not required-to do so...” IWC Wage Order 7-2001(K), codified at Cal Code. Regs. tit. 8
§11050(2)(K). .
102. - Atall rélevant times heréin, DEFENDANTS willfully failed to pay PLAINTIFF and

-

»

CLASS MEMBERS ail wages due inpluc_iing, but not limited to overtime wages, minimum wages
and meﬁ and rest period premium wages, within the periods mﬁndated b‘y Labor Code section 204,
103, Atall .timesj herein, DEFENDANTS failed.to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS for time spent by PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS answering text messages
related to work and as reql;ired b-y ISEF EN‘DANTS,‘which is deemed time worked and must be
qompensat’ed. a .
104. At all relevant times herein, IWC Wage Order 7-2001 provides that “[¢]ach

workday an employee is required to report for work and does report, but is not put to work or is

|| furnished less than half said employee’s usual or scheduled day’s work, the employee shall be paid
for half the usual or scheduled day’s work, but in no event for less than two (2) hours nor more

| than four (4) hours, at the employee’s regular rate of pay....” IWC Wage Order 7-2001(5), codified

at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. _ |
105. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS

{MEMBERS for all work performed while off the clock, in-cluding checking and responding to text

messages and completing opening and closing procedures.

106. Atall ti,n!xes herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS all wages owed at their legally prescribed regular rate of pay. a '

107. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violztes Labor Code sections 204, 1182.12, 1194, 1194.2, |
1197, 1198, and IWC Order No. 7-2001, codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

108. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according -
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, expenses, _attomeys‘ fees |

and costs of suit.
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SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

_Failuréfi‘o Reimburse For Employment Related EXpeﬂses
(Cal Lab. Code section 2802)
(Agamst ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

.109' PLATNTIFF mcorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every alleganon set forth above.

110. At all relevant tlmes herem Labor Code section 2802 has required an employer to.
indemnify an employee “for all necessary expenditures or Josses incurred by the employee in direct
conseq_uence of the discharge of his or-her duties....” Cal. Lab. Code § 2802(a). This includes

costs associated with the use of personal cell phones. for work-related purposes. “If an employee is

'r.equired to make work-related calls on a personal cell phone, then he or she is incurring an expense

for purposes of section 2802.” Cochran v: Schwan’s Home Service, Inc., 228 Cal. -‘App.l 4th 1137,
1144 (2014). ' _

111. At' all relevant times herein,- PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE
SUBCLASS incurred necessary busineSS-feIated expenses and costs that were.not reimbursed by
DEFENDANTS, including, but not limited to, the cost for cell phone usage. PLAINTIEF and the
BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS were required (o use their personal cell phones to _ekchange-
text messa.ges with DEFENDANTS’ manaéement. ‘DEFENDANTS did not provide PLAINTIFF
or the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS with a work—issued cell phoﬁe nor has it reimbursed
PLAINTIFF and the BUS]NESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS for the necessary expenses they incurred
in using their personal cell phones for DEFENDANTS'’ business.

112. At all relevant times, DEFENDANTS have mtentlonally and willfully failed to
reimburse PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS for necegsary business-related
expenses and costs. DEFENDANTS’ company-wide practice of requiring PLAINTIFF and the
BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS to‘usle their own personal cellular phones for work violates
Labor Code section 2802. |

113. PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS have been damaged in an

amount according to proof at trial, and seek all wages eamed and due, penalties, interest, attorneys
25
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fees; expenses, and costs of suit. ‘
\ | EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
_ Failure To Maintain Required Records:
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 226(a), 226.3, 1174(d), and 1198.5; and Cal, Code Regs. tit. 8
§ 11050.)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

114, PLAINTIFF incorpor%tes by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein eacﬁ
and every allegation .set forth above. - _

115.  Atall relevant times ﬁerein, Labbr Code section 1174 has providéd that every
employer shall “[i(]eep, at é central location in the state br at the plants or- establishments at which
employees are émployed’,_ payroll're-cords- showing the hours worked daily by and the wagés paid
to, and the numbér of piece-rate units earned by and any applicable piece rate paid to, emﬁloyees
employed at ﬂw respective planté or establishments. These records shall be kept .... on file for not
less than three years.” Cal. Lab. Code §1174(d).

116.  Pursuant to IWC Wage Order 7-2001, employers are required to keep accurate time

|| records including, but not limited to, when the employee begins and ends each work period and

meal period. IWC Order No. 7~200](7), codified at Cal Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. During the
CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANTS failed to keep accurate records of meal period start and stop
times for PLAINTIFF and bLASS MEMBERS in violation of the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code
§1198.5; IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050, '

117.  Atall relevant tfmeg hére.iﬁ, Labor Code section 226 provides that an employer is to
maintain accurate records, __includi_ng,‘ but not limitgd to: total daily hours worked by each
employee; applicable rates of pay; all .deductions; meal periods; time records showing when each
employee begins and‘enc_ls each work period; and accurate itemized statements. By -
DEFENDANTS’ corripany-widc policies and practices of inacéﬁratély recording time in which
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked, including failing to record time during which
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked, DEFENDANTS knowingly and intentic;nally failed

to maintain records as required by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226(a), 1174(d); see also
: 26 | ' .
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IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), codr/‘ cd at Cal. Code- Regs tit. 8 § 11050.

1 18. ’ PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at mgl, and seek all wages earned and,due,'penaltlesé interest, attorneys’ fees, expenses,
and costs of suit. | |

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Furnish Accurate Itemlzed Wage Statements .
(Cal Lab. Code section 226(a), 226(e), 226. 3, Cal. Code Regs. tit, 8 § 11050)
. ‘ (Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25) .
1 19. ‘ PLAINTIEF inccirporatés by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein-each
and every allegation set'fo'r'tﬁhébove.' ‘ ' - -
120.  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226 has required employers to

furnish each employee an accurate and itemized wage statement in writing that in_cludes,'But not

[limited to, total daily hours worked by each employee; applicable rates of pay; all deductions; meﬂ

periods; and total hours worked. -See Cal. Lab. Code § 226@); IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7),

codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. . _ |

121. -At-gll.relevant ‘times herein, DEFENDANTS systematically provided PLAINTIFF
a:td CLASS ME_MBERS with incom;élete and 'maccu;ate wage statements. The violations i:tclude,
without limitation, the failure to accurately list the total déily hours worked by each employee, total
regular and overtime wages earned, the accurate regular rate of pay, or meal and/or rest break
prermums entitled to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS. .

122.  Atall relevant times hergm, DEFENDANTS: failure to provide accurate- itemized
wage staterrients‘u;as a knotwirtg and intentional act based on their company-wide policy and
practice of failing to pay all-wages owed as set forth herein in violation of Labor Code." Cal. Lab.
Code §§ 226(a), 226(¢), 226.3. ‘ |

| 123-. By DEFENDANTS® company-wide policies and practices of inaccurately recording
time in.which PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS wbrked, DEFENDANTS knowingly and
intentionally failed to maintaih records as required by the Labor Code. Cal Lab. Code §§ 226(a),

226(e) 226.3; IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.
27 .
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124.  PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged id an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, attorneys® fees, e‘xpéns'es,

and costs of suit.

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

_FailurerTo- ..lf"rovi,de Written Notice of Paid Sick Leave
_(Cal. Lab. d}dé section 246(i))

(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

125. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleggs as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above.

126. - Atall times hgreiﬁ, Labor Code section 246 has required that employers provide
employees with “written notice that sets forth the amount of paid sick lgaye available, or i)aid time
offan employer provides in lieu of sick leave, either on the employee’s itemized wage statement
described in -section 226orina separate writing provided on the designated pay date with the
émpl'oycc’s payment of wages.” Cal. Lab. Code § 246(i).

', 127, Atall times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAJ_'NTIF F and CLASS
MEMBERS with the required written notice 6n wage statements and/or other separate written
statements that listed the requisite information set forth in Labor Code section 246. Speciﬁcally,-
DEFENDANTS® wage statements fail to state PLAINTIF F’s and CLASS MEMBERS” paid sick
leave balance, as required by the La-ibor-Cdde. Cal. Lab. Code § 246().

128." DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates _Labof Code section 246(i).

129. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at tnial, and seek al.l wages 'earned, and aue, penalties, interest, attorncys’ fees; expenses,
and costs of suit. |

ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION °

Failure To Provide One Day’s Rest In Seven
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 551, 552, and 852)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

130. PLAINTIFF incorporates By reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
- 28
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and every a}legétion set forth above.

131. At all times herein, Labor Code section 551 has provided that “[e]very ﬁers'on
employed in any occupation of labor is entitléd to orie day’s rest therefrom inseven.” Cal. Lab.
Code § 551, " | N

135. At all times herein, Labor Code s,eclti'on 552 has providéd. that“[n]o employer of
labor shall cause his employees to work more than six days in seven.” Cal. Lab. Code § 552.

133. At all times herein, Labor Code section 852 has provided that “[t]he employer shall
apportion the periods of rest to be.taken by an employee so that the employee will have one
complete day of rest during each week.” Cal. Lab. Code § 852.

134. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS fa.i]ed to provide to PLAINTIFF and CLASS

MEMBERS the legally-mandated rest days as rcquired by California taw. Further, “an employer’s

obligation is to apprise employees of their entitlement to a day of rest and thereafter to maintain

absolute neutrality.'as to the exercise of that right.” Mendoza v. Nordstrom, Inc.; 2 Cal. 5th. 1074,

1091 (2017). DEFENDANTS failed to provide this notice to PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS. '

135. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 551, 552, and 852.

1,36.- PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, aﬁomeys’ fees, expenses,

and costs of suit; as well as relief pursuant 1o Labor Code section 853.

TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
. Failure To Comply with Labor Code Sections 850 and 851
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 850 and 851)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

137.  PLAINTIFE incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. ‘

138. At all times herein; Labor Code section 850 has provided, in pertinent part, that
“[n]Jo person employed to.sell at retail drugs and medicines or to compound physicians'

prescﬁptions shall perform any work in any store, dispensary, pharmacy, laboratory, or office for
29
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more.than an average of nine hours pu day or for more than 108 hours.in any two consecutive
weeks or for more than 12 days in any two consecutwe weeks...” Cal, Lab. Code § 850.

139, At all t;mes herem,_{_.,abor. Code section 851 has prohibited employers from
requiring employees covered by S;;ction‘ 850 to work in excess of the hours prescribed therein. See
Cal. Lab. Code § 851. - |

140. Atall times. herein, and in .vio_lati_on'of Labor Code Section 851, DEFENDANTS
required PLAINTIFF and the PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS to work in excess of the
hlours prescribed by Labor Code Slection 850. .

14. DEFENDANTS’ co;'ig;uct violates Labor Code sections 850 and 851,

142.  PLAINTIFF and fhe PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS have been damaged
in an amount accordmg to proof at trial, and seek.all wagcs earned and due, penalties, interest,
attorneys’ fees, expenses, and costs of suit, , as well as rellef pursuant to Labor Code section 853.

THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Unfair And Unlawful Business Practices
(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code section 17200, ef seq.)
(Agamst ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
..143. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herem each
and every allegation set forth above. A

144, At all times herein, California Business & Professions Code provides that “persén”
shall mean and include “patural persons corporations, firms, partnershlps joint stock companies,
associations and other orgamzations of persons.” Cal. Bus & Prof. Code § 1720].

145. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS’ oond_uct, as alleged herein, has been, and
continues to bc,_unfair, unléwful and harmful to PLAINTIFF, CLASS MEMBERS, the general
public, and DEFENDANTS’ competitors. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have suffered
injury in fact and have lost méney asa resuit of DEFENDANTS’ unlawful business practices.

]46. Atall timés Herein; DEFENDANTS’ activities, as alleged hérein, are violations of
California iaw, and cbnstitute false, unfair, fraudulent and deceptive business acts and practices in

violation of Cahforma Busmess & Professions Code sections 17200 ef seq.
_ B 30
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ot .‘..

147 Each and every oneé of the DEFENDANT§’ acts and oniissions in violation of the |

Labor Code and IWC Wage Order 7-2001 as al']'egec.i herein, including but not limited to
DEFENDANTS’ failure to authorize and provide uninterriupted meal periods; DEFENDANTS’
failure to author,izc_e and permit uninterrupted rest periéc_l_s; DE_FEN_DANTS‘.’ failure to pay overtime

compensation; DEF ENDANTS* fa_:l.lurc: to p;ay premium compensation at the légally prescribed

 regular rate of pay; DEFENDA,N"I‘S’ failure to pay minimum wages; DEFENDANTS?® failure to.

pay all wages due to. témin,ated.eniployees; DEFENDANTS! failure to,ﬁlrﬁish,accurate Wage
statements; DEFENDANTS’ failure to maintain'required" records; DEFENDANTS’ failure to
provide written notice of paiq sick ie_ave;_ D.EF‘ENDAI-\'ITS * failure.to provide one day’s rest in
seven; and DEF ENDAN.TS; failure fo éomply with Léb,or Code S'ectibns 850 and 851 constitutes
an unfair and unlawful business plja_cfice, under California Business & Professions Code sections
17200 et seq'. ‘ | . |

148. DEFENDANTS’ violations of Califonia wage and hour laws constitute a business.
practice because DEFENDANTS" aforementioned acts and omissions were done repeatedly over a
significant period of time, and in a sys_tema_tic manner, to the detﬁment of PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS. |

149.  As a result of the violations of California law herein d,eséribed, DEF ENDANTS
unlawfully gained an unfair advantage over other businesses. PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS have suffered pecuni_a_ry loss by DEFENDANTS’ unlav&ful business acts and practices
alleged Herein.. . | |

150, Pursuant to California Business & Professions Code sections 17200 et seq.,

PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS are entitled to restitution of the wages withheld and retained
by DEFENDANTS during a beriod tt_lat commences four years prior to the ﬁl'i.ng of this complaint;
a permanent injunction requiring DE‘FENDANTS to pay all outsté.nding wages due to PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERé; an award pf attorneys’ fees pursuant to California Code of Civil

Procedure section 1021.5 and other applicable laws; and an award of costs.

- 31

CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT




Case 4:18-cv-'0627_8=-.'I-|SG ‘Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 131 of 298

FOU_&TEENTH CAUSE OF AC I‘ION
Represantatwe ALthl‘l for Civil Penalties
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 2698-2699. 5)
(Agamst ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
151. PL AINTIFF mcorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each

and every alleganon set forth above.

152. PLAINTIFF is an “aggrieved employee” within the meaning of Labor Code section

2699(c), and a proper representative to bring a civil action on behalf of himself and other current

and former employees of DEEENDANTS' pursuant to the procedures. specified in Labor Code
section 2699.3, because PLAINTIFF was employed,By DEFENDANTS and the alleged violations
of the Labor Code were committed against PLA.INTIFF. '
153, Pursuant to the Privatc Attorneys General Act of 2004 (“PAGA”j Labor Code
sections 7698 2699 3. PLA[NTIFF qeeks to recover civil penalties, including but nét limited to
penalties under Labor Code sectrons 2699 2]0 225.5,226.3, 558, 850, 851, 852 853,1174.5,
1197.1, and 1199, from DEFENDANTS rn.representatnl'e action for the violations set forth above, |
including but not limited to violations of Labor Code sections 201, 202, 203; 226,226.7, 510, 512,
850, 851, 852, 8531174, 1194, 1197, 1198, and 2802." PLAINTIFF is also entitled to an award of
reasonable attomeys’ fees and costs. pursuant to Labor Code section 2699 ().
154.  Pursiiant to Labor Code Section 2699.3, PLAINTIFF gave ‘written noﬁce by
certified mail o the California Labor and Waorkforce Development Agency (“LWDA”) and
DEF ENDANTS of the specific provjs_ioﬁs of the Labor Code.'énd IWC'Wage Orders alleged to
have been violateel including the facfs and theoriee to support.the alleged violations.

PLAINTIFF’S notlce to the LWDA is attached as Exhjbrt A. Within s1xty-ﬁve (65) c.alendar days

' of the postmark date of PLAIN'I‘IFF ’s nonce letter, the LWDA did not provide notice to

PLAINTIFF that it intends to investi gate the alleged v1oIatrons
155. . Therefore PLA[NIT}F hdS complred with all of the rcqurrements set forth in Labor

Code -Se'ction 2699.3 to commence a repr,esentatrve action under PAGA.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF _

Wherefore PLAINTIFF; individually and on behalf of all other pel;sons similarly situated,
respectfully prays for relief against DEFENDANTS and Does 1 through 25, incluéive-, and-each of
them, as follows: '

1. - For comp_ens,atlo_ry damages in an amount to be a_scertainé& at trial; ‘

. 2. For restitution. of all monjes.due to P_LA[ﬁTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS, as well as
disgorged profits from the"un.fair- apd unlawful business practices of DEFENDANTS;

3 Formeal and rest p,eripd c‘ompensationpu:suant to Labo_r.Code section'226.7 and
IWC Wage.Order NO. 7-2001; .- =...

4.~  For liquidated danluige-s pursuant to Labor Code section 1194.2;

3. For preliminary and permanent injunctive relief enjoining DEFENDANTS from
violating the relgt{ant;provi,sions of the Labor—Code? and IWC Wage Orders, and from engaging in
the unlawful business practices complained of herein;

6. For waiting timgpe_n,a]'tie-s_ p_ursﬁant to Labor Code section 203;

7. For statutory and civi ll penalties according to proof, including but not limited to all:
penalties authorized by the Labor Code sections 226(e).,i853 and 2699,

8. For interest on the unpaid wages at 10% per annum pursuant to Labor Code -

Sections 218.6, 1194, 2802, California Civil Code sections 3287, 3288, and/or any other applicable

provision providing for pre-judgment interest;

9. For reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to Labor Code sections 1194,

2699, 2802, California Civil Code section 1021.5, and any other applicable provisions providing

for at‘témeys’ fees and costs; .
'10. For declaratory relief;
11. For an order requiring and certifying the first %een Causés of Action pled in this
FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT as a class action;. - .
12.  For an order apﬁoi_nting PLAINTIFF as class representative, and PLAINTIFF’s
counsel as class éounéel; and

"
33
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13.  For such further relief that the Court may deem just and proper.

DATED: September 7, 2018

" GUNN COBLE LLP

Attorneys for Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS,
" on behalf of himself, and all others similarly
situated o -

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

PLAINTIFF', on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated, hereby demands a jury

trial with respect to all i’ssues triable of right by jury.

DATED: September 7, 2018

GUNN COBLE LLP

By

" feth Guin [
Cathy Coble ' .
Attorneys for Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS,

on behalf of himself, and all others similarly
situated. ' N

34

CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT




Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 - Filed 10/12/18 Page 134 of 298

Exhibit A




Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Docurﬁent 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 135 of 298

\ Gunn Coble

"EMPLOYMENT LAWYERS

Beth Gunn
818.573.6389 )
beth@gunncoble.com

Cathy Coble
818.573.6392
cathy@gunncolqle.com

July 2, 2018

VIA ONLINE FILING
David M. Lanier, Secretary
California Labor and Waorkforce Development Agency

RE: Labor Code Private Attorneys General Act of 2004 — Notice on behalf of Ryan Hyams

Dear Secretary Lanier:

_Please be advised that Gunn Coble LLP has been retained by Ryan Hyams (“Mr. Hyams”)
to represent him in respect to matters arising out of his employment with' CVS Health
Corporation, Garfield Beach CVS, L.L.C., CVS Pharmacy, Inc., and CVS Rx Services, Inc., and, as
appropriate, any of their parent companies, subsidiaries, or affiliates (collectively, “CVS” or the
“Company”). All further questions, inquiries, or other communications about this matter should
be directed to this firm, not to Mr. Hyams.

This letter provides notice on behalf of Mr. Hyams and similarly situated, aggrieved
employees pursuant to the Private Attorneys General Act of 2004, California Labor Code section
2699.3. Mr. Hyams is an “aggrieved employee” as defined by Labor Code section 2698 et seq.,
due to CVS’ numerous violations of the Labor Code, including unpaid wages, failure to provide
meal and rest breaks, failure to pay meal and rest period premiums, failure to provide mandated
rest days, failure to comply with California Labor Code Section 850-851, inaccurate wage
statements, unreimbursed expenses, failure to pay wages upon termination, interest, penalties,
attorneys’ fees, costs, and any other relief available under California law, including PAGA. For
purposes of this letter, an “aggrieved employee” should be considered to include all non-
exempt employees of CVS who have worked for CVS during the one year preceding the date of
this letter through the present date. '

Gunn Coble LLP | 101S.1stStreet | Suite 407 | Burbank, CA | 91502
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This notice is being provided via electronic submission to the California, Labor &
Workforce Agency (“LWDA”) and to the Company via certified ma|I at its address for business

" operations.

Based on the below summary of the facts and legal theories upon which Mr. Hyams will
base his claims, he requests that the LWDA regard this notice as written notice pursuant to
California Labor Code section 2699.3 of his intent to seek civil penalties against CVS and any -
parent companies identified as co-defendants prior to and during litigation of this matter.

A. Facts

CVS is a retail pharmacy chain with hundreds of bhysical locations in California, including
standalone stores and locations within Target branded stores. As part of its operations, CV5S
employs pharmacists to, among other things, dispense medicatians, counsel patients on the use '
of prescription and over-the-counter medications, and advise physicians about medication
therapy. In many locations CVS also employs pharmacy technicians to assist with the
dispensation of medication to its clientele, though there are CVS locations where only a
pharmacist is employed to handle all pharmacy operations. Plaintiff Ryan Hyams is a former )
non-exempt employee of CVS who primarily worked as a pharmacist at its Garfield Beach
location, but also occasionally assisted at other pharmacy locations during his more than two
years of employment with CVS, At the end of his employment with CVS, Mr. Hyams was earning
S?G/hour ‘

As a pharmacist, Mr. Hyams’ primary duties were to safely and accurately dispense
approximately 250-300 prescriptions per day to CVS clientele. This included reviewing
prescriptions provided to the pharmacy (either in writing or over the phone}, checking for drug
interactions and precautions, contacting physicians where appropriate, advising patients
regarding the use of their prescriptions, entering information in CVS systems, and dispensing
and packaging medications to CVS customers. When pharmacy technicians were unavailable,
Mr. Hyams would also work-at the pharmacy cash reglster to ring up sales of prescriptions and
other items at the pharmacy.

During his émployment, Mr. Hyams would regularly work more than 9 hours per day on

. average, and more than 108 hours in two consecutive week periods. In fact, CVS utilized a

centralized scheduling procedure where he and other pharmacists were routinely scheduted for

~ 12-hour shifts. On occasion, Mr. Hyams would work more than 12 hours per day, for which CVS

would then pay him double-time. There also were occasions where he worked more than 12
days in a consecutive two week period. Each day, before clocking in on the CVS computer and
after clocking out at the end of the day, Mr. Hyams would perform work for his position, as
required by CVS. Also, as part of his job duties and responsibilities, Mr. Hyams would receive

text messages on his personal cell phone from his supervisor to discuss work-related mattérs.

Furthermore, CVS relied on Mr. Hyams, a loyal employee, to fill in at other pharmacies to ensure
its business needs were met, which required him to drive great distances, stay at a hotel, and
staff a pharmacy by himself for days at a time. At all locations, Mr. Hyams was entitled to, but

'did not receive uninterrupted meal and rest breaks. Mr. Hyams was not paid for the time he
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spent reviewing and responding to text mess;ages from his supervisor relating to work for CVS
while off-the-clock. Additionally, Mr. Hyams never received any relmbursement from CVS for
~ the personal use of his cell phone to conduct business for CVS. :

When Mr. Hyams’ employment with CVS ended, he was only paid for a portion of his
accrued vacation. CVS failed to provide him with his accrued vacation time in violation of the
Labor Code. For a portion of his employment, in violation of Labor Code Section 246(i), CVS
failed to provide Mr. Hyams, or other aggrieved employees, with written notice setting forth
the amount of paid sick leave available, or paid tlme off the Company provides in lieu of sick
leave.

Throughout his employment at CVS, Mr. Hyams was routinely unable to take his
uninterrupted meal and rest breaks due to CVS’ under-staffing and fill-time metrics. During the
breaks he was able to take, after clocking out and before clocking back in, Mr. Hyams was
routinely interrupted with pharmacy questions. Mr. Hyams was also asked to sign a waiver,
wherein, on a standing basis without regard to the actual business needs, he waived all of his

-second meal periods. Mr. Hyams observed other employees also working through breaks and
not being properly compensated for the same. Mr. Hyams was not paid any penalties for these
interrupted meal and/or rest breaks. In addition, CVS often failed to provide Mr. Hyams with a
rest day as required under the Labor Code.

Additionally, to date, CVS has refused to comply with its obligation under the Labor Code
to produce the entirety of Mr. Hyams payroll records and personnel file, making it even more
difficult to determine the extent of CVS" improper and illegal practices.

B. Labor Code Violations

1. - CVS Violated Labor Code Section 204 by Failing to Pay Employees for All Hours
Worked.

Labor Code section 204, provides in relevant part: “All wages, other than those
mentioned in Section[s] [not applicable here] earned by any person in any employment are due
and payable twice during each calendar month.” California Labor Code section 204. In short,
this means an employee must be paid for all hours worked. Time spent by Mr. Hyams reviewing
and answering text messages, as required by CVS, is deemed time worked and must be
compensated. - Furthermore, pursuant to Labor Code sections 1194, 1194.2, and 1197, it is
unlawful for an employer to suffer or'permit a California employee to work without paying
wages at the proper minimum wage for all time worked as required by the applicable IWC Wage
Order. Pursuant to IWC Wage Order number 7, subdivision 2(G}, at all times material hereto,
“hours worked” means “the time during which an employee is subject to the control of an
employer, and includes all time the employee is suffered or permitted to work, whether or not
required to do s0.” Mr. Hyams was not paid for any work conducted prior to clocking in and
after clocking out, as required by CVS.. He also observed and is aware of other aggrieved
employees who were forced to use their own cell phones and work off-the-clock who were not
paid for the work performed. '
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In direction violation of the Labor Code, CVS failed to pay Mr. Hyams -and similarly
situated employees for time reading and responding to messages related to work. In the case
of Mr. Hyams, he has spent hours receiving and responding to messages from managemerft
regarding work for which he has not received pay. Mr. Hyams contends that other similarly.
situated employees also did not receive any pay for the time spent receiving and responding to
work related messages. Additionally, CVS required its employees, inciuding Mr. Hyams and
other aggrieved employees, to perform work before clocking in and after clocking out on the
Company’s computers. Thus, Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees’ time records do not
accurately reflect their actual hours worked. As such, Mr. Hyams and other employees were
never compensated for all time worked. - Therefare, CVS has viclated Labor Code sections 204,
1194, 1194.2, and 1197. < , ) '

2. CVS Violated Labor Code Sections 246(i] and 246.5.

California Labor Code section 246 requires that employers provide employees with
written notice that sets forth the amount of paid sick leave available, or paid time off an
employer provides in lieu of sick leave, either on the employee’s itemized ‘wage statement
described in section 226 or in a separate writing provided on the designated pay date with the
employee’s payment of wages. Here, during a portion of Mr. Hyam’s employment, CVS failed
to provide Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees with the required notice setting forth
the amount of sick leave available.

3. - Failure to Pay Qvertime Wages and Therefore Failure to Pay Minimum Wage.

Employers operating under California law must pay at least. minimum wage to their
employees for all hours worked. An employee not paid at least minimum wage is entitled to
recover the unpaid balance of such wages. See Cal. Lab. Code sections 1182.12 and 1194. In
addition, an employee is entitled to recover liquidated damages equaling the wages unlawfully
unpaid, as well as interest. See Cal. Lab. Code section 1194.2. Furthermore, an employer failing
to pay minimum wages must pay a civil penalty of $100 for the initial pay period and $250 for
each subsequent pay period during which such violations occurred. See Cal. Lab. Code section
1197.1. ‘

Section 510 of the Labor Code mandates that any time worked beyond eight hours in
one workday or beyond 40 hours in any workweek must be compensated at no less than one
and one-half times the regular wage. See Cal. Lab. Code § 510(a). Section 1194 creates a cause
of action to recover such unpaid overtime wages. See Cal. Lab. Code section 1194. IWC Order
No. 7-2001(3){A) further provides that employees such as Mr. Hyams “shall not be employed
more than eight (8) hours in any workday or-more than 40 hours in any workweek unless the
employee receives one and one-half (1 %) times such employee’s regular rate of pay for all hours
worked over 40 hours in the workweek.” IWC Order No. 7-2001(3}(A). .

As discussed above, Mr. Hyams and other similarly aggrieved employees routinely
worked off-the-clock when answering work-related text messages and when forced by
management to continue to work while clocked out. During these periods of off-the-clack work,
CVS did not pay at least minimum wage to employees. ’ :
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As a result of these actions, CVS violated Labor Code sections 223, 51@, 1182.12, 11594,
©1194.2,1197.1, and 1198, . '

4. . CVS Violated Labor Code Sections 512 and 226.7 and IWC 7-2001 (11 & 12) by Failing
to Provide Lawful Meal or Rest Breaks, and Forcing Its Employees to Sign Meal Period
Waivers.

Labor Code section 512 provides that “[aln employer may not employ an employee for
a work period of mare than five hours per day without providing the employee with a meal
period of not less than 30 minutes.” Cal. Lab. Code section 512. Section 226.7 further provides
in relevant part that “[a]n employer shall not require an employee to work during a meal or rest
or recovery period mandated pursuant to an applicable statute.” Cal. Lab. Code section 226.7.

IWC Order 7-2001 (12) states that “le]very employer shall authorize and permit all employees '

to take rest periods ... at the rate of ten {10) minutes net rest time per four (4) hours or major
‘fraction thereof.” '

CVS has violated sections 512 and 226.7 by failing to provide Mr. Hyams and similarly
situated employees with at least 30 uninterrupted minutes of meal break time and/or at least
10 minutes of uninterrupted rest time during their shifts. Mr. Hyams and similarly situated CVS
employees were and are routinely interrupted during their meal and rest breaks in order to
comply with their managers’ demands and instructions to meet CVS customers’ expectations
and CVS’ fill time'metrics. Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees were also asked to sign a
waiver, wherein, on a standing basis, they waived all of their second meal periods, without
consideration of the pharmacies’ daily needs. - Thus, Mr. Hyams and similarly situated
employees are entitled to an additional hour of pay at the regular rate of compensation for each

~workday that.the 30-minute uninterrupted meal period was not provided. See Cal. Lab. Code-
section 226.7. In addition, Mr. Hyams and similarly situated employees are entitled to an
additional hour of pay at the regular rate of compensation for each workday that the ten-minute
rest break was not provided. See Cal. Labor Code § 226.7; IWC 7-2001(12), as well as PAGA
penalties. '

5. CVS Violated Labor Code Sections 551 and 552.

Under Labor Code section 551, “[e]very person emplayed in any' occupation of labor is
entitled to one day’s rest therefrom in sevén.” Labor Code section 552 provides that “[n]o
employer of labor shall cause his employees to work more than six da\}s in seven.” Here, CVS
violated these sections by failing to provide the legally-mandated rest days to Mr. Hyams and
other similarly situated employees. Further, “an employer’s obligation is to apprise employees
of their entitlement to a day of rest and thereafter to maintain absolute neutrality as to the
exercise of that right.” Mendoza v. Nordstrom, Inc., 2 Cal.5th 1074, 1091 (2017). Instead of
complying with this obligation, CVS did not inform its employees in California of their right to a
day of rest, and then failed to properiy staff its locations with sufficient personnel and pressured
employees into working without a day of rest.
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6. ©  Failure to Comply with Labor Code Sections 850 and 851.

California Labor Code section 850 provides, in pertinent part, that “[n]o person
employed to sell at retail drugs and medicines or to compound physicians’ prescript'ions shall
perform any work in any store, dispensary, pharmacy, laboratory, or office for more than an
average of nine hours per day, or for more than 108 hours in any two consecutive weeks or for
more than 12 days" in any two consecutive weeks...” The accompanying California Labor Code
section 851 prohibits employers from requiring employees covered by Section 850 to workin
excess of the hours prescribed therein. Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees
throughout California regularly worked hours and days in excess of these specific limitations '
set forth by the California Labor Code.

7. Failure to Provide Accurate It'emized Wage Statements in Violation of California
Labor Code Section 226 {a).

California Labor Code section 226(a) requireé employers to make, keep and provide true,
accurate, and complete employment records. CVS did not provide Mr. Hyams, and other
aggrieved employees, with properly itemized wage statements. Additionally, the violations
include, without limitation, the failure to accurately list the total regular and overtime wages
earned or meal and rest break premiums entitled to Mr. Hyams and other simitarly situated
employees. CVS’ failure to provide accurate itemized wage statements was an intentional act
based on its policy and practice of failing to properly compensate employees to avoid paying
penalty.pay and overtime premiums to employees. ' '

8. - CVS Violated Labor Code Section 2802 by Failing to Reimburse Employees for Costs
Incurred Related to the Use of Personal Cell Phones for Necessary Work-Related

Purposes.

California Labor Code section 2802 requires an employer to indemnify an employee “for
all necessary expenditures or losses incurred by the employee in direct consequence of the
" discharge of his or her duties.” Cal. Lab. Code section 2802. This includes costs associated with
the use of persdnal cell phones for work-related purposes. “If an employee is required to make
work-related calls on a personal cell phone, then he or she is incurring an expense for purposes
of section 2802.” Cochran v. Schwan's Home Service, Inc., 228 Cal. App. 4th 1137, 1144 (2014).

CVS has violated section 2802 by failing to reimburse employees for costs incurred
relating to the necessary use of personal cell phones for work-related purposes. Mr. Hyams,
and other CVS employees, were routinely required to use their personal cell phones to exchange
text messages with CVS management. CVS did not provide Mr. Hyams or the other CVS
employees with a work-issued cell phone, nor has it reimbursed Mr. Hyams and the other CVS
employees for the neceslsary'expenses they incurred in using their personal cell phones for CVS
business.
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9. Failure to Pay All Wages Due Upon Termination

Employers must pay all wages due.upon- termination, including accrued but unused
vacation. Labor Code sections 201-202, 227.3. The Company violated these sections by failing .
to pay Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees their unpaid wages, including accrued
vacation time and premium penalties, as discussed above, at the time of termination. "These
violations subject the Company to civil penalties under Labor Code sections 203 and 2699.

ok ok ok

This notice is provided pursuant to Labor Code section 2699.3 and hereby provides the
LWDA an opportunity to investigate the claims and/or take any action it deems appropriate.
We respectfully request a timely response as to the LWDA's decision(s), as required by Labor .
Code section 2699.3. If the LWDA elects not to take 'any action, Mr. Hyams intends to file a
complaint on behalf of himself and all similarly situated aggrieved employees in the California’
Superior Court seeking unpaid wages, including unpaid overtime wages, unpaid minimum
wages, meal and rest period premiums, unreimbursed expenses, unpaid sick leave, interest,
.penalties, attorneys’ fees, costs, and any other relief available under Califo_rnia law.

If you have any questions or require any further information regarding the facts and
theories to support these claims, do not hesitate to contact our office.

. Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

Cathy Coble
Gunn Coble LLP

CVS Health Corporation, Garfleld Beach CVS, L.L.C,, CVS Pharmacy, Inc., and CVS Rx Servnces Inc.
may be contacted-at the following address: :

One CVS Drive

Woonsocket, Rhode Island 02895

The registered agent for service of process for CVS Health Corporation, Garfleld Beach CVs, L.LC,
CVS Pharmacy, Inc., and CVS Rx Services, Inc. is:

C T Corporation System .

" 818 W Seventh Street, Suite 930

Los Angeles, CA 90017
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My contact information is:
Beth Gunn

Cathy Coble

Gunn Coble LLP

101 S. First Street, Suite 407
Burbank, CA 91502
beth@gunncoble.com
cathy@gunncoble.com
818.573.6392
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CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

" 1. Failure To Provide Required Meal Periods;
2. Failure To Authorize And Permit Required
Rest Breaks; )

Failure To Pay Overtime;

3.
{&an&.‘l %m%%iono '?a‘t{xs P}éARMAEI\)”BlNﬁgé:l 4. Failure To Pay Minimum Wages;
ode 1sland Corporation, GARFIE B .
CVS, LLC, a California Corporation, and CVS 5. - Failure To Pay Timely Wages Due At

Termination/Whaiting Time Pénalties;
Failure To Timely Pay All Wages;
Failure To Reimburse For Employment
Related Expenses; . '
-Failure To Maintain Required Records;
. Failure To Fumish Accurate ltemized
Wage Statements; :
Failure To Provide Written Notice Of Paid
Sick Leave - -
Failure To Provide One Day’s
Seven, . Lo
Failure 1o Comply With California Labor
Code Sections 850 and 851 o
13. Unfair And Unlawful Business Practices;

w m

10.
. RestIn

12.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL.

1

CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION COMPLAINT




L7 EoN L ]

-1

o o

Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 146 of 298

Plaintiff R)’AN HYAMS (“PLAINTIFF™), an individual, on behalf of himself and all other
persons similarly situated, hereby al leges against Defendants CVS HEALTH CORPORATION,
CVS PHARMACY, INC., GARFIELD BEACH CVS,LLC, AND CVSRX SEﬁVICES, INC.
(“DEFENDANTS”) as follows:

| INTRODUCTION

1. DEFENDANTS, the largest pharmacy chain in the country, a “Fortune 10”

company, publicly avows its purpose as “helping people on the path to better health.” See CVS

Health’s Corporate Social Responsibility Report, https://cvshealth.com/sites/default/tiles/2017-csr-

fullimpoﬁ.pdf. This commitment is hollow in light of DEFENDANTS’ continuous and intentional
violation-of Callifomia’s wage and hour laws, which were designed specifically to protect the
health and well-being of the state’s citizens. Deviating from the law-abiding practices of its
competitoré, DEFENDANTS unfairly compete in the marketplace by flouting the California Labor
Code (“Labor Code™) in multiple ways. The most obvious of DEFENDANTS’ illegal practices is
their blatant scheduling of pharmacy employees to regularly work shifts far in excess of the limits
imposed by Catifornia law “enacted as a measure for the protection of the public health.” See
Labor Code § 855. This illegal conduct injures not only the pharmacy. employees but
DEFENDANTS’ customers who depend on fhem “on the path to better health.”

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2, This class action is brought pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure section
382. The monetary damages, pcnalties, and restitution sought by PLAINTIFF exceed the minimal
jurisdictiorl limits-of the querior Court and will be established according to proof at trial.

3. The Superior Court of the State of California has jurisdiction in this matter because
PLAINTIFF is a fesident of the State of California. Moreover, upon in'forrna.tibn and belief, two-
thirds or more of the class members and at least one of DEF ENDANTS is a citizen of California,
the alleged wage and hour violations occurred in California, significant relief is being sought
against DEFENDANTS whose violations of Califorpia:wage and hour laws form a significant basis
for PLAINTIFF’s claims, and no other class action has been filed within the past three (3) years-on
behalf of the same proposed class against DEFENDANTS asserting the same or similar factual

2 b}
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allegations. Further, no federal question is at issue because the claims are based solely on
Califormia iéw and at least DEFENDANT GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC' is a resident of, and/or
regularly conducts business in the State of California, as well as its principal place of business is
located withiﬂ California.

4. Venue is proper in this judicial district and the County of San Francisco, California
because PLAINTIFF, and other persons similarly situated, performed work for DEFENDANTS in
the County of San Frﬁncisco, DEFEN'DANTS maintain offices and facilities and fransact business
in the County of San Francisco, and DEFENDANTS’ illegal practices, which are the subject of this
action, were applied, at least in part, to PLAINTIFF, and other persons similarly situated, in the
County of San Francisco. Thus, a substantial portion of the transactions and occurrences related to
this action occurred in this county. Cal: Civ. Proc. Code § 395. -

PLAINTIFE

5. o PLAINTIFF is a former non-exempt employee who woriced as a pharmacist for
DEFENDANTS for more than two years. At the end of his employment With DEFENDANTS,
PLAiNT‘IFF’ was carning $76/hour. PLAINTIFF is a resident of San Francisco County, Califorma. -

6. As a pharmacist, PLAINTIFF’S pr'ima:y d-uties were to safely and ac‘;(;urateiy ‘
dispense approximately 250_.-300 prescriptions per day to DEFENDANTS’ customers. This
included reviewing prescriptions provided to the pharmacy (either in writing or over the phone),
checking for'drug interactions and precautions, contacting phyéicians where appropriate; advising
patients regarding the use of their prescriptions pursuant to California law, enterihg information in
DEFENDANTS? systems, and dispensing and packaging medications to DEFENDANTS’
customers. When pharmacy technicians were unavailable, PLAINTIFF would also work at the
pharmacy cash register to ring up sales of prescriptions and other items at the pharmacy. A
pharmacist was required to be on t'hc premises during all hours of operation, to comply with
o‘peralional policies and procedures.

7. During his employment, PLAINTIFF would regularly work r_no're than 9 héurs per
day on average, and more than 108 hours in two consecutive week periods. DEF ENDANTS

utilized a centralized scheduling procedure where he and other pharmacists were routinely
3 .
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scheduled for 12-hour shifis. On occasion, PLAINTIFF would work more than 12 hours per day, '
for which DEFENDANTS would tﬁen pay him double-time. There also were occasions where he
worked more than 12 days in a consecutive two week period. DEFENDANTS o.fter.l failed to
provide PLAINfIFF with a r‘est day as required under the Labor Code.” |

8. - Each day, before clocking in on DEFENDANTS® computer and after clocking outat

the end of the day, PLAINTIFF would perform work for his position, as required by

‘DEFENDANTS.

9. As part of his job duties and responsibilities, PLAINTIFF would receive text
messages on his pe;rsona] cell 'pho_ne from his supervisor to discuss work-related matters.

10.  DEFENDANTS relied on PLAINTIF F, a loyal employee, to fill in at other
pharmacieé to ensure their business needs were met, which required PLAINTIFF to drive great
distances, stay at a hotel, and staff a pharmacy by himself for days ata time. At all locations,
PLAINTIFF was entitled to, but did not receive uninterrupted meal and rest breaks.

11.  PLAINTIFF was not paid for the time he spent reviewing and responding t(l) text
messages from his supervisor relating to work for DEFENDANTS while off-the-clock.
Additionally, PLAINTIFF never received any reimbursement from DFFENDANTS for the
personal use of his cell phone to conduct business for DEFENDANTS.

12.  During the course of PLAINTIFF’S employment, he accrued vacation time pursuant
to DEFENDANTS’ vacation policy. 'When PLAINTIFF’S employment with DEFENDANTS
ended, he was only paid a portion of his accrued, but unused vacation. DEFENDANTS failed to
provide him with his accrued vacation time in vio]atioﬁ of the Labor Code.

13. For a portion of his employment, in violation of Labor Code Section 246(1),

DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAINTIFF, or other aggrieved employees. with written notice -

setting forth the amount of paid sick leave available, or paid time off the Company provides in lieu

of sick leave. PLAINTIFF did not receive all of the sick time to which he was entitled.
14. Throughc;ut his employment with DEFENDANTS, PLAINTIFF was routinely
unable to take his uninterrupted meal and rest breaks due to DEFENDANTS’ under-staffing and

fill-time metrics, and his inability to leave the work premises. During the breaks he was able to
) 4
CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION COMPLAINT




wh

O e o~ o

Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 149 of 298

take, after clocking out and before clocking back in, PLAIN-TIFF was routinely interrupted with
pharmacy questions. PLAINTIFF was also asked to sign a waiver, wherein, on a standing basis
without regard to the actual business needs, he waived al! of his second meal perieds. PLAINTIFF
was not paid any penalties for these mterrupted rmeal and/or rest breaks.
_ THE CLASS

15. PLAINTIFF brings this action on behalf of himself and all similarly situated class
of individuals (“CLASS MEMBERS” or “THE CLASS”) pufsuant to California Code of Civil-
Procedure section 382. THE CLASS is defined as folloWs: All current and former employees of
DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time wiliﬁn the period beginning fbur (4) years
prior to the filing of this action and ending at the time this action settiés or proceeds to final
judgment (u;e “CLASS PERIOD"). |

16. PLAINTIFF also seeks to represent the following subclasses (collectively,

“SUBCLASSES"), defined as follows: |

a. “NON- EXEMPT EMPLOYFE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current
and former non-exempt employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California
at any time withiri the CLASS PERIOD.

b. “PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current and
former employees of .DEFENDANTS in the State of _Caiifornia at any time
withiﬁ the CLASS PERIOD who were employed to sell_ at retail drugs and
medicines or to compound physicians' prescriptions.

c. “FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all former
employees of DEFENDANTS in the Staic of California at any time within the

" CLASS PERIOD.

d. “BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current and
former em-pl.oyees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any fime
v;rithin the CLASS PERIOD who used personal cell phones for work-related
purposes without adequate renmburscment

e. “VACATION PAY SUBCLASS,” which is deﬁned as all current and former
S
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employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time within the
CLASS PERIOD who were not provided all vacation time, or wages in lieu
thereof, 1 in comphance with California law.

17.  PLAINTIFF reserves the right to redefine the definitions of THE CLASS or -
SUBCLASSES as appropriate based on further investigation, discovery, and specific theories of
liability, | '

DEFENL)A.ANTS

i8.  DEFENDANTS operate the largest retail pharmacy chain in the United States, with
hundreds of physical locations in California, including standalone stores and locations within
Target branded stores. As part of their operations, DEFENDANTS employ pharmacists to, among
other things, dispense medications, counsel patients on the use of prescription and over-the-cdunter
medications, and advise physicians about medication therapy. In fnany locations DEFENDANTS
also erhp!oy pharmacy technicians to assist with the dispensation of medication to its c-ustomcrs;
though there are CVS locations where only a pharmacist is employed to handle all pharmacy
operations. ' o |
| .19, | At all times relevant hereto, DEFENDANTS v\llere, and are, corporations authorized
to do business in the State of California and do in fact conduct business in the State of California.
Specifically, upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS maintain facilitiés and conduct business
in the County of San Francisco, State of California. Specifically,
a. DEI"'ENbANT CVS HEALTH CORPORATION is a corporation organized
| under the laws of the State of Rhode Island that is engaged in the business of
operating fctail stores that ‘sell pharmaceuticals and general merchandise and
provide pharmacy services throughout the State of California. |
- b. DEFENDANT CVS PHARMACY, INC. is a corporation organized under the
laws of the State of Rhode Island that is engaged in the business of operating
" refail stores that sell pharmaceuticals and general merchandise and provide
pharmacy service_s th‘roughout the State of California.

c. DEFENDANT GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC. (collectively with
. 6
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DEFENDANTS CVS RX SERVICES, INC., and CVS 'PHARMACY, INC)isa
limited liability company organized under the laws of the State of California that
is engaged in business e;s a pharmacy and medical supplier to CVS retail stores
located throﬁghout the State of California.

d. DEFENDANT CVS RX SERVICES, INC! is a corporation organized under the
laws of the State of New York that is engaged in the business of providing
pharmacy services throughout the State of California. :

20. The true names and capacities of DOES 1 tﬁrough 25, inclusive (“DOES™), are
unknown to PLAINTIFF at this time, and PLAINTIFF therefore sues such DOE Defendants ﬁnder
fictitious names. PLAI’NTIF_F is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that each ljcfendant
designated as a DOE is in some manner highly responsible for the occurrences a.lleged hefein, and
that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS’ ihjuries and damages, as alleged herein, were
proximately caused by the conduct of such bOE Defendants. PLAINTIFF will seek leave of the
court to amend this c.ompla;im to allege the true names and capacities of such DOE Defendants when
ascerta{ned. _ | ,

- 21, ?LAINTIFF is informed and believes, and based thereon aileges, that each
DEFENDANT acted in all respects per‘u'pent to this action as the agent of the other DEFENDANTS,
carried out a joint scheme, business plan or policlzy in all respects pertinent hereto, and the acts of
cach DEFENDANT are legally attributable to the other DEFENDANTS.

22.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon’ alllegcs, ‘that CVS HEALTH
CORPORATION, CVS PHARMACY, INC., GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC, and CV§ RX
SERVICES, INC each employed PLAINTIFF, in that they exercised control over PLAINTIFF’s
wages, hours or working conditions, suffere'd and perrn'itted PLAINTIFF to work, and/or engaged
PLAINTIFF to work. See Martinez v. Combs (2010) 49 Cal.4th 35, 64. Any of the three is sufficient
to create an employment relationship. Ochoa v. McDonald's Corp.., 133 F. Supp. 3d 1228, ]233
(N.D. Cal. 2015). | | '

.23, To the extent one or more of DEFENDANTS did not directly hife, fire, or supervise.

PLAINTIFF_. PLAINTIFF further alleges that, upbn informatio.n and belief, one or more
7 ‘ :
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DEFENDANTS control the business enterprises of one or more of the other DEF.ENDANTS, thereby
crea.t.ing an employment relationship with PLAINTIFF. See Castaneda v Ensign Group, Inc. (2014)
229 Cal. App.4th 1015, 1017-1018; Guerrero v. Superior Court (2013) 213 Cal.App.4th 912, 950.

24.  Asadirect and proximate result of the unlawful actions of DEFENDANTS,
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have suffered, and- coﬁtiﬁue to suffer., from loss of earnings
in amounts as yet upascenainéd, but subject to proof at iriai, and within the jurisdiction of this
Court,

25. All DEFENDANTS compelled, coerced, aided, and/or abetted the illegal conduct
alleged in this Complaint, which conduct is prohibited under the Labor Code. All DEFENDANTS
were responsible for the events and damages alleged herein, including on the following bases: (a)_
DEFENDANTS committed the acts glleged; (b) -at all relevant times, one or more of the
DEFENDANTS was the agent or employee, and/or acted under the control 6r supervision of, one or
more of the remaining DEFENDANTS and, in committing the acts alleged. acted within the course
and scope of such agency and employment and/or is or are otherwise liable for PLAINTIFF’s
daméges; (¢) at all relevant times, there existed a unity of ownership and interest ‘between or among
those DEFENDANTS such that any individuality and separateness between or amoné these
DEFENDANTS has ceased, and DEFENDANTS are the alter egos of one anotﬁer. DEFENDANTS
exercised dominat_ion and control over oﬁe another to such an extent that any individlllality or
separateness of DEFENDANTS does not, and at all times herein mentioned did not, exist. Adherence
to the fiction of the separate existence of DEFENDANTS would permit abuse of the corporate
privilege and would sanction fraud and promote injustice. All actions of all DEFENDANTS were
taken by employees, supervisors, executives, officers, and c_lirectors during employment with all
DEFENDANTS, were taken on behalf of all DEFENDANTS, and were engaged in, authonzed,
ratificd, and approved of by all other DEFENDANTS.

26.  Finally, at all relevant t_imes mentioned herein, all DEFENDANTS acted as agents of
all other DEFENDANTS in committing the acts alleged herein.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

27. DEFENDANTS employed, and continue to employ, employees throughout
8 -
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California during the iast four (4) years.

- 28. Based on information and belief, PLAINTIFF believes that other members of THE
CLASS and SUBCLASSES were subject to the same policies, practices and conduct that resulted
in the following: , | * |

a. ‘Ro.utinely working through meal and/or rest breaks without proper
compensation for ﬂw same, including the payment of penalties for inierrupted
meal and/or rest breaks,

b. Routinely working off-the-clock th;n answerihg work-related. text messages
and/or whén forced by management to continue to work while clocked out',
without receiving Wages, prerhium pay, or minimum wages for the off-the-‘c‘lock .
time worked;

¢. No compensation for unpaid wages and/or premium pay at the time of

" termination; .

d. Use of personal cell phones without adequate reirﬁbursement;

e. Receipt of inaccurate wage statements; |

. Lack of receipt of adequate written notice of paid sick leave;
Routinely working without receiving one day’s rest in seven; and
Routinely working in ex;:ess of the prescribed time limitations sct- forth in Labor
Code sections 850 and 851.

29.  DEFENDANTS acted pursuant to common, company-wide policies and practices
regarding the provision of meal and/or rest breaks; the practice of requiring employees to work off-
the-clock; scheduling efnployees for work; the Coﬁpmy’s payroil and wage payments to
employees, including the provision of wage statements; reimbursements of necessary business
expenses;l time and pay recordkeeping; ar-ld notice to empléyees of paid- sick leave.

30.  In particular, DEFENDANTS’ reliance on performance and/or prescription fill-time
metrics, centralized scheduling systems, managerial insﬁuctions, and operational policies and
proccdurés applied on a class-wide basis. |

31.  Upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS maintain a single, centralized Human-
' 9
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Resé)urces déparnnent, which is responsible for the Hiring of new employees, collecting and’
prdcessing all new hire paperwork, and c'ommunic-ating and implementing DEFENDANTS’
company-wide poli-cies and practicés, including timekeeﬁing po]iciés, meal and rest break policies,
sick time policies, vacation time policies, al;d payroll policies and practices applicable to their
employees in California.’ | '

32. On information and belief, PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS recéived tﬁe same

standardized documents and/or written policics. Upon mformauon and belief, DEF};NDANTS

created uniform pohmes and procedures at the corporate level and lmplemented them
companywide, regardless of the employees’ locatlor;.

33. . PLAINTIFF is informed anc_i believes, and thereon alleges, that DEF_ENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF ahd, CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to meal
periods in accordance with the Labor Code or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at the
regular rate when PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not provided with timely.
uninterrupted, thirty (30) minute meal periods and that PLAINTIF Fr and CILASS MEMBERS were
not provided with all meall périods or.payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at their regular rate

when PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS did not receive a timely, uninterrupted thirty (30) -

minute meal period.

34.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to
minte&upted rest periods in accordance with the Labor Code and Industrial Waée Order (“TWC”)
Wage Order 7-2001 or payment of one (1) additional hour of péy at their regular rate when
PLAINTIFF and CLASS M'E'MBI.ERS were not authorized and permitted to take compliant rest
periods and that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not authorized and permitted to take
com;:.)iiant rest periods or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at their regular rate when
PLATNTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not provided a c0mphant test period.

35.  PLAINTIFF is informed and belleves and thereon alleges that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMEBERS were entitled to receive

and did not receive overtime compensation for work that DEFENDAN TS knew or should have
10
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knbwn was performed. . _ ,

36. PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANT S
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to receive at
least minimum wages for corﬁpensation and that, in violation of the Labor Code, they were not
receiving at least minimum wages for work that DEFENDANTS knew or should have known was
performed.

37.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, émd thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
klnew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to timely
payment of wages upon termination of employment. In violation of the Labor Code,
DEFENDANTS did not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS all wages due, including, but
not limited to, overtime wages, minimum wages, and meal and rest period pfemium wages, within
statutorily required time periods. ' '

38.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and C_LASS MEMBERS were entitled to timely
payment of wages during their employment. In violation of the Labor Code, DEFENDANTS did
not pay PLAINTIFF anci CLASS MEMBERS gll'wages, including, but not limited to, overtime
wages, minimum wages, and meai and rest period premium wages, within statutorily required time
periods. | |

39, PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at all times herein
mentioned, DEFENDANTS knew or should have known that DEFENDANTS had a duty to
compensate PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS for all hours worked, and that DEFENDANTS
had the financial ability to pay such compensation but willfully, knowingly, and intentionally failed
to do so in violation of the Labor Code. |

40.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, tﬁat DEFENDANTS
knew or should have khown that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to receive full
reimbursement for all busine'ss-related expenses and costs they incurred during the course and '
scope of their employment, and that they did not receive full reirnbursemenf of applica{ble b;Jsir{ess-

related expenses and costs in violation of the Labor Code.
11
CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION COMPLAINT




Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 156 of 298

41." PLAINTIFF is informed and believés, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that they had a duty to maintain accurate and complete payroll records
in accordance with the Labor Code and IWC Wage Order 7-2001, but willfully, knowingl)-(, and
intentionally failed to do so. o

42.  Upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS maintain a centralized Payroll
department at their company headquarters, which processes payroll for all employees working for
DE#ENDANTS at-their various locations in California, including PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS. Based upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS issue the same formatted wage
statements to all employeés in California, irrespective of their work location. PLAINTIFF is
informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS knew or should have known that
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to receive compiete and accurate wage
statements in- accordance with California law. In violation of the Labor Code DEFENDANTS did
not prov1dc PLAINTH-F and CLASS MEMBERS with complete and accurate wage statements.

43.  PLAINTIFF is mformed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to written
notice of paid sick leave or paid time off available. In violation of the Labor Code,
DEFENDANTS did not provide to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS written notice of paid
sick leave or paid time off available.

44,  PLAINTIF F is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to one day’s
rest iin seven, and that they did not rece;ive one day’s rest in seven in \fiolation of the Labor Code.

45. PLAINTIFF is informed and believés, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have k.;mwn that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not to perform any
work in any store, dispénsary, pharmacy, laboratory, or office for more than an average of nine
hours per day, or for more than 108 hburs in any two consecutive wecks or for-more than 12 days
in any two consecutive weeks, and that DEFENDANTS should not have tequired PLAINTIFF -and
CLASS MEMBE’RS. to do so, but that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS did work an average

of more than nine hours per day and/or more than 108 hours in any two consecutive weeks or more
i2
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than 12 days in any two consecutive weeks in violation of the Labor Code at DEFENDANTS’

direction.

SATISFACTION OF CLASS ACTION CRITERIA

46.  PLAINTIFF brings this action on his own behalf, as well as on behalf of each and-
all other persons similarly situated and seeks class certification of THE CLASS and
SUBCLASSES under Califoria Code of Civil Procedure section 382. Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 382.

47.  All claims alleged herein arise under California law for which PLAINTIFF seeks
relief authorized by California law. |

48.  There is a well-defined community of interest in litigation and the class members
are rea'dily ascertainal_:le: .

A. ‘Numerosity: The members of THE A(_;,LASS and SUBCLASSES are so
numerous that joinder of all members would be unfeasible and impractical. The mcmbersﬁip of the |
entire class is unknown to PLAINTIFF at this time; however THE CLASS is estimated to bc-
greater than one thoﬁsand (1000) individuals and the identity of such member‘ship is readily
ascertainable by inspection of DEFENDANTS’ employment records. _

B. Typicality: PLAINTIFF is qualified to, and will, fairly and adequately -
protect the interests of each member of THE CLASS with whom he Has a well-defined community
of interest, and PLAINTIFF’s claims (or defenses, if any) are typical of all class members as
demonstrated herein.

C. Adequacy: PLAINTIFF is qualified to, and will, fairly and adequately
protéct the interest of each class member with-whom he hzlls a well-defined community of interest
and t?picality of claims, as demonstrated herein. PLAINTIFF acknowledges that he has an
obligation to make known to the Court any relationship, conflicts, or differences with any class
membér. PLAINTIFF’s attorneys, the proposed class counsel, are versed in the rulgs governing
class action discovery, certification, and settlement. PLAINTIFF has incurred, and throughout the
duration of this action, will continue to incur costs and attorneys’ fees tlhat have been, are, and will
be necessarily expanded for the prosécution of this action for the substantial benefit of each class

member.
13
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D. Super'iloritx: Thé nature of this action .makes the use of class action
adjudlcatlon superior to other methods. A class action wnll achieve economies of time, effort, and
expense as compared with separate lawsuits, and will avmd inconsistent outcomes because the
same issues can be adjudicated in the same manner and at the same time for the entire class.

E. Public Policy Considerations: California has a sta'ted public policy in favor
of class actions in this context fqr the vindication of employee rights and enforcement of the Labor
Code. Employers in the State of California violate employment and labor laws every day. Current
employees are often afraid to assert their rights out of fear of direct or indirect retaliation. Former
employees are fearful of bringing actions because they believe their former employers might
damage their future endeavors through negative references and/or other means. Class actions
provide the class members who are not named in the compiaint with a type of anonymity that

allows for the vindication of their rights whilé simultaneously protecting their privacy.

FIRST CAUSE OF A.CTIO.N
Failure To Provide Required Unintermpted Meal Periods
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 226.7, 51.2(a), and 1198; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1.to 25)
A 49.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every a(llegatioﬁ set forth above.
50.  Atall relevant times, Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and 1198 have provided

that no employer shail require.an employee to work during any meal period mandated by an

.applicable order of the IWC. IWC Wage Order 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8

§ 11050.

51. At all relevant times herein, Labor Code section 512 has provided that “[a]n -
employer may not employ an em;ﬁloyee for a work period of more than ﬁve houfs per day without
providing the employee with a meal period of not less than 30 minutes,” except that if the total
work period per day of the employee is not more than six (6) hours, the mcal period may be waived
by mutual consent of both the employer and em'ployee. Cal. Lab. Code § 512(a). During this meal

period of not less 1han thirty (30) minutes, the employee is to be completely free of the employer’s
14
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control and must not perform any work for the employer. If the employee does perform work for
the employer during this thirty (30} minute meai period, the employee has not been provided with a
duty-free meal perlod n accordance with California law, and is to be compensated for any work
performed durmg this (30) minute meal perlod in addition to one (1) additional hour of
compensation at each employee’s regular rate of pay for each workday thata mcai period was not
provided. See also TWC Wage Order 7-2001(1 1), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

52.  Atall relevant times herein, pursuant to Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), 1198
and the applicable IWC Wage Order, an éﬁployer may nct employ an employee for a work period
of more than ten (10) hours per day without providing the employee with another meal period of

not less than thirty (30) minut'e:s= or to pay an employee one (1) additional hour of pay at the

employee’s regular rate, except that if the total hours worked is no more than twelve (12) hours, the

second meal period may be waived by mutual consent of the employer and the employee only if
the first meal period was not waived. 1WC Wage Order 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs.

tit. 8 § 11050. |

53. Atall rcievant times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLA INTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS with a full, thirty (30) minute uninterrupted meal period free from job duties,
as required by Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), codzf ed at Cal.
Code Regs. tit. 8 § | 1050

54, At all relevant times herein, DEEENDANTS further violated Labor Code section
226.7 and IWC Order No. 7-2601 by failing to compensate PLAINTIFF and CLLASS MEMBERS
who were not-pro'v.ided with an uninterrupted meal period or one (1) additional hour of .
comf)ensation at each employee’s regular rate of pay for each workday that a meal period was not
provided. Cal. -Lab: Code § 226.7(c), IWC Order No. 7-200].(1 1), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8
§ 11050. A | '

55. ° Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS had, and continue to have, a company-
wide policy of failing to schedule and provicie- uninterrupted meal breaks for PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS. DEFENDANTS have understaffed, and.conti'nue to understafT, its locations

without providing sufficient meal break coverage, such that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS
15
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were prevented from taking all timely and uninterrupted thirty (30) minutes meal periods; as such,
PLAINTIFF and CLASS ‘MEI\-/IBERS were routinely forced to woi'k‘ off-the-clock during their
meal periods in order to comply with DEFENDANTS’ demands and instructions to meet pharmacy
customers’ expectationé. M-oreover, DEFENDANTS did not provide PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS with a second uninternipted thirty (30) minute meal period on days they worked over
ten (10) hours, as required by the Lﬁbor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); IWC Order No. 7-
2001(11), cod:fed at Cal. Code Regs m 8§ 11050.

56. At all relevant times herein, as a result of DEFENDAN r's’ schedulmg, p011c1es and '
understaffing, in order to meet DEFENDANTS’ expectataons and customer demands, PLAIN TIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS were forced to miss and/or take late or interrupted meal breaks, in’
violation of the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); and IWC Order No. 7-2001(11),
codified at Cal. Code Regs tit. 8 § 11050, _

57. At all times hereln, DEFENDANTS knew, or should have known, that as a result of
DEFENDANTS? scheduling policies and practices of understaffing, PLAINTI[—F and CLASS
MEMBERS were forced to miss and/or take late or interrupted meal breaks, and that
DEFENDANTS did not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS meal périod premium wages
when meal rperiods were late and/or interrupted.

58. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to properly calculate the regular rate of
pay for purposes of paying meal period premiums to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by
including all compensation, such as shift differential pay and other compensation, as required by
the Labor Code. See Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); and IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at -
Cal -Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. |

59. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and IWC
Order No 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

60. - PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount accordmg

to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, expenses, and costs of suit.

, 16
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' SECOND.CAUSE OF ACT[OIN

Failure To Authonze And Permit Requ:red Rest Breaks
(Cal: Lab. Code sections 226.7, 1198; Cal. Code Regs tit. 8 § 11050.)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

61.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each

and every allegation set forth above.

62. At all relevant times herein, Labor Code sections'226.7 and 1 198 and IWC Wagc
Order 7-2001 were appllcable to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS employed by
DE}-ENDAN'I'S _

63. - At all relevant times herein, IWC Wage Order 7-2001 has stated that “['e]‘ver'y

| employer shall authorize and permit all employees to take rest periods ... at the rate of ten (I 0)

minutes net rest time per four (4) hours or major fraction thereof" unless the total daily work time
is less than three and one-half 3. S) hours. IWC Order No. 7-2001(12), codified at Cal. Code Regs.
tit. 8 § 11050

64. At all relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226.7 provides that “[al]n employer
shall not requ:re an employee to work durmg a meal or rest or recovery period mandated pursuant
to an applicable statute....” Cal. Lab. Code § 226 7(b).

65. Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS regularly failed to authoriie or permit
PLAINTIFF and'CLASS MEMBERS to take ten {10) minute uninterrupted rest periods for ea.ch
fou; (4) hours worked, or major fract.ion thereof. PLAIN;['IF.F and CLASS MEMBERS were
regularly denied uninterrupted rest periods in violation of the Labor Code. IWC Wage Order 7-
2001, codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050; see also Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(b).

66. Atall relev'ant times herein, DEFENDANTS’ staffing policies and scheduling
practices prevented PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS from being relieved of all duties in order
to.take an uninterrupted rest break. DEFENDANTS failed to relinquish any control over-how
employees spend their break time. See Augustus v. ABM Security Systems, Inc., 2 Cal. Sth 257, 260
(2016). As aresult, PLAINTIFF arid CLASS MEMBERS would work shifts in excess of 3.5 |

hours, in excess of six (6) hours, and in excess of ten (10) hours, without receiving the
17 .
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unjﬁterrupted ten (10) minute rest periods to which they were entitled.

67.. .By DEFENDANTS® failure to authorize and permit PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS to take uninterrupted rest br_eaks for every four (4) hours or major fraction thercof
worked pelr day, DEFENDANTS willfully violated the Labor Code. IWC Wage Order 7-2001(12),
cod:f ed at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 110501; see a[so Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7. |

68. Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226.7 has provided that “[i]f an
employer fails to provide an employee a meal or rest ot recove‘ry period in accordance with a state
law... the employer shall pay the employee one additional hour of pay at the employee’s regular
rate of compensation for each workday that the meal or rest ‘or recovery period is not provided.”
Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(c); IWC Qrder No. 7-2001(12), codified at Cal. Co&e Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

69.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS have had a c0mpany-\‘wide policy and
practice of not paying PLAINTIFF and CLASS IV.IEMB‘ERS rest period premiums when rest
periods were missed, late and/or interrupted. ‘

70. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to properly calculate the regular rate of
pay for purposes of paying rest period premiums to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by
including all compensation, such as shift differential pay and other compensation, as required by
the Labor Code. See Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); and IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at
Cal. Code Regs. tit, 8 § 11050,

71. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 226.7, 1198, and IWC Order
No. 7-2001, codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. ~

72.  PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, pcnalties, interest, expenses, and costs of suit.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To l;ay Overtime
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 5.10,'1198; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 1 1,050)-
(Against ALL - DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
73.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by refgrence and realleges as if fully stated herein each

and every allegation set forth above.
18
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74. At all relevant times hercin, Labor Code section 510 has mandated that any time
worked beyond eight hours in on¢ workday or beyond 40 hours in any workv;*eek must be
compensated ét no less than one and one-half times the regular wage. See Cal. Lab. Code § 510(a).

75.  IWC Wage Order 7-2001 further provides that employees “shall not be employed
more than eighf (8) hours in any workday or more than 40 hours in any workweek unless the
employee receives one and one-half (1 '%) times such employee’s regular rate of pay for all hours
worked over 40 hours in the wdrkweek.’; IWC Order No. 7-2001(3)(A), codified at Cal. Code
Regs. tit, 8 § 11050; see also Cal. Lab. Code § 1198, |

76. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS were required to compensate
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS for all overtime, calculated at one and one-half (1 '2) times
the regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day and/or forty (40)
hours per week, and for the first eight (8) hours on the seventh consecutive workday, .with double-
time for all hours worked in excess of twelve (12) hours in any workda_y and for all hours worked
in excelss of eight (8) hours on the seventh consecutive day of work in any workweek. Cal. Lab.
Code §§ 510, 1194, IWC Wage Order 7-2001(3), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. |

| 77. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS willfully failed to pay all overtime
wages owed to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS. During the CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFF. |
and CLASS MEMBERS were not paid overtime prefniurhs for all of the hours they worked in
exces;s of eight (8) hours in a day, in excess of twelve (12) hours in a day, in excess of eight (8)
hours on_the seventh (7th) consecutive day of work ina v.vorkweek,‘ and/or in excess of forty (40)
hours in a week, because all hours were not recorded.. _ -

_ 78. . At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to compensate PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEM_BERS for all overtime hours worked by: failing to pay overtime at one and one-half
(1 ‘/;) times or double the regular rate; requiriﬁg, permitting or suffering PLAINTIFF and CLASS |
MEMBERS to worlg through meal and rest periods; and inacc‘urately recording time in which _
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked. = |

79.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS? failure to provide adequate coverage

for meal periods for PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS so that they could be relieved of all
19 '
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duties and take time!y, uninterrupted 1hirty'-(30) minutes meal periods forced PLAINTIFF and

CLASS MEMBERS to work off-the-clock during meal periods to complete their assigned tasks.
80.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS had a company-wide pattern and -

practice of fequiring PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS to communicate with DEFENDANTS

and DEFE_NDANTS’ other em;ﬁloyees using personal cellular phones, including during‘days off

{and outside of scheduled shifts. : DEFENDANTS knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and

CLASS MEMBERS were communicating with DEFENDANTS and other employees while oft-
the-clock in,order 10 meet DEFENDANTS® demands, but DEFENbANTS failed to compensate
PLAINTIFF or CLASS MEMBERS: for this off-the-clock work. Therefore, PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS were not paid overtime wages for all overtime hours worked

81. Atall tlmes herein, DEFENDANTS failed to properly calculatc the regular rate of
pay for purposes of paying overtime to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by including all
compensétion, such as shift differential pay and other compensation, as required by the Labor - .
Code. See lAfvarado v. Dart Container Corp. of California, 4 Cal.5th 542 (2018).

82. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 510 and 1198 and IWC
Order No. 7-2001(3), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8-§ 11050. ' . -

83. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been’ damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, expenses, attorneys’ fees

and costs of suit.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Pay Minimum Wages
" (Cal. Lab. Code sections 1182.12, 1194,.1197,1197.1, and 1198;
and Cal. Code Regs. Tit. 8, § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25) -
84. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. | |
85. At all relevant times herein, empldyers operating under California law must pay at

least minimum wage to their employees for all hours worked. 1WC Order No. 7-2001(4), codified
.20
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at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. An employee not paid at least minimum wage is entitled to
recover the unpaid balance of such wages. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 1182.12 and 1194, In addition, an
employee is entitled to recover liquidated damages equaling the wages unlawfully unpaid, as well
as intercst. Cal. Lab. Code §1194.2. An employer failing to pay minimum wages must pay a c.ivil
penalty of $100 for the initial pay period and $250 for each subsequent pay period dunng which
such vnolauons occurred Cal. Lab. Code § 1197.1.

86.' . Atall relevant times herein, as a result of DEF ENDAN s’ slaﬂ' ing and schedulmg
policies and practices, PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were forced to miss or shorten their -
meal periods in order to meet DEFENDANTS’ expectations and customer demands. PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS were also requ:red to perform off-the-clock work on thelr days off and
outside of scheduled shlfts, mcludmg using their personal cellular phones.

| 87. At all relevant times herein, DEF ENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CL.ASS
MEMBERS minimum wages for all hours worked by: requiring, permitting or suffering.
PI..AINTH-‘F and CLASS MEMBERS 10 work off-the-clock through meal and rest breaks;
requiring, permitting or suffering PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMEBERS to work off-the-clock
outside of scheduled shifts. including By using their personal cell phone on their days off. Asa
result pf these actions DEFENDANTS did not pay at least minimum wages for all hours worked by
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS. |

88. DEFENﬁAN’I‘S’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 1182.12, 1194, 1197,

1197.1, and 1198 and IWC Order No. 7-2001(4), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

89.  PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, 'intereét, penalties, expenses; attorneys’ fees
and costs of suit.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Pay Timely Wages Due At Termination/Waiting Time Penalties
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 201, 202, 203)
- (Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

90.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
21
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and every allegation set forth above.

91.  Atall relevant timés herein, pursuant to Labor Code séctions 201 and 202,
employer.s must pay all wages due upon termination and, if an employer terminates an.employée,
the employee’s wages are “due and payable immediately.” Cal. Lab. Code § 201. Pursuant t{)

Labor Code section 202, employers are required to pay all wages due to an employee no later than

72 hours after the employee quits employment, ﬁnless the employee provided 72 hours of notice of

the intention to quit, in which case the employee is entitled to those wages at the time of quitting.
Cal. Lab. Code § 202. - | |

92. At all relevant times herein, Labor C‘ode section 203 prox;ides that “[i]f an e-m_pio'yer
willfully fails to pay... any wages of an employee who is discharged or who quits, the wages of the
employee shall conti-nue as a penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate until paid or until
an action therefor is commenced; but the wages shall not continué for more than 30 days.” Cal.
Lab. Code § 203. _ .

93, At all relevant times herein, PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE
SUBCLASS were entitled to, but did not receive, meal and rest period premium wages, overtime
wages, minimum wages, vacation wages, and all compensation owed to them.

94.  When PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS separated from
employment with DEFENDANTS, DEFENDANTS willful’ly failed to pay all wages owed. |

95. DEF ENDANTS;’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 201, 202, and 2-03.

96.  As aconsequence of DEFENDANTS’ willful conduct in not paying wages owed at
the time of separétiou’frorh employment, PLAINTIFF 'and the 'FORMER EMPLOYEE
SU BCLASS are entitled to 30 days’ worth of their average daily wages as a penalty under Labor
Code section 203. See Drumm v. Morningstar, 695 F.Supp.2d 1014 (N.D. Cal. 2010).

97. PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS have been damaged in an
amount according to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and dua;, penalties, interest, expenses,

attorneys’ fees and costs of suit.

22
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SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure To Timely Pay All Wages
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 204, 1182.12, 11!.34, 1194.2, 1197, 1198,
and Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DbES 1 to 25)

98.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set.forl'h above.

99.  Atall times relevant herein, Labor Codc section 204 has provided that all wages
earned by any person in any employment between the first (1st) and the fifteenth (15th) ddays,
inclusive, of any caléndar month, other than those wages due upon termination of an employee, are
due an<;l payable be't\fveen the sixteenth (16th) and the twenty-sixth (26th) day of the month during
which the labor was performed. Labor Code section 204 further provides that all wages earned by
any.person in any employment between the sixteenth (16th) and the !;';lst day, inclusive; of any
calendar month, other than those wages due upon termination of an employee, are due and pa;_/able
between the first (1st) and the tenth (10th) day of the following month. Cal. Lab. Code § 204(a).

100. At all times relevant herein, Labor Code section 204 has further provided that all
wages eamned for labor in excess of the normal work period shall be paid no later than the payday
for the next regular payroll peﬁod. .Cal. Lab. Code § 204(b). Alternatively, at all times relevant
herein, Labor Code section 204 has‘provided that the requirements of this section are deemed -
satisfied by the payment of wages for weekly, biweekly, or semimonthly payroll if the wages are
paid not more than seven (7) calendar days following the close of the payroll period. Cal. Lab.
Code § 204(d). ' |

101. At all relevant times herein, Labor Code sections 1182.12, 1194, 1197, 1197.1 and
1198 h'ave provided that the minimum wage for employees fixed by the applicable IWC Wage
Order is the minimum wage to be paid to empioyees, and the payment of a wage less than the
minimum wage set by the IWC is unlawful. “Hours worked,” and therefore compensable time, is
defined in IWC Wage Order 7-2001 as “the time during which an employee is subject to- the

control of an employer, and includes all time the employee is suffered or permitted to work,
23
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whether or not required to do so...” IWC Wage Order 7-2001(K), codified at Cal Code. Regs: tit. 8
§1 1050(2)(K). '

102, Atall felevant times herein, DEFENDANTS willfully failed tb pay PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS all wages due including, but not liﬁited to overtime wages, minimum wages,
and meal and rest period premium wages, within the periods mandated by Labor Code section 204.

103. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF :fmd CLASS
MEMBERS for time spent by P'LA[NT‘IFF and CLASS MEMBERS answering text messages
related to work and as required by DEFENDANTS, which is deemed time worked.and must be
compensated.. ' l

104. At all relevant times herein, IWC Wag,_e Order 7-2001 provides that “[e]ach
workday. an employee is requifed to report for work and does report, but is not put to work or is
furnished less than half said employee’s usual or scheduled day’s work, the employee shall be i)aid
for half the usual or scheduled day’s work, but in no event for less than two (2) hours nor more
than four (4) hours, at the empioyee’s regular rate of pay....” IWC Wage Order 7-2001(3), cadified
at Cal. Code Regs tit. 8 § 11050.

. 105. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS

MEMBERS for all work performed while off the clock, including checking and responding to text

| messages and completing opening and closing procedures.

106, At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS all wages owed at their legally prescnbed regular rate of pay.
107. DEFENDANTS’ conduc.t violates Labor Code sections 204, 1182. 12 1194, 1194. 2
1197, 1198, and IWC Order No. 7-2001, codified a1 Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.
108. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all_wages earned and due, penalties, interest, exbenses, attorneys’ fees.

and costs of suit.

24
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SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Reimburse For Employment Related Expenses
(Cal. Lab. Code section 2802)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

109. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reférence and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. '

110. At all refevant times herein, Labor Code section 2802 has required an employer to
indemnify an employee “for all nécessary expenditures or losses incurred by the employee in direct |
consequence of the discharge of his or her duties....” Cal. Lab. Code § 2802(a). This includes
costs associated with the use of personal cell phones for work related purposes “If an employee is
required to make work-related calls on a personal ce;l phone, then he or she is incurring an expense
for purposes of section 2802.” Cochran v. Schwan’s Home Service, Inc., 228 Cal. App. 4th 1137,
1144 (2014).

101 Atall relevant times herein, PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE
SUBCLASS incurred necessary business-related expenses and costs that were not reimbursed by
DEFENDANTS, including, but not limited to, the cost for celi phone usage. PLAINTIFF -and the
BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS were requ‘ired’to use their personal cell phones to exchange
ten;t messages with DEFENDA’NTS’ management. DEFENDANTS did not provide PLAINTIFF
or the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBlCLASS with a work-issued cell pHone, nor has it reimbursed
PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS for the necessary expenses they incurred
in using meir-persopal cell phones for DEFENDANTS” business.

112. At all relevant times, DEFENDANTS have intentionally and willfully failed to
reimburse PLA]N'I"[FF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS for necessary business-related
expenses and costs. DEFENDANTS’ company-\;vide practice of requiring PLA [N’I'IF F an.d the
BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS to use their own personal cellular phom.s for work violates ’
Labor Code section 2802.

113, PLAINTIFF ano the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS have been damaged in an

'amount according to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, attomeys

25
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fees, expenses, and costs of suit.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION

A Failure To Maintain Required Records '
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 226(a), 226.3, 1174(d), and 1198.5; and Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8
§ 11050.) |
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

114. I;LAINTIF F incorpdrates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above.

115.  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 1174 has provided that every
emialoyer shall “[k]eep, at a central location in the state or at the plants or establishments at which
employees are employed, payroll records showing the hours worked daily by and the wages paid
to, and the number of piece-rate units earned by and any applicable piece rate paiq to, empldyees
employed at the respective plam$ or establishments. These records shall be képl ...0N ﬁ‘le for not
less than three years:” Cal. Lab. Code §1174(d).

116.  Pursuant to IWC Wage Order 7-2001, employers are required to keep accurate time -
records including, but not limited to, when the emp!oyee begins.and ends each work pen’od and -
-meal -period.' IWC Order N-o. 7-2001(7), codiﬁed at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. During the
CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANTS failed to keep accurate records of meal period start and stop
times for PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS in violation of the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code
§1198.5; IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), codified.at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

117.  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226 provides that an employer is to
maintain accurate records, including, but not limited to: total daily hours worked by each
employee; applicable rates of pay; all deductions; meal periods; time records showing when each
employce begins and ends each work period; and accurate itemized statements. By
DEFENDANTS’ .(':ompany-widt: policiés and practices of inaccurately recording time in which
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked, including failing to record time during which
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked, DEFENDANTS knowingly and intentionally failed

to maintain recérds as required by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226(a), 1174(d); see also.
26
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e Wage Order 7-200 1.(’/), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. _

118. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to p‘roof at trial, and seek all wages eamed and due. penalties, interest, attomeys’_ fees, expenses,
and costs of suit.

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION

F;ailure To Furnish Accurate Itemized Wage Statements
(Cal. Lab. Code section 226(a), 226(e), 226.3, Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25) |

119. " PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. |

120. At all relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226 has rec;uired errfp]oyers to
furnish each employee an accurate and itemized wage.staterﬁem iq writing that includes, but not
limited to, to&al daily hours worked by each empl;ﬁyee; appli;able rates of pay; all deductions; meal
periods; and total hours worked. See Cal. Lab. Code § 226(a); IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7),
codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8'§ 11050.

' 121. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS systematically provided PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS with incomplete and inaccurate wagé statements. The violations include,
without limitation, the failure to accurately list the total daily hours worked by each employee, total
regular and overtime wages eém,ed, the accurate regular rate of pay, or meal and/or rest break'.
premiums enti_tled 10 PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS.

122, Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS” failure to provide accurate itemized
wage statements was a kndwing and intentional acf based on.their company-wide policy and
practice of failing to pay all wages owed as set forth herein in vioiatiqn of Labor Code. Cal. Lab.
Code §§ 226(a), 226(¢), 226.3.

123. By DEFENDANTS’ company-wide policies and prac-lice.s of inaccurately recording
time in which PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked, DEFENDANTS knowingly and
intentionally failed to maintain records as'required by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226(a),

226(e), 226.3; IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.
27
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124. PLAINTIEF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according

to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penallties, interest, attorneys’ fees, expenses, .

land costs of suit.

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Provide Written Notice of Paid Sick Leave
(Cal: Lab. Code sections 246(i))
(Again_st ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
125. PLAINTIFF in,co;porates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above.. | . .
126.  Atall times herein, Labor Code section 246 has required that employers provide

employees with “written notice that sets forth the amount of paid sick leave available, or péid time

| off an employer provides in lieu of sick leave, either on the employee’s itemized wage statement

described in section 226 or in a separate writing provided on the designated bay date with the
employee’s payment of wages.” Cal. Lab. que § 246(1).

127.  Atall times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS with the required written notice on wage statements and/or other separate written

statements that listed the requisite information set forth in Labor Code section 246. Specifically,

|| DEF ENDANTS‘ wage statements fail to state PLAINTIFF’s and CLASS MEMBERS’ paid sick

leave‘balance‘, as required by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code § 246(1). -
128. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code section 246(i).
129. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount}according :
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, pcnalties,_ interest, attorneys’ fees, expenses,
and costs of suit. '

. ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Provide One Day’s Rest In Seven
{(Cal. Lab. Code sections 551, 552, and 852)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

130. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
: : 28
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and every allegation set forth above.

131.  Atall imes herein, Labor Code section 551 has provided that “[e]very person
employed in any occupation of labor is entitled to one &ay‘s rest. therefrom in seve'n.” Cal. Lab.
Code § 551. |

132.  Atall times herein, Labor Code section 552 has provided that “[n]o employer of
labor shall cause his employees to worl_( more than six days in seven.” Cal. Lab. Code § 552.

133. At all times herein, Labor Code section 852 has provided that “[t]he employer shall
apportion the periods of rest to be taken by an employee so that the employee will have one
complete day of rest during each week.” Cal. Lab. Code § 852.

134. At zﬂ] times };erein, DEFENDANTS failed to providé to PLAINTIFF and CLLASS
MEMBERS the legally-mandated rest days as required by California law. Furtﬁer, “an employer’s
obligation is to apprise employees of their entitlement to a day of rest and thereafter Lo maintain
absolute neutrality as to the exercise of thE.lt right.” Mendoza v. Nords'trom, Inc., 2 Cal. 5th 1074,
1091 (2017). DEFENDANTS failed to provide this notice to PLAINTIFF and CLASS -
MEMBERS.

135. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 551, 552, and 852.

136. PLAINTIFF aﬁd CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due. penalties, interest, attorheys_’ fees, expenses,
and co#s of suit, as well as relief pursuant to Labor Code section 853.

TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

 Failure To Comply with Labor Code Scctions 850 and 851
" (Cal. Lab. Code sections 850 and 851)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
137. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated hcreiﬁ each
and every allegation set forth above. .
138.  Atall times herein, Labor Code section 850 has provided, in pertinent part, that
“[n]o person employed to sell at retail drugs and fnedicines or to compound physicians'

prescriptions shall perform any work in any store, dispensary, pharmacy. laboratory, or office for

CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION COMPLAINT
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more than an average of nine hours per day, or for more than 108 hou'(s in any two consecutive
weeks or for more than 12 days in any two consecutive wg_aeks...” Cal. Lab. Code § 850.

139.  Atall times herein, Labor Code section 851 has proﬁibited employgrs' from
requiring employees covered by Section 850 to-work in €xcess of the hours prescribed therein. See
Cal. Lab. Code § 851

140. Atall times herem and in violation of Labor Code Section 851 DEF ENDANTS
required PLAINTIFF and the PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS to work in excess of the
hours prescrlbed by Labor Code Sectlon 850.

141. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 850 and 851.

142, PLAINTIFF and the PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS have been _dahagcd
in an amount according to proc;f at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest,

attorneys’ fees, expenses, and costs of suit, , as well as relief pursuant to Labor Code section 853.

THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Unfair And Unlawful Business Practices
(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code section 17200, ef seq.)
(Against ALLL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

143. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set f‘orth above.

144. At all times herein, California Busi ness & Professions Code provides that “person”
shall mean and include “nétural persons, corporations, firms, partnerships, joint stock companies,
associations and othér organizations of persons.” Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17201.

145. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS’ conduct, as allegéd herein, has been, and
continues to be, unfair, unlawful and harmful 10 PLAINTIFR CLASS MEMBERS, the general
public, and DEFENDANTS’ competitors. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have suffered
injury in fact and have lost money as a result of' DEFENDANTS’ unlawful business practices.

146. Atall times herein, DEFENDANTS’ activities, as alleged herein, are violations of
Cé]ifomia law, and constitute false, unfair, fraudulent and deceptive business acts and practiceé in

violation of California Business & Professions Code sections 17200 ef seq.
30 :
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147. Each and every one of thé DEFENDANTS? acts and omissions in violation of the

Labor Code and IWC Wage Order 7-2001 as alleged herein, inc]uding but not limited to

'DEFENDANTS'® failure to authorize and provide uninterrupted meal periods; DEFENDANTS’ .

fallure to authorize and permit uninterrupted rest periods; DEFENDANTS’ failure to pay overtime
compensation; DEFENDANTS?’ failure to pay premium compensation at the leg,ally prescribed
regular rate of pay; DEFENDANTS?® failure o pay minimum wages; ‘DEFENDANTS’ failure to
pay all wages due to términatcd employees; DEFENDANTS® failure to furnish accurate wage
sta_tements; DEFENDANTS’ failure 10 maintain required reco_rds; DEFENDANTS’ failure to
provide written notice of paid sick Iéave; DEFENDANTS? failure to provide one day’s rest in
seven; and DEFENDANTS'® failure to comply with Labor Code Sections 850 and 851 constitutcs
an unfair and unlawful business practice under California Business & Professions Code scctions
17200 et seq. | '

148. DEFE]"\IDANT S’ violations of California wage and hour laws constitute a business.
practice because _DEFENDAN'I‘S’ aforementioned acts and omissions were done repeatedly over a
significant period of time, and in a systematic manner, to the detriment of PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS. ' |

149. Asaresult of the violations of Califomia law herein described, DEFENDANTS
unlawfully gamed an unfalr advantage over other businesses. PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS have suffered pecuniary loss by DEFENDANTS® unlawful business acts and practices
alleged herein.

150. Pursuant to California Business & Professions Code sections 17200 el seq.,
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS are cnmled to restitution of the wages withheld and retained"
by DEFENDANTS during a period that commences four years prior to the ﬁhng of this complaint;
a permanent injunction requiring DEFENDANTS to pay all outstanding wages due to PLAINTIFF - '
and CLASS MEMBERS; an award of attorneys’ fees pursuant to California Code of Civil
Procedure section 1021.5 and other applicable laws; and an award of costs.

1

"
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF
| Wherefore PLAINTIFE, indi{fidually and on behalf of all.other persons sim'ilarlyr situated,
respectfully prays for relief against DEFENDANTS and Does 1 through 25, inclusive, and each of
them, as follows: .

1. For compensatory damages in an amount to be ascertairied at trial; .

2. For restitution of all monies due to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS, as well as
disgorged profits from the unfair and unlawful business practices of DEFENDANTS;

3. Formeal and rest period compensation pursuant to Labor Codc section 226.7 and
[WC Wage Order NO. 7- 2001 _

4.  For liquidated damages pursuant to Labor Code section 1194.2;

5. For preliminary and permanent injunctive relief enjoining DEFENDANTS from
violafing the relevant provisi.ons of the I;abor Code and' IWC Wage Orders, and from engaging in
the -unlawful business practices complainod of herein;

6. For waiting time penalties pursuant to Labor Code section 263‘_; ’

7. | For statutory an'd civil penalties aocordiog to oroof, including but not limited to all
penalties authorized by the Labor Code sections 226(e), and 853,

8. For interest on the unpaid wages at 10% per annum pursuant to Labor Code _
Sections 218.6, 1194, 2802, California Civil Codé sections 3287, 3288, and/or any other ai)plicable
provision providing for pre-judgment interest; .

9. - For reasonable attorncys’ fees and costs pursuant 10 Labor Code sections 1194,
2802, California Civil Code section 1021.5, and any other applicable provisions providi.ng for
attorneys’ fees and costs;

10.  For declaratory relief;

l 1. For an order requiring and certlfymg the thirteen Causes of Action pled in this
COMPLAINT as a class action; - .

12.  For an order appomting PLAINTIFF as class representative, and PLAINTIFF’s
counsel as class counsel; and | '

/1
32 '
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13. For such further relief that the Court may deem just and proper.

DEMAND F OR JURY TRIAL

PLAINTIFF on behalf of himseif and all others snm1larly situated, hereby demands a jury

lnal with respect to all i issues triable of right by jury.

DATED: August 21,2018 ' GUNN COBLE LLP

;0_—_;
i@ble

Attorneys for Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS,
on behalf of himself, and all others similarly
situated -

33
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TESTIVONIALS

“This was the third attempt to mediate This case, and
the BASF mediotor waos for and away the besl mediator.
| dore say that we would nol have sefiled todoy bul for
his efforts.”

George Yuhas, Esq.

Orrick, Herringlon & Sutcliffe [LP

"We had an excellent experience and, ofter 8'/2 hours of
mediation, [the BASF mediator] seltled a very difficult case
involving claims against four clients of ours by a weallhy
investor who cloimed inedequate disclosure was mode.”
Robert Charles Friese, Esq.
Shartsis Friese LLP

"When the other side made their offer, | thought there was
no way we would reach on agreement — we were too for
aparl, but the mediator brought us together. He saved me
a lot of time and aggravation by facilitating o setlement.
Thonks!”

leslie Caplan

Global Warming Compaign Manager

Blvewater Nelwork

“BASF stoff was very helphul - stoyed on the task and kept
after a hard to reach party. The mediator was greotl”
Mark Abelson, Fsq.
Campagnoli, Abelson & Campagnoli

"The [BASF] mediator was excellent! He was effeclive with
some slrong, forceful personalities.”

Denise A. leadbetter, Esq.

Zacks, Uirecht & leadbelter

PROCEDURES, PODCASTS,
FORMS, MEDIATOR BIOGRAPHIES
AND PHOTOGRAPHS:
www.sfbar.org/mediation

adr@sfbar.org or
415-982-1600

S
N

VEARS W g0 g
2010 -2

MEDIATION
SERVICES

THE BAR ASSOCIATION OF
SAN FRANCISCO
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EXPEIENCE TRUST

Pl
WHAT IS BASF’'S
MEDIATION SERVICE?

The Bar Association of San Francisco’s Mediation
Services is a private medialion service which
will assist you with almost any type of dispute,
from simple contract dispules to complex
commerciol matters.

A .
WHO ARE THE MEDIATORS?

They are eslablished mediators who have private
mediolion practices and have met our extensive
experience requirements. By going through BASF
you receive the services of these highly quadlified
mediators at o great value.

/A\
HOW DO | LEARN MORE
ABOUT THE MEDIATORS?

BASF's website al www.sfbor.org/mediation
provides bios, photos and hourly rates of
mediators. You can search by name or by area
of low needed for your case. BASF siaff is
olways available lo ossist you with seleclion or
1o answer questions.

S
HOW MUCH DOES
THE SERVICE COST?

A $295 per parly adminisirafive fee is paid to
BASF at the lime the Consent lo Mediate form
is filed. This fee covers the first hour of mediator
preparation lime and the first wo hours of session
time. Time beyond that is poid at the mediator’s
normal hourly rate.

A
"HOW IS THE' ‘
MEDIATOR CHOSEN?

You may request o specific mediator from our

website {www.stbar.org/mediction) and indicate
your choice on the BASF Consent to Mediate
form, or you may indicote on the form that you
would like BASF staff to ossist with the selection.

/ﬂ\
WHY SHOULD | GO THROUGH BASF?
CAN'T | JUST CALL THE
MEDIATOR DIRECTLY?

BASF mediators have agreed to provide three
free hours as o service to BASF. IF you go directly
to one of our mediators, you do not qualily for
the free hours unless you notify us. Once you
have filed with us, you will talk direclly lo the
mediator to ask questions and to set a convenient
mediation date and time.

T
HOW LONG 15 THE
MEDIATION SESSION?

The lime spent in mediation will vary depending
on your dispute. BASF mediators are dedicaled

to reaching o sefilement, whether you need a few

hours or several days.

T —
WHO CAN USE THE SERVICE?

BASF mediation can be utilized by anyone and is
NOT limited to San Francisco residents or issues.
Also, the service may be used before a courl
action is filed or at any time during a court action.

T~
OUR CASE IS FILED IN COURT, HOW DO
WE USE BASF’'S MEDIATION SERVICES?.

When you file the Son Francisco Suparior
Court's Stipulation to ADR lorm, check the box
indicating “Mediation Services of BASF.” Then
complete BASF's Consent lo Mediate form found
on our website and file it with us. (if the matter
was filed in o different county, please check with
that courl for the appropriate process.)

T
. WE ARE ON A DEADLINE;
HOW QUICKLY CAN WE MEDIATE?

Once all parties have filed oll the paperwork,
BASF con normally have you in touch with
the mediator within a day or two. If there
is o deadline, BASF staff will give the matler

lop priority.

WHAT TYPES OF DISPUTES
CAN | MEDIATE?

BASF medialors are trained in 30+ areas of
low. If you don't see the area you need on our
website or in this brochure, conioct us; it is
very likely we can maich your need with one of
our panelists.

T
MORE INFORMATION
Visit our website (www.stbar.org/mediation)
where you can search by nome or by area

of low. For personal ossisionce, please call
415-982-1600.

=

WWW.SFBAR IRIVMEMIATIEIN « ADR@SFBAR.ORG e 415.982.1600

P
b
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CASE NUMBER: CGC-18-569080 RYAN HYAMS VS. CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, A RHODE

NOTICE TO PLAINTIFF

A Case Management Conference is set for:

DATE: JAN-23-201¢
TIME: 10:30AM

PLACE: Department 610
400 McAllister Street
San Francisco, CA 94102-3680

All parties must appear and comply with Local Rule 3.
CRC 3.725 requires the filing and service of a case management statement form CM-110

no later than 15 days before the case management conference. However, it would facilitate
the issuance of a case management order without an appearance at the case

management conference if the case management statement is filed, served and lodged in
Department 610 twenty five (25) days before the case management conference.

Plaintiff must serve a copy of this notice upon each party to this action with the summons and
complaint. Proof of service subsequently filed with this court shall so state. This case is
eligible for electronic filing and service per Local Rule 2.11. For more information,
please visit the Court's website at www.sfsuperiorcourt.org under Online Services.

ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION POLICY REQUIREMENTS

{T 1S THE POLICY OF THE SUPERIOR COURT THAT EVERY CIVIL
CASE PARTICIPATE IN ESTHER MEDIATION, JUDICIAL OR NON-
JUDICIAL ARBITRATION, THE EARLY SETTLEMENT PROGRAM OR
SOME SUITABLE FORM OF ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
PRIOR TO A TRIAL.

(SEE LOCAL RULE 4}

Plaintiff must serve a copy of the Alternative Dispute Resolution information Package on each
defendant along with the complaint. All counsel must discuss ADR with clients and opposing
counsel and provide clients with a copy of the Alternative Dispute Resolution Information
Package prior to filing the Case Management Statcment. |

[DEFENDANTS: Attending the Case Management Conference does not take the
place of filing a written response to the complaint. You must file a written
response with the court within the time limit required by law. See Summons.]

Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Coordinator
400 McAllister Street, Room 103

San Francisco, CA 94102

(415) 551-3869

See Local Rules 3.3, 6.0 C and 10 B re stipulation to judge pro tem.
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Superior Court of California, County of San Francisco

Alternative Dispute Resolution
Program Information Package

The plaintiff must serve a copy of the ADR information package
on each defendant along with the complaint. {CRC 3. 221(c))

WHAT IS ADR?

Altemmative Dispute Resolution (ADR) is the term used to describe the various options avallable
for settling a dispute without a trial. - There are many different ADR processes, the most common
forms of which are mediation, arbitration and settlement conferences. In ADR, trained, impartial
- people declde disputes or help parties decide disputes themselves. They can help parties .
resolve disputes without having to go to court.

WHY CHOOSE ADR? '
"It is the policy of the Superior Court that every noncriminal, nonjuvenile case ‘participate either
in an early settlement conference, mediation, arbitration, early neutral evaluation or some other
altemative dispute resolution process prior to tnal " (Local Rule 4) ' .

ADR can have a number of advantages over traditiona! litigation: '

o ADR can save time. A dispute often can be resolved in a matter of months, even
weeks, through ADR, while a lawsuit can take years.

¢ ADR can save money, including court costs, aftorney fees, and expert fees:

o ADR encourages participation. The parties may have more opportunities to tell their
story than in court and may have more contro! over the outcome of the case. .

« ADR is more satisfying. For all the above reasons, many people participatingin -
ADR have reported a high degree of satisfaction.

HOW DO | PARTICIPATE IN ADR?
Litigants may elect to participate in ADR at any point in a case. General clvil cases may-
voluntarily enter into the court's ADR programs by any of the following means:
o Filing a Stipulation to ADR: Complete and file the Stipulation form (attached to this
packet) at the clerk's office located at 400 McAllister Street, Room 103;
e Indicating your ADR preference on the Case Management Statement (also attached to
this packef); or
¢ Contacting the court's ADR office (see below) or the Bar Association of San
Francisco’s ADR Services at 41 5-782-8905 or www.sfbar.org/adr for more infarmation.

For more information about ADR programs or dlspute resolution alternatives, contact:
Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution
400 McAllister Street, Room 103, San Francnsco CA 94102
415.551-3869 -

* Or, visit the court ADR website at m,sfsugeriorcoun. org

ADR-1 o03/15 @s) Pagel



Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4  Filed 10/12/18 Page 182 of 298°

f

The San Francisco Superior Court offers different types of ADR processes for general civil
rhatters; each ADR program is described in the subsections below:

1) SETTLEMENT CONFERENCES

The goal of settlement conferences is.to provide participants an opportunity to reach a mutually
acceptable settlement that resolves all or part of a dispute early in the litigation process.

(A) THE BAR ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO (BASF) EARLY SETTLEMENT
PROGRAM (ESP): ESP remains as one of the Court's ADR programs (see Local Rule 4.3) but
parties must select the program — the Court no longer will order parties into ESP.

. Operation: Panels of pre-screened attorneys (one plaintiff, one defense counsel} each
with at least 10 years’ trial experience provide a minimum of two hours of settlement conference
time, including evaluation of strengths and weakness of a case and potential case value. On
occasion, a panellst with extensive experience in both plaintiff and defense roles serves as a
sole panelist. BASF handles notification to all parties, conflict checks with the panelists, and full
‘case management. The success rate for the program is 78% and the satisfaction rate is 97%

FuII procedures are at: www.sfbar.ora/esp.

Cost: BASF charges an administrative fee of $295 per party with a cap of $590 for
parties represented by the same counse!. Waivers are available to those who qualify. For more
information, call Marilyn King at 415-782-89805, email adr@sfbar.org or see enclosed brochure.

(B) MANDATORY SETTLEMENT CONFERENCES: Parties may elect to apply to the
Presiding Judge's department for a specially-set mandatory settliement conference. See Local
Rule 5.0 for further instructions. Upon approval of the Presiding Judge, the court will schedule
the conference and assign the case for a settlement conference.

2) MEDIATION

Mediation is a voluntary, flexible, and confidentiai process in which a neutral third party facilitates-
negotiations. The goal of medlation is to reach a mutually satisfactory agreement that resolves
all or part of a dispute after exploring the interests, needs, and priorities of the partues In light of
relevant evidence and the law.

(A) MEDIATION SERVICES OF THE BAR ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO, in
cooperation with the Superior Court, is designed to help civll litigants resolve disputes before
they incur substantial costs in litigation. While it is best to utilize the program at the outset of
littigation, parties may use the program at any time while a case is pending.

Operation: Experienced professional mediators, screened and approved, provide one
hour of preparation time and the first two hours of mediation time. Mediation time beyond that is
charged at the mediator's hourly rate. BASF pre-screens all mediators based upon strict
educational and experience requirements. Parties can select their mediator from the panels at
www.sfbar.org/mediation or BASF can assist with mediator selection. The BASF website
contains photographs, biographles, and videos of the mediators as well as testimonials to assist
with the selection process. BASF staff handles conflict checks and full case management.
Mediators work with parties to arrive at a mutually agreeable solution. The success rate for the
program is 64% and the satisfaction rate is 99%. '

ADR-1 03/15 ’ (Ga) . ’ Page 2
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. Cost: BASF charges an administrative fee of $295 per party, The hourly mediator fee
beyond the first three hours will vary depending on the mediator selected. Waivers of the -
administrative fee are available to those who qualify. For more information, call Marilyn King at
415-782-8905, email adr@sfbar.org or see the enclosed brochure.

(B) JUDICIAL MEDIATION provides mediation with a San Francisco Superior Court
judge for civil cases, which include but are not limited to, personal injury, construction defect,
employment, professional malpractice, insurance coverage, toxic torts and industrial accidents.
Parties may utilize this program at anytime throughout the litigation process.

Operation: Parties interested in judicial mediation should file a Stipulation to Judicial
Mediation indicating a joint request for-inclusion in the program. A preference for a specific
judge may be indicated. The court will coordinate assignment of cases for the program. There
is no charge for the Judicial Mediation program.

(C) PRIVATE WMEDIATION: Aithough not currently a part of the court's ADR program,
parties may elect any private mediator of their choice; the selection and coordination of private
mediation is the responsibllity of the parties.. Parties may find mediators and organizations on
the Internet. The cost of private mediation will vary depending on the mediator selected.

3) ARBITRATION

An arbitrator is neutral attorney who presides at a hearing where the parties present evidence
through exhibits and testimony. The arbitrator applies the law to the facts of the case and

"makes an award based upon the merits of the case.

(A) JUDICIAL ARBITRATION: When the court orders a case to arbitration it is calied
“judicial arbitration®. The goal of arbitration is to provide parties with an adjudicatton that is
earller, faster, less fonnal and usually less expensive than a trial.

Operation: Pursuant to CCP 1141.11, all civil acﬁons in which the amount in controversy
is $50,000 or less," and no party seeks equitable relief, shall be ordered to arbitration. {(Upon
stlpulatson of all parties, other civil matters may be submitted to judicial arbitration.) An arbitrator
is chosen from the court’s arbitration panel. Arbitrations are general!y held between 7 and 9
months after a complaint has been filed. Judicial arbitration is not binding unless all parties
agree to be bound by the arbitrator's decision. Any party may request a frial within 60 days after
the -arbitrator's award has been filed. Local Rule 4.2 allows for mediation in lieu of judicial
arbitration, so long as the parties file a stipulation to mediate after the filing of.a complaint.
There is no cost to the parties for judicial arbitration.

(B) PRIVATE ARBITRATION: Although not currently a part of the court's ADR program,

“civil disputes may also be resolved through private arbitration. Here, the parties voluntarily

consent to arbitration. If all parties agree, private arbitration may be binding and the-parfies give
up the right to judiclal review of the arbitrator’s decision. In private arbitration, the parties select
a private arbltrator and are responsible for paying the arbitrator’s fees.

TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THE COURTS ADR PROGRAMS, PLEASE COMPLETE THE ATTACHED

- STIPULATION TO ADR AND SUBMIT {T TO THE COURT. YOU MUST ALSO CONTACT BASF TO ENROLL IN

THE LISTED BASF PROGRAMS. THE COURT DOES NOT FORWARD COPIES OF STiPULATIONS TO BASF.

ADR-1 o03/15 L (a) Page 3
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Superior Court of California -
- County of San Francisco ﬂ

JENIFFER B, ALCANTARA

Hon. TERI L. JACKSOI;I - ‘ : ! . .
PRESIDING JUDGE Judicial Mediation Program: .- " sonumustsron

The Judicial Mediation program offers mediation in civil litigation with a San
Francisco Superior Court judge familiar with the area of the law that is the subject of the.
controversy. Cases that will be considered for participation in the program include, but: are
not limited to personal injury, professional malpractice, construction, employment, insurance
coverage disputes, mass torts and complex commercial litigation. Judicial Mediation offers
civil litigants the opportunity to engage in early mediation of a case shortly after filing the -
complaint in an’effort to resolve the matter before substantial funds are expended. This
program may also be utilized at anytime throughout the litigation process. The panel of
judges currently participating in the program includes: .

The Honorable Suzanne R. Bolanos The Honorable Stephen M. Murphy
The Honorable Angela Bradstreet . The Honorable Joseph M. Quinn -
The Honorable Andrew Y.S. Cheng The Honorable James Robertson; 11
The Honorable Samue] K. Feng ' The Honorable John K. Stewart

The Honorable Curtis E.A. Karnow The Honorable Richard B. Ulmer, Jr.

The Honorable Charlene P. Kiesselbach The Honorable Mary E. Wiss

Parties interested in Judicial Mediation should file a Stipulation to Judicial Mediation
indicating a joint request for inclusion in the program and deliver a courtesy copy to
Department 610. A preference for a specific judge may be indicated on the request, and
although not guaranteed due to the judge’s availability, every effort will be made to fulfill the
parties’ choice for a particular judge. Please allow at least 30 days from the filing of the form
to receive the notice of assignment. The court’s Altemative Dispute Resolution
Administrator will facilitate assignment of cases that qualify for the program.

Note: Space and availability is limited. Submission of a stipulation to Judicial Mediation
does not guarantee inclusion in-the program. You will receive written notification from the
court as to the outcome of your application. :

Alternative Dispute Resolution
400 McAllister Streel, Room 103, San Francisco, CA 94102 -
(415) 551-3869 '

0772017 (ja)
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JN[Fek| Expedited Jury Trial Information Sheet

This information sheet is for anyone involved in a civil
tawsuit who will be taking part in an expedited jury
triol—a trial that is shorter and has.a smaller jury than a
traditional jury trial,

You can find the law and rules governing expedited
jury triais in Code of Civil Pracedurc sections
630.01-630.29 and in rules 3.1545-3.1553 of the
California Rules of Court. You can find these at any
county law library or online. The statutes are online
at htip:Hleginfo.legislature.ca.govifaces/codes.xhtml.
The rules are at wwiv.courts.ca.gov/rules.

(1) Whatis an expedited jury trial?

An expedited jury trial is a short trial, generally lasting

only one or two days. It is intended to be quicker and

less expensive than a traditional jury trial. .

As in a traditional jury trial, a jury will hear your case

and will reach & decision about whether one side has to

pay money to the other side, An expedited jury trial

differs from a regular jury trial in several important

ways:

e The trial will be shorter, Each side has 5 hours to
pick a jury, put on all its witnesses, show the jury
its evidence, and argue its case.

e The jury will be smaller. There will be 8 jurors
instead of 12.

o Choosing the jury will be faster. The parties will
exercise fewer challenges.

@ What cases have expedited jury trials?

o Mandatory expedited jury trials. All limited civil
cases-—cases where the demand for damages or the
value of property at issue is $25,000 or jess—come
within the mandatory expedited jury trial
procedurcs. These can be found in the Code of
Civil Procedure, starting at section 630.20. Unless
your case is an unlawful detainer (eviction) action,
or meets onc of the exceptions set oul in the statute,
it will be within the expedited jury trial procedures.
These exceptions are explained more in @belom

o Voluntary expedited jury trials.-If your civil
case is not a limited civil case, or even if it is,
you can choose {o take part in a voluntary
expedited jury trial, if all the parties agree to do

sa. Voluntary expediied jury trials have the same

shorter time frame and smaller jury that the

mandatory ones do, but have one other
important aspect—all parties must waive their
rights te appeal. In order to help keep down the
costs of litigation, there are no appeals following
a voluniary expedited jury trial exceptin very
limited cirgumstances. These are explained more
fully in @

@ Will the case be in front of a judge?

The trial will take place at a courthouse and a judge, or,
if you agree, a tempotary judge (a court commissioner or
an experienced attorney that the court appoints to act as
a judge) will handle the trial. -

Does the jury have to reach a
unanimous decision?

No. Just as in a traditional eivil jury trial, only three-
guarters of the jury must agree in order to reacha
decision in an expedited jury frial. With 8 people on the ’
jury, that means that at least 6 of the jurors mustagree
on the verdict in an expedited jury trial.

@ Is the decision of the jury binding
on the parties?

Generally, yes, but not always. A verdict from ajury in
an expedited jury trial is like a verdict in a traditional
jury trial. The court will enter a judgment based on the
verdict, the jury’s decision that onc ar more defendants
will pay money to the plaintiff or that the plaintiff gets
no money atall.

But partics in an expedited jury trial, like in other kinds
of trials, are allowed to make an agreement before the
frial that guarantees that the defendant will pay a certain
amount to the plaintiff even if the jury decideson a
lower payment or no payment. That agreement may also
put a cap on the highest amount that a defendant has to
pay, even if the jury decides on a higher amount. These
agreements are known as “high/low agreements.” You
should discuss with your attorney whether you should
enter into such an agreement in your case and how it will
affect you,

@ How else is an expedited jury trial
different?

The goal of the expedited jury trial process is lo have

shorter and less expensive trials. '

o The cases that come within the mandatory expedited
jury trial procedures are all limited civil actions, and
they must proceed under the limited discovery and

Jugids) Councd of Callomia, ww.Courts ca.gov
Revisod July 1, 2018, Mandalory Fom

Cada al Civil Proceduro, § 630.01-430,10

Col Rules of Court, rulea D 1545-3,1553
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pretrla! rules that apply to those actions. See Code of
Civii Procedure sections 90-100.

o The voluntary expedited jury trial rules set up some
special procedures to help those cases have shorter
and less expensive trials. For example, the rules
require that several weeks before the trial takes
place, the parties show each other al] exhibits and

. tell each other what witnesses wifl be at the trial. In - -

addition, the judge will meet with the atforneys
before the trial to work out some things in advance.,

The other big difference is that the parties in either kind
of expedited jury trial can make agreements about how
the casc will be tried so that it can be tried quickly and
effectively. These-agreements may include what rules
will apply to the case, how many witnesses can testify
for each side, what kind of evidence may be used, and
what facts the parties already agree to and so do not need
the jury to decide. The parties can agree to medify many
of the rules that apply to trials generally or'fo any
pretrial aspect of the expedited jury trials.

Do | have to have an expedited jury

trial if my case is for $25,000 or less?
Not always. There are some exceptions.

o The mandatory expedited jury trial procedures do
not apply to any uniawful detainer or eviction case.

°  Any party may ask to opt out of the procedures if the
case meets any of the criteria set out in Code of Civil
Procedure section §30.20(b), all of which are also
deseribed in item 2 of the Reguest to Opt Out of
Mandatory Expedited Jury Trial (form EIT-003).
Any request to opt out must be made on that form,
and it must be made within a certain time period, as
set out in Cal. Rules of Court, rule 3.1546{c). Any
opposition must be filed within 15 days after the
request has been served.

The remainder of this information sheet applies only to
voluntary expedited jury trials.

Who can take partin a voluntary
expedited jury trial?

The process can be used in any civil case that the partics
agree may be tried in ane or two days, To have a
voluntary expedited jury trial, both sidcs must want one,
Each side must agree to all the rules described in
and to waive most appeal rights. The agreements
between the parties must be put into writing ina

document called [Proposed] Consent Order for
Voluntary Expedited Jury Trial, which will be submiited
to the court for approval. (Form E}T-020 may be used
for this.) The court must issue the consent order as
proposed by the parties unless the court finds good cause
why the action should not proceed through the expedited
jury trial process.

Why do | give up most of my rights

to an appeal in a voluntary

expedited jury trial?
To keep costs down and provide a faster end to the case,
all partics who agree 1o take part in a voluntary
expedited jury trial must agree to waive the right to
appeal the jury verdict or decisions by the judicial officer
concerning the trial unless one of the foliowing happens:

o Misconduct of the judicial officer that materially
affected substantial rights of a party;

‘o Misconduct of the jury; or

° Corruplibn or fraud or some other bad act
that prevented a fair trial,

In addition, parties may not ask the judge to sei the jury
verdict aside, except on those same grounds. Neither you
nor the other side will be able to ask for a new tdal on

-the grounds that the jury verdict was too high or too low,

that legal mistakes were made before or during the trial,
or that new evidence was [‘ound later.

. Can | change my mind after agreeing
to a votuntary expedited jury trial?

. No, unless the other side or the court agrees. Once you

and the other side have apreed to take part in a voluntary
expediled jury trial, that agreement is binding on both
sides. It can be changed only if both sides wanl lo
change it or stop the process or if a court decides there
are good reasons the voluntary expedited jury trial
should not be used in the case, This is why it is
impartant to talk to your atlomey before agreeing to a
voluntary expedited jury trial. This information sheet
does not cover everything you may need to know about
voluntary expedited jury trials, It only gives you an
overview of the process and how it may affect your
rights. You should discuss all the points covered here
and any questions yout have about expedited jury
trials with an attorney before agrecing to a voluntary
expedited jury trial,

Rovisod July 1. 2000

“Expedited Jury Trial Information Sheet
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ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY (Nam and a0dress) FOR COURT USE ONLY
TELEPHONE NO.: _ ) : .
ATTORNEY FOR (Namo):

[ SUPERIOR COURT OF GALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
400 Mealtister Streel
Sen Franclaco, CA 841024514

“PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER:

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

. . - | \CASE NUMBER:
STIPULATION TO ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION (ADR) co ‘
DEPARTMENT 610

1)  The parties hereby stipulate that this action shall be submitted to the following ADR process

.D )

O

- Other ADR process (describe)
2} The parties agree that the ADR Process shall be completed by (date):

Early Settiement Program of the Bar Assoclation of San Franclsco (BASF) - Pre-screened experienced aucmeys provide
a minimum of 2 hours of seltlement conference time for a BASF administrative fee of $205 per party. Walvers are available to
thoss who qualify. BASF handles notification to -all parlles, confict checks with the panelists, and full case

management. www sfbar org/esp

Mediation Services of BASF « Experienced professional mediators, screened and approved provide one hour of preparauon
and the first two hours of mediation time for.a BASF adminisirative fea of $295 per parly. Mediation time beyond that is charged
at the mediator's hourly rate. Walvers of the administrative fee are available to those who qualify. BASF assists panles with
mediator selection, conflicts checks and full case managemeént. www.sfbar.org/mediafion

Private Mediation - Medlators and ADR provider organizations charge by the hour or by the day, current market rates. ADR
organizations may also charge an administrative fee. Parlles may find experienced mediators and organizations on the Intemet.

‘Judicial Arbitration - Non-binding arbitration is available to cases in which the amount in controversy is $50,000 o7 less and no
equltable relief Is sought. The courl appolnis a pre-screened arbitrator who will issue an award. Thers [s no fee for this

program. www.sfsuperjarcourt, org

Judicial Mediation - The Judicia! Mediation’ program offers mediation in civil [itipation wilh a San Francisco Superior Court
Judge familiar with the area of the law that is the subject of the controversy. There Is no fee for this program.

www slsuperiorcourt.org ]

Judge Requested (see list of Judges currently participating in the program):
Date range requested for Judicial Medtation (from the filing-of stipulaion to Judiclal Mediation):
[ 30-80days [J90-120days [0 Other (please specify) '

" 3) . Plaintiffis) and Defendant(s) further agree as follows:

Name of Parly Stipulating } Name of Party Stipulating

Name of Party or Attorney Executing Stipulation Name of Party or Attorney Execuling Stipulation
Signature of Party or Attorney Signature of Party or Attomey

[ Plaintiff [J Defendant [] Cross-defendant O Piaintitf O] Defendant {] Cross-defendant
Dated: ' Dated:

O Additienal signature(s) attached

ADR-2 03/15 STIPULATION TO ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
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) .- . . i Chi-i10
[TATTGRNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY {Nama, Sialo Bar gumber, and addrass): - FOR COURT USE ONLY
TELEPHONE RO : S —
Em'maesa'mpmmu:
ATTORNEY FOR (Namz) .
SUPERICR COURT OF CALIFORN!IA, COUNTY OF
. STREET ADORESS:
SAAILING ADDRESS:
CITY AND 2IF CODE:
BRANCH NAME:
PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER:
DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT: . ‘
' CASE MANAGENMENT STATEMENT CASE NUMEER:
(Checkone): [} UNLMIEDCASE =[] LIMITED CASE
{Amount demanded {Amount demanded is $25,000
exceeds $25,000) or [ess) .
A CASE MANAGENMENT CONFERENGE is scheduled as follows: . )
- | Date: o © Time: ) Dept. - Div.: _ Room:
Address of cour (if difforont from the eddress above): ‘ ’
1 Nofice of intent to Appear by Telaphnne, by (name):

INSTRUCTIONS: All applicable boxes must be checked, and the specified information must be provided,

1. - Party or partles {enswer one}.

a. [ ] This statement is submiiled by party (neme):
b. £—] THis statement is submitted Jointly by parlles (names):

2. Complaint and cross-complaint {lo be answared by plaintifis and cross-complainants only)
a. The complaint was filed on (date): ’

b. (1 The cross-complaint, If any, was filed on (dafs):

3. Service {lo be answered by plainlifis and cross-camp!afnanls only)
a. [ Allparies named in the complaint and cross-complaint have been served, have appeared, or have been dlsmissed
b. (1 The following pariies named in the complaint or cress-complaint
m 3 have not been served (specify names and explain why nol):

() ' [J have been served but have not appeared and have rot been dismissed (specify names):

@ have had a default entered agalnst them (specify names):

c. El The following addrﬂonal parties may be added (specify names, nature of involvement in case, and data bywhim
they may be servad):

4, Descrlp!lun of case 7
a. Typeofcasein [] - eomplalnt — cross-complaint (Dascribe, including causes of aclion):

. e Pego 1 of6
Form Adupted (or tandetary Uza CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT, oa Raog o G,

CM-110(Rev July 1. 2011) . ’ s courts €3 gov
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CM-110

| PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER: ' E . CABE NUBER:
DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

4. b. Provide a brief statement of the case, ‘including any damages. {If personal injury damages are sought, specily the ijury and
damagss clalmed, includipg medical expenses lo date [indlcste source and amounl), estimaled fulure medical expenses, lost
eamings lo dale, and eslimated fulure lost éam!ngs_. if equilable rellefis sought, dascribe the nalure of the rellaf)

l:]‘ {If more space is needed, chack this box and aftach a page designated as Attachment 4b.)

$. Jury or nonjury trial ] ) )
The party or parties request [_J ajurytdal [ anonjury tdal. (i more than one party, provide the name of each party
requesting a jury trgl): :

6. Trial date
a. ] The trial has been set for (date): X
b. ] No trial date has been set. This case will be ready for trial within 12 months of the date of the filing of the complzint (i
. not, axplein): . :

¢. Dates on which parties or atlomeys will not be available for \rial (specify dales end explain reasons for unavailabiily):

7. Estimated length of trial -
* ' The party or parlies estimate that the trial will take (check ans); ’
-a. [_] days (spscify number): )
b. [ hours (shorl causes) (specify):

8. Trial representation (lo be answered for each party} .
The party or.pariles will be represented attial [—_] by the altomey or party listed In the caplion  [_] by the following:

a. Attomney:

b. Fim:

¢. Address:

d. Telephons number: f. Fax number.

e. E-mall address: g. Pary represented:

[J Additional representation Is described In Attachmerit 8.

9. Preference
[[1° This case is entitled to prefarence (spacily code seciion):

10. Alternative dispute resolution {ADR}

a. ADR Information package. Please nofe that different ADR processes are available in different couris and communilies; read
the ADR information package provided by the court under rule 3.221 for Information about the processes available through the
court and community programs in this case. . . . }

(1) For partles represented by counsel: Counsel T nes ] resnot provided the ADR information package identified
In rule 3.221 to the client and reviewed ADR oplions with the client. .

(2) For selirepresented parties: Party [ nas [ ] has not reviewed the ADR information package Identified in nile 3.221.

b. Referral to judiclal arbitration or civil actlon mediation (if available).

(1) 3 This matter Is subject to mandatory judicis) arbliration under Code of Civil Procedure section 1141.11 or to civil action
gg{ﬂ{aﬂor}. uti:fer ode of Civil Procedure section 1775.3 because the amount in controversy does not exceed the
utory lim - ) . . :

(2) ] Plaintiff elects to refer this case to Judiclal arbltration and hgrees to [imit recovery to the amount specified in Code of
Civil Procedure section 1941.11, :

(3) (] Thiscaseis exemgl from judiclal arbitration under nue'3.811 of the California Rules of Courlor from civil ection
mediation under Code of Clvii Procedure section 1775 et seq. {specily exemplion):

CH-TiDTRov Sar 200 ' CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT Pege 2618
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PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER:
DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

CASE NUMBER: -

10. c. Indicate the ADR process of processes that the party or ﬁadtes are willing to parlicipate in, have agreed to participate in, or
have already particlpated in {check all that epply and provide (he specified information):

The party or parties completing
this form are willing to
participate in the following ADR
processes’ (check all that epply):

If the party or pariles completing this form In the case have agread to -
pariicipate In or have already completed an ADR process or prooesses,

Indlcate tha status of the processe
stiputation):

s (affach @ copy of the perties’ ADR

(1) Mediation

—

Medltation sesslon not yet scheduled

- Mediation sess!on scheduled for (dara).;

Agreed to complete mediatlon by (date):
Me{ilaﬂ_nn completed on (dale).

| (2) Settlement
conference
. 7

Seftlement conference not yet scheduled
Settlement conference scheduled for (dats):

Agreed to complete setilement conference by (dale):

Settlement conference completed on (date):

(3) Neutral evaluation

Neutral evalvation not yet scheduled
Neutral evaluation scheduled for {dats);

Agreed to completa neutral evaluation by (dato):

-Neutral evaluation completed on (date):

{4} Nonbinding judicial
arbltration '

Judlcial arbitration not yet scheduled

_Judicial arbitration scheduled for (date): .
Agreed to complete judiclal arbiiration by (date): .

Judicia! arbitration completed on (date):

(5) Binding private
arbiration

Private arbitration not yat sdhedu!ed

Private arbllration s&heduléd for (data):

Agreed 1o complete private arbitration by (dats):
Private arbitration completed on (dale):

(6) Other (specify):

nooo|oooo|oooolooooloooolonon

ADR session not yet scheduled

ADR session scheduled for (date):

‘Agread to complete ADR session by (dats):
ADR completed on (date): '

i
CM-110 [Rov. Jdy 1, 2017)

CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT

Pago 3 of$
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PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER: CASE NUMBER:

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

11. Insurance

[ insurance carrier, if any, for parly fillng this statement (name):
b. Reservation of rights: 3 Yes T nNe

c. [ Coverage issues will significantly affect resolution of this case (explain):

12, JurIsdil:ﬂnn

Indicate any malters that may effact the oourt‘s jurisdiction or prooessing of this case and descnbe the status.
(] Bankruptey |:| Other (spscify):
Status:

13. Related cases, consolldation, and coordination
a. [.] There are companion, underlying, or related cases.
(1) Name of case:
(2) Name of court:
(3) Case number:
(4) Status:

[ Additional cases are described tnAltachmenl 13a. R ' : T
b. CJAmotionto [ consolidate [ coondinate  will be filed by (name pary): :

14. Bifurcation

[C1 The party or parties intend to file @ motion for an erder bifurcating, severing, or coordinating the following [ssues or causes of
action (spectfy moving pariy, lype of mouon, and reasons);

15. Othal: motions ) . .
1 The party or parties expect to file the following motions before trial (specify moving parly, type of motion, and Issues):

16. Discovmy
a. [ 1The party or partles have completed af] discovery.

b. T The following discovery will be completed by the date specified (describe a!l anlicipaled di: scovery}
Parly Desecription Dale

c. [__] The following discovery issues, Including issues regarding the discovery of efectmnfwlly stored Infun'natlon ane
antlcipated (specify): )

CU-1101Rey Ay 1, 201%) CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT . _ Podals
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PLAINTIFFIPETITIONER: A ' CASE NUMBER:

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

17. Economic litigation

a. [__] This Is a limited civil case (i.e., the amount demanded ls $25,000 or less) and the economic lifigation procedures in Code
of Civil Procedure sections 90-98 will apply to this ¢ase.

b, (] This Is a limited civi) case and a motion to withdraw the case from the economic lligation procedures or for addifonal
discovery will be filed {if checked, explain speaTca!w why ecanromic !ﬂlga!ron procedures relaling lo d!scovary or tria}
- ‘ shoufd not apply to this cass):

18. Other issues

[ The party or partles request that the following additional matlers be consldered or datermined at the case management
- conference (specify):

19. Meet and confer

a. (] The party or partles have met and conferred with all partles on all subjects required by rule 3.724 of the Califomia Rules
of Court ( if nol, explain):

b. After meeting and conferﬂng as required by rule 3.724 of the Califomia Rules of Court, the partles agree on the fo[!ow!ng
(specify): .

20. Total number of pages aftached (¥ any}:

“lam completely famitiar with this case and will be fully prepared to discuss the status of discovery and alternative dispute resolutlon,
as well as other issues ralsed by this statement, and will possess the authority fo enter Into stlpufations on these issues at the time of
the case management conference, including the written authorily of the party where required.

Date:

p

. (TYPE OR PRINT NAME) . mWREOFPMIYORAHORNEﬂ

p

(TYPE OR PRINY KAME) , {SIGNATURE OF PARTY OR ATTORNEY)
] Additional signatures are atached.

CM110 Rav. 2y 1, 2011] ~ CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT - ' PigoBors
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&. CT Corporation

TO: Serviceof Process

CVS Health Companies
1 Cvs Dr Mail Code 1160

Filed 10/12/18 Page 194 of 298

Service of Process
Transmittal
09/12/2018

CT Log Number 534043607

Woonsocket, Rl 02895-6146

RE: Process Served in California

FOR: Garfield Beach CVS, L.L.C. (Domestic State: CA)

ENCLOSED ARE COPIES OF LEGAL PROCESS RECEIVED BY THE STATUTORY AGENT OF THE ABOVE COMPANY AS FOLLOWS:

TITLE OF ACTION:

DOCUMENT(S) SERVED:

COURT/AGENCY:

NATURE OF ACTION:

ON WHOM PROCESS WAS SERVED:

DATE AND HOUR OF SERVICE:
JURISDICTION SERVED :
APPEARANCE OR ANSWER DUE:

ATTORNEY(S) / SENDER(S):

ACTION ITEMS:

SIGNED:
ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE:

RYAN HYAMS, an individual on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated,
PLTF. vs. CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, a Rhode Island Corporation, ET AL., DFTS. //
TO: GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC, ETC.

Name discrepancy noted.

Summons, Complaint, Exhibit, Attachment(s)

San Francisco County - Superior Court - San Francisco, CA
Case # CGC18569060

Employee Litigation - Complaint for Unpaid wages and Other related Compensations
C T Corporation System, Los Angeles, CA

By Process Server on 09/12/2018 at 14:48

California

Within 30 calendar days after service of summons

BETH GUNN

GUNN COBLE LLP

101 S. 1st Street, Suite 407
Burbank, CA 91502
818-900-0695

CT has retained the current log, Retain Date: 09/12/2018, Expected Purge Date:
09/17/2018

Image SOP

Email Notification, Serviceof Process Service_of_Process@cvs.com

C T Corporation System
818 West Seventh Street
Los Angeles, CA 90017
213-337-4615

Page 1 of 1/ JS

Information displayed on this transmittal is for CT
Corporation's record keeping purposes only and is provided to
the recipient for quick reference. This information does not
constitute a legal opinion as to the nature of action, the
amount of damages, the answer date, or any information
contained in the documents themselves. Recipient is
responsible for interpreting said documents and for taking
appropriate action. Signatures on certified mail receipts
confirm receipt of package only, not contents.
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- . SUM-100
SUMMONS o font Anendled demptirrf (S0LO PARA USO OE LA CORTE)

(CITACION JUDICIAL) .
NOTICE TO DEFENDANT: CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, a Rhode Island
(AVISO AL DEMANDADQ): Corporation, CVS PHARMACY, INC,, a Rhode
island Corporation, GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC, a California Corporation, and
CVS RX SERVICES. INC.. a NY Corporation, DOES | through 23, inclusive
YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF: RY AN HY AMS, an individual, on
(LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE): behalf of himself, and all
others similarly situated

NOTICE! You have been sued. The court may decide against you without your being heard unless you respond within 30 days. Read the information
betow.

You have 30 CALENDAR DAYS afler this summons and legal papers are served on you to file a writlen response at this court and have a copy
served on the plaintff, A letter or phone call will not protect you. Your written response musi be in proper tegal form if you want the court to hear your
case. There may be a court form that you can use for your response. You ¢an find these court forms and more information at the California Counts
Online Sell-Help Center (www.courtinfo.ca.gov/seifhelp), your county faw library, or the courthouse neares! you. If you cannot pay the filing fee, ask
the caurt clerk for a fee waiver form. If you do not file your response on time, you may lose the case by default, and your wages, money, and property
may be taken without further warning from the court.

There are other legal requirements. You may want to call an altorney right away. If you do nol know an attomey, you may want te call an atlomney
referral service. If you cannol afford an altorney, you may be eligible for free legal services from a nonprofit legal services program. You can locate -
these nonprofit groups at the California Legal Services Web site (wwvJewhelpcafifornia.org), the California Courts Online Self-Help Center
{vwawv.courtinfo.ca.gov/seifhelp), or by contacling your {ocal court or-county bar association. NOTE: The court has a statutory lien for walved fees and
costs on any seftlemnent or arbitration award of $10,000 or more in a civil case. The court's lien must be paid before the court wilt dismiss the case.
JAVISO! Lo han demandado. Sino responde deniro de 30 dlas, la corte puede decidir en su contra sin escuchar su versidn. Lea ia informacidn &
continuacién.

Tiene 30 DIAS DE CALENDARIO despuds da qua le entreguen esta citacidn y papefes legales para presentar una respuesta por escrito en este
corte y hacer que sSe entregue una copia al demandante. Una cana o una llamada telefdnica no lo protegen. Su respuesta por escrite tlene que estar
on formato legal correcto si desea que processn su caso en fa corte. £5 posible que haya un formulanio qua usfed pueda usar para su respuesta.
Puede encontrar estos formuiarios de la corte y mds informacién en ef Centro de Ayuda de fas Cortes de Caiifornia fervew sucorte.ca.gov), en fe
hibtioteca de leyes de su condado o en ia corte que le queds mas cerca, Sf no pusde pagar ia cuola de presentaci6n, pida al secretario de fa corte
qgue fe dé un formulario de exencidn de pago de cuotas. Si no presenta su respuesta a lempo, puede perder of caso porIncumplimiento y la corte le
podrd quitar su sueldo, dinero y bienes sin mgs advertencia.

Hay olros requisitos legales. Es recomendable que flame & un sbogado inmediatamente. Sino conoce a un abogado, puede llamar & un servicio de
remisidn @ abogados. Si no puede pagar a un abogado, es posible que cumpla con los requisifos para obfener servicios legales gratuitas de un
programa de servicios legales sin fines de lucro. Pueds encentrar estos grupos sin fines de lucro en ef sitio web de California Lagal Services,
fwww.lawhelpealifornia .org). en ef Centro de Ayuds de las Cortes de Califomia, {vaww.sucorte.ca.gov) o poniéndoss en contacto con la corle o ef
colegio de abogados locales. AVISO: Por ley, la corfe tiene derecho a reclamarlas cuolas y los costos exentos por impaner un gravamen sobre
cualquiar recuperacién de $10,000 6 més de valor recibids medisnte un acuerdo o una concesidn de arbitrafe en un caso de derecho avil. Tiene que
pagar ef gravamen de fa corte antes de que fa corte pueda desechar 6! case,

The name and address of the court is: CASE NUMBER. CGC-] 8-569060
(E! nombre y direccidn de fa corte es); {Fmero dei Cazs
Superior Court of California, County of San Francisco :

400 McA llister Street

San Francisco, California 94102
The name, address, and telephone number of plaintiff's attorney, or plaintiff without an attorney, is:Catherine J. Coble
(El nombre, la direccién y el ntimero de ieféfono del abogado del demandante, o del demandanle que no liene abogado, es);

GUNN COBLE LLP

101 S. 1st S:reet Suite 407, BbRBA\'K CA 91502 (8!8)900-0695

DATE: P Nou vesge - Clerk, by i i . Deputy
(Fecha) ] 0 ?U]b LE, LTV CLIBK (Secretario) BO‘!N?‘ &N' (Adjunto}

(For proof of service of this summons, use Proof of Service of Summons {form POS5-010}.)
{Para prueba de enlrega de esta citatién use el formulario Praof of Semvice of Summons, {POS-010)).

NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served

1s&ALl 1, as an individual defendant.
2. e the person sued under the fictitious ame of specify).
9 h ws I/l/(},/t
1, on behalf of (specify).
under: % CCP 416.10(corporat:on) :] CCP 416.80 (minor)
CCP 416.20 (defunct corporation) [ ] CCP 416.70 (conservatee)
[ CCP 416.40 (association or partnership) __] CCP 416.90 (authorized person)
] otner (specity):
4. [[] by personal defivery on (date):
Paae 1 of 1
e SUMNONS - ot 1

SUMID0 [Rev. July 1, 2000 Wanilw Boc & Form Butider
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BETH GUNN, CA Bar No. 218889
beth@gunncoble.com _ _—
CATHERINE J. COBLE, CA Bar No. 223461
cathy@gunncoble.com’
GUNN COBLE LLP -
101 S. 1st Street, Suite 407
Burbank, CA 91502.
Telephone:  818.900.0695
Facsimile:  818.900.0723

Attorneys for Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS,

Filed 10/12/18 Page 196 of 298

ELECTRONICALLY

FILED

Swporior Court of Califormia,
County of San Franclsco

09/07/2018
Clerk of the Court
BY:BOWMAN LIU

Deputy Clark

on behalf of himself, and all others similarly situated

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

" FOR THE COUNTY

RYAN HYAMS, an individual, on behalf of
himself; and all others similarly situated,

Plaintiff,
V5.

CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, a Rhode
Island Corporation, CVS PHARMACY, INC., a
Rhode Island Corporation, GARFIELD BEACH
CVS, LLC, a California Corporation, and CVS
RX SERVICES, INC.. a New York Corporation,
DOES 1 through 285, inclusive,

Defendants. -

OF SAN FRANCISCO

Case No. CGC-18—569060

CLASS ACTION FIRST
COMPLAINT :

AMENDED

1. Failure To Provide Required Meal Periods;
2. Failure To Authorize And Permit Required
Rest Breaks; , '
Failure. To Pay Overtime;
Failure To Pay Minimum Wages; ‘
5. Failure To Pay Timely Wages Due At
Termination/Waiting Time Penalties;
Failure To Timely Pay All Wages;
Failure To Reimburse For Employment
Related Expenses; -
Failure To Maintain Required Records;
9. Failure To Furnish Accurate ltemized
Wage Statements;
Failure To Provide Written Notice Of Paid
Sick Leave . : '
Failure To Provide One Day’s Rest In
Seven
Failure to Comply With California Labor
Code Sections 850 and 851
13. Unfair And Unlawful Business Practices;
14. Penalties Under The California Labor
- Code Private Attorneys General Act; As
Representative Action

No T maw

bad

10.
11.

12.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL.

1
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Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS {(“PLAINTIFF”), an individual, on behalf of himself and all other
persons similarly sitﬁatcd, hereby alleges against Defendants CVS HEALTH CORPORATION,
CVS PHARMACY, INC., GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC, AND CVS RX SERVICES, INC.
(“DEFENDANTS”) as follows: o '

INTRODUCTION

i. .DEFENDANTS, the largest pharmacy chain in the country, a “Fortune 10”
company, publicly avows its purpose as “helping people on the path to better health.” See CvVS
Health’s Corborate Social Responsibility. Report, https://cvshealth.com/sites/default}fxies/2017-csr-
full-report.pdf. This commitment is hollow in light of DEFENDANTS” continuous and intentional
violation of California’s wage and hour laws, which were designed specifically to protect the
health and well-being of the state’s citizens. Deviating.from the law-abiding practices of its
competitors, DEFENDANTS unfairly compete in the markeiplace by flouting the California Labor
Code (“Labor Code”) in _multiplé ways. The most obvious of DEFENDANTS?® illegal praf;tices is
their blatant schedgling‘ of pharmacy erﬁployees to regularly work shifts far in‘excess of the limits
imposed by California law “enacted as a measure. for the protection of the public health.” See
Labor Code § 855. This illegal conduct injures not only the pharmacy employees but
DEFENDANTS’ customers who depend on them “on the path to better health.”

J'U_RISDICTION- AND VENUE

. 2. . This class action 1s brought puréuant to Califomiva Code of Civil Procedure section
382. The inqnetafy damages, penalties, and restitution sought by PLAINTIFF exceed the minimal
juriédiction_limits.of the Superior Court and will be established acc_ording 1o proof at trial.

3. The Superior Court of the State of California has jurisdiction in this matter because
PLAINTIFF isa resideht of the State of California. Moreover, upon information and bélief, two-
thirds or more of the clﬁss members and at least one of DEFENDANTS is a citizen of California,
the alleged wage and hour violations occurred in California, significant relief is being sought
against DEFENDANTS whose violations of California wage and hour laws form a significant basis
for PLAINT IFF’s c,laimé, and no other class action has been filed within the past three (3) yez;:s on

behalf of the same proposed class against DEFENDANTS asserting the same or similar factual
: ; . ) ‘
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allegations. Further, no federal q_uesfidr? is at issue because the claims are based solely pﬁ- _
Califomia law and at least DEFENDANT GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC is a resident of, and/or
regularly conducts businéss,in_ the State of Califorhia, as well as its principal place of _bu_siness is
located within California. |

4. Venue is proper in this judicial district and the County of San Francisco, California
because PLAINTIFF, énd o'thér persoﬁs similarly situated, performed work for DEFENDANTS in
the County o‘f San Francisco, DEFENDANTS maintain offices and facilities and transact business
in the County of San Franciisco_, and DEFEND‘AN.TS’ illegal practices, which are the subject of this
action, were applied, at _l'ea.'ét-in part, to PLAINTlFF, and other persons similarly situated, in the
County o-fSan Francisco.. Thus, a'éubstantial portion of the u-a,nsac_:t.ions and occurrences related to
this action occurred in this count§. Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 395.

| " PLAINTIFF

5. PLAINTIFF is:a former noneexémﬁt émployee who worked as a r.;harmacist for
DEFENDANTS for more than two years. At the end of his' employment with DEFENDANTS,
PLAINTIFF was eamning $76/hour. .PLAJNTIFF is a resident of San Francisco County, Califormua.

6. As a pharmacist, PLAINTIFE’S primary duties were to-safely and accurately
dispense approximately 250-300 prescriptions per day to DEFENDANTS’ customers. This
included rcvieu;ing prescriptions provi_ded to the bharmacy (either in writing or over the phone);

éhecking for drug interactions and precautions, contacting physicians where appropriate, advising’

‘patients regarding the use of their prescriptions pursuant to California law, eﬁterix_lg information in

DEFENDANTS’ systems, and dispensing and packaging medications.to DEFENDANTS’
customers. When pharmacy technicians were unavailable, PLAINTIFF would also work at the
pharmacy cash register to ring up sales of prescriptions and other items at the pharmacy. A
pharmacist was required to be on the premises duriné all hours of operaﬁon, to comply with
operational policies and procedures. |

7. During his employment, PLAINTIFF would regularly work more than 9 hours per
day on average, and more than 108 hours in two consecutive week periods. DEFENDANTS

utilized a centralized scheduling procedure where he and other pharmacists were routinely
' 3
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scheduled for 12-hour shifts. On occasion, PLAINTIFF would-work more than 12 hours per day;
for which DEFENDANTS would then pay him doﬁble-time. There also were occasions whére he
worked more than 12 days‘irl a cor:rsecuti,Ve two week period. DEFENDANTS often failed to
prmide,-PLAINT'IFF with a rest day as, required under the Labor Code.

| 8. Eac::h day, before clocking in on DEFENDANTS’ computer and after clocking out at
the end of the day, PLAINTH':F would perform work for his position, as required by.
DEFENDANTS. o | ~

9. As part of his job duties.and re'spo,nsibilities, PLAINTIFF would receive text

rhéssages on his personal cell phone from his supervisor to discuss work-telated matters. .

10. DEFENDANTS relied on PLAINTIFF, a loyal empldy_ee, to fill in at other
pharmacies to ensure their b,u,sin_esé neéds were met, which required PLAINTIFF to dri-ve' great
distances, stay at a hotel, and staff a pharmacy by himself for days at a time. At all locations,
PLAINTIFF was entitledlto, but did not receive uninterrupted meal and rest breaks. '

- 11. PLAINTIFF was not paid for the time he spent reviewing and responding to text
messages from his supervisor relating to. work for DEF ENDANTS while off-the-clock. .
Additionally, PLAINTIFF never received any reimbursement from DEFENDANTS for the
pérsonal use of his cell phone to conduct business for DEFENDANTS.

12, During the course of PLAINTIFF’S employment, he accrued vacation time pursuant
to DEFENDANTS? vacation policy. When PLAINTIFF’S employment with DEFENDANTS
ended, he was orLly paid a portiori .of his accrued, but unused vacation. bEF ENDANTS failed to
prowde him with his accrued vacation time in violation of the Labor Code. -

13. For a portion of his employment in violation of Labor Code Section 246(1),
DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAINTIEF, or other aggrieved employees, wlth written notice
setting forth the amount of paid sick leave available, or paid time off the Company provides in lieu
of sick leave. PLAINTIFF did not recéive all of the sick time to which he was entitled.

14, Throughout his employment with DEFENDANTS, PLAINTIFF was routinely
unable to take his uninterrupted meal and rest breaks due to DEFENDANTS’ under-staffing and

fill-time metrics, and his inability to leave the work premises. During the breaks he was able to
4 .
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without regard to the actual business needs, he waived all of his second meal periods. PLAINTIFF

'was not paid any penalties for-these interrupted meal andlor rest breaks.

of individuals (“CLASS MEMBERS” or “THE CLASS”) pursuant to: California Code of Civil
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take, after clocking out and before clocking back in, PLAINTIEF was routinely interrupted with |

pharmacy questions. PLAINTIFF was-also asked 1o sign a waiver, wherein, on a standing basis

THE CLASS

15. PLAI'NTIFF brmgs this action on behalf of himself and all 51mllarly situated class

Procedure section 382. THE CLASS is defined as follows: All current and former employees of
DEFENDANTS in the State of California at aﬁy time within the period beginning four (4) years
priorl to the filing of this action and ending at the time this action settles or-proceeds to final |
judgment (the “CLASS, PERIOD). ' '

16.  PLAINTIFF also seeks to represent the following subclasses (c_:ollecti\;ely,.
“SUBCLASSES"), defined as follows: '

- “NON-EXEMPT EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS " which is defined as all current
and foriner non-exempt employees.of DEFENDANTS in the State of California
at any time within the CLASS PERIOD.

b. “PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current and

- former emi)loyees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at s;ny time
within the CLASS PERIbD who were employed to sell at retail drugs.and
meédicines or. to compound physicians' prescriptions. .

¢. “FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all former

‘ employees of DEF.ENDANTS in the State of California at any time wilthi'n the
CLASS PERIOD.

d. “BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS," which is defined as all current and
former employees. of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time
within the CLASS PERIOD who used personal cell phones for work-related
purposes without adequate reimbursement. '

e. “VACATION PAY SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all ¢urrent and former
t N S b A
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employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time within the
_CLASS PERIUD. who were not provided all vacation time, or waées in lieu
thereof, in comp_liance wiﬂl Califormia law.

17. PLAINTIFF reserves the right to redefine the definitions of THE CLASS or .
SUBCLASSES as appropriate based on fuﬂer investigation, discbvery? and specific theories of
liability. o . -

- DEFENDANTS

18. DEF-ENDANTS operate the largest retail pharmacy chain in the Unitéd States, with
hundreds of physical locations in California, including standalone stores and locations within
Target branded stores. As part of their operations, DEFENDANTS employ pharmacists to, among
other things, dispense medications, counsel patients on the use of prescription and over-the_-countef

medications, and advise physicians about medication therapy. In many locations DEFENDANTS

1also employ pharmacy technicians to assist with the dispensation of medication to its customers,

though there are CVS$ locations. where only a pharmacist is employed to handle all pharmacy
operations. .

19, At all times relevant hereto, DEFENDANTS were, and are, corporations authorized
to do-business in the State of California and do in fact conduct business in the State of Célifomia..
Speciﬁcall.y, upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS maintain facilities and conduct business
in the County of San Francisco, State of California. S_peciﬁ‘cally, ,

a. DEFENDANT CVS HEALTH CORPORATION is a corporation organized
under the laws of the State of Rhode [sland that is engaged in the business of ‘
operating retail storés that sell pharmaceuticals and general merchandise and
provide pharmacy services throughout the State of California.

b. DEFENDANT CVS PHARMACY, INC. is a corporation organized under the
laws of the State of Rhode Island that is engaged in the business of operating

" retail stores that sell pharmaceuticals and general merchandise and provide
pharmacy ser;lices throughout the'State of California.

¢. DEFENDANT GARF IELD BEACH CVS, LLC. (collectively with
6

.CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT




N

h

~d

> W

Case 4:18-cv-06278-_HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 202 of 298

' DEFENDANTS CVSRX SERVICES, INC,, and. CVS PHARMACY, INC ) isa
limited liability company organized under the laws of the State of California that
is engoged in business as a pharruacy and medical supplier to CVS retail stores
located throughout the State of California.

d. DEF ENDANT CVS RX SERVICES, INC. 1sa corporatlon organized under the
laws of the State of New York that is engaged in the business of prowdmg
pharmacy services throughout the State-of California. '

20.  The true names and capacities of DOES 1 through 25, inclusive (‘DOES”) are
unknown to PLAINTIEF at this time, and PLAINTIFF therefore sues such DOE Defendants under
fictitious names. PLAINTIFF is informed ‘and believes, and thereon allegés, that each Defendant |
designated as a DOE is in some manner highly responsible for the occurrences al‘leg_ed'hc'rein,' and
that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS’ injuries and damages, as alleged herein, were
proxirnaiely caused by the conduct of such DOE Defendants. PLAINTIFF will seék, leave of the

‘court to amend this complaint to allege the true names and capacities of such DOE Defendants when

ascertained. ,

21. PLAINT'IFF 1s informed and believes,‘ and based thereon alleges, that each '
DEFENDANT octed in ;ll respects pertinent to this action as the agent of the other DEFENDANTS,
carried out a joint scheme, business plan or policy in all respects pertinent hereto, and the acts of
cach DEFENDANT are legally attributable (o the other DEFENDANTS. ‘

22. PLAINTIFF is infoﬁned and believes, and thereon alleges, that CVS HEALTH
CORPORATION, CVS PHARMACY, INC, GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC, and CVS RX
SERVICES, INC each employed PLAINTIFF, in that they exercised control over PLAINTIFF’s
wages, hours or workmg conditions, suffered and perm1tted PLAINTIFF to work and/or engaged
PLAINTIFF to work. See Martinez v. Combs (2010) 49 Cal.4th 35, 64. Any of the three is sufficient
to create an,employmont relationship. Ochoa v. McDonald's Corp., 133 F. Supp. 3d 1228, 1233
(N.D. Cal. 2015). '

23.  To the extent one or more of DEFENDANTS did not directly .hire', fire, or supervise

PLAINTIFF, PLAINTIFF further alleges that, upon information and belief, one or more
7
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DEFENDANTS control the business entcrpriées of one of more of the other DEFENDANTS, thereby
creating an employment relationship with PLAINTIFF. Se'e' Castaneda v. Ensign Group; Inc. (2014)
229 Cal-.Ap‘j)Ath 1015, 1017-1018; Guerrero v. Superior Court (2013) 213 Cal.AiapAth 912, 950.

24, Asadirect and proximate result of the unlawful actions.of DEFENDANTS, |
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have s,uﬂ_“e'red, and continue to suffer, from loss of earnings
in amounts as yet unascertained, but subject .to proof at trial, and within the jurisdiction of this
Court. . | o )

25. All DEFENDANT_S compelled, coerced, aided, and/or abetted thé illegal conduct
alleged in this Complaint, which conduct is prohibited under. the Labor Code. All DEFENDANTS
were responsible for the events and damages alleged herein, including on the following bases: (a).

DEFENDANTS committed the acts alleged; (b) at all relevant times, one or more of the

'DEFENDANTS was the agent or employee, and/or acted under the control or supervision of, one or |

| more of the remaining DEFENDANTS and, in committing the acts alleged, acted within the course

and scope of such agency and employment and/or is or are otherwise liable for PLAINTIFF’s

damages; (c) at all relevant times, there existed a unity of ownership and interest between or among l

[those. DEFENDANTS such that any individuality and separateness between or among these

DEFENDANTS has ceased, and DEF EN.DANTS are the alter egos of one another. DEFENDANTS
exercised domination and Acontrol over one anoth;r to such an extent that any individuality or '
s,epara'teness of DEFENDANTS does not, and at all .times‘ herein mentioned did ﬁot, exist. Adherence
to the fiction of the sebarate' existence of DEFENDANTS would permit abuse of the corporate
privilege and would sanction fraud and promote injustice. All actions of all DEFENDANTS wefe
taken by employees, supervisors, exec'utivés, officers, and directors during employment with -all
DEFENDANTS, were .tak.en on bel;?.lf of all DEFENDANTS, and were engaged in, authorized,
catified, and approved of by all other DEFENDANTS. | '

26.  Finally, at all. relevant times mentioned herein, all DEFENDANT S. acted as agents of
all other DEFENDANTS in committing the acts alleged herein.
m

i
_ 7 8
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' CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

27. | DEFENDANTS employed, and continue to employ, cmployees.throug:h’out
California during the last four (4) yeax.'_s. | '

78. . Based on information and belief, PLAINTIEF believes that other members of THE’
CLASS and SUBCL_A_SSES “}e:re subject to the same policies, practices and g:onduéi_ that resulted
in the following: R | .'

-a. Routinely work'iné,through meal énd/or rest breaks without proper
COmpénéation for the éame, including the payment of penalties for interrupted
meal andfbr rest breaks; |

" b. Routmely working off-the-clock when answermg work-related text messages
and/or when forced by. management to continue to work while clocked out,
without receiving wag_es, premium pay, or minimum wages for the off-the-clock
time worked; |

¢. No compensafion fo}r unpaid wages and/or premium pay at the time of
termmatlon '

d: .Use of personal cell phones wnhout adequate reirnbursement

e. Receipt of inaccurate wage statements;

f. Lack of réceipt of adequate written notice of paigi sick leave;

. g Rbutine]y working without receiving one day’s rest in sevén; and ‘

h. Routinely work.in_é in excess of the preséfibed time limitations se'; forth in Labor
Code sections 850 and 851. | |

29. DEFENDANTSacted pﬁr_suant to common, company-wide policies and practices
regarding the provision of meal and/or rest breaks; the practice of requiring employees 16 work off-
the-clock; scheduling employees for w.ork;_the Company’s payroll and wage payments to |
employees, including the provision of wage statements, reimbursements of necessary biusilness
expenses; time and pay recordkeeping; and notice to employees of paid sick leave.

30. In particular, DEFENDANTS’ reliance on performance and/or prescription fill-time .

metrics, centralized scheduling systems managena] instructions, and operational policies and
9 -
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procedures applied on a class-wide basis.

31.  Upon mformanon and behef DEFENDANTS maintain a single, centratized Human -
Resoiirces department, which is responmblc for the hiring of new employees, collécting and
processing all new hire paperwork, and communicating and implementing DEFENDANTS’
company-wide policies and‘précticeé, including timc_keepi_ng policies, meal and rest break policies,
sick time policies, vacation time 'poli'cies, and payroll policies and practices applicable to their
employees in California. |

32.  Oninformation and belief, PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS received the same
standardiied documents and/or written policies. Upon information and beiief, DEFENDANTS
created uniform policies and: p_roced‘ures at the corpoiatg level énd_implemented them
companywide, regardless of the emplo-yees’ location. .

- 33. PLAINTIFF is i_nformgd and believes, and thereoﬁ alleges, that DEFENDANTS |
knew or should have knqu that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to meal

| periods in accordance with the Labor Code or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at the

regu]ér rate when PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not provided with timely,
uninterrupted, thirty (30) minute meal periods and thai PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were
not provided with all meal pertods or payme_nt of one (1) additioqal_ hour of pay at their regular rate
when PLAINTIFF e;.nd CLASS MEMBERS did not receive a tir'nely, uninterrupted thirty (30)
minute meal period. -

34.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, thﬁt DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitléd to
uninterrupted rest penods in accordance with the Labor Code and Industrial Wage Order- (“IWC”)
Wage Order 7-2001 or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at their regular rate when
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not authorized and permitted to take compliant rest -
periods and that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not authoriz;ed and permitted to take
compliant rest period.-s or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at their regular rate when
PLAINTIF F and CLASS MEMBERS were not provided a compliant rest period.

35.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes and thereon alleges that DEFENDANTS
10
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knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMEBERS were entitled to receive
and did not receive overtime compensatibn for work that DEFENDANTS Rnew‘ or should have:
known was performed. ' _

36, PLAINTIEF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew:or should have known that‘_PLAII\ITIFF and CLASS 'MEMBERS were entitled to receive at
least minimum wages for compensation and &ag in violation of the Labor Code, they were not |
receiving at least minimum wages. fo}-work. that'DEFENDAN‘TS knew or shoulci have known was
performed. | .

37. | PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFPENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to timely
payment of wages upon termination of employment. In violation of thé Labor Code, |
DEFENDANTS.did _ﬁot pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS all wages due, including, but
not limited to, overtime wages, | minimum wages, and meal and rest period premium wages, within
statutonly required time perlods

38. - PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to timely

| payment of wages during their employmenf. In violation of the Labor Code, DEFENDANTS did

not pay PLAINTIFF and C_LASS MEMBERS all wages, including, but not limited to, overtime
wages, minimum ~wﬁges, and meal and rest period premium wages, within statutorily required time
periods. | |
39. - PLAINTIFF is‘i_nformec"i and Believes, and thereon alleges, that at all times herein

mentioned, DEFENDANTS knew or should have known that DEFENDANTS had a duty to
compensate PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS for gll hours worked, and that DEFENDANTS
had the financial ability to pay such compensation but willfully, knowingly, and iﬁtentio_nally failed
to do so in violationlof the Labor Code. . _

| 4Q. | PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to receive full

reimbursement for all busmess-related expenses and costs they incurred during the course and
: 11
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scope of their employment, and that they did not receive full reimbursement of applicable business- |
related expenses and costs in violation of the Labor Code.

41.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that they had a duty to maintain accurate and complete payroll records
in accordance with the Labor‘Code and IWC. Wage Order.7-2001, but willfully, knowingly, and
intentionally failed to do.so. ‘ .

42. Uﬁon ihfermatioh and belief, 'I_DEFENDANTS'mai_ntain a centralized Payroll
department at their company headauaﬂers, which processes payroll for all emp]oyees working for
DEFENDANTS at their various locations in California, mcludmg PLAINTIFF and CLASS"
MEMBERS Based upon mformanon and belief, DEFENDANTS issue the same formatted: wage
statements to all employees in California, 1rrespectwe of their work jocation. PLAINTIFF is
informed and belleves and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS knew or should have known that
PLA_INTIF Fand CLASS MEMBERS were _entltled 10 receive complete and accurate wage
statements in accordance with California law. In violation of the Labor Code, DEFENDANTS did
not provide PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS \a{'ith complete and accurate wage statements.

43, PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to written

notice of paid sick leave or paid time off available. In violation of the Labor Code,

'DEFENDANTS did not provide to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS written notice of paid

sick leave or paid time off avmlable _

44. PLAINTIF F is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS

lknew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to one day’s

rest in seven, and that they did not receive one day’s rest in seven in violation of the Labor Code.
45, PLAINTIE F is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MENEBERS were not to perform any
work in aniy store, dispensary, pharmac.y,, laboratory,.o‘r office for more than an average of nine
hours per day, or for more than 108 hours in any two consecutive weeks or for more than 12 days

in any two consecutive weeks, and that DEFENDANTS should not have required PLAINTIFF and
12 ,
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CLASS MEMBERS to do so, but that PLAINTIFF anci CLASS MEMBERS diq work an average
of more than nine hours per day and/or more thari 108 hours in any two c"on;.ecﬁtive weeks of miore
than 12 days in any two consecutive weeks in violation of the Labor Code at DEFENDANTS’
di_rection. ‘ o _ | |
SATISFACTION OF CLASS ACTION CRITERIA

'46. PLAINTIFF brmgs thls action on his own behalf as well as on behalf'of each and
all other persons 51m11arly 51tuated and seeks class certnﬁcatlon of THE CLASS and
SUBCLASSES under Cahforma Code of Civil Procedure section 382. Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 382.

47. All claims alleged,herem arise under California lg,w for which PLAINTIFF seeks
relief authorized by California law.

48. - Thereisa Wel]-dgﬂned community of interest in liti_galidn and the class members

| are readily ascertainable:

A . umerosity: The members of THE CLASS and SUBCLASSES are so
nurr._le_rous that joinder of all members. would be unfeasible and impractical. The membership of the
entire class is unknown to PLAINTIFF at this time; however THE CLASS is estimated to be
greéter than one thousand (1000) individuals and the identity of guch membership is readily
ascertainable b).( inspection of DEFENDANTS’ employment records. o |

B.  Typicality: PLAINTIFF is qualified to, and will, fairly and adequately |
protect the interests of each member of THE CLASS with whom he has a well-defi ned community
of interest, and PLAINTIFF s claims (or defenses, if any) are ryplcal of all class members as
demonstrated hegem. - 7

C. Adequacy: PLAINTIFF is qualified to, and will, fairly and adequately
protect the interest of e'ach class member with ﬁrhom he has ,a.well-deﬁned community of interest
and typicality of claims, as demonstrated herein. PLAINTIFF acknowiedges that he has an
obligation to make known to the Court any relationship, conflicts, or differences, with any class;,
member. PI;AINTIFF’S attorneys, the propos-e_d class counsel, are versed in the rules governing

class action discover-y, certification, and settlement. PLA]NTIFF has incurred, and throughout the

.duration of tlns action, will continue to incur costs and attorneys’ fees that have been, are, and will

13
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be necessarily expanded for the prosecution of this action for the substantial benefit of each class
member. ' ‘

D. up_erlong The nature of this actron makes the use- of class action
adjudlcatlon superior to other methods. A class action will achjeve economies of time, effort, and
expense as compared with separate lawsuits, and will avoid inconsistent outcomes because. the

E. Public Pohcy Considerations: Ca]1forma has a stated pubhc policy i in favor
of class actions in this context for‘ the vindication of employee rights and enforcement of the Labor.
Code. Employers in the State of California violate emp'loyment and lebor laws. every day Current

employees are often afraid to assert their rights out of fear-of direct or indirect retaliation. Former

‘employees are fearful of bringing actions because they believe thcir former employers mlght

damage the:r future endeavors through negative references and/or other means. Class actions
provide the class memb‘ers:’who are not 'named in the complaint with a type of anonymlty that
allows for the vindication of their rights while simultaneously protecting their privacy.
| FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure To _Proyide Required Uninterrupted Meal Periods
~ (Cal. Lab. Code sections 226.7, 5}2(3), and 1198; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 1 1050)
7 (Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25) -
49, PLA[NTIFF incorporates by reference anc{ realleges as if folly stated herein each

and every allegation set forth above

50.  Atall relevant tlmes Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and 1198 have provided

| that no.employer shall require an employee to work during any meal period max_lclated by an

appli‘cable_ order of the IWC. TWC Wage Order 7.2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8
§11050. | |
- 51- At all relevant times herein, Labor Code section 512 has provided that “[a]n
employer may not employ an employee for a work period of more than five-hours per day without
prov1d1ng the employee with a meal penod of not less than 30 minutes,” except that if the total

work period per day of the employee is not more than six {6) hours, the meal perlod may be waived
14

CLASS AND R.EPRESENTAT[VE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT




®

L

S O e O W &

Case 4:18-cv-06278-HS'G'_ Docu:rﬁent i-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 210 of 298

by mutual consent of both the employer and employee. Cal. Lab. COde § 5-12(a). Duririg this meal

period of not Jess than thirty (30) minutes, the employee is to be completely free of the employer’s ‘

control and must not perform any work for the employer. If the employee does perform work for

the emp!oyer duriﬁg this ﬂ)irty (30) miﬁu_te mea] period, the employee has not been provided with a
duty-freé meal period, in accordance with California léw, and is to be compensated for any work
performed during this (30) minute meal périod in addition to (-me (1) additionat hour of
compensation at each empiéiyee’s regular rate of pay for each workday that a meal period was not
provided. See also IWC Wage Order 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 1]050

52,  Atall relevant times herem pursuant to Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), 1198
and the apphcable IWC Wage Order an employer may not employ an employee for a work period
of more than ten (10) hours per day without providing the employee with another meal period of
not less than thi;'ty (30) minutes, or to pay an employee one (1) additional hour of pay at the.
employee’s regular rate, except that if the total hours worked is no more than twelve (12) hours, the
second meal period i‘nay' be waived by mutual consent of the employer and the employee only if
the first meal period was not waived. IWC Wage Order 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs.
tit. 8 § 11050. |

53, At all relevant times hgrein, DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAINTIFF and

[CLASS MEMBERS with a full, thirty. (30) minute uninterrupted meal period free from job duties,

as required by Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at Cal.
Code Regs. tit. 8.§ 1}050 .

54, Atall re]evant times herein, DEFENDANTS further v1olated Labor Code section
226.7 and IWC Order No. 7-2001 by failing to compensate PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS
who were not provided with an uninterrupted meal period or one ‘(1) additional hour of
compensation at each employeé’s regular rate of pay for each workday that a meal period was not
provided. Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(c), IWC Order No. 7- 2001(1 1), codxﬁed at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8
§ 11050.

55. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS had, and continue to have, a company-

wide policy of failing to schedule and provide uninterrupted meal breaks for PLAINTIFF and

13
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CL.ASS MEMBERS. DEFENDANTS have understaffed, and continue to understaff, its locations
without providing sufficient meal break coverage, such that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS
were prevented from taking all timeiy and uninterrupted thirty (30) minutes meal periods; as such,
PLAINTIFF and CLASS. MEMBERS were routinely forced to work off-the-clock during their
meal perlods in order to comply wnth DEF ENDANTS’ demands and instructions to meet pharmacy
customers’ expectatlons Moreover DEFENDANTS did not provide PLAINTIFF and CLASS.
MEMBERS with a second umntermpted thirty (30) minute meal period on days they worked over
ten (10) hours, as required by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); IWC Order No. 7-
2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050, |

56.  Atall relevant times herein, as a result of DEFENDANTS’ scheduling p.olicies and’

_ .understdfﬁng, in order to meet DEFENDANTS’ expectations and customer derﬁa.dds, PLAINTIFF

and CLASS M_EMBERS were forced to miss and/or take late or interrupted meal breaks, in
violation of the Labor Code. Cal-.rLab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); and IWC Order No. 7-2001(11),
codified at Cal. éode Regs. tit. 8 § 11050,

57. . Atall times herein, DEFENDANTS knew, or should have known, that as a result of
DEF ENIjAN;i"S" scheduli'ng policies and practices of understafﬁng, PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS . were forced to miss and/or take lz_1te or interrupted meal breaks, and that
DEFENDANTS did not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS meal period premium wages
when meal periods were lete and/or interrupted. ' '

58. | At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to properly calculate the regﬁlar rate of
pay. for purposes of.payiﬂg_ meal period premiuﬁs to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by
including all compensation, such as shift differential pay and other compensation, as required by
the Labor Code. See Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); and T'WC Order No. 7-2001 (11), codified at
Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. |

59. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and IWC
Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050, '

60. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according

to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, expenses, and costs of suit.
16 .
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| ' SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure To Authorlze And Permit Requnred Rest Breaks

(Cal Lab. Code sections 226.7;1198; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. )
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

61.  PLAINTIFF incor}i)orates by reference and rc::allege_s, as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. | | .

62.  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code sect_iéns 226.7'and 1198 and IWC Wage
Order 7-2001 were appli‘éable to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS employed by
DEFENDANTS. ' ' |

63. Atall felévant times herein, IWC Wage .Order 7-2001 has stated that “[e]very
employer shall authorize and permit all employees to take rest periods ... at the rate of'ien (10}

minutes net rest time per four (4) hours or major fraction thereof” unless the tota] daily work éimc

‘ ‘1s less than three and one-half (3.5) hours IWC Order No. 7- 2001(12), codified at Cal. Code Regs.

tit. 8 § 11050

64.  Atall relevant times };_erein, Lgbor Code section 226.7 provides that “[a]n employer
shall not require an employe_e to work during a meal or rest or re_cove'r-y peri’o'd mandated pursuant
to an apphcable statute....” Cal. Lab ‘Code § 226.7(b).

" 65.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS regularly failed to authonze or permit
PLAINTIFF and CLASS ME,MBERS to take ten (10) minute;uninter;upted rest periods for each
four (4) hours wbrked, or major fraction théreof.‘ PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were
regularly denied 'uni'ntér_rupted rest periods in violation of the Labor Code. IWC Wage Order 7-
2001, codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8-§ 11050; see alse Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(b).

66. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS’ staffing policies and scheduling _
practices prevented PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS from being ;elievéd of all duties in order
(o take an uninterrupted rest break. DEFENDANTS failed to relinquish any control over how
employees spend their break time. See Augustus v. ABM Security Systems, Inc., 2 Cal. 5_th 257, 260
(2016). lAs a result, PLAINTIF F and CLASS MEMBERS would work shifts in excess qf 3.5

| hours, in excess of Slx (6) hours, and in excess of ten (10) hours, without receiving the

17
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uninterrupted ten (10) minute rest periods to which they were eniitled.

67. ByDEF ENDA‘NTS‘ failure to authorize and permit PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEM_BERS t'o take uninterrupted rest-brgaks-for‘every fou‘j' (4) hours or major fraction theteof
worked per day, DEFEND‘ANTS‘ willfully violated -tHe Labor Code. IWC Wage Order. 7-2001(12),

codified at-Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 110501; see also Cal. _LaB. Code §226.7.

68..  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226.7 has provided that “[i]f an
employer fails to provide an employee a meal or rest or recovery period in'accordance with a state

law... the employer shall pay the employee one additional hour of pay at the employee’s regular

|| rate 6f-compensati0n for each workday that the meal or rest or fecovery. period is not provided.”

Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7—(0);;'1WC' Order No. 7-2001(i2), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 §11050.

69.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS have had a company--wide policy and
practice.of not paying" PLAINTIFE and CLASS MEMBERS rest period premiums v\fhen rest
periods were missed, late and/or intemﬁteq. o

70, At all times herein, bEFENDANTS failed to properly calculate the regular rate of
pay for‘pufposes of paying rest period premiums to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by
including all pompensation, suéh as shiﬁ differential pay and other compensation, as required by
the Labor Code. See Cal. Lab. qug §§ 226.7, 512(a); and IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at
Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. | |

71 . DEFENDANTSF congiuct‘ violates Labor Code sections 226.7, 1198, and IWC Order
No. 7-2001, codiffed at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

72 PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been daniaged in an amount according .

to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, expenses,"and costs of suit.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
| Failure To Pay Overtime
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 510, 1198; Cal..Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
73.  PLAINTIFF incorﬁoratc_as by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each

18
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74.  Atall relevant tirﬁes hei'ein; Labor Code section 510 has mandated that any time
worked beyond eight hours'in one workday or beyond 40 hours in any workweek must be
compensated at no less than one and one-half ti_mes_ the regular Wage.‘ See Cal. Lab. Code § 510(a).

75.  TWC WagerOrder-7-20(‘1 1 further provides,_thét employees “shall not be employed
more than eight (8) hours in any workday or more than 40 hours in any workweek unless the
employee receives one and one-haif'(1 ¥) times such employee’s regular rate of pay for all hours
wdrked over 40 hours in the workweek.” IWC Order No. 7-2001(3)(A), codified at Cal. Code
Regs. tit. 8 § 11050, _seé also Cal. Lab. Code § 1198. |

.76.  Atall relevant tin.aes herein, DEFENDANTS were required to compensate
PLAINTIF F and CLASS MEMBERS for all overtime, calculated at one and one-half (1 %) ti@es

the regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day and/or forty (40)

| hours per week, and for the first eight (8) hours on the seventh consecutive workday, with double-

time for all hours worked in excess of twelve (12) hours in any workday and for all hours worked
in excess of eight (8) hours on the seventh consecutive day of work in any workweek. Cal. Lab.
Code §§ 510, 1194, IWC Wage Order 7-2001(3), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

| 77.  Atall relevant times herein, 'DEF_ENDANTS willfully failed to pay all overtime
wages owed to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS. During the CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS were not paid overtime premiumé for all of the hours they worked in
excess of eight (8) hours in- a day, in excess of twelve (12) hours in a day, in excess of eight (8)

hours on the seventh (7th) consecutive day of work in a workweek, and/or in excess of forty (40)

hours in a week, because all hours were not recorded.

78. " At all relevant t.imes‘ herein, DEFENDANT S failed to compensate PLAINTIF .F. and
CLASS MEMBERS for all overtime hours worked by: failing to pay overtime at one and one-half
(1 ) times or double the regular rate; requiring, permitting or suffering PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS to work through meal and rest periods; and inaccurately recording time in which
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked, |

79. At all relevant times herem, DEFENDANTS’ failure to provnde adequate coverage

for meal periods for PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS so that they could be relieved of all -
19
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duties and take timely, uninierrupted'mirty 30y ﬁlinutes mieal periods;: forced PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS to work oFf-the-clock dunng meal penods to complete their assigned tasks.

80. Atall relevant tlmes herem DEFENDANTS had a company-wide pattern and
praciice. of requiring PLAINTIFF and,CLASS MEMBERS to communicate with DEFENDANTS
and DEFENDANTS?’ other em_ployees 'uein‘g persorial cellular phor}es, including during days off
and outside of scheduled shifts. DE‘FENDANTS knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS were coimmunlieating with DEFENDAN_T-S and other employees while off-
the-clock in order to meet DEFEND;A‘NTS’ demands, but DEFENDANTS failed to compensate
PLAINTIFF or CLASS MEMBERS for this-off-the-clock erork. ‘Therefore, PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS were:not paid overtime waées for all overtime hours worked.

81. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed o properly calculate the regular rate of

pay for purposes of paying overtime to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by including all

'compensation,' such as shift differential pay and other compensation, as required by the Labor

| Code. See Alvarado v. Dart Container Corp: of California, 4 Cal.Sth 542 (2018).

82. . DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 510 and 1198 and IWC
Order No. 7-2001(3), cod{ﬁed'a't_ Cal. Codé Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

83.  PLAINTIFE and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at tnal and seek all wages eamed and due, penalties, interest, eXpenses, attorneys’ fees
and costs of suit..

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
. 'Failure To Pay Minimum Wages
(Cal..‘ Lab. Code _sect'!oils 1182.12, 1194, 1197, 1197.1, and 1198;
. and Cal. Code Regs. Tit. 8, § 11050)
_(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
‘84, PLAINTIF F incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth abo'_ve.

,85-. At all relevant times herein, employers eperating under California law must pay at

least minimum wage to thelr employees for all hours worked. IWC Order No. 7- 2001(4), codified

T 20
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at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 1 1(:)50.r An.e_mpiéyec not paid .at least minimum wage is ent.itled to
recover the unpaid balance of such wages. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 1182.12 and 1194. In addition, an.
employee.is entitled to recover liquidated d_ama_é‘es equa'lj.ng the wages unlawfully unpaid, as well
as interest. Cal. Lab. Code §1194.2. An émployer failing to pay minimum wages must pay a civil
penalty of $100 for: the mmal pay period and $250 for each subsequent pay penod durmg which
such violations occurred. Cal Lab Code § 1197.1. .

86.  Atall relevant times herem as a result of DEFENDANTS’ staﬁ'mg and scheduhng
poli'cies and practices, PLAINTH-“F- and CLASS MEMBERS were forced to miss or shorten their
meal periods in order to meet EEFENDANTS’ é_xpectatioﬁs and customer demands. PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS lw'elre also required to perform off-the-clock work on their days off and
ou;sidle.of scheduled shifts, including usiﬁg their personal cellular phones. . '

s&.,' At all relevant times berein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS minimum wages for all hours worked by: requiring, permitting or éuffeﬁng
PLAINTIFF and CLASS M,Ei‘&;IBERS to work off-the-clock through meal and rest break‘s; .
requiring, p_enﬁitting or suffering PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMEBERS to work off-the-clock

outside of scheduled shifts. including by using their personal cell phone 6n their days off. Asa

| result of these actions DEFENDANTS did not pay at least minimum wagcs for all hours worked by
PLAINTIEF and CLASS MEMBERS. |

.88. DEFENDANTS' conduct viélates Labor Code sections 1182.1 2,. 1194, 1197,
1 197.'.1-, an.d 11.98'and IWC Order No. 7-2001(4), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.
89.-- - PLAINTIEF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wéggs earned and due, ifnterest, penaltieé, expenses, attofneys’ fees
and costs of Suit. - |

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Pay Timely Wages Due At Terminatioanaiting Time Penalties
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 201, 202, 203)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

%0.  PLAINTIFF mcorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
. 21 :
CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT




\vJ] '

A< T - - T S o

~

& W

Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 217 of 298

‘and everyallegation set forth above.

91.  Atall relevant times herein, pursuant to Labor Code sections 201 and 202,
employers must pay all wages due upon ter‘miriatioh and, if an employer terminates an employee,

the employee’s wages are “due and payable immediately.”™ Cal. Lab. Code § 201. Pursuant to

[Labor Code section 202, 'emp]oye,rs are required to pay all wages due to an employee no later than

72 ho_urs.aﬁe_r the employeerquits employment, unless the employee provided 72 hours of notice of
the. iptention to quit, in which case the employee is eﬁtitled to those wages at the time of quitting.'
Cal. Lab. Code § 202. | |

92 Atall fe_levant times herein, Labor Code section 203 prdvides that “[1]f an employer-
willfully fails to pay... any wages of an émployee who is discharged or who .qujt_s,-the wages of the
employee shall continue as a pehélty from the due date thefeof‘ at the same rate until paid or until
an action therefor is commenced; but the wages shall not continue for-more than 30 days.” Cal.
Lab. Code § 203. | .

93.. At alllre]evaﬁt times herein, PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE
SUBCLASS were entitled to, but did not receive, meal and rest period premium wages, overtime
wages, minimum wages, vacation wages, and .;-.tll compensation owed to them.

94, thn PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS separated fr_om '
employmeﬁt with DEFENDANTS, DEF ENDANTS willfully failed io pay all wages owed.

95'.. DEFENDANTS” conduct violates Labor Code sections 201, 202, and 203.1

96. As a consequence of DEFENDANTS’ willful conduct in not paying wages owed at
the time of separation from employment,-.PLAIN'-I"IFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE |
SUBCLASS are entitll,e'd to 30 days’ worth of their average daily-wagés as a penalty under Labor
Code section 203. See Drumm v Mornfngstar, 695 F.Supp.2d 1014 (N.D. Cal. 2010).

, 97.  PLAINTIFF ar.ld the F ORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS have been damaged in an
amount according to prqof at trial, and seek all wages eamed and due, penalties, interest, exper-}ses,'

attorneys’ fees and costs of suit.
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SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Timely Pay All Wages
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 204, 1182.12, 1194, 1194.2, -1 197, 1198;
and Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050).
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
98.  PLAINTIFFE incorp'orate}s by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every-allegation sét forth above.

99.  Atall times relevant herein, Labor Code section 204 has provided that all wages

‘earned by any. person in anjr employment between the first (1st) and the fifieenth (1 5th) ddays,

inclusive, of any calendar month, other than those wages due ﬁpon termination of an employee, are
due and payable between the sixteenth (16th) and the twenty-sixth (26th) day of the month during
whi;::h the labor was performed. Labor Code section 204 further provides that all wages earned By
any pgréon in any employment between the sixteenth (16th) and the last day, inclusive, of any
calendér month, other than those wages due upon termination of an employee, are due and payable
between the first (1st) and the tenth (10th) day 6f the following month, Cal. Lab. Code § 204(a).
100. At all times relevant herein, Labor Code section-204 has further provided that all
wagesbe.arned for labor in excess of the normal work period shall be paid no later than the payday
for the next regular payroll period. Cal. Lab. Code § 204(b). Alternatively, at all times relevant
herein, Labc;r Coc-le section 204 has provided that the requirements of this section are deemed
satisfied by the payment of wages for weekly, biweekly, or semimonthly payroll if the wages are .

paid not more than seven (7) calendar days folloﬁng the close of the payroll period. Cal. Lab.

NCode §o2(i4(d).

101. Atall relev'anf times herein, Labor Code sections 1182.12, 1194, 1197, 1197.1 and
1198 have provided that the minimum wage for employees fixed by tt_xe applicable IWC Wage
Order is the mimimum wage to be paid to e_fnploy’ees, and the payment of a wage less than the
minimum wage set by the I.WC is unlawful. “Hours worked,” and therefore compensable time, is

defined in IWC Wage Order 7-2001 as “the time during which an employee is subject to the

[ control of an employer, and includes all time the employee is suffered or permitted to work,

23
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whether or not required to do so...” IWC Wage Order 7-2001(K), codified at Cal Code. Rdgs. tit. 8
§11050Q2)(K). | ' '

102.  Atall rélevant times herein, DEFENDANTS Willfully failed to pay PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS all wages due mcludlng, but not llmlted to overtime wages, minimum wages,
and meal and rest penod premlum wages, w1th1n the periods mandated by Labor Code section 204.

103, Atall times _herel_n, DEFENDANTS failed.to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS

MEMBERS for time spent by PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS answering text messages’

related to work and as reqdired Hy DEF ENDANTS,.which id deemed time worked and must be
compensated. | '

104. Atall relevant times ﬁereih, IwC Wagd Order 7-2001 provides that.“[e]ach
workday an gm-ploy'ee‘is required to report for woric-and does repdrt, but is not put to work or is
fufnished less than half said employee’s dsual or scheduled day’s work, the er_n_plbyee shall be paid

for half the usual or scheduled day’s work, but in no event for less than two (2) hours nor more

| than four (4) hours, dt the employee’s regular rate of pay....” IWC Wage Order 7—2001(5), codified

at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050

105.  Atall times herem DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS for all work performed while off the clock, including checking and responding to text
messages and completing opening: and -closing- procedures.

106. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS all wages owed at their legally prescribed regular rate of pay. ‘

107. DEFENDANTS’ conduct vnolates Labor Code sections 204, 1182.12, 1194, 1194.2
1197, 1198, and IWC Order No. 7-2001, codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

108. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wa.ges eamed and due, penalties, interest, expenses, ait;omeys’_ fees

and costs-of suit.

24
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SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION.

 Failure To Reimburse For Employment Related Expenses
| (Cal. Lab. Code section 2802)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

109. PLAINTIFF mcorporates by reference and real]eges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above.

110. - At all relevant nmes herem, Labor Code section 2802 has required an employer to
indemnify an employee “for all necessary expenditures or losses incurred by the employee in direct
conSequencé of the discharge of his or her-dutieé_,. " Cal. lLab., Code § 2802(a). This inc-lﬁdes
costs associated with the use of personal cell phones for work-related purposes. “If an employee is
required to make work-related calls on a personal cell phone, then he or she is incurring an expense
for purposes of section 2802.” Cochran v. Schwat_r 's Home Service, Inc., 228 Cal. App. 4th 1 1-37,
1144 (2014). )

111, At all relevant times he‘reir.i,. PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE
SUBCLASS incurred necessary business-felated expenses and costs that were not reimbursed'b'y
DEFENDANT S, including, but not limited to, the cost for cell phone usage. PLAINTIFF and the
text messages with DEFENDANTS.’ .rnanagement. DEFENDANTS did not prowde PLAINTIFF
or the BUSINESS EXPEN_SE SUBCLASS with a work-issued cell phone, nor has it reimbursed °
PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS fc;r the necessary expenses they mcurréd
in using their p_ersbnal cell phones for DEFENDANTS’ business. '

112, Atall relevant ﬁmes DEFENDANTS have intentionall& and willfully failed to
reimburse PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS for necessary business-related
expenses and costs DEFENDANTS” company-vvlde pracnce of requiring PLAINTIFF and the
BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS to use their own personal cellular phones for work violates
Labor Code section 2802. .

113.  PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS ha\lre- been damaged in an

amount according to proof at trial, and seek all wages eamned and due, penalties, interest, attorneys’
25 . _
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fees, expenses, and costs of suit.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Maintain Required Records
(Cal. Lab, Code sections 226(a), 226.3, 1_-1 74(d), and 1198.5; and Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8
' C o §11050,) | '
(Agaihst ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 te 25)

114, PLAINTIFF mcorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above.

115.  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 1174 has provided that every
employer shall “[k]eep, at a central location in the state or at the plants or establishments at which
employees are employed, payroll reeords showing the hours worked daily by and the wages paid -
to, and the number of piece-rate units earned by and any appl_icable. piece rate paid to, employees.
employed at _the respective plants or establishments. These records shall be kept .... on file for not
less than three years.” Cal. Lab. (;ode §1174(d). |

116.  Pursuant to IWC Wage Order 7-2001, employers are reciuired to keep accurate time’
records including, but not limited to, ;;vhen the employee begins and ends eaeh work period and
meal period. 1WC Order No. 7-2001(7), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. During the
CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANTS failed to keep accurate records of meal period start and stop
times for PLAINT_IFF and CLASS MEMBERS' in vielation of the Labor Code, Cal. Lab. Code
§t 198.5.; IWC Wage Order 7-2@01(7), bod:ﬁéd at Cal. C‘ode Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

117. | Atall relevant times herein, Lebor Code section 226 _provildes that an employer is to
maintain accurate records, ;ncludi.ng,l‘but not limiteel to: _total c_laily hours wérked by each |
.enﬁploy‘_ee; applicable rates of pay; all .dedur‘:tions; meal periods; time records showing when each
emploéfee begins and’enc,is each work period; and accurate iteinizeq statements. By
DEFENDANTS’ company-wide policies and practices of inaccurately recording time in which
PLAINTIFF and CLASS M:EMB]?.RSIWOerd, including failing to record time during which |
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked, DEFENDANTS knowingly and intentionally failed

to mamtam records as required by the Labor Code. Cal, Lab Code §§ 226(a), 1174(d); see also
26
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TWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), codz/‘ cd at Cal. Code Regs tit. 8 § 11050.

118. PLAINTIFF a.nd CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount accordmg
to proof at trial, and seek all wages eamed and due, pen_alt:es, interest, attorneys’ fees, expenses,
and costs of suit. _ |

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure To Furnish Accurate Ttemized Wage Statements
(Cal. Lab. Code section 226(3), 226(e), 226.3, Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

119. PLAINTIFF 1ncorporates by reference and. rea]leges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set f0rth above: |

120. Atall relevant times hel.-ein,-Labor Code section 226, has required employers to
furnish each employee an laccurate and itemized wage statement in writing that includes, but not

limited to, total daily hours worked by each employee: applicable rates of pay; all deductions; meal

| periods;.and total hours worked. See Cal. Lab. Code § 226(a); IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7),

codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

121.  Atall relevant tJmes herein, DEFENDANTS systematically prowded PLAINTIFE.
and CLASS MEMBERS with incomplete and inaccurate wage statements. The violations include,
without limitation, the failure to accurately list the total daily hours worked by'each emplpyee, total
regular and overtime wages earned, the accurate regular rate of pay, or reeal and/or rest break
premiums entitled to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS.

122. Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS’ failure to provide accurate itemized
wage statements wes a knowing and intentional act based on their company-wide policy and
practice of failing to pay all wagesowed as set forth herein in violation of Labor Code. Cal. Lab.
Code §§ 226(a), 226(¢), 226.3.

123. By DEFENDANTS’ company-wide policies and practices of inaccuratély recording
time in which PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked, DEFENDANTS knowingly and
intentionally failed to maintain records as required By the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226(a),

226(c), 226.3; IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050
27
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124.  PLAINTIFF snd CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged iri an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, attoméys’ fees, expenses,
and costs of suit. .

TENTH CAUSE.OF ACTION

Failure: To -‘Prjovi_de Wl_jitten Notice o.f‘ Paid Sick Leave
(€al. Lab. -Code section 246(i)) |
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
125 . PLAINTIFF incorporates by refei'encr:‘e‘and realleges as if ﬁllly__stated herein each
and every allegation set forth aBove.

- 126.  Atall times herein, Labor Code section 246 has required that employers proviae.

off an employer provides in lieu of sick leave, either b_n the employee’s itemized wage statement
described in section 226 or in a separate writing provided on the designated.pa)} daté with ﬂlg ‘
‘em_ployee’s pa'yment of wages.” Cal. Lab. Code § 246(i). _

127. At all times herein, DEF END'A_N.TS failed to provide PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS w1th the required written notice on wage statements and/or other separate written
statements that listed the requisite infor_mation set forth in.Labc;r Code section 246. Specifically,
DEFENDANTS’ wage statements fail to state PLAINTIFF's and CLASS MEMBERS’ paid sick
leave balance, as required by.‘the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code § 246(i). | '

128. DEFENDANTS® éonduct violates Labor Code section 246(i). .

129. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount accérdin;g
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and‘due, penalties, interest, attorneys’ fees, expenses,
and costs of suit. | A |

ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure To Provide One ]jay’s Rest In Seven .
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 551, 552, and 852)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25).

130. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
- 28
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and every allegotion set forth above.

131. At all times herein, Labor Code section 551 has provided that “[e]very person
employed in any occupation of labor is entitléd to-one day’s rest therefrom in seven.” Cal. Lab.
Code § 551. |

132,  Atall times herein, Labor Code seotion 552 has provided. that “[n]o .employer of
labor shall cause his employees to work more than six days in seven.” Cal. Lob. Code § 552.

133. At all times herein, Labor Code section 852 has provided that “[t]he employer shall
.apportion'the periods of rest to be taken by an employce'so that the employee will have one
complete day of rest during each week.” Cal. Lab. Code § 852.

134. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS féiled to provide to PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS the legally-mandated rest days as required by California law. Further, “an employer’s
obligation is to apprise employees of their entitlement to a day of reot and thereafter to maintain
absolute neutrality as to the exercise of that right.” Mendoza v. Nordstrom Inc., 2 Cal. 5th. 1074,
1091 (2017). DEFENDANTS failed to provide this notice to PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS. '

135. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code, sections 55.1 , 332, and 852

136. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS hovo been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned ond due, penalties, interest, attorneys’ fees, expenses,

and costs of suit, as well as relief pursuant to Labor Code section 853.

TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION -
) Failuro To éom_ply. with Labor Code Sections 850 and 851
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 850 and 851)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 23) _
137.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by referencc.and.roalleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. B
138. At all times here'm, Labor Code section 850 has provided, in pertinent paﬁ, that

“tn]o person employed to sell at retail drugs and medicines or to compound physicians’

prescriptions shall perform, any work in any store, dispensary, pharmacy, laboratory, or office for
29
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more than an average of nine hours per dz}y, or for more than 108 hours. m any two consecutive
weeks or for more than 12 days in any two consecutive weeks...” Cal. Lab. Code.§ 850.

139. At All times‘. hereili' Labor Codla section 851 has brohibited employ‘e'r§ from :
Cal. Lab. Code § 851 _

1'40. At all times herem and in wolatlon of Labor Code Section 851, DEF ENDAN I'S
required PLA]NTIFF and the PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS to work in excess of the’
hour_s prescribed by Labor Code Section 850.

141.  DEFENDANTS’ con'ifijuct violates Labor Code sections 850 and 851.

142. PLAINTIFF and t'he PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS have been damaged .
in-an amount according to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest,

attorneys’ fees, expenses, and costs of suit, , as well as relief pursuant to Labor Code section 853.

' THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Unfall‘ And. Unlawful Business Practices -
(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code section 17200, et seq.)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

143.  PLAINTIFF ijncorp(;rates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allega.tjén set forth above. '

144, - At all times herein, California Business & Professions Code provides that “person”
shall mean and include “natural per§dns, corporations, firms, partnerships, joint stock comj:anies,
associations and other organizations of persons.” Cal Bus. & Prof. Code § 17201.

145. At all times herem DEFENDANTS’ conduct, as alleged herem has been, and .
continues to be unfalr unlawful and hannful 10 PLAINTIFF, CLASS MEMBERS, the general
public, and DEF ENDANTS’ competltors. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have suﬁ‘ered
injury in.fact and have lost money as a result of DEFENDANTS’ unlawful business ;sracticé:s.

146.. At all times herein, DléFENDANTS’ aétivitieé, as alleged hcrein; are violations of

California law, and constitute false, unfair, fraudulent and deceptlve business acts and practices in

violation of California Busmess & Professions Code sections 17200 et s'eq
o 30
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A

147.  Each and every one of the DEFENDANTS"acts and omissions in violation of the
Labor Code and IWC Wage Order 7-2001 as alleged h;:rein,. i'ncjﬁding but not limiited to
DEFENDANTS' failure to authorize and provide uninterrupted meal periods; DEFENDANTS?
failure to authorize and permit wﬁﬁtenupted rest perib_ds; DEFENDANTS’ failure to pay overtime
compensation; DEF ENDANTS’ faiiy}e to pay premium c_()r:_rlpgnsation at the legally prescribed
regular rate of pay; DEFI-E_I\:IDANITS’”fa_ihire. to pay minimum wages; DEFENDANTS’ failure to
pay all wages.due to‘ témméted.eﬁ;ployees; DEFENDANTS’ failure to ﬁ;mi_sh accurate wage
statément’s; DEP;ENDANTS’_' failure to mai.ntain re.quired- re.cords; DEFENDANTS’ failure to
provide written notice of paid sick if:_ave; leFENDANTS.’ failure to provide one day’s rest in
seven; -and' DEFENDAN_TS; failure ';o coniply' with Lxla.bor Code Sections 850 and 851 coristirutes
an unfair and unlawful business .pr_a_ctice under Ca]ifornia‘.Business'& Professions Code. sections
17200 ef. seq. | |

- 148. DEFENDANTS’ violations of Califomia wage and hour laws constitute a business

practice Bg:c_au_se DEFENDANTS’ aforementioned acts and omissions were done repeatedly overa
significant period of time, and in a‘s'ys,temati.c manner, to the detriment of PLAINTIFF and V_CLASS
MEMBERS. ' _ |

149.  As a result of the violations of California law herein described, DEFENDANTS
unlawfully gained an unfair advantage over other businesses. PLAI'I\_ITlF Fand CLASS |
MEMBERS have suﬁ:ercd pecuniary loss by DEFENDANTS’ unlawful business acts and practices

|| alleged herein.

150.  Pursuant to California Business & Professions Code sections 17200 el seq.,
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS are entitled to restitution of the wages withheld and retained
by DEFENDANTS during a period that commences four years prior to the filing of this complaiﬁt;'
a permanent injunction requiring DEFENDANTS to pay all outstanciihg'wag;es due to PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS; an award of attorneys’ fees pursuant to _Califomia Code of Civil

Proceaure section 1021.5 and other applicable laws; and an award of costs.

31
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| DEFENDANTS of the specific prov;sgons of the Labor Code.and IWC Wage Orders alleged to

FO.UR@;:}ENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Repfese;t‘ative:Acﬁon_for Civil Penalties
' ('c;:.,l. Lab. Code sections 2698-2699.5).
~ (Against ALL. DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
151. PLAINTIFF inc_orporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. , |

152. 'PLA]NT IFF is an “aggrieved employee” within the meaning of Labor Code section
2699(c), and a proper representative to bring a civil action on behalf of himself and other current
and former employees of DEFENDANTS pursuant to the procedures sﬁeciﬁed in Labor Code
section 2699.3, becalixse.lsLAINT'I‘FF“' was employed By DEFENDANTS and the 'allegcd violations
of the Labor Code were comimitted against PLAINTIFF. '

153..  Pursuant to the Private Attorneys General Act of 2004 (“PAGA™), Labor Code
sections 2698-2699.5, PLAINTIF F qeeks to recover civi} penaltles including but not. llmlted to
penalnes under Labor Code sectlons 2699 210, 22535,226.3, 558, 850, 851, 852, 853, 1174.5,
1197.1, and.} 199, from DEFENDANTS in representative action for the violations set: forth above,
including but not ]i.mited to violations of Labor Code sectivns 201, 202, 203, 226, 226.7, 510, 512,
850, 851, 852, 8531174, 1194, 1197, 1198, and 2802." PLAINTIFF is also entitled. to an award of
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to Labor Code section 2699 (g)(1).

154. Pursuant to. Laboi Code Sectlon 2699.3, PLAINTIFF gave written notlce by
certified mail to the Callfomla Labor d.l‘ld Workforce Development Agency (“LWDA”) and

have been violated, including the facte and theories to support.the alleged violations.
PLAINTIFF's notice to the LWDA i,s; at't‘aehed as Exhibit A. Within sixty-five (65) calendar days
of the postmark date of PLAINTIEF,’.S notice letter, the LWDA did not provide notice to
PLAINTIFF that it intends to investigate the alleged violations.

155. . Therefore, RLA[NIT}EI-TI has coinpilied with all of‘ the requirements set forth in Labor
Code Section 2699.3 to commence a representative action under PAGA.

. 32
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Wherefore PLAINTIFF, individually and on behalf of all other pérsoﬁs similarly situated,
respectfully prays for relief against DEFENDANTS and Does | through 25, inclusivé, and each of
them, as foilows: . l .

| 1. For corﬁpensato_ry ga;yages_in an amount to be ascertained at trial;

2. for-rcstitui;ioh.of all monies.due to PLAH\I'I_"IFF and CLASS MEMBERS, as well as
disgorged p;'oﬁts from the unfair an_d unlawfﬁl business practices of DEFENDANTS;

_ 3. ; -Formeal and rest period compensation pursuant t(; Labor Code section 226.7 and
IWC Wage.Order NO. 72001, - =

4. For liquidated damagés pu'rsuantf.to Labor Code section 1194.2;

5. For preliminary and permane_ﬁt_ injunctive relief enjoining DEFENDANTS from

violating the relevant pi'ovijsions of the Labor Code and IWC Wage Orders, and from engaging‘ in

| the unlawful business. practices complained of herein;

6. For waiting time penalties pursuant to Labor Code section é03;
7. For statutory and civil‘ penalties according to proof, including but not limited to, all
penalties authorized by.the Labor Code sections .?_.26(3)', 853 and 2699,
8.  Forinterest on theﬁnpaic‘l wages at 10% per annum pursuant to Labor Code

Sections 218.6, 1194, 2802, California Civil Code sections 3287, 3288, and/or any other appliqablg

provision providing for pre.-judgmeh’_c interest;

9. For reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to Labor Code sections 1194,

2699, 2802, California Civil Code section 1021.5, and any other applicable provisions providing

for attorneys® fees and costs;

10.  For de‘c]afatory felief;

11. For an order requiring and certifying the first thirteen Causes of Action pled in this
FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT as a class action;

12.  For an order appointing PLAINTIFF as class representative, and PLAINTIFF’s
counsel as class counsel; and ‘

i
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13.  For such further relief that the Court may ‘deem just and proper.-

-

DATED:- -September 7, 2018 ' - GUNN COBLE LLP

Catherme J. Cotle.

Attorneys for Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS,
. on behalf of himself, and all others similarly
situated

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

PLAINTIFF, on behalf of himself and all others similarty- situated, hereby demands a jury

trial with respect to all issues triable of right by jury.

DATED: September 7, 2018 GUNN COBLE LLP

Beth Gun {
Cathy Coble

Attorneys for Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS
on behalf of hlmself and.all others similarly
situated. : :

34
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Gunn Coble

EMPLOYMENT LAWYERS

Beth Gunn
818.573.6389
" beth@gunncoble.com

Cathy Coble

818.573.6392
cathy@gunncoble.com

July 2, 2018

VIA ONLINE FILING
David M. Lanier, Secretary
California Labor and Workforce Development Agencv

RE:  Labor Code Private Attorneys General Act of 2004 — Notice on hehalf of Ryan Hyams

Dear Secretary Lanier:

-Please be.advised that Gunn Coble LLP has been retained by Ryan Hyams (“Mr. Hyams”)
to represent him in respect to matters arising out of his employment with CVS Health
Corporation, Garfield Beach CVS, L.L.C.,, CVS Pharmacy, Inc., and CVS Rx Services, Inc., and, as

appropriate, any of their parent companies, subsidiaries, or affiliates (collectively, “CVS” or the E

“Company”). All further questions, inquiries, or other communications about this matter should
be directed to this firm, not to Mr. Hyams

This letter provides notice on behalf of Mr. Hyams and similarly situated, aggrieved'
employees pursuant to the Private Attorneys General Act of 2004, California Labor Code section
2699.3. Mr. Hyams is an “aggrieved employee” as defined by Labor Code section 2698 et seq.,
due to CVS’ numerous violations of the Labor Code, including unpaid wages, failure to provide
mea! and rest breaks, failure to pay meai and rest period premiums, failure to provide mandated
rest days, failure to comply with California Labor Code Section 850-851, inaccurate wage
statements, unreimbursed expenses, failure to pay wages upon termination, interest, penalties,
attorneys’ fees, costs, and any other relief available under California law, including PAGA. For
purposes of this letter, an “aggrieved employee" should be considered to include all non- .
exempt employees of CVS who have worked for CVS during the one year preceding the date of
this letter through the present date. ~

Gunn Coble LLP | 101S. 1stStreet | Suite 407 | Burbank,CA | 91502
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This notice is being provided via electronic submission to the California Labor &
_Workforce Agency (“LWDA”) and to the Company via certified mail at its address for business
operations.

Based on the below summary of the facts and legal theories upon which Mr. Hyams will
base his claims, he requests that the LWDA regard this notice as written notice pursuant to
California Labor Code section 2699.3 of his intent to seek civil penalties against CVS and any
parent companies identified as co-defendants prior to and during litigation of this matter.

A. Facts

CVS is a retail pharmacy chain with hundreds of physical locations in California, including
standalone stores and locations within Target branded stores. As part of its operations, CVS
employs pharmacists to, among other things, dispense medications, counsel patients on the use
of prescription and over-the-counter medications, and advise physicians about medication
therapy. In many locations CVS also employs pharmacy technicians to assist with the
dispensation of medication to its clientele, though there are CVS locations where only a-
pharmacist is employed to handle alt pharmacy operations. Plaintiff Ryan Hyams is a former
non-exempt employee of CVS who primarily worked as a pharmacist at its Garfield Beach
focation, but also occasionally assisted at other pharmacy locations during his more than two
years of employment with CVS. At the end of his employment with CVS, Mr. Hyams was earning
$76/hour. ’

As a pharmacist, Mr. Hyams’ primary duties were to safely and accurately dispense
approximately 250-300 prescriptions per day to CVS clientele. This included reviewing
prescriptions provided to the pharmacy (either in writing or over the phone), checking for drug
interactions and precautions, contacting physicians where appropriate, advising patients -
regarding the use of their prescriptions, entering information in CVS systems, and dispensing
and packaging medications to CVS customers. When pharmacy technicians were unavailable,
Mr. Hyams would also work at the pharmacy cash register to ring up sales of prescriptions and
other items at the pharmacy. )

During his employment, Mr. Hyams would regularly work more than 9 hours per day on
average, and more than 108 hours in two consecutive week periods. In fact, CVS utilized a
centralized scheduling procedure where he and other pharmacists were routinely scheduled for
12-hour shifts. On occasion, Mr. Hyams would work more than 12 hours per day, for which CV5
would then pay him double-time. There also were occasions where he worked more than 12
days in a consecutive two week period. Each day, before clocking in on the CVS computer and
after clocking out at the end of the day, Mr. Hyams would perfarm work for his position, as
required by CVS. Also, as part of his job duties and responsibilities, Mr. Hyams would receive
text messages on his personal cell phone from his supérvisor to discuss work-related matters.
Furthermore, CVS relied on Mr. Hyams, a loyal employee, to fill in at other pharmacies to ensure
its business needs were met, which required him to drive great distances, stay at a hotel, and
staff a pharmacy by himself for days at a time. At all locations, Mr. Hyams was entitled to, but
did not receive uninterrupted meal and rest breaks. Mr. Hyams was not paid for the time he
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spent reviewihg and responding to text messages from his 'supervis'or relating to work for CVS
while off-the-clock. Additionally, Mr. Hyams never received any reimbursement from CVS for
the personal use of his cell phone to conduct business for CVS.

When Mr. Hyams’ employment with CVS ended, he was only paid for a portion of his -
accrued vacation. CVS failed to provide him with his accrued vacation time in violation of the
Labor Code. For a portion of his employment, in violation of Labor Code Section 246{i), CVS
failed to provide Mr. Hyams, or other aggrieved employees, with written notice setting forth
the amount of paid sick leave available, or paid time off the Company provides in lieu of sick
leave.

Throughout his employment at CVS, Mr. Hyams was routinely unable to take his
uninterrupted meal and rest breaks due to CVS’ under-staffing and fill-time metrics. During the
breaks he was able to take, after clocking out and before clocking back in, Mr. Hyams was
routinely interrupted with pharmacy questions. Mr. Hyams was also asked to sign a waiver,
wherein, on a standing basis without regard to the actual business needs, he waived all of his
second meal periods. Mr. Hyams observed other employees also working through breaks and
not being properly compensated for the same. Mr. Hyams was not paid any penalties for these
interrupted meal and/or rest breaks. In addition, CVS often failed to provide Mr. Hyams with a -
rest day as required under the Labor Code.

Additionally, to date, CVS has refused to comply with its obligation under the Labor Code
to produce the entirety of Mr. Hyams payroll records and personnel file, making it even more
difficult to determine the extent of CVS improper and-illegal practices.

B. . Labor Code Violations
1. CVS Violated Labor Code Section 204 by Failing to Pay Employees for All Hours
Worked. . :

Labor Code section 204, providés in relevant part: “All wages, other than those
mentioned in Section|[s] [not applicable here] earned by any person in any employment are due
and payable twice during each calendar month.” California Labor Code section 204. In short,
this means an employee must be paid for alf hours worked. Time spent by Mr. Hyams reviewing
and answering text messages, as required by CVS, is deemed time worked and must be
compensated. Furthermoré, pursuant to Labor Code sections 1194, 1194.2, and 1197, it is
unlawful for an émployer to suffer or permit a California employee to work without paying
wages at the proper minimum wage for all time worked as required by the applicable IWC Wage
Order. Pursuant to IWC Wage Order number 7, subdivision 2{G), at all times material hereto,
“hours worked” means “the time during which an employee is subject to the control of an
employer, and includes all time the employee is suffered or permitted to work, whether or not
required to do s0.” Mr. Hyams was not paid for any work conducted prior to clocking in and
after clocking out, as required by CVS. He also observed and is aware of other aggrieved
employees who were forced to use their own cell phones and work off-the-clock who were not
paid for the work performed. ‘
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In direction violation of the Labor Code, CVS failed to pay Mr. Hyams and similarly
situated employees for time reading and responding to messages related to work. In the case
of Mr. Hyams, he has spent hours receiving and responding to messages from management
regarding work for which he has not received pay. Mr. Hyams contends that other similarly
situated employees also did not receive any pay for the time spent receiving and responding to
work related messages. Additionally, CVS required its employees, including Mr. Hyams and
other aggrieved employees, to perform work before clocking in and after clocking out on the
Company’s computers. Thus, Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees’ time records do not
accurately reflect their actual hours worked. As such, Mr. Hyams and other embloyees were
never compensated for all time worked. Therefore, CVS has viclated Labor Code sections 204,
1194, 1194.2, and 1197.

2. . CVS Violated Labor Code Sections 246(i) and 246.5.

California Labor Code section 246 requires that employers provide employees with
written notice that sets forth the amount of paid sick leave available, or paid time off an
employer provides in lieu of sick leave, either on the employee’s itemized wage statement
described in section 226 or in a separate writing provided on the designated pay date with the
employee’s payment of wages. Here, during a portion of Mr. Hyam's employment, CVS failed
to provide Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees with the required notice setting forth
the amount of sick leave available. '

3. - Failure to Pay Overtime Wages and Therefore Failure to Pay Minimum Wage.

Employers operating under California law must pay at least minimum wage to their
employees for all hours worked. An employee not paid at least minimum wage is entitled to
recover the unpaid balance of such wages. See Cal. Lab. Code sections 1182.12 and 1194. In
addition, an employee is entitled to recover liquidated damages equaling the wages unlawfully
unpaid, as well as interest. See Cal. Lab. Code section 1194.2. Furthermore, an employer failing
to pay minimum wages must pay a civil penalty of $100 for the initial pay period and $250 for

-each subsequent pay period during which such violations occurred. See Cal. Lab. Code section
1197.1.

Section 510 of the Labor Code mandates that any time worked beyond eight hours in
one workday or beyond 40 hours in any workweek must be compensated at no less than one
and one-half times the regular wage. See Cal. Lab. Code § 510(a). Section 1194 creates a cause
of action to recover such unpaid overtime wages. See Cal. Lab. Code section 1194. {WC Order
No. 7-2001(3){A) further provides that employees such as Mr, Hyams “shall not be employed
more than eight (8) hours in any workday or more than 40 hours in any workweek unless the
employee receives one and one-half (1 ¥2) times such employee’s regular rate of pay for all hours
worked over 40 hours in the workweek.” IWC Order No. 7-2001{3)(A).

As discussed above, Mr. Hyams and other similarly aggrieved employees routinely
worked off-the-clock when answering work-related text messages and when forced by
management to continue to work while clocked out. During these periods of off-the-clock work,
'CVS did not pay at least minimum wage to employees. '
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Asa result of these actions, CVS wolated Labor Code sections 223, 510 1182 12, 1194,
1194.2,1197.1, and 1198,

4. CVS Violated Labor Code Sections 512 and 226 7 and IWC 7-2001 {11 & 12) by Failing
to Provide Lawful Meal or Rest Breaks, and Forcing Its Employees to Slgn Meal Period
Waivers. '

Labor Code section 512 provides that “[ajn employer may not employ an employee for
a work period of more than five hours per day without providing the employee with a meal
period of not less than 30 minutes.” Cal. Lab. Code section 512. Section 226.7 further provides
in relevant part that “[a]n employer shall not require an employee to work during a meal or rest
or recovery.period mandated pursuant to an applicable statute.” Cal. Lab. Code section 226.7.
IWC Order 7-2001 (12) states that “[e]very employer shall authorize and permit all employees
- to take rest periods ... at the rate of ten (10) minutes net rest time per four (4} hours or major
fraction thereof.” '

CVS has violated sections 512 and 226.7 by failing to provide Mr. Hyams and similarly
situated employees with at least 30 uninterrupted minutes of meal break time and/or at least
10 minutes of uninterrupted rest time during their shifts. Mr. Hyams and similarly situated CVS
employees were and are routinely interrupted during their meal and rest breaks in order to
comply with their managers’ demands and instructions to meet CVS customers’ expectations
and CVS’ fill time metrics. Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees were also asked to sign a
waiver,-wherein, on a standing basis, they waived all of their second meal periods, without
consideration of the pharmacies’ daily needs. Thus, Mr. Hyams and similarly situated
employees are entitled toan additional hour of pay at the regular rate of compensation for each
workday that the 30-minute uninterrupted meal period was not provided. See Cal. Lab. Code
section 226.7. in addition, Mr. Hyams and similarly situated employees are entitled to an
additional hour of pay at the regular rate of compensation for each workday that the ten-minute
rest break was not provided. See Cal. Labor Code § 226.7; IWC 7-2001(12), as well as PAGA
penalties.

5. .C\IS Violated Labor Code Sections 551 and 552.

Under Labor Code section 551, “[e]very person employed in any occupation of labor is
entitled to one day’s rest therefrom in seven.” Labor Code section 552 provides that “[n]o
employer of labor shall cause his employees to work more than six days in seven.” Here, CVS
violated these sections by failing to provide the legally-mandated rest days to Mr. Hyams and
other similarly situated employees. Further, “an employer’s obligation is to apprise employees
of their entitlement to a day of rest and thereafter to maintain absolute neutrality as.to the
exercise. of that right.” Mendoza v. Nordstrom, Inc., 2 Cal.5th 1074, 1091 (2017). Instead of
complying with this obligation, CVS did not inform its employees in California of their right to a
day of rest, and then failed to properly staff its locations with sufficient personnel and pressured
employees into working without a day of rest.



Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4- Filed 10/12/18 I5age 236 of 298

Page | 6

6. Failure to Comply with Labor Cade Sections 850 and B51.

California Labor Code section 850 provides, in pertinent part, that “[n]o person
employed to sell at retail drugs and medicines or to compound physicians' prescriptions shall
perform any work in any store, dispensary, pharmacy, laboratory, or office for more than an
average of nine hours per day, or for more than 108 hours in any two consecutive weeks or for
more than 12 days in any two consecutive weeks...” The accompanying California Labor Code
section 851 prohibits employers from requiring employees covered by Section 850 to work in
excess of the hours prescribed therein. Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees
“throughout California regularly worked hours and days in excess of these specific limitations
set forth by the California Labor Code.

7. Failure to Provide Accurate Itemized Wage Statements in Violation of California -
Labor Code Section 226 {(a).

California Labor Code section 226(a) requires employers to make, keep and provide true,
accurate, and complete employment records. CVS did not provide Mr. Hyams, and other
aggrieved employees, with properly itemized wage statements. Additionally, the violations
include, without limitation, the failure to accurately list the total regular and overtime wages
earned or meal and rest break premiums entitled to Mr. Hyams and other similarly situated
employees. CVS’ failure to provide accurate itemized wage statements was an intentional act
based on its policy and practice of failing to properly compensate employees to avoid paymg
penalty pay and overtime premiums to employees.

8. CVS Violated Labor Code Section 2802 by Failing to Reimburse Employees for Costs

Incurred Related to the Use of Personal Cell Phones for Necessary WOrk Related
Purposes.

California Labor Code section 2802 requires an employer to indemnify an employee “for
all necessary expenditures or losses incurred by the employee in direct consequence of the
" discharge of his or her duties.” Cal. Lab. Code section 2802. This includes costs associated with
the use of personal cell pHones for work-related purposes. “If an employee is required to make
work-related calls on a personal cell phone, then he or she is incurring an expense for purposes
of section 2802.” Cochran v. Schwan's Home Service, Inc., 228 Cal. App. 4th 1137 1144 (2014).

Cvs has vuolated section 2802 by failing to reimburse employees for costs incurred
relating to the necessary use of personal cell phones for work-related purposes. Mr. Hyams,
and other CVS employees, were routinely required to use their personal cell phones to exchange
text messages with CVS management. CVS did not provide Mr. 'Hyams or the other CVS
employees with a work-issued cell phone, nor has it reimbursed Mr. Hyams and the other CVS
employees for the necessary expenses they incurred in using their personal cell phones for CVS
business.
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9. Failure to Pay All Wages Due Upon Termination

Employers must pay all wages due upon termination, including accrued but unused - '
vacation. Labor Code sections 201-202, 227.3. The Company violated these sections by failing
‘to pay Mr. Hyams and other aggrieved employees their unpaid wages, including accrued
vacation time and premium penalties, as discussed above, at the time of termination. These
violations subject the Company to civil penalties under Labor Code sections 203 and 2699.

hkNxEk -

This notice is provided pursuant to Labor Code section 2699.3 and hereby provides the
LWDA an opportunity to investigate the claims and/or take any action it deems appropriate.
We respectfully request a timely response as to the LWDA's decision(s), as required by Labor
Code section 2699.3. If the LWDA elects not to take any action, Mr. Hyams intends to file a
complaint on behalf of himself and all similarly situated aggrieved employees in the California
Superior Court seeking unpaid wages, including unpaid overtime wages, unpaid minimum
wages, meal and rest period premiums, unreimbursed expenées, unpaid sick leave, interest,
penalties, attorneys’ fees, costs, and any other relief available under California law.

If you have any questions or require any further information regarding the facts and
theories to support these claims, do not hesitate to contact our office.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

g

Cathy Coble -
Gunn Coble LLP

CVS Health Corporation, Garfield Beach CVS, L.L.C., CVS Pharmacy, Inc., and CVS Rx Services, Inc.
may be contacted at the following address: ' :

One CVS Drive

Woonsocket, Rhode Island 02895

The registered agent for service of process for CVS Health Corporation, Garfield Beach CVS, L.L.C.,
CVS Pharmacy, Inc., and CVS Rx Services, Inc. is: '
CTCorporation System '

818 W Seventh Street, Suite 930

Los Angeles, CA 90017
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My contact information is:
Beth Gunn

‘Cathy Coble

Gunn Coble LLP

101 S. First Street, Suite 407
Burbank, CA 91502
beth@gunncoble.com
cathy@gunncohle.com
818.573.6392
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CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

1. Faiture To Provide Required Meal Periods;
5 Failure To-Authorize And Permit Required

Rest Breaks;
3. Failure To Pay Overtime;
4. Failure To Pay Minimum Wages;
5. Failure To Pay Timely Wages Due At
Termination/Waiting Time Bénalties;
6. Failure To Timely Pay All Wages;
7

*7.. Failure To Reimburse For Employment

Reiated Expenses;
8. . Failure To Maintain Required Regords;
9. Failure To Fumish Accurate Itemized
Wage Statements; '

10. Failure To Provide Written Notice Of Paid

Sick Leave - - )

11. Failure To Provide One Day’s Rest In
Seven, . .

12. Feilure to Comply With California Labor
Code Sections 850and 851 =~ - .

13. Unfair And Unlawful Business Practices; -

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL.
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Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS (“PLAINTIFF”), an individual, on behalf of himself and all other
persons similarly situated, hereby alleges against Defendants CVS HEALTH CORPORATION,
CVS PHARMACY, INC., GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC, AND CVS RX SERVICES, INC.
(“DEFENDANTS") as follows: .

INTRODUCTION

I. DEFENDANTS, the largest-pharmaCy chaiﬁ in the éountry, a “Fortune 107
company, publicly avows its purpose as “helping people on'the péth to better heaith.” See CVS
Health’s Corporate Social Responsibility Report, https://cvshealth.com/sites/default/files/2017-csr-
full-report.pdf. This commitment is hollow in light of DEFENDANTS’ continuous and intentional
violation of California’s wage and hour laws, which were designed specifically to protect the
health and well—beiﬁg of the state’s citizens. Deviating from the Ia.w-abiding practices of its
competitors, DEFENDANTS unfairly compete in the marketplace by flouting the Califormia Labor
Code (“Labor Code™) in multiple ways. The most obvious of DEFENDANTS’ illegal practices is
their blatant scheduling of pharmacy employees to regularly work shifts far in excess of the limits
imposed by California law “enacted as a measure for the protection of the public health.” See
Labor Code § 855. This illegal.conduct injures not only the pharmacy employees but
DEFENDANTS'’ cuistomers who depend on them “on the path to better health.”

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This c;lass action is brought pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure section
382. The monetary damages, penalties, and restitution sought by PLAINTIFF exceed the minimal
jurisdiction limits of the Superior Court and will be established according to proof at ﬁiai. .

3. The Superior Court of the State of California has jurisdiction in this matter because
PLAINTIFF is a resident of the State of California. Moreover, upon information and belief, two-
thircis ormore of the class members and at least one of DEF ENDA_NTS is a citizen of California,
the alleged wage and hour violati;:ms occurred in Califomia,‘signiﬁcant relief is being sought
against DEFENDANTS whose violations of California wage and hour laws form a significant basis
for PLAINTIFF’s claims, and no other class action has been filed within the past three (3) yeafs on

behalf of the same proposed class against DEFENDANTS asserting the same or similar factual
2
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allegatioﬁs. Further, no federal question is at issue bcca;.ise the claims are based solely on
California law and at least DEFENDANT GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC is aresident of, and/or-
regularly conducts business in the State of California, as well as its principal place of business is
located within California.

4. - Venue is proper in this judicia]'district and the County of San Francisco, California
because PLAINTIFF, and other persons similarly situated, performed work for DEFENDANTS in
the County of San Ffancisco, DEFENDANTS maintain offices and facilities and transact business
n the County of San Franciséo and DEFENDANTS?’ illegal practices, which aré the subject of this
action, were applied, at least in part, to PLAINTIFF, and other persons 51mllarly 51tuated in the
County of San Francisco. Thus, a substantial pOl‘thI’l of the transactlons and occurrences related to
this action occurred in this county. Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 395.

PLAINTIFE

5. PLAINT]FI is a former non-exempt employee who worked as a pharmacist for
DEFENDANTS for more than two years At the end of his employment with DEFENDANTS,
PLAINTIFF was earning $76/hour. PLAINTIFF is a resident of San Francisco County, California.

6. As a pharmacist, PLAINTIFF’S primary duties were to safely and accurately
dispense approximately 250-300 prescriptions per day to DEFENDANTS’ customers. This
ir;cluded reviewing prescriptions provided to the pharmacy (either in writing or over the phone),
checking for drug interactions and precautions, contactmg physicians where appropriate, advising
patients regarding the use of their prescriptions pursuant to California law entering information in
DEFENDANTS® systems, and dispensing and packagmg medications to DEFEN DANTS’
customers. When pharmacy technicians were unavailable, PLAINTIFF would also work at the
pharmacy cash register to ring up sales of pres;riptiqns and other items at the pharmacy. A
pharmacist was required‘to be on the premises during all hours of operation, to comply with
operallcmal policies and procedures.

7. During his employment; PLAINTIFF would regularly work more than 9 hours per
day on average, and more than 108 hours in two consecufcive week periods. DEFENDANTS

utilized a centralized scheduling procedure where he and other pharmacists were routinely
. 3 _ o
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scheduled for 12-hour shifts. On 6ccasion; PLAINTIFF would work more Lhan 12 hours per day,
for which DEFENDANTS would then pay him dpuble-time. There also were dccasions where he
worked more than 12 days in a consecutive two week period. DEFENDANTS often failed to
provide PLAINTIFF with a rest day as required under the Labor Code. |

8:  Each day, before clocking in on DEFENDANTS’ computer and after clocking out at
the end of the day, PLAINTIFF would perform work for his position, as required by
DEFENDANTS. o

9. As part of his job duties arlld responsibilities, PLAINTIFF would receive text
messages on his persoﬁal cell phone from his supervisor to discuss work-related matters.

10.  DEFENDANTS relied on PLAINTIFF, a loyal employee, to fill in at other
pharmacies fo ensure their business needs were met, which required PLAINTIFF to drive great |
distances, stay at a hotel, and staff a pharmacy by himself for days at a time. At all locations,
PLAINTIFF “;as entitled to, but did not receive uninterrupted ;neal and rest breaks.

-11.  PLAINTIFF was not paid for the time he spent reviewing and responding to text
messages from his supervisor relating to work for DEFENDANTS thie off-the-clock.
Additionally, PLAINTIFF never received any reimbursement from DEFENIjANTS for the
personal use of his cell phone to conduct business for DEFENDANTS.

12.  During the course of PLAINTIFF'S employment, he accrued vacation time pursuant

to DEFENDANTS’ vacation policy. When PLAINTIFF'S employmenit with DEFENDANTS

ended, he was only paid a portion of his accrued, but unused vacation. DEFENDANTS failed to
provide him with his accrued vacation time in violation of the Labor Code. |
13. Fora portionl of his employmenf, in vio]étion of Labor Code Section ?;46(i),

DEF ENDANTS/faiIed to provide PLAINTIFF, or other aggrieved employees, with written notice
setting forth the a:ﬁount of paid sick leave available, or paid time off the C-ompany provides in licu
of sick leave. PLAINTIFF did not receive all of the sick time to which he was entitled. |

' 14.  Throughout his employment with DEFENDANTS, PLAINTIFF was routinely
unable to take his uninterrupted meal and rest breaks due to DEFENDANTS’ under;'sta'fﬁng and

fill-time metrics, and his inability to leave the work premises. During the breaks he was able to
' 4
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take, after clocking out and before clocking back in, PLAINTIFF was routinely interrupted with
pharmacy questions. PLAINTIFF was also asked to sign a waiver, wherein, on a standing basis
without regard to the actual business needs, he waived all of his second meal penods PLAINTIFF
was not paid any penalties for these mterrupted meal and/or rest breaks
_ THE CLASS
15. PLAINTIFF brings this action on behalf of himéelf and all simi}arly situatcd class
of individuals (“CLASS MEMBERS” or “THE CLASS”) pursuant to California Code of Civil .

Procedure section 382. THE CLASS is defined as follows: All current and former employees of

,DEEENDANTS in lhé State of California at any time within the period beginning four (4) years

prior to the ﬁling of this action and ending at the time this action settles or proceeds to final
judgment (the “CLASS PERIOD") |

16. PLAINTIFF also seeks to represent the followmg subclasses (collectively,
“QUBCLASSES™), defined as follows:

a. “NON-EXEMPT EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current
and former nc;n-exempt employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California
at any time within the LASS PERIOD.

b. “PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current and
former employees of DEFENDANTS in .the State of Caiifomia at any time |
within the CLASS PERIOD who were employed to sell at retail drugs and
mediéines or to compound physicians’ prescriptions.

c. “FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all former

"employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time within the
CLASS PERIOD. '

d. “BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current and
'fonnér employeeé of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time; '
within the CLASS PERIOD who used personal cell phones for work-rclated
purposes without adequate réimbursement.

e. “VACATION PAY SUBCLASS,” which is defined as all current and former
5
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employees of DEFENDANTS in the State of California at any time within the |
CLASS PERIOD who were not provided all vacation time, or wages in lieu
_thereof, in compliance with California law. . |

17.. PLAINTIFF reserves the right to redefine the definitions of THE CLASS or
SUBCLASSES as appropriate based on further investigation, discovery, and specific theories of
liability. |

DEEENDANTS .

18.  DEFENDANTS operate the largest retail pharmacy chain in the United States, with l
hundfeds of hhysical Tocations in California, including standalone stores and locations within
Target branded stores As part of their operatlons, DEFENDANTS employ pharmacnsts to, among
other thmgs dlspense medlcauons, counsel patients on the use of prcscnptlon and over-the-counter
medlcatlons and advise physicians about medication therapy In many locatlons DEFENDANTS
also empioy pharmacy technicians to assist with the dispensation of medication to its customers,
though there are CVS locations where only a pharmacnsl is employed to handle all pharmacy
operations. ' o

i9, . . At all times relevant heréto, DEFENDANTS were, and ahe, corpofations authorizéd
to do business in the State of California and do in fact conduct business in the State of California.
Speciﬁcaily, upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS maintain facilities and conduct business
in the County of San Francisco, State of California. Specifically, |

a. DEF ENDANT CVS HEALTH CORPORATION is a corporation organized
under the laws of the State of Rhode Island that is engaged in the business of
‘operating retail stores that sell pharmaceuticals and general merchandise and
prov:de pharmacy services throughout the State of California.

b, DEFENDANT CVS PHARMACY, INC. is a corporation organized under the
laws of the State of Rhode Island that i is engaged in the business of operating
retail stores that sell pharmaceuticals and general merchandise and provide
pharmacy services throughout the State of California. |

¢. DEFENDANT GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC. (collectively with
6
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DEFI:NDANTS CVS RX SERVICES, INC,, and CVS PHARMACY INC. ) isa
llmlted liability company orgamzed under the laws of the State of California that _
is engaged in business as a pharmacy and medical supplier to CVS retail stores
located throughout the State of California. _
d. DEFENDANT CVS RX SERVICES, INC. is a corporation organized under the
 laws of the State of New York that is engaged in the business of providing
pharmacy services throughout the State of California.

20.  The true names and capacities of DOES 1 .through 25, inglusi\}e (“DOES™), are
unknown to PLAINTIFF at this time, and PLAINTIEF therefore sues such DOE Defendants under'
fictitious names. PLAI’NTIFF is infonﬁed and belie'ves, and_thereon alleges, that each Defendant
designated-as a DOE is in some manner highly responsible f_:or the occurrences alleged heréin, and
that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS’ injuries and damages, as’ alleged herein, were
proximately caused by the conduct of such DOE Defendants, PLAINTIFF. will seek leave of the
court to amend this complaint to atlege the true names and capacities of such DOE Defendants when
ascértained.

21. PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, .and bésed thereon alleges, that each
DEFENDANT actéd in all lrespects pertinent to this action as the agent of the other DEFENDANTS,
carried out a joint scheme, business plan or policy in all respects pertinent hereto, and the acts of
eéch DEFENDANT are legally attributable to the other DEFENDANTS.

22, PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that CVS HEALTH
CORPORATION, CVS PHARMACY, INC., GARFIELD BEACH CVS, LLC, and CVS RX
SERVICES, INC each employed PLAINTIFF, in that they exercised control over PLAINTIFF’s
wages, hours or working conditions, suffered and permitted PLAINTIFF to work, and/or engaged
PLAINTIFF to work. See Martinez v. Combs (2010) 49 Cal.4th 35, 64. Any of the three is sufficient
to create an employment relationship. Ochoa v. McDonald's Corp.,. 133 F. Supp. 3d 1228, 1233
(N.D. Cal. 2015) '

23. To the extent one or more of DEFENDANTS did not directly hire, fire, or supervise

PLAINTIFF, PLAINTIFF further alleges that, upon information and belief, one or more
7
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DEFENDANTS control the business enterprises of one or more of the other DEFENDANTS, thereby
creating an employment relationship with PLAINTIF F; See Castancdé v. Ensign Group, Inc. (2014)
229 Cai.App.4th 1015, 1017-1018; Guerﬁero v. Superior Court (2013) 213 Cal.App.4th 912, 950. |

"24.  As adirect and proximate result of the unlawful actions of DEFENDANTS,
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have suffered, and continue to suffer, from los.s of eamnings
in amounts as yet unascertained, but subje.ct to pro_of at trial, and within the jurisdiction of this
Court. _ ' .

25. All DEFENDANTS compelled,lcoe'rced,' aidéd, and/or abetted the illegal conduct
alleged in this Complaini, which conduct is prohibited under the Labor Code. All DEFENDANTS
were responsible for the events and damages alleged herein, including on the foliowing bases: (a)
DEFENDANTS committ-ed the acts alleged; (b) at all relevant times, one or more of the
DEFENDANTS was the agent or employee, and/or acted under the control or superviéion of, one or
rhqre of the remaining DEFENDANTS and, in committing the acts alleged, acted within the course

and scope of such agency and employment and/or i-s or are otherwise liable for PLAINTIFF’s
damages; () at all relevant times, there existed a unity of ownership and interest between or among
those DEFENDANTS such that any individuality and separateﬁess between or among these
DEFENDANTS has ceased, and DEFENDANTS are the alter egos of one another. DEFENDANTS
exercised domination and control over one anofher to such an extent that any individuality or
separateness of DEFENDANTS does not, and at all times herein mentioned did not, exist. Adherence
to the fiction of the separate existence of DEFENDANTS would permit abuse of the corporate
privilege and would sanction fraud and promote injustice. All actiéns of all DEFENDANTS were
taken by employees, supervisors, executives, officers, and directors during employment ‘;Nith all
DEFENDANTS, were taken on behalf of all DEFENDANTS, and were engaged in, authorized,
ratified, and approved of by all other DEFEN DANTS '

26.  Finally, at all relevant times mentloned herein, all DEFENDANTS acted as agents of
all other DEFENDANTS in committing the acts alleged herein.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
27. DEFENDANTS employed, and continue to employ, employees throughout

8
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California during the last four (4) years.

28. Based on information and bélieﬂ PLAINTIFT believes tﬁat other members of T HF
CLASS and SUBCLASSES were subject to the same policies, practices and conduct that resulted
in the foltowing: ' |

a. Routinely working through meal and/or rest breaks without proper
corripensation for éhe same, inéluding the paymeni of penalties for interrupted
meal and/or rest breaks;

b. Routinely working off-the-clock when answering work-related text thessages .
and/or whenlforced by management to continue to work »_vh.il_e clocked out,
without receiving wages, premium pay, or minimum wages for the off-the-clock .
time worked; ' '

¢c. No compénsation for unpaid wages and/or premium pay at the time of
termination;

d. Use of personal cell phones without adequate reimburs;.ement;

e. Receiptof inaccuréte wage statements; -

f. Lack of receipt of f;\dequate written notice of paid sick leave;

g. Routinely working without receiving one day’s rest in seven; and

h. Routinely working in excess of the prescribed time limitations set forth in Labo.r
Code sectipns 850 and 851. | |

29. DEFENDAI\iTS acted pursuant to common, cpmpany-wide policies and practices
regarding the provision of meal and/or rest breaks; the practice of requiring employees to work pﬂ’-
the-clock; scheduling employees for work; the Company’s payroll and wage payments to
employees, including the provision of wage statements; reimbursements of necessary business
EXpenses; ti]ﬁe and pay recordkeeping; and notice to employees of paid sick leave.

30. In particular, DEFENDANTS’ reliance on perforrhance and/or prescription fill-time
metrics, centralized scheduling systems, managerial instructions, aﬁd operational policies and
procedures applied on a class-wide basis.

. 31.  Upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS maintain a single, centralized Human
9 .
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Resources department, which is responsible for the hiring'c;f new employees, coilecting and
processing all new hire paperwork, ana commun.icating and implementing DEFENDANTS’
company-wide policies and practices, including timekeeping policies, meal and rest break policies,
sick time policies, vacation time policies, and payroll policies and practices applicable to their
employees in Californ.ia. .

32.  On information and Belief, PLAINTIFF and CLLASS MEMBERS received the same
standardized documents and/or written policies. Upon information and beliet, DEEENDANTS
created uniform policies and procedures at the corporate.level and implemented them
companywide, regétrdless of the employees’ location.

33. PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon allégés, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should haye known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitied to meal
periods in accordance with the Labor Code or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at the
regu]ar rate when PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not provided with timely,
uninterrupted, thirty (30) minute meal periods and that PLAINTIFF and CI.LASS MEMBERS were
not provided with all meal periods or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at their regular rate
when PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS did not receive a timely, uninterrupted thirty (30) -
minute meal period. . ‘

34, PLAINTIFF is infprmed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should havé known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to
uninterrupted rest periods in accordance with the Labor Code and Industrial Wage Order (“TWC™)
Wage Order 7-2001 or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at their regular rate when
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not authorized and permitted to take compliant rest
periods and that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not authorized and permitted to take
f:ompliant rest periods or payment of one (1) additional hour of pay at their regular rate when
PLAINTIFF anci CLASS MEMBERS were not provided a compliant rest period.

35.  PLAINTIFF is informed and beliéves and thereon alleges that DEFENDANTS

-knéw or should have known that PLA’INTIFF and CLASS MEMEBERS were entitled to receive

and did not receive overtime compensation for work that DEFENDANTS knew or should have
- 10
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known was performed.

36. PLAINTIFF is informed ana believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known .that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to receive at
least minimum wéges for compensatign and that, in violation of the Labor Code, they were not
receiving at least minimum wagés for work that DEFENDANTS knew or should have known was
performed.

37. PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS

’knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to timely

|| payment of wages upon termination of employment. In violation of the Labor Code,

DEFENDANTS did not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS all wages due, including, but
not li;nit'ed to, overtime wages, minimum wages, and meal and rest period premium wages, within
statutorily chuired time periods. .

38. PLAINTIFF is informed ap_d believes, and thereon allegés, that DEFENDANTS

knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to timely
payment of wages during their employment. In violation of the Labor Code, DEFENDANTS did

not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS all wages, including, but not llimite.d fo, overtime
wages, minimﬁm wéges, and meal and rest period premi{;m wages, within statutoriiy required time
periods. |

39. PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, tﬁat at all tim.es hgrein
mentioned, DEFENDANTS. knew or should have kno% that DEFENDANTS had a duty to
compensate PLAINTIFF anc.i CLASS MEMBERS for all hours worked, and that DEFENDANTS

had the financial ability to pay such compensation but wi]lfully,. knowingly, and intentionally failed

to do so in violation of the Labor Code.

40. PLAINTIFF is informed an.d believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to rece~ive full
réimburseﬁ‘lent for all business-related expenses and costs they-incurred during the course and |
scope of their employment, and that they did not receive full reimbursement of applicable business-

related expenses and costs in violation of the Labor Code.
11
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41, PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS

knew or should have known that they had a duty to maintain accurate and complete payroll records |. -

in accordance with the Labor Code and [WC Wage Order 7-2001, but. willfully, knowingly, and
mtentlonally failed to do so. . -

42. Upon information and belief, DEFENDANTS maintain a centralized Payroll -
department at their company headquarters, which processes payroll for gli employees working for
DEFENDANTS at their various locations in California, including PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBBRS Based upon information and belief, DEFFNDANTS issue the same formatted wage
statements to all employees in California, irrespective of the:r work location. PLAINTIFF is
informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS knew or should have known that
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to receive complete and accurate wage
statements _in accordance with California law. In violation qf the Labor Codé, DEFENDANTS did
not provide PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS with complete and accurate wage statements:

43.  PLAINTIFF is iﬁformed and believes, and thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to written
notice of paid sick leave or paid time off available. In violation of the Labor Code,
DEFENDANTS did not provide to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS written notice of paid
sick leave or paid time off available.

44.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, and thereon allegcs that D};FENDAN TS

knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were entitled to one day’s

rest in seven, énd that they did not receive one day’s rest in seven in violation of the Labor Code.
45.  PLAINTIFF is informed and believes, ar;d thereon alleges, that DEFENDANTS
knew or should have known that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were not to perform any
work in any store, dispensary, pharmacy, laboratory, or office for more than an average of nine
hours per day, or for more than 108 hours in any two consecutive weeks or. for more than 12 days
in any two consccutive weeks, and that DEFENDANTS should not have required PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS to do so, but that PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS did work an average

of more than nine hours per day and/or more than 108 hours in any two consecutwe weeks of more |
12 :
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than 12 days in any two consecutive weeks in violation of the [.abor Code at DEFENDANTS’

direction.

| SATISFACTION OF CLASS ACTION CRITERIA

46.  PLAINTIFF brings this action on his own behalf, as well as on behalf of each and
all other persons similarly situated and seeks class cert1ﬁcat10n of THE CLASS and |
SUBCLASSES under California Code of Civil Procedure section 382. Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 382

47. Al claims alleged herein arise under California law for which PLAINTIFF seeks
relief authorized by California law. ' '

48. Thereisa well;deﬁned community of interest in litigation and the class members
are readily ascertamable _ |

| A. Numerosnly The members of THE CLASS and SU BCLASSFS are so

numerous fhat joinder of all mémbers would be unfeasible and impractical. The membership of the
enhre class is unknown to PLAINTIFF at this time; however [HE CLASS is estimated to be

greater than one thousand (1000) individuals and the identity of such membershnp is readily

ascertamable by inspection of DEFENDANTS’ employment records. .

B. Typicality: PLAINTIEF is quahﬁed to, and will, fairly and adequately
protect the interests of each member of THE CLASS with whom he has a well-defined community
of interest; and PLAINTIFF’s claims (or defenses, if any) are typical of all class members as
demoristrated herein. ' . | _

C. Adequacy: PLAINTIFF is qualified to, and will, fairly and adequately
protect the interest of each class mcrﬁber with whom he has a well-defined 'community. of interest
and typicality of claims, as demonstrated herein. PLAINTIFF acknowledges that he. has an
obligation to make known to the Court any relétioﬁship, conflicts, or differences \a-n'th any class
member. PLAINTIFF’s attorneys, the proposed class counsel, are vei"sed in the rules governing
class action discovery, certification, and settlement. PLAINTIFF has incurred, and throughout the
duration of this action, will continue to incur costs and attorneys’ fées that have béen, are, and will
be necessarily expanded for the prosecution of this action for the substantial benefit of each class

member. .
13
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D. Superiority: The nature of this action makes the use of class action
adjudication superior to other methods. A class action will achieve economies of time, effort, and

expense as compared with separate lawsuits, and will avoid inconsistent outcomes because the

{ same issues can be adjudicated in the same manner and at the same time for the entire class.

E. . Public Policy Considerations: California has a stated public policy in favor

of class actions in this context for the vindication of employee rights and eriforcement of the Labor
Code. Employers in the State of California violate employment and labor laws every day. Current
employees are often afraid to assert their rights out of fear of direct or indirect retaliation. Former
employees are fearful of bringing actions because they believe their former employers might
damage their future endeavors through negative references and/or other mea.ns.‘Clas.s actions
provide the class members who are not named in the complaint with a type of anonymity that
allows for the vindication of their rights while _simultaneoilsly protecting their privacy.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Provide Requlred Uninterrupted Meal Periods
. (Cal. Lab. Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and 1198; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
| (Agamst ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25) ‘
49. PLATNTIF F incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herem each
and every allegation set forth above.

50. At all relevant times, Labor Code sectione 226.7, 512(a), and 1198 have provided

|| that no employer shall require an employee to work during any meal period mandated by an

applicable order of the IWC. IWC Wage Order 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8
§ 11050. |

51. At all relevant times herein, Labor Code section 512 has provided that “[a]n
employer may not employ an employee for a work period of more than five hours per day without
providing the employee with a meal period of not less than 30 minutes,” except that if the total
work period per day of the employee is not more than six (6) hours, the meal period may be waived
by mutual consent of both the employer and employee. Cal. Lab. Code § 512(a). During this meal

period of not less than thirty (30) minutes, the employee is to be completely free of the employer’s
14
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control and must not perform any work for the employer. If the employee does perform work for
the employer during this thirty (30) minute meal period, the employee has not been provided with a
duty-free meal period, in accordance with California law, and is to be compensated for any work ‘
performed during this (30) minute meal period in additioﬁ to olne (1) addittonal hour of
compensation at each employée"s regular rate of pay for each workday that a meal period was not
provided. See also IWC Wage Order 7-2001(11), c;odr‘ﬁed at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

52. At all relevant times herein, pursuant to Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), 1198
and the applicable IWC Wage Order, an employer may not employ an employee for a work périod
of more than ten (10) hours per day without providing the emplo’yee with another meal period of
not less than thin.y (30) minuies, or to pay an employee one (1) additional hour of pay at the
employee’s regulati rate, except that if the total hours worked is no more than t.welve (12) hours, the
second meal period méy be waived by mutluai consent of the employer and the employee only if .
the first meal period was not waived. 1WC Wage Order 7-2001(1 1), codified at Cal. Code Regs.

tit. 8 § 11050.
53. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAINTIFF and

CLASS MEMBERS with a full, thirty (30) minute uninterrupted meal period free from job duties,
as required by Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and IWC Order No. 7-2601 (11), codified at Cal.
Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050, | | | |

54. Atall .relevar{t times herein, DEFENDANTS further violated 'Lablor Code section
226.7 and IWC Order No. 7-2001 by failing to compensate PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS
who were not pro:vided with an uninterrupted meal period or one (1) additional hour of _
comﬁensation at each employee’s regular rate of pay for each workday that a meal i)criod was not
provided. Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(c), IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at Cal. Code I.{egs. tit. 8
§ 11050. |

55. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS had, and continue to have, a company-

wide policy of failing to schedule and provide uninterrupted meal breaks for PLAINTIFF and

27 ||lCLASS MEMBERS. DEFENDANTS have understaffed, and cbntinue to understaff, its locations

without providing sufficient meal break coverage, such that PLAINTIFF and CL.ASS MEMBERS
15 : .
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were prevented from taking all timely and uﬁimerrupted thirty (30) minutes meal periods; as such,
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were routinely forced to work oft-the-clock during their |
meal periods in order to comply with DEF ENDANT S’ demands and instructions to meet pharmacy
customers’ expectations. Moreover, DEFENDANTS did ﬁot providé PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS with a second uninterrupted thirty (30) minute meal period on days they worked over
ten (10) hours, as fequired by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §8§ 256.7, 512(a); IWC Order No. 7-
2001(11), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050, | '

56. At all relevant times herein, as a result of DEFENDAN s’ scheduhnf, policies and
understaffing, in order to meet DEFENDANTS’ exp_ectations and cu_storher demands, PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS were forced to miss and/or take late or interrupted meal breaks, in
violation of the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); and [WC Order No. 7-2001(11).
codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8§ 11050.

57. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS knew, or should have known, thatas a result of
DEFENDANTS’ scheduling policies and practices of understaffing, PLAINTIFF and CLLASS -
MEMBERS were forced to miss and/or take late or interrupted meal breaks, and that
DEFENDANTS did not pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS meal period premium wages
when meal periods were late and/or mterrupted '

58. Atall tlmes herein, DEFENDANTS failed to properly calculate the regular rate of
pay for purposes of paying meal period premiums to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by
ipc]uding all compensation, such as shift differential pay and other compensation, as required by
the Labor Code. See Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a); and IWC Order No. 7-2001(11), codified at
Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. | |

59. - DEFENDANTS’ onlnduct violates Labor Code sections 226.7, 512(a), and IWC
Order No 7-2001(11), codified at Cal Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

60. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according

to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, expenses, and costs of suit.

16
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Authorize And Permit Required Rest Breaks
‘ (Cal. Lab. Code sections 226.7, 1198; Cal. Code Regs; tit. 8 § 11050.)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

61.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegatlon set forth above.

62. -Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code sectlons 226.7 and 1198 and [WC Wage
Order 7-2001 were applicable to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS employed by
DEFENDANTS. |

63. At all relevant times herein, IWC Wage Order 7-2001 has stated that “[e]very
emﬁloyer shall'authorlize and permit all employees to take rest periods ... at thé rate of ten (10)
minutes net rest time per four (4) hours or major fraction thereof” unless the total daily work time
is less than three and one-half (3.5) hours. IWC Order No. 7-2001(12), codified at Cal. Code Regs.
tit. 8 § 11050.

64. At all relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226.7 provides that *[a]n employer
shall nét require an employee to work during a meal or rest or recovery period mandated pursuant
to an applicable statute....” Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(b). ' _

65.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS regularly failed to authorize or perrmt
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS to take ten (10) minute uninterrupted rest periods for each
four 4) hours worked, or major fraction thereof: PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were
regularly denied unmterrupted rest periods in violation of the Labor Code. 1WC Wage Order 7-
2001, codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050; see also Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(b).

66. Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS’ staffing policies and schedﬁiing
praqtices prevented PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS from.bei_ng relieved of all duties in order
to take an uninterrupted rest lbreak. DEFENDANTS failed to relinquish any control over how
employees spend thg:ir break time. See Augustus v. ABM Security Systems, Inc., 2 Cal. 5th 257, 260
(2016). Asa resglt, PLA[NTIF F and CLASS MEMBERS would work shifts in excess of 3.5

hours, in excess of six (6) hours, and in excess of ten (10) hours, without receiving the
17
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uninterrupted ten (10) minute rest periods to which they were entitled.

67. By DEFENDANTS’ t:ajlure to authorize and permit PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS to take un'interrupted rest bfcaks for every four (4) hours or major fracltion thercof
worked per day, DEF ENDANTS willfully viglated the Lﬁbor Code. IWC Wage Order 7-2001(12),
codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 110501; see also Cal. Lab. Code § 226.?.

68. Atall relevantltimes herein, Labor Qod;a section 226.7 has provided that “[i}f an
employer fails to provide an employee a meal or rest or recovery period in accordance with a state
law... the employer shall pay the employee one additional hour of pay at the employee’s regular |
rale of compensation for each workday that the meail or rest or recovery period is not provided.”
Cal. Lab. Code § 226.7(c); IWC Order No. 7-2001 (12), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

| 69.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS have had a cpmpany—wide policy and
practice of not paying PLAINTIF-F and CLASS MEMBERS rest period premiums when rest
periods were missed, late and/or intefrupted. |

70. At ail times herein, DEF ENDANTS failed to properly calculate the regular rate of
pay for.purposes of paying‘rest period prgmiums to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by
Jincluding all compensation, such as shift differential _pa-y and other compensation, as required by
the Labor Cod-e. See Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226.7, 512(a), and IWC Order No. 7-2001(1 1),. codiﬁed.at
Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

71.  DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 226.7, 1198, and IWC Order
No. 7-2001, codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

72.  PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, expenses, and costs of suit. '.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Pay Overtime
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 510, 1198; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
73.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each

and every allegation set forth above.
18
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74.  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 510 has mandated that any time
worked beyond eight hours in one workday or beyond 40 hours in any workweek must be
compensated at no iess than one aﬁd one~ﬁalf times the regular wage. See Cal. Lab. Code § 5 10(a).

75.  IWC Wage Order 7-2001 further provides that employees “shall not be employed
more thaﬁ eight (8) hours in any workday or more than 40 hours in any workweek unless the
employee receives one and one-half (1 '4) times such employee’s reguiaf rate of pay for all hours
worked over 40 hours in the workweek.” IWC Order No. 7-2001(})(A), codified at Cal. Code
Regs. tit. 8 § 11050; see also Cal. [.ab..Code § 1198.

76. At all relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS were required to compensate
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS for all overtime, calculated at one and one-half (1 ) times
the regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day and/or forty (40)
hours per week, and for the first eight (8) hours on.the seventh consecutive workday, with double-
tifné for all hours worked in excess of twelve (12) h:)urs in any workday and for all hours worked
in excess of eight (8) hours on the seventh consecutive day of work in any workweek. Cal. Lab.
Code §§ 510, 1194, IWC Wage Order 7-2001(3), codified at Calr Code ché. tit. 8 § 11050.

77. At a.ll relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS willfully failed to pay all overtime
wages owed to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS. During the CLASS PERIOD, PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS were not paid overtime premiums for all of the hours they worked in
excess of eight (8) hours in a day, in excess of twelve (12) hours in a day, in excess of eight (8)
hours on the seventh (7th) consecutive day of work ir; a workweek, and/or in excess of forty (40)
hours in a week, because all hours were not recorded. ‘ .

.78. Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to compensate PLAINTIFF and

CLASS MEMBERS for al] overtime hours worked by: failing to pay overtime at one and one-half

(1 %) times or double the regular rate; requiring, pérmirting or suffering PLAINTIFF and CLASS

MEMBERS to work through meal and rest periods; and inaccurately recording time in which
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked. |
79.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS’ failure to provide adequate cdverage

for meal penods for PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS so that they could be relieved of all
. 19
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duties and take timely, uninterrupted thirty (30) minu‘tes meal periods forced PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS to work off-the-clock during meal periods to complete their assigned tasks.

80.  Atall relevant tiimes herein, DEFENDANTS had a company-wide pattern and
practice of requiring PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS to communicate with DEFENDANTS
and DEFENDANTS?® other employees using personal cellular phones, including during days off
and outside of scheduled shifts. DEFENDANTS knew or shouid have known that PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS were communicating with DEFEN'DANT_S and other employees' while oft-
the-clock in order to meet DEF ENDANTS’ demands, but DEFENDANTS failed to compensate
PLAINT]FF or CLASS MEMBERS for this off-the-clock work. Therefore, PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS were not paid overtime wages for all overtime hours worked.

81.  Atall times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to properly calculate the regular' rate of
pay for purposes of paying overtime to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS by including all
compensation, such as shift differential pay and other compensation, as required by the Labor -
Code. See Alvarado v. Dart Container Corp. of California, 4 Cal.5th 542 (2018).

82. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Lébor Code sections 510 and | 195 and IWC
Order No. 7-2001(3), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8§ 11050, |

83. PLAINTIEF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, expenses, attorneys’ fees

and costs of suit.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Pay Minimum Wages
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 1182.12, 1194, 1197, .1197.1, and 1198;
and Cal. Code Regs. Tit. 8, § 11050) '
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
84. P'!;AINTIFF incorporates by referenr;e and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above.
85. . At all relevant times herein, employers operating under California law must pay at

least minimum wage to their employees for all hours worked. 1WC Order No. 7-2001(4), c&d;‘ﬁed
20 E
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at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. Arl employee not paid at lé_ast minimum wage is entitled té
recover the unpaid balance of such wages. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 11 82.12 and 1194. In addition, an - |
employee 15 entitled to recovel" liquidated damages equaling the wages unlawfully unpaid, as well
as interest. Cal. Lab. Code §1194.2. An employer failing to pay minimum wages must pay a civil
penalty of $100 for the initial pay period and $250 for each subsequent pay ﬁeriod during which
such vaolatlons occurred. Cal. Lab. Code § 1197.1. ’ )

86. At all relevant times herein, as a result of DEF ENDANTS’ stafﬁng and schedulmg
pblic-ies and practices, PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS were fofced to miss or shorten their
meal periods in order to meet DEFENDANTS’ expectations and customer demands. PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS were also required to perform Off-the-clock work on their days off and .
outs:de of scheduled shifts, including usmg their personal cellular phones

87.  Atall relevant times herem, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CL.LASS
MEMBERS minimum wages tor all hours worked by: requiring, permitting or suffering
P.l.,AlINTIl-‘E and CLASS MEMBERS io work off-the-clock through rl'leal and rest breaks;
requiring, permitting or suffering PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMEBERS to work off-the-clock
outside of scheduled shifts!._ including by using their pexlsonal cell .p_hone on their days off. Asa
result of these actions DEFENDANTS did not pay at Jeast minimum wagéé for all hours worked by
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS.

88. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 1182.12, 1194, 1197
1197.1, and 1198 and IWC Order No. 7-2001(4), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.

89.  PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount accqrding
to pr(_)pf at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, interest, penalties, expenses, attorneys’ fees
and costs of suit. |

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Pay Timely Wages Due At Termination/Waiting Time Penaltics
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 201, 202, 203)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25) .

. 90.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
' 21
CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION COM PLAlNT




R

~N SN B W

Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 262 of 298

‘and every allégation set forth above.

91. At all relevant times herein, pursuant to Labor Code sections 201 and 202,
employer.s must pay all wages due upon termination and, if an employer terminates an employee,
the employee’s wages are “due and payable immediately.” Cal. Lab. Code § 201. Pursuant to
Labor Code section 202, employers aré required Lo pay all waf,cs due to an employee no later than
72 hours after the employee quits employment, unless the employee provided 72 hours of notice of
the intention to quit, in which case the employee is entitled to those wages at the time of quitting.
Cal. Lab. Code § 202.

92.  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 203 provides that “[i]f an employer
willfully fails to pay... any wages of an employee who is discharged or who quits, the wages of the

employee shall continue as a penalty from the due date thereof at the same rate until paid or until

‘an action therefor is commenced; but the wages shall not continue for more than 30 days.” Cal.

Lab. Code § 203.

93. At all relevant times herein, PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE
SUBCLASS were entitled to, but did not receive, meal and rest period premium wages, overtime
wages, minimum wages, vacation wages, and all compensation owed to them.

94, When PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS sepa’ratéd from
em‘ployment with DEFENDANTS, DEFENDANTS willfully failed to pay all wages owed.

95, DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 201, 202, and 203.

96.  As a consequence of DEFENDANTS’ willful conduct in not paying wages owed at
the time of separation from employment, PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE
SUBCLASS are entitled to 30 days’ worth of their overage daily wages as a penalty under Labor
Code section 203. See Drumm v. Morningstar, 695 F.Supp.2d 1014 (N.D. Cal. 2010).

97. PLAINTIFF and the FORMER EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS have been damaged in an
amount according to proofat tral, and seek all wages earned and due,.penaltieé, interest, expenses,

attorneys’ fees and costs of suit.

22
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SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Timely Pay All Wages
(Cal. Lab. Code sec.tions 204,1182.12, 1194, 1194.2, .,l 197, 1198,
and Cal. Code Regs. tit; 8 § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1to 25)
98.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by refercnce and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. o ’
99.  Atall times relevant herein, Labor Code section 204 has provided that all wages
earned by any person in any employment between the first (1st) and the fifteenth (15th) ddays,

inclusive, of any calendar month, other than those wages due upon termination of an efnployee, are
due and payable between the sixteenth (16th) and the twenty-sixth (26th) day of the month during
which the lab(-')r was performed. Labor Code section 204 further provides that. all wapes earned by
any person in any employment between the -sixteenth (16th) and the last day, inclusive, of any
calendar month, other than those wages due upon termination of an empioyee, are due and payable
between the first (I1st) and the ténth (10th) day of the following month. Cal. L.,ab. Code § 204(a).

100. - Atall times relevant herein, Labor Code section 204 has further provided that all
wages earned for labor in excess of the normal work period shall be paid no later than the payday
for the next regular payroll period. Cal. Lab. Code § 204(b). Alternatively, at all times relevant
herein, Labor Code section 204 has provided that the requiremcnt‘s of this section arc deemed
satisfied by the payment of wages for weekly, biweekly. or semimonthly payr;)ll if the wages are
paid not more than seven (7).calendar days following the close of the payroll period. Cal. Lab.
Code-§ 204(d). . :

101.  Atall rele-:vant times herein, Labor Code sections 1182.12, 1194, 1197, 1197.1 and

1i98 have provided that the minimum wage for employees fixed by the applicable IWC Wage

Order is the minimum wage to be paid to employees, and the payment of a wage less than the

minimum wage set by 'the IWC is unlawful, “Hours worked,” and therefore compensable time, is
defined in IWC Wage Order 7-2001 as “the time during which an employee is subject to the

control of an employer, and includes all time the employee is suffered or permitted to work,
23 -

CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION COMPLAINT




wn - (98} [

Mo TR - s N

Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 264 of 298

whether or not required to do so...” IWC Wage Ofdcr 7-2001(K), codﬁ’ie'dlat Cal Code. 'Regs. tit. 8
§11050(2)(K). 3

102 Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS willfully failed to pay PLAINTIFF and
CLASS MEMBERS all wages due including, but no.t_ limited 't-o.overtin'le wages, minimum wéges, .
and meal and rest period premium wages, within the periods mandated by Labor Code section 204.

103. Atall times_herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS for time spent by PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS answering text messages
related to work and as required by DEFENDANTS, which is deemed time worked and must be
compensated‘. .

104.  Atall relevant times herein, IWC Wage Order 7-2001 provides that “[e]ach
workday an eﬁrployee is required to report for work and does report, but is not putto work or is
furnished less than half said employee’s usual or scheduled day’s work, the employee shall be paid
for half the usual or scheduled day’s work, but in no event for less than two (2) hours nor more
than four (4) hours, at the employee’s regular rate of pay....” IWC Wage Ord‘er 7-2001 (5), chiﬁed
at Cal, Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050. |

. 105. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS for all work performed whiic;, off the clock, including checking and responding to text
messages and completing opening and closing procedures.

106. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed.to pay PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS all wages owed at their legally prescribed regular rate of pay.

107. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 204, 1182.12, 1194 1194.2,
1197, 1198, and IWC Order No. 7-2001, codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8.§ 11050.

108. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according -
to proof at ﬁal, and seek all wages earncd and due, pgnalties, interest, expenses, attomeys’ fees

and costs of suit.
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SKVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Reimburse For Employment Related Expenses -
(Cal. Lab.VCod,e section 2802) ‘
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

109. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and réalleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. '

110. At all relevant times herein, Labror Code section 2802 has required an employer to
indémnify an emp!o&ee “for all necessary expendilL;res or ioss;es incurred by the employee in direct
(':onsequence‘of the dischérge 'of his or her duties....” Cal. Lab. Code § 2802(a). This includes
costs associated with -the use of personal cell phones for work-related purposes. “If an employee is
required to make work;related calls on a personal cell phone, then he or she is incurring an expense |
for purposes of section 2802.* Cochran v. Schwan’s Home Service, Inc., 228 Cal. App. 4th 1137,
1144 (2014).

" 111, Atall relevant times herein, PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE
SUBCLASS incurred necessary business-related expenses and costs that were not reimbursed by
DEFENDANTS, including, but not limited to, thel: cost for cell'phone usage. PLAINTIFF and the
BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS were required to use their personal cell phones to exchange
text mess:ages with DEFENDANTS’ management. DEFENDANTS did not .providé PLAINTIFF
or the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS with a work-issued ceil phone nor has it reimbursed
PLAINTIFF and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS for the necessary expenses they incurred

.|{ in using their personal cell phones for DEFbNDANTS business.

112 At all relevant times, DEFENDANTS have intentionally and wi]lﬁilly failed to
reimburse.'PLAINTIFf*‘ and the BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCLASS for necessai*y business-related
expenses and costs. DEFENDANTS’ company-wide practice of requiring PLAINTIFF and the
BUSINESS EXPENSE SUBCﬁASS to use their own personz}l cellular phones for work violates -
Labor Code section 2802 '

113. PLAINTIFF and the BU SlN]:,SS EXPENSE SUBCLASS have been damaged in an
amount according to proof at trial, and seek ail wages earned and due, penalties, interest, attorneys’

- 25
CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION COMPLAINT




th

D o0 ~J Lo

Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 266 of 298

fees, expenses, and costs of suit.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Maintain Required Records
(C.al. Lab. Code sections 226(a), 226.3, 1174(d), and 1198.5; and Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8
' ‘ § 11050.) | .
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

114.  PLAINTIF F'incorpc;ratés by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. .

115, Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 1174 has provided that every
employer shall “[k]eep, at a central Iocaﬁon in the state or at the plants or establishments at which
employees are employed, payroll records showing the hours worked daily by and the wages paid
to, and the number of piece-rate umts earned by and any applicable piece rate paid to, employees
employed at the respective plants or establishments. These records shall be kept ... on file for not -
less than three years.” Cal. Lab. Code §1174(d).

116. Pursuant to IWC Wage Order 7-2001, employers are requirea to keep accurate time
records including, but not limited to, when the employee begins.and ends each work period and |
meal period. [WC Order No. 7-2001(7), codified at Cal. Code Regs. t‘it. 8 § 11050. During the
CLASS PERIOD, DEFENDANTS failed to keep accurate records of meal period start and éto_p
times for PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS in violation of the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code
§1198.5; IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tt. 8 § 1 1050.

117.  Atall relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226 provides that an employer is to
maintain accurate records, iﬁcluding, but :'10t limited to: total daily hours worked by each
employee; applicable rates of pay; all deductions; meal periods; time records showing when Each
employee begins and ends each work period; and accurate itemized statements. By
DEFENDANTS’ company-wide policies-and practices of inacc'urate!y re;:ordi,ng time in which
PLAINTIFF .and CLASS MEMBERS worked, including failing to record time duri.ng which
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS worked, 'D;EFFNDANTQ knowingly and intentionally failed

to maintain records as required by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226(a), 1174(d); see alw
26 -
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IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050,

118 PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to [;roof at trial, and seek all wages eamed and due, penalties, interest, attbmeys’ fees, expenses,
and costs of suit. |

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Furnish Accurate Itemized Wage Statements
(Cal. Lab. Code; section 2ﬁ6(a), 226(e), 226.3, Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

119. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. ‘ |

120. - At all relevant times herein, Labor Code section 226 has required empioye-rs to
furnish each employee an accurate and itemized wage statement in writing that includes, but not -
limited to; total daily hours worked by each émployee;_applicable rates of pay; all deductions; meal
periods; and total hourg worked. See C_al..Labv. Code § 226(a); IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7),
codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. § § 11050. |

121.  Atall relevant times herein, DEFENDANTS systematically provi_ded PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS with incomplete and inaccura}té wage statements. The violations include,
without iimitation, the failure to accurately list the tota) daily hours worked by each employee, total
regular aJ;d overtime wages earned, the accurate regular rate of pay, or meal and/or rest break
ﬁremiums entitled to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS.

122, Atall relevant imes herein, DEFENDANTS® failure to provide accurate iterr;izcd
wage statements was a knowing and iﬁtentional act based on their combapy-wide policy and
practice of failing to pay all wages owed as set forth herein in violation of Labor Code. Cal. Lab.
Code §§ 226(a), 226(g), 226.3.

+123. By DEFENDANTS’ company-wide policies and practices of inaccurately recording
time in which PLA[NTIFF-‘and CLASS MEMBERS worked, DEFENDANTS knowingly and
intentionally. failed to maintain records as required by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code §§ 226(a),

226(e), 226.3; IWC Wage Order 7-2001(7), codified at Cal. Code Regs. tit. 8 § 11050.
' : 27
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124. PLAINTIFF and CL.ASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to prodf at trial, and seek all wages eamed and due, penalties,'interest, attorneys’ fees, expenses,
and ¢osts of suit.

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Provide Written Notice of Paid Sick Leave
(Cal. Lab. Code sectmns 246(1))
(Agamst ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 2%’)
'125.  PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set férth above..

126 At all times herein, Labor Code section 246 has required that employers provide
employees with “written notice that sets forth the amount of paid sick leave available, or paid time
off an employer provides in lieu of sick leave, either on the employee’s itemized wage statement
described in section 226 or in a separate writing provided on the designated pay date with the
employee’s payment of wages.” Cal Lab. Code § 246(1). ' -

127. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS failed to provide PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS with the required written notice on ‘wage statements and/or other separate written

statements that listed the requisite information set forth in Labor Code section 246. Specifically,

| DEFENDANTS’ wage statements fail to state PLAINTIFF’s and CLASS MEMBERS’ paid sicg

leave balance, as ;equired by the Labor Code. Cal. Lab. Code § 246(i). -
'128.  DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code section 246(i).
129. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged i1.1 an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, attorneys’ fees, expenses,
and costs of suit.

ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Provide One Day’s Rest In Seven
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 551, 552, and 852)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)

130. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realieges as if fully stated herein each
28
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and every allegation ‘set forth aﬁoye.

131 Atall tim'es herein, Labor Code section 551 has pré\{ided that “[e]very person
employed in anyioccupétion of labor is entitled to one day’s rest therefrom in seven.” Cal. Lab.
Code § 551. .

132, Atall times heréin, Labor Code section 552 has provided that “[n]o employer of
labor shall cause his employees to work more than s;ix days in seven.” Cal. Lab. Code § 552.

. 133. - Atall times herein, Labor Code section 852 has provided that “[t]he employer shall
apportion the periods of rest to be takenl by an employee so that the employee will have one |
complete day of rest during each week.” Cal. Lab. Code § 852.

134. At all times Herein, DEFENDANTS failed to provide to PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS the Iegallf-mandated rest days as required by California law. Further, “an employer’s
obligation is to apprise employees of their entitlement to a day of rest and'ther,eaﬁer to maintain
absolute neutrality as to the exercise of that right.” Mendoza v. Nordstrom, Inc., 2 Cal. 5th 1074,
1091 (2017). DEFENDANTS failed to pI‘O\;ide this notice to PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS. _ _

135. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code séctions 551, 552, and 852. ‘

“136. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have been damaged in an amount according
to proof at trial, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest, attome'ys’ fees;, expenses,
and costs of suit, as well as relief pursuant to Labor Code.scction 853.

TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure To Comply with Labor COdl_-: Sections 850 and 851
(Cal. Lab. Code sections 850 and 851)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
137. PLAINTIFF incorporates b-y reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above.
138. | At all times herein, Labor Code section 850 has provided, in bertinent' part, that
“[n]o ﬁcrson employed to sell at retail drugs and medicines or to compound physicians'

prescriptions shall perform any work in any store, dispensary, pharmacy, laboratory, or office for
. 29 :
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more than an average of nine hours per d;1y, or for more than 108 hours in any tvlvo conseculive
weeks or for more than 12 days in any two consecutive weeks...” Cal. Lat;. Code § 850.

139.  Atall times herein, Labor l‘Code section 851 has prohibited employers from'.
requiring empioyees covered by Section 850 to work in excess of the hours prescribed therein. See.
Cal. Lab. Code § 851 |

140, At all times herein, .and in vi;)lation of Labor Code Section 851, DEFENDANTS
required PLAINTIFF and the PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCILASS to work in excess of the
hours pr;ascribed by Labor Code Section 850. |

141. DEFENDANTS’ conduct violates Labor Code sections 850 and 851.

142, PL'ATNTIFI; and the PHARMACY EMPLOYEE SUBCLASS have been damaged
in an amount according to proof at tﬁal, and seek all wages earned and due, penalties, interest,

attorneys’ fees, expenses, and costs of suit, , as well as relief pursuant to Labor Code section 853.

THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Unfair And Unlawful Business Practices
(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code section 17200, ef seq.)
(Against ALL DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 to 25)
| 143. PLAINTIFF incorporates by reference and realleges as if fully stated herein each
and every allegation set forth above. |

144. At all times herein, California Busi-ness & Professions Code provides that “persoﬁ” )
shall mean aﬁd .include “na%u?al persons, corporations, firms, partnerships, joint stock companies,
associations and other organizations of persons.” Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17201.

145. At all times herein, DEFENDANTS’ cbnduct, as alleged herein, has been, and
continues to be, unfair, unlawful and harmful to PLAINTIFF, CLASS MEMBERS, the general
public, and DEFENDANTS’ competitors_. PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS have suffered
injury in fact and h.ave lost rﬁoney as a result of DEFENDANTS® unlawful business practices.

146. Atalltimes he.rein, DEFENDANTS’ activities, as alleged herein, are violations of
California law, and constitute false, unfair, fraudulent and deceptive businéss acts and practices in
violation of California Business & Professions Code sections 17200 ef seq.

" CLASS AND REPRESENT:‘?WE ACTION COMPLAINT
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147. Eachand ev:ery oné of the DI”:’-FEND.ANTS’ acts ‘and omissions in violation of the
Labor Code and IWC Wage Order 7-2001 as alleged herein, including but not limited to
bFFENDANTS’ failure to authorize and provide uniﬁterrupted meal periods; DEFENDANTS’ .
fallure to authorize and permit uninterrupted rest penods, DEFENDANTS’ failure to pay overtime
compensation; DEF ENDANTS? failure to pay premium compensatlon at the legally prescribed

regular rate of pay; DEFENDANTS® failure 10 pay minimum wages; DEFENDANTS?’ failure to

pay all wages due to terminated employees; DEFENDANTS’ failure to furnish accurate wage.

statements; DEFENDANTS’ ‘failuré to maintain required records; DEFEND.ANTS’ failure to
provide written notice of paid sii:l; leave; DEFENDANTS’ failure to provide one day’é rest in
seven; and DEFENDANTS® failure to comply wi'th Labor Code Sections 850 and 851 constitutes
an unfair and unlawful business practice ﬁnder California Business & Profes§i_ons Code sections
17200 et seq. | |

148. DEFENDANTS’ violations of California wage and hour laws constitute a business
practice becau'sc DEFENDANTS’ aforementioned acts and omissions were déne repeatedly over a
significant period of time, and in a systematic manner, to the detriment of PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS. '

149.  As a result of the violations of California law herein described, DEFENDANTS
unlawfully gained an unfair advantage over other busmesses PLAINTIFF and CLASS
MEMBERS have suffered pecuniary loss by DEFENDANTS’ unlawful busmess acts and practlccs
alleged herein. _

150. . Pursuant to California Business & Professions Code sections 17200 ef seq.,
PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS are entitled to restitution of the wages withheld and retained
by DEFEN‘DANTS during a period that commences four years prior to the filing of this complaint;
a permanent injunction requiring DEFENDANTS to pay all outstanding wages due to PLAINTIFF
and CLASS MEMBERS; an award of attoméys’ fees pursuant to California Code of Civil
Procedﬁre section 1021.5 and other applicable laws; and an award of costs.

E

1
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Wherefore PLAINTIFF, individually and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated,
respectfully prays for relief against DEFENDANTS and Does | through 25, inclusive, and each of
th-em, as follows: | ‘ .

1. For compensatory damages in an amount to be ascertamed at trial;

2. For restitution of all monies due to PLAINTIFF and CLASS MEMBERS as well as
disgorged proﬁts from the un falr and unlawful business practices of DEFENDANTS;

3. For meal and rest period compensation pursuant to L .abor Code section 226.7 and
TWC Wage Order NO. 7-2001; _

4. For liquidated damages pursuant to Labor Code section 1194.2; _

5. For preliminary and permanent injunctive relief enjoining DEFENDANTS from
violating the relevant provisions of the Labor Code and IWC Wage Orders, and from engaging io
the unlawful business practices compiained of herein;

6. For waiting time penalties pursuant to Labor Code section 203;

7. For statutory-and civil penalties according to proof, including but not limited to all
penalties authorized by the Labor Code sections 226(e) and 853;

8. For mterest on the unpaid wages at 10% per annum pursuant to Labor Code -
Sections 218.6, 1194, 2802, California Civil Code sections 3287, 3288, and/or any other apphcable
provision providing for pre-judgment interest; |

9. For reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to Labor Code sections 1194,

2802, California Civil Code section 1021.5, and any other applicable provisions providing for

attomeys’ fees and costs;

10. For declaratory relief, _

1. For an order roquiring and certifying the thirteen Causes of Action pled in this
COMPLAINT as a class action; |

12.  For an order appointing PLAINTIFF as class representative, and PLAINT!FF"S
counse! as class counsel; and |

i
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13. For such further relief that the Court may deem just and proper. "

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL,

PLAINTIFF, on behalf of hirﬁseif and all others similarly situaied, hereby demands a jury’

trial with respect to all issues triable of right by jury.

DATED: August 21,2018 v ~ GUNN COBLE -LLP

3 Byt @ 'H
Beth Gu -
- Chehy Céble
Attorneys for Plaintiff RYAN HYAMS,

on behalf of himself, and all others similarly
situated '

33

CLASS AND REPRESENTATIVE ACTION COMPLAINT




Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 274 of 298

lf >\ )‘“\’I“\‘l«“‘l \‘m (] M 1]/‘0(( ek W(’J/l L" ‘\IH‘C{Q

TESTIMONIALS

Ll

avar il it el o g 277

- o Rlsivags “This was the third attempt to mediate this cose,-and
the BASF mediolor was far and away the best mediator.
I dare say thot we would not have seitled todoy but for
his efforts.”

George Yuhas, Esq.

Orrick, Herringlon & Sutcliffe LLP
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“We had an excellent experience ond, after 8 /2 hours of
mediation, [the BASF medialor] settled o very difficult cose
involving claims against four clients of ours by o wealthy
investor who cloimed inadequote disclosure was mode.”

: Robert Chorles Friese, £sq.
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"When the other side made their offer, | thought there wos

no way we would reach on agreement — we were too far
- apart, but the mediator brought us together. He saved me
, @ lotof ime and aggravation by facililating o setifement.
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“BASF slaHf was very helpful - stoyed on the tosk end kepd

afier a hard to reach party. The mediator was great!”
Mark Abelson, Esq.

|t o Campognoli, Abelson & Campagnoli
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“The {BASF] mediator was excellent! He wos effective with
some strong, forceful personalities.”

Denise A. leadbetter, Esq.

Zacks, Utrecht & Lleadbeller
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PROCEDURES, PODCASTS,
FORMS, MEDIATOR BIOGRAPHIES
AND PHOTOGRAPHS:
www.sfbar.org/mediation

adr@sfbar.org or
415-982-1600

Lg

THE BAR ASSOCIATION OF
SAN FRANCISCO
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WHAT IS BASF’S
MEDIATION SERVICE?

The Bar Association of Son Francisco’s Mediation
Services is a private mediation service which
will assist you with almost any iype of dispute,
from simple contract dispules to complex
commerciol matters,

- Lo
WHO ARE THE MEDIATORS?

They are established mediators who have private
mediation practices and have met our extensive
experience requirements, By going through BASF
you receive the services of these highly qualified
mediators of a great value.

S
HOW DO | LEARN MORE
ABOUT THE MEDIATORS?

BASF's website at www.slbor.org/mediation
provides bios, photos -and hourly rates of
medialors. You can seorch by name or by area

of low needed for your case. BASF siaff is

always avoiloble to assist you with selection or
o answer questions.

e
HOW MUCH DOES
THE SERVICE COST?

A $295 per party odministrative fee is poid to
BASF at the time the Consent to Mediate form
is filed. This fee covers the first hour of mediator
preparation time and the first wo hours of session
time. Time beyond that is poid at the mediator’s
normal hourly rate.

e
"HOW IS THE
MEDIATOR CHOSEN?

: You may request o specific mediator from our

website (www.sfbar.org/mediation) ond indicate
your choice on the BASF Consent lo Mediate
form, or you moy indicate on the form that you
would like BASF staff to assist with the selection.

o
WHY SHOULD { GO THROUGH BASF?
CAN'T | JUST CALL THE
MEDIATOR DIRECTLY?

BASF mediators have agreed to provide three
free hours as o service to BASF. If you go directly
to one ‘of our mediators, you do not qualify for
the free hours unless you notify us. Once you
have filed with us, you will tolk directly to the
mediator to ask questions and to set a convenient
mediation date and time.

- ~
HOW LONG 15 THE
MEDIATION SESSION?

" The fime spent in mediction will vary depending

on your dispute. BASF mediators ore dedicated
to reaching a setlement, whether you need o few
hours or several days.

N
- WHO CAN USE THE SERVICE?
BASF mediation can be ulilized by anyone and is
NOT limited to Son Francisco residents or-issues.

Also, the service may be used belore a court
action is filed or at any time during o court action.

e oo

WWW.SFBAR.ORGIMERIATION » ADR@SFBAR.O

/.-——\ )
OUR CASE IS FILED IN COURT. HOW DO
WE USE BASF’S MEDIATION SERVICES?

When you file the Son Francisco Superior -

Court's Stipulation to ADR form, check the box
indicating “Mediation Services of BASF.” Then
complete BASF's Consent to Mediate form found
on our website and file it with us. (If the matter
was filed in o different county, please check with
that court for the appropriate process.)

/-—-\
WE ARE ON A DEADLINE;
HOW QUICKLY CAN WE MEDIATE?

Once all parties have filed oll the paperwork,
BASF con normally have you in touch with
the mediator within o doy or two. If there
is' a deadline, BASF siaff will give the matter

lop priority. .
T
WHAT TYPES OF DISPUTES
CAN | MEDIATE?

BASF medialors are troined in 30+ areas of
low. if you don't see the arec you need on our
website or in this brochure, contact us; it is
very likely we can malch your need with one of
our ponelisis. ‘

B
MORE INFORMATION
Visit our website {www.stbor.org/mediation)
where you can ‘search by name or by area

of law. For personal assisiance, please call
415982-1600. '
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CASE NUMBER: CGC-18-569060 RYAN HYAMS VS, CVS HEALTH RPORATION, A RHODE

NOTICE TO PLAINTIFF

A Case Management Conference is set for:

DATE:  JAN-23-2019
TIME: 10:30AM

PLACE: Department 610
400 McAllister Street
San Francisco, CA 94102-3680

All parties must appear and comply with Local Rule 3.

CRC 3.725 requires the filing and service of a case management statement form CM-110
no later than 15 days before the case management conference. However, it would facilitate

the issuance of a casc management order without an appearance at the case

management conference if the case management statcment is filed, served and todged in
Department 610 twenty-five (25) days before the case managemcnt conference.

Plaintiff must serve a copy of this notice upon each party to this action with the summons and
complaint. Proof of scrvicc subsequently filed with this court shall so state. This case is
eligible for electronic filing and service per Local Rule 2.11. For more information,
pleasc visit the Court's website at www.sfsuperiorcourt.org under Online Services.

ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION POLICY REQUIREMENTS

iT IS THE POLICY OF THE SUPERIOR COURT THAT EVERY CiVIL
CASE PARTICIPATE IN EITHER MEDIATION, JUDICIAL CR NON-
JUDICIAL ARBITRATION, THE EARLY SETTLEMENT PROGRAM OR
SOME SUITABLE FORM OF ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
PRIOR TO A TRIAL.

(SEE LOCAL RULE 4)

Plaintiff must serve a copy of the Alternative Dispute Resolution Information Package on each
defendant along with the complaint. All counsel must discuss ADR with clients and opposing
counscl and provide clients with a copy of the Alternative Dispute Resolution Information
Package prior to filing the Case Management Statement.

[DEFENDANTS: Attending the Case Management Conference does not take the
place of filing a written response to the complaint. You must file a written
response with the court within the time limit required by law. See Summons.]

Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Coordinator
400 McAllister Street, Room 103

San Francisco, CA 94102

(415) 551-3869

See Local Rules 3.3, 6.0 C and 10 B re stipulation to judge pro tem.
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Superior Court of California, County of San Francisco

Alternative Dispute Resolution
Program Information Package

The plaintiff must serve a copy of the ADR information package
on each defendant along with the complaint. (CRC 3. 221(0))

WHAT IS ADR?

Altemative Dispute Resolution (ADR) is the term used to describe the various options avallable
for settling a dispute without a trial. There are many different ADR processes, the most commen
forms of which are mediation, arbitration and settlement conferences. In ADR, trained, impartial
people decide disputes or help parties decide disputes themselves. They can help parties
resolve disputes without having to go to court.

WHY CHOOSE ADR?

“It is the policy of the Superior Court that every noncriminal, nonjuvenile case participate either
in an early settlement conference, mediation, arbitration, early neutral evaluaﬁon or some other
altemattve dispute resolution: process prior to trial " {Local Rule 4) '

ADR can have a number of advantages over traditional litigation:
o ADR can save time. A dispute often can be resolved in a matter of months even
. weeks, through ADR, while a lawsuit can take years.
o ADR can save money, including court costs, aftorney fees, and expert fees.
« ADR encourages participation. The parties may have more opportunities to tell their
story than in court and may have more control over the outcome of the case.
- o ADR is more satisfying. For all the above reasons, many people participating in
. ADR have reported a high degree of satisfaction. ,

HOW DO | PARTICIPATE.IN ADR?
Litigants may elect to participate in ADR at any point in a case. General civil cases may
voluntarily enter into the court's ADR programs by any of the following means:
' o Filing a Stipulation to ADR: Complete and file the Stipulation form (attached to this
packet) at the clerk's office located at 400 McAllister Street, Room 103;
¢ Indicating your ADR preference on the Case Management Statement (also attached to
this packet); or
o Contacting the court’s ADR office (see below) or the Bar Association of San :
Francisco's ADR Services at 415-782-8905 or www.sfbar.org/adr for more information.

For more information about ADR programs or dispute resolution alternatives, contact:

Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution
400 McAllister Street, Room 103, San Francisco, CA 84102
415-551-3869

* Or, visit the court ADR website at _mivw.sfsbperiorcouﬂ.og

ADR-1 oal;s . (=)
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H

The San Francisco Supenor Court offers different types of ADR processes for general civil
matters each ADR program is described in the subsectlons below:

1) SETTLEMENT CONFERENCES

The goal of settlemeht conferences is to provide participants an opportunity to reach a mutually
.acceptable settlement that resolves all or part of a dispute early in the litigation process.

(A) THE BAR ASSOCIATION GF SAN FRANCISCO (BASF) EARLY SETTLEMENT
PROGRAM (ESP): ESP remains as one of the Court's ADR programs {see Local Rule 4.3) but

parties must setect the program — the Court no longer will order parties into ESP,

Operation: Panels of pre-screened attorneys (one plaintiff, one defense counsel) each
with at least 10 years' trial experience provide a minimum of two hours of settlement conference
time, "including evaluation of strengths and weakness of a case and potential case value. On -
occaslon, a panelist with extensive experience in both plaintiff and defense roles serves as a
sole panelist. BASF handles notification fo all partles, conflict checks-with the panelists, and full
case management. The success rate for the program is 78% and the satisfaction rate is 97%

Full procedures are at: www M

Cost: BASF charges. an administratlve fee of‘$295 per party with a cap of $590 for
parties represented by the same counsel. Waivers are available to those who qualify. For more
information, call Marilyn King at 415-782-8905, email adr@sfbar.org or see enclosed brochure.

(B) MANDATORY SETTLEMENT CONFERENCES: Parties may elect to apply to the
Presiding Judge's department for a specially-set mandatory settiement conferenice. See Local
Rule 5.0 for further instructions. Upon approval of the Presiding Judge, the court will schedule
the conference and assign the case for a settlement conference.

2) MEDIATION

Mediation is a voluntary, flexible, and confidential process in which a neutral third party facilitates
negotiations. The goal of mediation Is to reach a mutually satisfactory agreement that resolves
all or part of a dispute after exploring the interests, needs, and priorities of the parties In light of
relevant evidence and the law.

(A) MEDIATION SERVICES OF THE BAR ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO, in
cooperation with the Supenor Court, is designed to help civil litigants resolve disputes before
they incur substantial costs in litigation. While it is best to utilize the program at the outset of
litigation, parties may use the program at any time while a case is pending.

Operation: Expenenced professional mediators, screened and approved, provide one
hour of preparation time and the first two hours of mediation time. - Mediation time beyond that is
charged at the mediator's hourly rate. BASF .pre-screens all mediators based upon strict
educational and experience requirements. Parties can select their mediator from the panels at
www.sfbar.org/mediation or BASF can assist with mediator selection. The BASF website
contains photographs, biographies, and videos of the mediators as well as testimonials to assist
with the selection process. BASF staff handles conflict checks and full case management.
Mediators work with parties to arrive at a mutually agreeable solution. The success rate for the
program is 64% and the satisfaction rate is 99%. '

ADR-1 03/15 ) Fage2
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Cost: BASF charges an administrative fee of $295 per party. The hourly mediator fee
beyond the first three hours will vary depending on the mediator selected. Waivers of the
administrative fee are available to those who_qualify. For more information, cali Marilyn King at
415-782-8905, email adr@sfbar.org or see the enclosed brochure

(B) JUDICIAL MEDIATION provides mediation with a San Francisco Superior Court
judge for civil cases, which include but are not limited to, personal injury, construction defect,
employment, p‘rofessional malpractice, insurance coverage, foxic torts and induistrial accidents.
Parties may utilize this program at anytime throughout the litigation process. -

Operation: Parties interested in judicial mediation should file a Stipulation to Judicial
Mediation indicating a joint request for-inclusion in the program. A preference for a specific
Judge may be indicated. The court will coordinate assignment of cases for the program. There
is no charge for the Judicial Mediation program.

(C) PRIVATE MEDIATION: Although not currently a part of the court's ADR program,
parties may elect any private mediator of their cholce; the selection and coordination of private
. mediation is the responsibility of the parties.- Parties may find mediators and organizations on
the Intemet The cost of private medlahon will vary depending on the mediator selected.

3) ARBITRATION

An 'arbltrator is neutraj attorney who presides at a hearing where the parties present evidence
through exhibits and testimony. The arbitrator applies the law to the facts of the case and
“makes an award based upon the merits of the case.

. (A) JUDICIAL ARBITRATION: When the court orders a case to arbitration it is called
‘judicial arbitration®. The goal of arbitration is to provide parties with an adjudication that is
earller, faster, less formal', and usually less expensive than a trial.

Operation:. Pursuant to CCP 1141.11, al! civil actions in which the amount in controversy
-is $560,000 or less, and no party seeks equntable relief, shall be ordered to arbitration. {Upon
stipulation of all parties, other civil matters may be subrhitted to judicial arbitration.) An arbitrator -
is chosen from the court’s arbitration panel. Arbitrations are generally held between 7 and 9
months after a complaint has been filed. Judicial arbitration is not binding unless all parties
agree to be bound by the arbitrator’s decision. Any party may request a frial within 60 days after
the ‘arbitrator's award has been filed. Local Rule 4.2 allows for mediation in lieu of judicial
arbitration, so long as the parties file a stipulation to mediate after the filing of a complaint.
There is no cost to the parties for judicial arbitration.

(B) PRIVATE ARBITRATION: Although not currently a part of the court's ADR program,
civil disputes may also be resolved through private arbitration. Here, the parties voluntarily
consent to arbitration. If all parties agree, private arbitration may be binding and the parties give
up the right to judicial review of the arbitrator’s decision. In private arbitration, the parues select
a private arbitrator and are responsible for paying the arbitrator’s fees.

TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THE COURT'S ADR PROGRAMS, PLEASE COMPLETE THE ATTACHED
STIPULATION TO ADR AND SUBMIT {T TO THE COURT. YOU MUST At SO CONTACT BASF TO ENROLL IN
THE LISTED BASF PROGRAMS. THE COURT DOES NOT FORWARD COPIES OF STIPULATIONS TO BASF.

ADR-1 o3/15 ' Ga) - Page3
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Superior Coutt of California
" County of San Francisco

JEMIFFER B. ALCANTARA

Hon. TERIL. JACKSOP.J . o~ . . . d
PRESIDING JUDGE . JUdlClal Medlatlon Progam - _ ADR ADMINISTRATOR

The Judicial Mediation program offers mediation in. civil litigation with a San
Francisco Superior Court judge familiar with the area of the law that is the subject of the.
. controversy. Cases that will be considered for participation in the program include, but are
not limited to personal injury, professional malpractice, construction, employment, insurance
coverage disputes, mass torts and complex commercial litigation. Judicial Mediation offers
civil litigants the opportunity to engage in early mediation of a case shortly after filing the
complaint in an’ effort to resolve the matter before substantial funds are expended. This
program may also be utilized at anytime throughout the litigation process. The panel of

- judges currently participating in the program includes:

The Honorable Suzanne R. Bolanos The Honorable Stephen M. Murphy
The Honorable Angela Bradstreet The Honorable Joseph M. Quinn
The Honorable Andrew Y.S. Cheng - - The Honorable James Robertson; I

. The Honorable Samuel K. Feng The Honorable John K. Stewart
The Honorable Curtis E.A. Karnow The Honorable Richard B. Ulmer, Jr.

The Honorable Charlene P. Kiesselbach ~ The Honorable Mary E. Wiss

Parties interested-in Judicial Mediation should file a Stipulation to Judicial Mediation
indicating a joint request for inclusion in the program and deliver a courtesy copy to
Department -610. A preference for a specific judge may be indicated on the request, and
although not guaranteed due to the judge’s availability, every effort will be made to fulfill the
parties’ choice for a particular judge. Please allow at least 30 days from the filing of the form
to receive the notice of assignment. The court’s Alternative Dispute Resolution
- Administrator will facilitate assignment of cases that qualify for the program.

Note: Space and availability is limited. Submission of a stipulation to Judicial Mediation
does not guarantee inclusion in the program. You will receive written notification from the
court as to the outcome of your apphcatlon ‘

Alternative Dispute Resolution
400 McAllister Street, Room 103, San Francisco, CA 94102
(415) 551-3869

0712017 ja)
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Expedited Jury Trial Information Sheet

This information sheet is for anyone involved in a civil
lawsuit who will be taking part in an expedited jury
trial—a trial that is shorter and has a smaller jury thana
traditional jury triat. o

You can find the law and rules governing expedited
jury trials in Code of Civil Pracedure sections
630.01-630.29 and in rules 3.1545-3.1553 of the
California Rules of Court. You can find these at any
county law library or online. The statutes are online
at htp:/leginfo.legislature.ca.govifacesicodes. xhiml.
The rules are at wwiw.conrts.ca.govirules.

(1) What s an expedited jury trial?

An expedited jury trial is a short trial, generally lasting’
only one or two days. It is intended to be quicker and
less expensive than a traditional jury trial. .

As in a traditional jury trial, a jury will hear your case

and will reach a decision about whether one side has to

pay money to the other side. An expedited jury trial
differs from & regular jury trial in several important -
ways: _

o The trial will be shorter. Each side has 5 hours to
pick a jury, put on all its witnesses, show the jury
its evidence, and argue its case.

o The jury will be smaller. There will be 8 jurors

" instead of 12.

o  Choaosing the jury will be faster. The parties will
exercise fewer challenges.

@ What cases have expedited jury trials?

o Mandatory expedited jury trials. All limited civil
cases—cases where the demand for damages or the
value of propersty at issue is $25,000 or less—come
within the mandatory expedited jury trial

. procedures. These can be found in the Code of
Civil Procedure, starting at section 630.20. Unless
your case is an unlawful detainer (eviction) action,
or meets one of the cxceptions set out in the statute,
it will be within the expedited jury trial procedures.

‘These exceptions are explained more in @bslow.

o Voluntary expedited jury trials, If your civil
case is not a limited civil case, or even if it is,
you can choose to take part in a voluntary
expedited jury trial, if al the parties agree to do
s0. Voluntary expedited jury trials have the same
shorter time frame and smailer jury that the

mandatory ones do, but have one other
important aspect—all parties must waive their

_rights to appeal. In order to help keep down the.
costs of litigation, there are no appeals following
a voluntary expedited jury trial exceptin very
limited cirgumstances. These are explained more
Rully in @

* (3) Wil the case be in front of a judge?

The trial will take place at a courthouse and a judge, or,
if you agree, a temporary judge (a court commissioner or
an experienced attorney that the court appoints to act as
a judge) will handle the trial."

Does the jury have to reach a
unanimous decision?

Mo. Just as in a traditional civil jury trial, only three-
quarters of the jury must agrec in order to reach a
decision in an expedited jury frial. With 8 people on the '
jury, that means that at Jeast 6 of the jurors mustagree
on the verdict in an expedited jury trial,

@ Is the decision of the jury binding

on the parties?
Generally, yes, but not always. A verdict fromajury in -
an expedited jury trial is like a verdict in a traditional
jury trial. The court will enter a judgment based on the
verdict, the jury’s decision that one or more defendants
will pay money to the plaintiff or that the plaintiff gets
no money at all.

But partics in an expedited jury trial, like in other kinds
of trials, are allowed 10 make an agreement before the
trial that guarantees that the defendant will pay a certain
amount to the plaintiff even if the jury decideson a
lower payment or no payment. That agreement may also
put a cap on the highest amount that a defendant has to
pay, cven if the jury decides on a higher amount. These
agreements are known as “high/low agreements.” You
should discuss with your attorney whether you should
enter into such an agreement in your case and how it will

affect you.

@ How else is an expedited jury trial
different?

The goal of the expedited jury trial process is to have

shorter and less expensive trials,

o The cases that come within the mandatory expedited
jury trial procedures are all limited civil zctions, and
they must proceed under the limited discovery and .

Jugtd s Coundll of Callomia, wvay.courls ca gov
Ravised July 1. 2018, Mandalory Formn

Cotdo al Chit Procedurn, § 530.01-630.10

Co) Rules of Court, ruloa 3 1545-3,1553

Expedited Jury Trial Information Sheet
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Expedited Jury Trial Information Sheet

pretr:al rules that apply to those actions. See Code of
Civil Procedure sections $0-100.

e The voluntary expedited jury trial rules set up some
special procedures to help those cases have shorter
and less expensive trials, For example, the rules
require that several weeks before the trial takes
place, the parties show each other all exhibits and

. tel} each other what witnesses will be at the trial. In -
addition, the judge will meet with the attorneys
before the trial to work out some things in advance.

The other big difference is that the partics in cither kind
of expedited jury trial can make agreements about how
the case will be tricd so that it ¢can be tricd guickly and
effectively. These agreements may include what rules
will apply to the case, how many witnesses can testify
for each side, what kind of evidence may be used, and
what facts the parties already agree to and so do rot need
the jury to decide. The parties can agree to modify many
of the rules that apply to trials generally or'to any
pretrial aspect of the expedited jury trials,

Do 1 have to have an expedited jury

trial if my case is for $25,000 or less?
Not always. There are some éxceptions.

¢ The mandatory expedited jury trial procedures do
not apply to any unlawful detainer or eviction case.

= Any party may ask to opt out of the procedures if the
case meets any of the criteria set out in Code of Civil
Procedure section 630.20(b), all of which arc also
described in item 2 of the Request to Opt Out of
Mandatory Expedited Jury Trial (form EIT-003).
Any request to opt out must be made on that form,
and it must be made within a certain time period, as
set out in Cal. Rules of Court, rule 3.1546(c). Any
opposition must be filed within 15 days after the -
request has been served.

The remainder of this i.-gfanna!fan sheef applies only to
voluntary expedited jury trials.

Who can take part in a voluntary
expedited jury trial?

The process can be used in any civil case that the partics
agree may be tried in one or two days. To have a
voluntary expedited jury trial, both sides must want one.
Each side must agree to all the rules described in
and to waive most appeal rights. The agrezments
between the parties must be put into writing ina

document called [Proposed] Consent Order for
Voluntary Expedited Jury Trial, which will be submitted
to the court for approval. (Form EJT-020 may be used
for this.) The court must issue the consent order a3
proposed by the parties unless the court finds good cause
why the action should not praceed through the expedited
jury trial process,

Why do i give up most of my rights

to an appeal in a voluntary

expedited jury trial?
To.keep costs down and provide a faster end to the case,
all partics who agree to take part in a valuntary
expedited jury trial must agree to waive the right to
appeal the jury verdict or decisions by the judicial officer
concerning the trial unless one of the following happens:

s Misconduct of the judicial officer that mulerially
affected substantial rights of a party;

"o Misconduct of the jury; or

o  Corruption or fraud or some other bad act

that prevented a fiir trial.
In addition, parties may not ask the judge to set the jury
verdict aside, except on those same grounds, Neither you
nor the other side will be able to ask for a new tral on

.the grounds that the jury verdict was too high or too low,

that legal mistakes were made before or during the trial,
or that new evidence was found iater.

) .Can | change my mind after agreeihg
to a voluntary expedited jury trial?

No, unless the other side or the court agrees. Once you
and the other side have agreed to take part in a voluntary
expedited jury trial, that agrcement is binding on both
sides. It can be changed only if both sides want to
chanpe it or stop the process or if a court decides there
are good reasons the voluntary expedited jury frial
should not be used in the case, This is why it is
important to talk to your attorney hefore agreeing to a
voluntary expedited jury trial. This information sheet
does not cover everything you may need to know about
voluntary expedited jury trials. It only gives youan
overview of the process and how it may affect your
rights. You should discuss all the points covered here
and any questions you have zbout expedited jury
trinls with an attorney before agrecing to a voluntary
expedited jury trinl.

fevisod ity 1, 2016
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TELEPHONE NO.:
ATTORNEY FOR (Nama):
SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
400 McAllister Street
San Francisco, CA 84102-4514

PLAINTIFFIPETITIONER:

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

Case 4:18-cv-06278-HSG Document 1-4 Filed 10/12/18 Page 283 ef 298

’
N

ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY (Mame and address) FOR COURT USE ONLY

- . "CASE NUMBER:
STIPULATION TO ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION (ADR) . ‘
) DEPARTMENT 610 .

1) The parties m_areby stipulate that this action shall be submitted to the following ADR process:

O

[0 ° Other ADR process {describe)
2} The parties agree that the ADR Process shall be completed by (date):

Eari‘y Settlement Program of the Bar Assoclation of San Franclsco (BASF) - Pre-screened experienced allomeys provide
a minimum of 2 hours of seltiement conference time for a BASF administrative fee of $285 per party. Waivers are available to
those who qualify. BASF handlés nofification to all parles, confiict checks with the panelists, and full case

management. www.stbar.org/esp

Mediation Services of BASF - Experienced professional mediators, screened and approved, provide one hour of preparaﬂon
and the first two hours of mediation time for a BASF adminisirative fee of $296 per parly. Mediation time beyend that is charged
at the mediator’s hourly rate. Waivers of the administrative fee are available to those who qualify. BASF assisls parﬂes with
mediator selection, conﬂicls checks and full case management. www.sthar.oro/mediation

Private Mediation - Mediators and ADR provider erganizations charge by the hour or by the day, current markel rates. ADR
organizations may also charge an administrative fee. Partles may find experisnced mediators and organizations on the Intemet.

Judlclél Arbitration - Non-binding arbitration is avafiable to cases In which the amount in controversy Is $50,000 or less and né
equilable relief is sought The court appolnts a pre-screened arblirator who will issue an award. There Is no fee for this

program. www.sfsuperlorcourt.arg

Judicial Mediation - The Judicial Mediation program nffars medlation In civil litigation with & San Francisoo Superior Court
judge femiflar with the area of the law that rs the subject of the controversy. There s no fee for this program.

www.sfsuperjorcourt.org
Judge Requested (see list of Judges c_urréntly participating in the program):

Date range requested for Judicia! Mediation (from the filing of stipulation to Judiclal Mediation): -
O 30-90days ' [J90-120days [ Other (please specify)

3) ~ Plalntifi(s) and Defendant(s) further agree as follows:

Name of Party Stipulating . ~ Name of Party Stipulating

Name of Party or Attomey Executing Stipulation Name of Party or Aftorney Executing Sﬁpulalinn
Silgriature of Party or Attomey — . Slgnature of Parly or Atiomey

O pPiaintiff [0 Defendant (] Cross-defendant [ Plaintiff ] Defendant ] Cross-defendant
Dated: i Dated: '

3 Additlonal signature(s) attached

ADR-2 03/15 STIPULATION TO ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
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CRA-110

ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY (Nama, Siafe Sat numbsyr, 2nd sddrossk FORCOURT USE ONLY
. 1
. TELEFHONE RO @ i FAX KO, {Opfcasly:
E-AAIL ADDRESS (Cplionafy
ATTORNEY FOR (ama}, - .
SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF
MAIUNG ADDRESS:
CITY AND ZP CODE:
ERANCH NAME:
PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER:
DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:
CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT CASE NUMBER:
{Checkong): [ ] UNLIMITED CASE [ Lramep cAsE '
. (Amount demanded -+ {Amount demanded Is $25,000
" exceeds $25,000) or [ess) )
A CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE is scheduled as foltows: '
Date; - : Time: . . Dept.. . Div.: : .Room:
. | Address of court (if different from the address abovs);
] Notice of Intent to Appear by Telephone, by (name):

INSTRUCTIONS: All applicable boxes must be checked, and the specified information must be provided,

1. Party or pariles (answer ans):
a. [__] This statement is submilted by party {neme):
b. [ This statement Is submitted jointly by partles {names):

2. Complaint and cmss-complalnt (to be answerad by plainliffs and cross-campfainanfs only)
a. The complaint was filed on‘(dals):

b. (1 The cross-complaint, If any, was filed on (dafe):

3. Service (lo be answared by plaintifis end cross-complainanis only)
a L1 an parties named In the complaint and crass-complaint have been served, have appeared or have been dlsmlssed
b. [ The following pariles named in the complaint or cross-complaint .
(1) (] havenot been served (speaﬁr names and explain why noi):

2) I have be‘en served but have not appeared and have nol been dismissed (specify names):

{3) [ have had a default entered agalnst them (specify names):

¢ [ The {ollowing additienal parlles may be added (specify names, nalure of invelvement in case, and dale bywhfd)
they may be served):

4. Descriptlon of case
a. Type of case in L:l oumplalnl {7 cross-complaint (Describe, including causes of action):

: - Pago 1515
Fonm Adopend o Wandary Uso CASE MANAGEWMENT STATEMENT ' Ca kel Comt, -

CH%110 Rov July 1, gom ' wwcourts e gov
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CM-110

PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER: - CASE NUMBER:
DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

4. b. Provide a brief statement of the case, including any damages. {If personal injury demages are sought, specify the injury and
damages claimed, including medical expenses to dale findicale source and amouni], estimaled fulure madical expenses, losi
eamings lo dale, and estimated fulure lost eamings. If equileble rellef Is sought, dascribe the nature of the relist)

] {lfmam space Is nesdsad, check this box and altach a page deslgnafed as Attachment 4b)

5. Jury.or nonjury trial
The party or parties request [ a jury trial l: anonjury {dal.  (If more than ons party, provide the neme of each pariy
requesting a jury trial): . ' : n -

6. Trlal date
a. [_3 The tral has been set for {dafe)
b. [J No trial date has been set. Tl'us case will be ready for trial within 12 months of the date of lhe filing of the cemplaint (@ f
not, explain):

¢. Dates on which pa}ties or aﬂqmeys will not be avallable for Urial (specily dales and explain reasons for unavafllabllity):

7. Estimated length of trial
_ The party or pariies estimate that the trial will take (check one):
[ aays (specify number):
b. ] hours (short causes) (specify): - } s

8. Trial representation ({lo ko answered for each party)
The party or.pariles will be represented at trial 2] by the sitomey or party listed in the caplion [ by the following:
a.” ‘Attomey: ' . .
b. Fim:
¢. Address: . ; .
d. Telephone number. . ) . f. Fax number:
‘. E-mall address: . 9. Parly represented:
] Additlonal representation Is described in Aftachment 8.

9. Preference
[] This case is entitled to preference {specify cods ssction):

10. Alternative dispute resolution (ADR)

a. ADR information packags. Please note that different ADR processes are available in different courls and oommunlﬁes. read |
the ADR Information package provided by the coust under rule 3.221 for information about the processes aveilable through the o
court and community pregrams In this case, |

(1) For parles represented by counsel: Counsel (3 nes (31 has not provided the ADR information package identified
in rute 3.221 to the client and revlewed ADR opticns with the clienl.

(2) For seff-represented parlles: Parly ] has £ has not reviewad the ADR lnformatlnn paekage {dentified in nile 3.221.

b, Referral to judicial arbitratlon or civil actlon medlallnn (If available).

(1) [J This matter Is sublect to mandatory judicial arbltration under Code of Civil Procedure section 1144.11 or to civil action
mediation under Cede of Civil Prooedure sadlon 1775.3 because. the amount In controversy does not exceed the

statutory limit.

{2) ] Piaintiff elects to refer this case to Judicial arbilration and agrees to lim[t recovery {o the amount spadﬁed in Code of
Civil Procedure section 1141.11, :

(3) [) This case is exempt from judicial arbitration under mla 3.811 of the Califorma Rules of Courtor from cw[l action
mediation under Code o CM! Procedure seclon 1775.et seq. (specily exemplion):

Ch-110{Rov Ay 1, 2017) " CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT ' Fapait
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PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER: CASE NUMBER:

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

40. ¢. Indicate the ADR process or processes thal the party or parties are willing to participate in, have agreed to participate in, or
"have already participated in (check all that apply and provide the specified information): ’

The party or partles completing | If the parly or partles completing this form In the case have agreed to
this form are wllling to participate In or have already completed an ADR process or processes,
participate.in the following ADR | indicate the status of the processes (affach a copy of the pertes’ ADR
processes (check all that apply): | stipufation): i . )

Mediation sesslon not yet scheduled
M Médlallon 1 S Med!atlon sessfon scheduted for (dale):
Agresd to complete mediation by {dats):

Medlation completed on (dalé):'

Setllement conference not yel scheduled
Setilerment confarence scheduled for (date): ' S,
Agreed to complete settiement conference by (dafs): :

(2) Settlement —
conferance )

Settlement conference completed on (date):

Neutral evaluation not yet scheduled
(3) Neutral ovals aﬂIon l:l‘ . Neutral evaluation scheduled for {date):
. ) Agreed lo complete neutral evaluation by (dafe):

Neutrai evaluation completed on (dafe):'

Judiclal arbliration not yet scheduled

Judicial arbitration scheduled for (dats):

Agreed to complete judiclal arbitration by (dafe):
Judicial arbitration‘cumpleted on {dafe):

:(4) Nonbinding judicial :
arbitration g

Private arbitration not yet scheduled

Private arbllration scheduled for {dafs):

Agreed to complete private arbitration by (date):
Private arbitration complefed on (date):

{5} Binding private 3
arbltrafion

ADR session not el scheduled

ADR session scheduled for (date):

Agreed to complete ADR sesslon by (date):
ADR completed on (date):

(6} Other (specify): ) -

oooo{oooojoooo|oooo|oooo|ooon

Paped ofé

G0 fRor. 1y, 20m) CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
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CRV-110
PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER: : _ CASE NUIRGER

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

11. Insurance )
a. [ tnsurance carrier, if any, for party fiing this statement {name);
b. Reservation of rights: C1Yee T Ino
c. [ Coverage issues will significantly affect resolutlon of this case (explain):

12. Juﬂsdlcﬂon
Indicate any matlers that may affect the court's jurisdiction or processing of this case and describe the status
[} Bankruptcy 1 Other (specify):
Status:

13, Related cases, consolidation, and coordination
. [] There are companion, undertying, or refaled cases.
{1) Name of case:
{2) Name of courl:
{3) Case number:
(4) Status:

" [ Additional cases are described lnAllachmeni 13a. ) ' : : ;
b. T JAmotionto [ consolidete  [J coordinate  will be filed by (name perty):

14. Bifurcation

[ The party or pariles intend to file & motion for an order bifurcating, severirm. or coordinating the followlng issues r causes of
action (specty moving parly, lype of motlon, end reasons):

15. Othar motions .
3 mhe party or parntles exped {o fle the fuliowlng motions before trial (spedfy moving parly, lype of malfan, and isswes):

16. Discovery
a. CJme party or parﬂes have completed all discovery.
b [ The following discovery will ba completed by the dale specified (describe alf anlicipaled discovery):
Parly ' Description Date

c. [:} The following discovery Issues, Inc!udmg fssues regardtng the discovery of electronizally stored tnfcnnatlon. are
ant[cipated (spacify);

CM-110(Rev 2y 3, 201) CASE MAMAGEMENT STATERMENT . _ Pegodors
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‘ PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER: - . ' : : _ GASE NUMEER:

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

17. Economlc litigation

a. [_] This Is a limited civil case (i.e., the amount demanded is $25,000 or less) and the eoonornlc litigation procedures in Code
of Civil Procedure sections 90-93 will apply to this case.

b. (] This Is a limited civil case and a motion to withdraw the case from the economic lilgatioh procedures or for addiional
discovery will be filed (if checked, explain speaﬁca!!y why economic lft!ga!fon provedures relating to dfsoovaryorlnal
. should not apply te this case):

18. Othear issues

(] The party or pariles request that the following additional matters be considered or determined al the case management
. conferance (spectfy)

19. Meet and confer

‘8. [] The patty or parties have met and conferred with all parllea onall subjecis required by rule 3.724 of the California Rules
of Court (if not, explain):

b. After meeting and conferrlng as requtred by rule 3.724 of the Celifomia Rules of Court, the parties agree on the following
(specily): -

20, Total number of pages attached {if any):

| am completely familizt with this case and will be fully prepared to discuss the status of discovery and allemaﬁve dispute resolutlon,
as well as other issues ralsed by this stalement, and will poasess the authorily to enter into stipulations on these lssues atthe ims of
the case management conference including the written authority of the parly where required, .

" Date:

b

{TYPE OR PRINT NAME) ., [(BIGNATURE OF PARTY OR ATTORNEY)

(TYPE OR PRINT RAME) - I'BIGNA'IUREOFPARTYOHA'ITORNEY)
: [:] Addilional slignatures are attached.

Cl-11D [Rev. Juty 1, 2011) . CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT . Pago 5ar8
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Jennifer B. Zargarof (SBN 204382)
jzargarof(@sidley.com

Sonia A. Vucetic (SBN 307414)
svucetic@sidley.com

SIDLEY AUSTIN LLP

555 West Fifth Street

Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone: +1 213 896 6058
Facsimile: +1 213 896 6600

Attorneys for Defendants
CVS Health Corporation; CVS Pharmacy, Inc.;
Garfield Beach CVS, LLC; and CVS Rx Services,

Inc.

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

RYAN HYAMS, an individual, on behalf of
himself, and all others similarly situated, ,

Plaintiff,
VSs.

CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, a Rhode Island
Corporation; CVS PHARMACY, INC., a Rhode
[sland Corporation; GARFIELD BEACH CVS,
LLC, a California Corporation; and CVS RX
SERVICES, INC., a New York Corporation;
DOES 1 through 25, inclusive, ,

Defendants.

Case No. CGC-18-569060

Assigned to:  Hon. Teri L. Jackson
Dept. 610

ANSWER TO FIRST AMENDED
COMPLAINT

Complaint Filed: ~ August 21, 2018
FAC Filed: September 7, 2018
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Defendants CVS Health Corporation, CVS Pharmacy, Inc., Garfield Beach CVS, LLC and
CVS Rx Services, Inc. (collectively, “Defendants™) answer the First Amended Complaint

(“Complaint”) of Plaintiff Ryan Hyams (“Plaintiffs™) and deny and aver as follows:

GENERAL DENIAL

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 431.30 of the California Code of Civil Procedure,
Defendants generally deny all the allegations of Plaintiff’s unverified Complaint, and further deny
that Plaintiff has been damaged in any amount, or at all. Defendants also specifically deny that
they are liable to Plaintiff, or any member of the purported class asserted, for the sum or sums

alleged or for any other amount whatsoever.

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Failure To State a Cause of Action)
1. Neither the Complaint, nor any purported cause of action alleged therein,
states facts sufficient to constitute a cause of action upon which relief can be granted against
Defendant.

SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Statute of Limitations)
2. The Corhplaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred

by applicable statutes of limitations.

THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Lack of Standing)

3. Defendants are informed and believe, and based upon such information and
belief aver, that the Complaint, and each purported cause of action alleged therein, is barred
because Plaintiffs lacks standing to assert all causes of action alleged in the Complaint.

/1
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FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Waiver/Release)
4. Defendants are informed and believe, and based upon such information and
belief aver, that by their conduct and/or based on a written waiver or release, Plaintiffs and
putative class members have waived and/or released some or all of the causes of action asserted in

the Complaint.
FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Misrepresentation)
S. Defendants are informed and believe, and on that basis alleges that Plaintiffs’
Complaint is barred, in whole or in part, by misrepresentations made by Plaintiffs and/or putative

class members.

SIXTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Consent)
6. Plaintiff’s causes of action are barred, in whole or in part, because of the
ratification, agreement, acquiescence or consent to Defendants’ alleged conduct by Plaintiff and/or

putative class members.

SEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Unclean Hands)
7. Defendants are informed and believe, and based upon such information and
belief aver, that the Complaint, and each cause of action therein, is barred by the doctrine of

unclean hands.

EIGTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Laches)

8. Defendants are informed and believe, and based upon such information and
belief avers, that the Complaint, and each and every claim therein, is barred by the doctrine of
laches, in that Plaintiff unreasonably delayed bringing the action.

11/
/11
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NINTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Estoppel)
9. Defendants are informed and believe, and based upon such information and
belief aver, that the Complaint, and each cause of action therein, is barred for the reason that, by
their actions, Plaintiff and putative class membersv are estopped from bringing any cause of action.

TENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Adequacy of Remedy at Law)
10.  The Complaint’s claims for equitable relief fail because adequate legal

remedies may be pursued.

ELEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Setoft, Offset, Recoupment)
11.  Some of all of the purported causes of action in the Complaint seek damages

that are subject to setoff, offset, and/or recoupment.

TWELFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(No Penalties — Good Faith Dispute)
12.  Plaintiff and putative class members cannot recover California Labor Code
Section 226(e) penalties because any alleged failure to pay wages or provide compliant wage

statements was based on a good faith dispute regarding the applicable law or facts.

THIRTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Failure to Exhaust Administrative Remedies)

13. Defendants are informed and believe, and based upon such information and
belief aver, that the Court has no jurisdiction over the subject matter of the Complaint, or parts
thereof, because Plaintiff failed to adequately exhaust their administrative remedies under the
appropriate statutory provisions.

/1
1
/1
/1
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FOURTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Claims Subject to Arbitration Agreement)
14.  As to some members of the putative class, the Court lacks jurisdiction over
the Complaint, and each and every purported cause of action alleged therein, because they are

subject to a binding arbitration agreement with Defendants.

FIFTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Lack of Specificity)
15.  The Complaint’s claim for unfair competition in violation of California
Business and Professions Code Section 17200, et seq., is barred because it fails to plead specific

facts capable of stating a claim for violation of the unfair competition act.

SIXTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(No Loss/Unjust Enrichment)
16.  Plaintiff and/or putative class members have not suffered any loss and
Defendant has not been unjustly enriched as a result of any action or inaction of Defendants and

its agents. Hence, Plaintiffs and/or putative class members are not entitled to any restitution.

SEVENTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

17.  With respect to Defendants CVS Health Corporation, CVS Pharmacy, Inc.,
and Garfield Beach CVS, LLC, Plaintiff’s causes of action are barred, in whole or in part, because

no employment relationship exists.

RESERVATION OF RIGHT TO AMEND ANSWER

Defendant hereby gives notice that it intends to rely on such other and further defenses as
may become available during discovery in this action and reserves the right to amend its Answer
to assert any such defenses.

WHEREFORE, Defendant prays as follows:
1. That the Complaint be dismissed in its entirety;
2. That Plaintiff’s request for injunctive relief be denied in its entirety;
3. That Plaintiff’s requests for monetary relief be denied it its entirety;

4. That Plaintiff takes nothing by reason of his Complaint and that judgment be

5
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rendered in favor of Defendants;
5. That Defendants be awarded its costs of suit and attorneys’ fees incurred in

defense of this action; and

6. For such other and further relief as this court deems just and proper.
SIDLEY AUSTIN LLP
— 2
Date: October 10, 2018 By: _———& -

Jennifer B. Zargarof
Sonia A. Vucetic
Attorneys for Defendants

6
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PROOF OF SERVICE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) ss
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )

['am employed in the County of Los Angeles, State of California. I am over the age
of 18 years and not a party to the within action. My business address is 555 West Fifth Street, Los
Angeles, California 90013-1010.

On October 10, 2018, I served the foregoing document described as ANSWER TO FIRST

AMENDED COMPLAINT on all interested parties in this action as follows:

Beth Gunn

Catherine J. Coble

Gunn Coble LLP

101 S. First Street, Suite 407
Burbank, CA 91502

[ served the foregoing document by U.S. Mail, as follows: I placed true copies of the
document in a sealed envelope addressed to each interested party as shown above. I placed each
such envelope with postage thereon fully prepaid, for collection and mailing at Sidley Austin LLP,
Los Angeles, California. Under that practice, the correspondence would be deposited in the United
States Postal Service on that same day in the ordinary course of business.

[ declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is
true and correct.

Executed on October 10, 2018, at Los Angeles, California.

%ﬁfmm«z W lesy

Kristina Wilcox

PROOF OF SERVICE

236514893v.1
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Submitted: 10/10/2018 423 PM PT | Attorney: Jennifer Zargarof | Contact: Daniel Tamayo

Under court clerk review Court Transaction #100050499
10/10/2018 4:23 PM PT

MESSAGE FROM ONE LEGAL: The court has received your filing. This status will be updated and you will receive an
email immediately upon completion of the court clerk's review. Although court processing times vary, the court filing
date for accepted filings will reflect the date this order was submitted.
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Documents
Returned (0)

Documents will be available here once they are provided by the court's system.

Your Files (1)

Document Title Document Type Pages Status

Answer to First Amended Complaint Answer (Original) 7 Uploaded

Case Information

Court
San Francisco County, Superior Court of California (San Francisco-McAllister)

Number
CGC-18-569060

Title
RYAN HYAMS VS. CVS HEALTH CORPORATION, A RHODE ISLAND CORPORATION ET AL

Client Billing Code
3764323

Confirmation Receipt #21919807

Copyright © 2018 One Legal LLC
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